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One. Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the management team, I would like to express our heartfelt gratitude to all
of our shareholders for their support in the past year.

Looking back to 2023, although countries have emerged from the shadow of COVID, the
Russia-Ukraine war is still ongoing, and the conflict in the Caucasus has ignited new flames
of war in the Middle East. Governments in various countries are attempting to break through
the economic difficulties caused by high inflation. Over the past three years, the global
economy has experienced turbulent fluctuations. Under the requirement of grid parity and
continuous efforts to lower costs and improve efficiency, with governments around the world
actively promoting green energy policies, solar photovoltaic installations are growing at an
astounding pace. The solar industry has experienced significant fluctuations in polysilicon
prices. Downstream solar cell manufacturers have become more proactive in controlling costs
during procurement, and they also face fierce price competition from Chinese solar
conductive paste manufacturers. With the rapid rise of numerous paste manufacturers in
China, the research and development cycle has shortened, and product iterations have
accelerated, resulting in a significant reduction in profit margins. In 2023, the Company has
been actively rebuilding customer relationships after the pandemic slowed down. Even in this
challenging environment, the Company has not let its guard down and has continued to
strengthen its R&D capabilities and speed. It has also strictly managed inventory costs, which
has led to a rebound in solar conductive paste revenue in the second half of 2023, particularly
with a significant increase in shipments of the new N-type silver paste in December. During
the transition in battery technology roadmaps, the Company has pulled ahead with its N-type
silver paste. By leveraging its new paste products, the Company hopes to gradually increase
its gross and net profit margins, aiming to reclaim its position as one of the top three global
suppliers of solar conductive pastes.

The development of renewable energy has become a global consensus, and the policy
promotes the development of solar energy. The green and low-carbon transition is constantly
injecting new momentum into the global economic development. Countries are attaching
increasing importance to and continuously increasing their investments in the renewable
energy sector, with multiple policy incentives favorable to the development of renewable
energy. For example, in some countries, the German Federal Ministry for Economic Affairs
and Climate Action has formulated a 2023 photovoltaic industry development strategy to
ensure the achievement of the targets set in the Renewable Energy Sources Act. At the same
time, the German government plans to increase the solar power installed capacity to 215GW

by 2030. China is a global leader in the field of renewable energy, and a number of policies



have promoted the development of solar energy construction. Meanwhile, the second meeting
of the Central Committee for Deepening Overall Reform in China in July 2023 pointed out
that China's energy transformation has entered a new stage of development, transitioning from
the dual control of energy consumption to the dual control of carbon emissions, with the
development of renewable energy surging forward. At the same time, the cost of solar power
generation is decreasing year by year, and the economic effect is outstanding. According to
IRENA data, the global LCOE (Levelized Cost of Energy) for solar power, onshore wind, and
offshore wind were $0.445/kWh, $0.107/kWh, and $0.197/kWh respectively in 2010. By
2022, they had decreased to $0.049/kWh, $0.033/kWh, and $0.081/kWh respectively,
representing declines of -89%, -69%, and -59% over the 12-year period. The largest reduction
was in solar LCOE, and this dramatic cost decrease has further stimulated the demand for
solar power generation. Driven by global policies and demand, the installed capacity of solar
energy continues to be at a high level.

The demand for solar cells is expanding, and the release of N-type production capacity is
accelerating. As the installed capacity of terminal solar energy continues to grow, each link of
the industrial chain expands its production capacity accordingly. Given the clear trend
towards the N/P technology roadmap transition, N-type solar cells, with their higher
photovoltaic conversion efficiency, are gradually replacing PERC cells to become the market
mainstream. The penetration rate of N-type cells is expected to increase significantly from
2023 to 2030. According to industry announcements, LONGi, Jinko, TRW, and JA Solar will
reach the topcon cell production capacities of 30GW, 52.5GW, 40GW, and 40GW
respectively by the end of 2023. On the other hand, manufacturers such as BES, LONGi, and
AIC have also clearly chosen the route of HJT or BC batteries. The continuous improvement
of solar cell production capacity has promoted the increasing demand for solar conductive
silver paste in the battery production process.

Since zero emission has become the common ambition of all leading powers in the world,
renewable energy, including solar energy, has a promising future. The Company, in addition
to continuously refining the solar product line-up, proactively plans for businesses like
electric vehicles and semiconductors by exploring more material sources and developing
innovative processes that feature high yield and low material loss, with the attempt to be
anticipative in the future market of emerging applications with more revenue items, thereby
accomplishing the sound growth of the Company’s overall operation. Examples include the
cathode materials to be used in energy storage devices and in electric vehicles as produced by
Green Energy Electrode, Inc., the SiC anode materials developed by the Company, and the
semiconductor processes provided by Hua Hsu Optotech Co., Ltd. Considering the dynamics
of the global solar industry and the changing specifications of electronic products, the

Company has adopted a more diversified product portfolio and refined the Company’s



shareholder line-up, jointly being anticipative in the market of new applications. As the EV
industry further flourishes in the coming years, it is believed that the Company will run even

more steady operations with more profitable products.

Our management team and all employees share the same objective — to continue to create

maximum profit and company value for all shareholders!

We herein respectfully thank you, the shareholders, for your continued support and

encouragement you give this Company.

Summary of the Company’s Operational Report 2023 and Operational Plan 2024 is

provided below:
I. Consolidated Operational Report 2023
(I) Implementation Results of Business Plans

As governments around the world actively promote green energy policies, the number
of solar photovoltaic installations is growing at an amazing rate. However, the Company's
solar conductive paste is facing a severe challenge in terms of business promotion and
R&D cycle compared to many Chinese paste rivals. In 2023, the Company's consolidated
operating revenue was NT$2,958,411 thousand, a decrease of NT$2,696,434 thousand
compared to NT$5,654,845 thousand in 2022. The main reasons were the decrease in
revenue from solar conductive pastes in 2023, a significant decline in revenue of the
subsidiary Hua Xu Company due to the impact of the U.S.-China trade conflict, which
prevented the sale of its main product, silicon auxiliary materials, to China, and a decrease
in revenue of the subsidiary Xinhe Company as lithium ore prices plummeted and the
overall electric vehicle market conditions deteriorated due to competition among Chinese
electric vehicle manufacturers. In 2023, the Company's net loss after tax attributable to the
Company was NT$810,576 thousand, with a loss per share of NT$(8.82), a decrease
compared to the net profit after tax attributable to the Company in 2022. The main reasons
were the decrease in the Company's operating revenue compared to the previous year and

the increase in operating losses due to impairment losses.
(II) Budget Implementation

The Company did not make formal financial forecasts for 2023 yet the overall
business performance fairly answered to our internal business plan with the only exception
the price fluctuations throughout our supply chain due to the post-pandemic situation,

policy, and resulting economic distress.



(IIT) Financial Account and Profitability Analysis
1.Financial Account

In 2023, the Company's consolidated statements showed a net cash outflow of
NT$478 million from operating activities, a net cash outflow of NT$740 million
from investing activities, and a net cash inflow of NT$504 million from financing
activities. The cash and cash equivalents balance at the end of the period was
NT$2.077 billion. The main reasons were: in the fourth quarter, the revenue from
solar conductive pastes surged significantly, leading the Company to procure
materials in advance, and the accounts receivable at the end of the period had not
yet been collected, resulting in a net cash outflow from operating activities.
Investing activities were primarily related to the purchase of machinery and
equipment. The net cash inflow from financing activities was mainly due to an

increase in bank borrowings. Overall, the Company should be financially sound.
2. Profitability Analysis

In 2023, the Company was significantly impacted by the post-pandemic
situation and international trade wars, resulting in a substantial revenue reduction.
The net loss after tax attributable to the Company was NT$810,576 thousand, with
a loss per share of NT$(8.82), a decrease compared to the net profit after tax
attributable to the Company in 2022. The Company will continuously conduct
R&D of high-efficiency products, such as paste having good conversion
performance, and actively cut losses from reinvestments to look for new profit

sources.
(IV) R&D Overview

As for R&D, the Company has focused on working with our customers to
improve conversion efficiency of solar cells, and has adapted appearances or features
of our products to our customers’ processes and product structures, so as to offer

paste materials advantageously in terms of conversion efficiency, quality, and cost.

N-type Topcon silver paste has become a mainstream product in the market. The
Company's N-type Topcon silver paste has been certified by multiple customers and
highly recognized for its fine-line printing capability. In addition to continuous
efficiency improvements through R&D efforts, by constantly connecting with
customers and upstream and downstream industries, the high-quality and efficient
N-type silver paste enables customers to achieve stable production, driving shipment

volume and revenue growth.



II. Summary of Business Plan 2024
(I) Business Orientation

2023 marked a watershed year for the rapid advancement of N-type Topcon
solar cell technology, with costs and prices quickly converging to those of P-type
PERC solar cells. Due to their efficiency advantage, N-type Topcon solar cell
production lines have been established at a rapid pace, akin to mushrooms sprouting
after rain. In the coming year, N-type Topcon will comprehensively replace P-type
PERC as the dominant market force. For Topcon structures, front-side silver paste
and rear-side silver paste are responsible for the contact resistance of the boron-doped
and phosphorus-doped surfaces, respectively. The Company has invested more than 5
years of technological reserves in the research of Topcon front and rear silver pastes.
Its products have been introduced into the production lines of tier-one leading
manufacturers, and it is actively expanding its customer base among tier-one leading
companies. By customizing paste material formulations to accommodate customers'
unique process conditions, the Company enhances the cost-performance ratio of its
products and maintains market competitiveness, earning certifications and orders
from multiple tier-one leading manufacturers. Front-side silver paste accounts heavily
for production costs of cells while being determinative to efficiency of cells. In view
that customers place the greatest importance on efficiency and yield rate, the
Company unceasingly improve its products in terms of efficiency, quality, and
printability by introducing new formulas and this is expected to drive significant

increase in overall shipments.

Concerning the Company’s business orientation, from the perspective of markets,
we have extensive customer bases in the Asia-Pacific region and India. Most
importantly, the Company has set up service offices in Taiwan and Mainland China
to cover more than 90% of its cell customers. The primary goal of our production
strategy is to increase production efficiency. We particularly maintain offices in
Yancheng in China to provide our customers with proximal and convenient services,

and these locations are also where we have remote backup systems in place.
(IT) Expected Sales and Basis

According to InfoLink, the global demand for device in 2023 came in at 41 1GW.
In 2024, the demands for solar energy will rise again, with the expected demand
coming to 474GW after a 16% increase . The Company will always use our
advantages in R&D and financial strength to maintain our position as a top-four

supplier in terms of global market share, with the attempt to make our turnover higher
in 2024 than in 2023.



(IIT) Major Policies for Production and Sales

1.

The policies include: to improve our production yield and bargaining power, so as
to continuously reduce costs in all aspects;

to refine product quality and to develop products having high conversion
efficiency;

to enhance operation of Yancheng Giga Solar Materials Corporation, our
subsidiary, and to increase our market share in China; and

to construct competent mass manufacturing and laboratory facilities, so as to have

the capability of developing custom products.

III. Company Development Strategies

ey

(1)

(I10)

V)

V)

The strategies include: to have insight into downstream demands; improve and
introduce back-side silver paste and front-side silver paste; and enhance production
efficiency and yield while lowering production costs, so as to offer competitive

customer prices;

to raise the competition threshold by improving conversion efficiency and
enhancing quality features, thereby providing customer with a more comprehensive
portfolio of silver paste and aluminum paste as well as efficient and quality

services;

to actively apply our years of experience in cell materials to currently prevailing
EV-related topics, so as to market cathode and anode materials.

to horizontally expand specialty pasty applications, so as to be anticipative in new
application markets; and

to branch out into business of semiconductor processes by re-investing Hua Hsu

Company.

I'V. Impacts from External Competition, Regulatory Climate, and Macro Economy

(I) External Competition Environments

The global solar paste market used to be dominated by foreign companies, which

have now faded away due to reduced profit margins over these years. The current

leading companies in the paste market are mainly from China, with a total market

share of more than 50%.



With its excellent products and attentive after-sales services, the Company has
successfully gained a firm foothold in the highly competitive market in China. By
promoting business through both direct sales and distributors and providing direct
services by our in-house technicians, the Company has successfully maintained its

position as one of the top four dealers in the world.

The solar paste business has become increasingly fierce as more and more
competitors join the industry recently. Fortunately, given that solar paste products
have to pass severe reliability demonstration tests and satisfy the customers’
expectation for high conversion efficiency plus the fact that solar modules usually
have long service time up to 20 years, these technical requirements prevent small
players from entering the market as it is difficult for them to control the costs and

have competitiveness based on economies of scale.
(IT) Regulatory Environment

With the strong support for renewable energy from governments, solar power
looks promising in the long run. On the other hand, in the short term, the
government’s subsidy policy can drive significant changes in end customer demands

and have impacts on supply—demand balance of upstream materials.
(IIT) Macro Economy

Although the total installed capacity of solar energy worldwide will double in
the next decade, the annual newly installed capacity of solar energy worldwide will
slow down from 2024. The era of persistent supply shortages and rising prices in the
solar industry is no longer. However, the net-zero carbon emission target and the
importance of energy self-sufficiency will continue to support market demand.
Nevertheless, the solar industry faces challenges such as a significant increase in
production capacity, inventory backlogs, and technological transitions, resulting in a
complex dynamic market situation in 2024. Despite these challenges, the Company
actively rebuilt customer relationships with its N-type silver paste in 2023 and
rebounded in the second half of the year. In this harsh environment, the Company
anticipates that its N-type silver paste will allow it to overtake competitors and regain

its position as one of the top three global suppliers of solar conductive pastes.

In view of the foregoing changes in the external environment, the Company keep
monitoring market demand changes, regulatory changes in different countries, the
macro economy, and industrial competition, so as to take relevant actions promptly.
To protect our selling process from raw materials’ price fluctuation, the Company
adopts a solid and effective mechanism to hedge raw material process and conduct
sophisticated stock management. Also, the Company protects its business from risks



related to fluctuations of silver prices, exchange rates and interest rates by making
wise financial plans, striving for the best returns for clients, employees, and all
shareholders.

Chairperson: Chen Chi-Ming

Managerial personnel: Huang Wen-Jui

Finance Officer: Wang Tsai-Hua
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Two. Company Profile

Date of Incorporation: July 11, 2003 in the Republic of China

Addresses and Phones of Head Office, Branch, and Factory:
Name Address

Phone

Head Office 1F., No. 3, Gongye 1st Rd., Hsinchu Industrial
Park, Hukou Township, Hsinchu County
Shinfong Factory No. 18, Zigiang Rd., Hukou Township, Hsinchu
County
Taoyuan Science ) o
) No. 789, Baiyu 3rd Rd., Guanyin Dist., Taoyuan
Industrial Park

Cit
Factory Y

Company History

(03)598-1886

(03)598-1886

(03)598-1886

The Company was initially established as a cosmetics dealer, and later changed its

business field to improve profitability by issuing 10,000 thousand shares new shares in

September 2008 due to acquisition of shares of the photovoltaic material division of

Gigastorage Corporation. Since then, the Company has focused on solar paste business.

In order to provide a complete overview of the Company’s history, some milestones

achieved by the photovoltaic material division of Gigastorage Corporation are also

incorporated herein.

Time Chronicle of Events
July 2003 The Company established Shinkang Technology Co., Ltd with a
paid-in capital of NT$1,000 thousand.
September Gigastorage Corporation joined Leading Product Development
2006 Program supported by the Industrial Development Bureau and started

development of solar paste products.

June 2007 The photovoltaic material division of Gigastorage Corporation

accomplished mass production and selling of solar conductive

aluminum paste.

August 2007 The photovoltaic material division of Gigastorage Corporation was

granted a subsidy for solar conductive silver paste by Industrial

Development Bureau through Leading Product Development

Program.

October 2008 The Company issued 10,000 thousand new shares for acquisition of

shares of the photovoltaic material division from Gigastorage

Corporation, with a paid-in capital reaching NT$101,000 thousand.



November
2008
August 2009

September
2009
October 2009

November
2010
June 2011
December
2011
June 2012

August 2013

November
2014

May 2015
January 2016

March

November
2018
December
2020

August 2022

June 2023

April 2024

The Company changed the Company’s name to Giga Solar Materials
Corporation.

The Company increased cash capital of NT$100,000 thousand, with
the paid-in capital after increase reaching NT$201,000 thousand.
The Company started its public offering.

The Company applied for registration as an emerging stock company
at TPEx.
The Company applied for TPEx listing.

The Company established a subsidiary in Suzhou, China.

The Company established a branch and a production base in Tainan
Science Park.

The Company completed Tainan Power Farm — the largest single-area
ground-mounted solar photovoltaic system in Taiwan.

The Company purchased a golf course in Fukushima, Japan for
building a 7MW solar power generation system.

The Company completed power plants in Chiba and Japan, with a
total capacity of about 2.34MW.

The Company completed 17MW grid-connection in Fukushima,
Japan and started selling electricity.

The Company established a subsidiary in Yancheng, China.

The Company cancelled the registration of its Tainan Science Park
branch.

The Company established Shinfong Factory and received factory

registration thereof.

The Company merged Exojet Technology Corporation.

The Company increased cash capital of NT$160,000 thousand, with
the paid-in capital after increase reaching NT$918,830 thousand.
The Company established a factory in Taoyuan Technology and
Industry Park and received factory registration thereof.

The Company completed 3.6MW grid-connection in Wakayama,

Japan and started selling electricity.

10
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2. Functions of Department

Department Major Function
Chairperson |To supervise and direct General Manager to conduct all business of the Company
To detect defects of the company-wide internal control system and measure
. operational efficiency, to prepare audit reports, to give advice for improvement
Audit Office . .2 . :
promptly, to reasonably secure continuous and effective implementation of the internall
control system, and to assist the management in performing its responsibility.
General To execute the resolution of the Board of Directqrs, to comprehengively manage the
operation of the whole company, to conduct coordination, to set business goals, and to
Manager . . . . :
direct and supervise departments and units to function as intended.
Legal Affair |To provide professional advice for litigation and legal affairs related to the Company,
Office to review contracts, and to manage patents and other intellectual property rights.
Stock Affairs &
Public To comprehensively manage the Company’s relationship with investors and the press,
Relations  |and to plan and implement public-relation activities.
Office
Environmental | To protect employees’ safety and health, to prevent occupational accidents, to provide
Safety Room |workplaces that are safe and satisfy pollution control criteria
Administration . . . . )
To manage general services and administrative as well as supportive operations.
Department
To plan and implement accounting systems, to review various transactions for|
Finance rationality and legality, to conduct taxation planning and financial management, to
Division control and manage budgets, to conduct treasury management, and to analyze,
compare and use financing tools.
Procurement To handle purchase and procurement for the whole company.
Department
Human To manage human resources, recruitment, retirement, and leave, to manage
Resources |compensation and employee benefits, and to plan and implement employee education
Department |and training.
Information |To design, set up and maintain information systems, to maintain personal information
Services peripheral equipment, to manage control rooms, and to handle information security
Department |and back up of information systems.
Factory Affairs To manage utilities and sewage
Department
To arrange and coordinate productivity and capacity, to build and manage
manufacturing process activities, to address manufacturing process problems, and to
monitor and control workflows.
To promote sales and provide customer services, to collect information on markets and
competitors, to set sales targets and sales forecasts, to prepare quotations, to receive
P orders, to ship products, to handle customer complaints and discounts, to control,
roduct Group

manage and collect receivables, and to deal with customs affairs.

To develop new products, to research innovative technologies, to plan and implement
product design activities, and to manage and verify quality experiments and
specifications about new product development.

To, internally, improve product quality, and to, externally, provide customers with
technical services.
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Table 1: Major Shareholders of Juristic Person Shareholders

April 9, 2024

Name of Shareholding
Juristic Person Major Shareholders of Juristic Person Shareholder (%)
Shareholder (%)
Chen Chi-Ming 4.03 %
Chen Su-Hui 2.58 %
Vision Holdings Ltd. 2.28 %
Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund, A Series 198 %
of Vanguard International Equity Index Funds ' ’
) Li Shu-Hui 1.27 %
Gigastorage . )
) JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., Taipei Branch in custody for
Corporation _ ‘
Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund, a series of 1.18 %
Vanguard Star Funds
Tron Energy Technology Corporation 1.09 %
Chen Min-Min 0.97 %
Wu, His-Kun 0.95 %
Ko Ju-Yun 0.65 %
Hong-Yang Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. 97.95 %
Venture Bao Xin International Investments Limited
Capital Co., 2.05 %
Ltd.
Sincere ) ) )
) Cathay United Bank in custody for Public Interest Trust
Holding Co., . 100 %
Lid Yeats Social Welfare Fund
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Table 2: Major Shareholders of Shareholders in Table 1 with Major Shareholders are

Juristic Persons:

April 9, 2024

Name of

Juristic Person Major Shareholders of Juristic Person Shareholder Shareiloldmg
(%)
Shareholder
Jixing International Co., Ltd., British Virgin Islands 80.00 %
Huang Min-Chi 8.30 %
Vision Lu Hui-Chiang 3.86 %
Holdings Ltd. | Lin Shu-Ling 4.46 %
Huang Mei-Yun 2.38 %
JadeYale-CY Company Limited 1.00 %
Bradbury Strategic Investment Fund A, British Cayman
13.33 %
Islands
Giga Solar Materials Corporation 10.40 %
Li Chi-Lin 9.84 %
Tron Energy Wang Yuan—Hung 9.05 %
Technology | Wang Zhi-Wei 3.31 %
Corporation | Huang Chen-Sheng 2.98 %
Shiang En Investment Co., Ltd. 2.44 %
Lu Tai Investment Co., Ltd. 2.19%
Hsieh Yu-Lun 1.67 %
Fu Hwa Innovation Co., Ltd. 1.67 %
Terry Gou 12.56 %
Citibank in custody for Singapore Government Investment
2.78 %
Account
Labor Pension Fund (the New Fund) 1.64 %
Standard Chartered Bank in custody for Liechtenstein Bank
1.20 %
Investment Account
Hon Hai JPM in custody for Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock 1.19 %
Precision Index Fund
ccis JPM in custody for Vanguard Total International Stock
Industry Co., . 1.14 %
Ltd Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star Funds
) Citibank in custody for Norwegian Central Bank 1 o
.06 %
Investment Account
Citibank in custody for Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., 1.06 %
Ltd. Depositary Receipt Account ) ?
CTBC Bank in custody for Yuanta Taiwan Excellence 50 0.89 %
Standard Chartered Bank - iShares Emerging Markets ETF
0.82 %
Investment Account
Bao Xin
International Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. 100.00 %
Investments
Limited
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2. Information on Professional Qualification of Directors and Independence of
Independent Directors:

Concurrently|
serving as an
independent
Criteria, . . . . director in
Name Professional Qualification & Experience Independence other
publicly
listed
companies
The corporate shareholder of GAS CORPORATION
which holds more than 38.07% of the issued shares of
@ Department of Bankine and Insurance the Company, and the largest shareholder of the
Ferrl) Chia Universit ¢ , Company.
oB s Incumbent Chy' £ th Mr. Jiming Chen also acted as the Chairman of the
cing incumbent Lhairperson ot the . |Board of Directors of Guoshuo Company.
Company, serving as Chairperson of public )
. . . . . Being a natural-person shareholder who does not hold
Gigastorage listed Gigastorage Corporation; Having shares, together with those not held by the person’s
. Corporation experience in leading boards of directors in » 108 ) ythe p
Directors Representative: Chen |  many companics spouse, minor children, or held by the person under 0
ChIi) Min ’ ° MorZ thanp20 cars of banking and others’ names, in an aggregate of one percent or more
& financial ex 311 N & of the total number of issued shares of the company or
ancial experience . ranking in the top 10 in holdings.
® Having more than five years of professional . ) .
experience in commercial affairs, business None of the cireumstances sp ccified in Pa'ragr aph 3 and
affairs and financial affairs ? Paragraph 4 of Article 26-3 of the Securities and
Exchange Act.
Free from any of the circumstances referred to in
Article 30 of the Company Act
The corporate shareholder of GAS CORPORATION
which holds more than 38.07% of the issued shares of
@ Department of Chemical Engineerin the Company, and the largest shareholder of the
P . he & Company.
Chinese Culture University .
@ Having experience in acting as directors of Being a natural-pgrson shareholder who does not flOld
Gigastorage listed company and running boards of shares, together with those not held by the person’s
Corporation directors in many companies spouse, minor children, or held by the person under
Directors P . . Y P . . |others’ names, in an aggregate of one percent or more 0
Representative: Chen |® Having more than 10 years of experience in .
Chi-Hsing energy system development and public of the total number of issued shares of the company or
relationshi ranking in the top 10 in holdings.
@ Havin moI;e than five vears of professional None of the circumstances specified in Paragraph 3 and
< rign in busin yff i p Paragraph 4 of Article 26-3 of the Securities and
experience in business affairs Exchange Act.
Free from any of the circumstances referred to in
Article 30 of the Company Act
The corporate sharecholder of GAS CORPORATION
which holds more than 38.07% of the issued shares of
the Company, and the largest shareholder of the
Company.
. . . . Being a natural-person shareholder who does not hold
[ J .
?;fgﬁi’ Il\jlr;clit:;:;ltsyEnglneermg, National shares, together with those not held by the person’s
Gigastorage ® Having experience in running boards of spouse:,, minor c'hlldren, or held by the person under
Corporation directors in many companies others’ names, in an aggregate of one percent or more
Directors P Y P of the total number of issued shares of the company or 0

Representative: Lin
Jiang-Ching

® Having more than 5 years of experience in
green energy systems

® Having more than five years of professional
experience in business affairs

ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

Not having a marital relationship or a relative within the
second degree of kinship with any other director.

None of the circumstances specified in Paragraph 3 and
Paragraph 4 of Article 26-3 of the Securities and
Exchange Act.

Free from any of the circumstances referred to in
Article 30 of the Company Act
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Concurrently|
serving as an

independent
Name Criteria Professional Qualification & Experience Independence dlrztcﬁgi mn
publicly
listed
companies
A corporate shareholder of Chun-Ru Investment Co.,
® Doctorate, Graduate Institute of Medicine, |Ltd., to which the Company holds more than 0.36% of
Kaohsiung Medical University the Company's outstanding shares.
® Having served as professors and lecturers |Being a natural-person shareholder who does not hold
in public and private colleges and shares, together with those not held by the person’s
Chun-Ru Investment universities for courses related to the spouse, minor children, or held by the person under
Directors Co., Ltd. business field in which the Company others’ names, in an aggregate of one percent or more 0
Representative: Chen | operates; Having experience in biomedical |of the total number of issued shares of the company or
Su-Hui industry ranking in the top 10 in holdings.
® Having experience in running boards of None of the circumstances specified in Paragraph 3 and
directors in listed companies Paragraph 4 of Article 26-3 of the Securities and
® Having more than five years of professional| Exchange Act.
experience in business affairs Free from any of the circumstances referred to in
Article 30 of the Company Act
The corporate shareholder of Sincere Holding Co., Ltd.
which holds more than 5.10% of the issued shares of
the Company, and one of the top ten shareholders of the
® Master’s, Graduate Institute of Company.
Photovoltaics, National Chiao Tung Being a natural-person shareholder who does not hold
University shares, together with those not held by the person’s
. . ® Having served as directors in experience in |spouse, minor children, or held by the person under
Sincere Holding Co., TPEx listed ios: havi . thers’ . te of t
. Ld. TPEx listed companies; having experience  |others’” names, in an aggregate of one percent or more
Directors _ in leading boards of directors in listed of the total number of issued shares of the company or 0
Representative: Hsu . . . .
Chin-Jung companies ' ' ranking in the top 10 in hgldmgs. ' .
® Having more than 10 years of experience in|Not having a marital relationship or a relative within the
the semiconductor industry second degree of kinship with any other director.
® Having more than five years of professional| None of the circumstances specified in Paragraph 3 and
experience in business affairs Paragraph 4 of Article 26-3 of the Securities and
Exchange Act.
Free from any of the circumstances referred to in
Article 30 of the Company Act
The corporate shareholder of Hong-Yang Venture
Capital Co., Ltd. which holds more than 10.08% of the
issued shares of the Company, and the second largest
shareholder of the Company.
® Doctorate, Graduate Institute of Materials |Being a natural-person shareholder who does not hold
Science and Engineering, National Taiwan |shares, together with those not held by the person’s
University spouse, minor children, or held by the person under
Hong-Yang Venture ® Havi . . ine boards of thers® . te of t
_ Capital Co., Ltd, laving experience in running boards o others’ names, in an aggregate of one percent or more
Directors ’ directors in TPEx registered companies of the total number of issued shares of the company or 0

Representative: Wu
Yi-Tso

® Having more than ten years of experience
in the energy storage material industry

® Having more than five years of professional
experience in business affairs

ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

Not having a marital relationship or a relative within the
second degree of kinship with any other director.

None of the circumstances specified in Paragraph 3 and
Paragraph 4 of Article 26-3 of the Securities and
Exchange Act.

Free from any of the circumstances referred to in
Article 30 of the Company Act
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Concurrently|
serving as an

independent
Criteria Professional Qualification & Experience Independence director in
Name other
publicly
listed
companies
. 9 3 . .
Master’s, Graduz_lte In_stltute of Aerospace, A managerial officer who also serves as the President of]
Cheng Kung University
) the Company.
® Being Incumbent General Manager of the .
C . . Being a natural-person shareholder who does not hold
ompany, serving as Representative of . R
. x . shares, together with those not held by the person’s
Juristic Person Chairperson of TPEx . )
. S . spouse, minor children, or held by the person under
registered Hua Hsu Silicon MaterialsCo., it .
. . . . others’ names, in an aggregate of one percent or more
Ltd., and having experience in running .
. . . of the total number of issued shares of the company or
. . boards of directors in many public listed o . .
Directors  |Huang Wen-Jui . . ranking in the top 10 in holdings. 0
and TPEXx listed companies . . X . . s
. . . _|Not having a marital relationship or a relative within the
® Having more than 20 years of experience in oo .
S second degree of kinship with any other director.
the materials industry . . .
. . None of the circumstances specified in Paragraph 3 and
® Having more than ten years of experience . ..
. L Paragraph 4 of Article 26-3 of the Securities and
in the energy storage material industry
. . Exchange Act.
® Having more than five years of professional . .
; . ; . . Free from any of the circumstances referred to in
experience in commercial affairs, business )
) . . Article 30 of the Company Act
affairs and financial affairs
® EMBA, Chiao Tung University (1) Not an employee of the Company; nor an employee
® Serving as the convener of the Company’s of its affiliated enterprises.
Audit and Remuneration Committee (2) Not a director or supervisor of the Company; nor a
® Having passed the national CPA director or supervisor of its affiliated enterprises;
examination and holding professional and not a director or supervisor of the Company, nor a
technical certificates director or supervisor of its affiliated enterprises
Independent ® Senior Vice General Manager and CFO, (provided that this shall not apply where the
DireE tor Lo Shih-Wei Chipbond Technology Corporation director/supervisor is an independent director of the 2
® Having served as independent directors in Company or its parent company, and any company
TPEx listed and public listed companies; of which a majority of shares with voting right are
having experience in leading boards of held by the Company directly or indirectly).
directors in many companies (3) Not being a natural-person shareholder who holds
® Having more than 5 years of working shares, together with those held by the person’s
experience required by business, spouse, minor children, or held by the person under
accounting, and finance of the Company others’ names, in an aggregate of one percent or
® Doctorate, Chemical Engineering, Carlson more of the total number of issued shares of the
University (US) company or ranking in the top 10 in holdings.
® Serving as a commissioner in the (4) Not being the spouse, a relative within the second
Company’s Audit and Remuneration degree of kinship, or a lineal relative within the third
Committee degree of kinship, of a managerial officer under (1)
©® General Manager, Photovoltaic Device or any of the persons listed in (2) and (3).
Development Group, WIN Semiconductors |(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a juristic
Independent Chane Wen-Min Corp. person shareholder which directly owns more than 0
Director & & ® Having experience in running boards of 5% of the Company’s outstanding shares; nor a

directors in TPEx listed companies

® Having more than 10 years of experience in
the semiconductor and specialty wafer
industry

® Having more than 5 years of working
experience required by business and
operation of the Company

director, supervisor or employee of the top five
juristic person shareholder which are owners of the
Company’s issued shares (provided that this shall
not apply to independent directors appointed in
accordance with Subarticle 1 or 2, Article 27 of the
Company Act or the laws and regulations of the

local country by, and concurrently serving as such
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Concurrently|
serving as an

independent
Criteria Professional Qualification & Experience Independence director in
Name other
publicly
listed
companies
® Master’s, Graduate Institute of Business at, a public company and its parent or subsidiary or
Management National Sun Yat-sen a subsidiary of the same parent).
University (6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a
® Serving as a commissioner in the company in which a majority of the Company’s
Company’s Audit and Remuneration director seats or voting shares and those of any other
Committee company are controlled by the same person
Independent| -, . . ® Chairperson, Solarfarm Corporation (provided that this shall not apply to independent
) Chiu Hsin-Fu . . . : . . . . 0
Director ® Having experience in leading boards of directors appointed in accordance with the Act or
directors in many companies the laws and regulations of the local country by, and
® Having more than 10 years of experience in concurrently serving as such at, a public company
the green energy industry and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the
® Having more than 5 years of working same parent).
experience required by business, finance, [(7) Not a director (or governor), supervisor, or
and operation of the Company employee of a specified company or institution who
is the same person as or a spouse of the Company’s
chairperson, general manager, or a person holding
an equivalent position of the Company.
(8) Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder
holding five percent or more of the shares, of a
specified company or institution that has a financial
or business relationship with the Company. (Not
applicable to independent directors appointed in
accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations
of the local country by, and concurrently serving as
such at, a public company and its parent or
subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent, if the
® Doctorate, Graduate Institute of Materials specified company or institution holds 20 percent or
Science and Engineering, Taiwan University more and no more than 50 percent of the total
® Serving as a commissioner in the number of issued shares of the public company.)
Company’s Audit and Remuneration (9) Not a professional individual who, or an owner,
Committee partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole
® R&D, Technology & Business Vice General proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution
Manager, Porite Taiwan Co., Ltd. that, provides auditing services to the Company or
Independent || o pp oy ® Having experience in running boards of any affiliate of the Company, or that provides 0
Director g directors in companies commercial, legal, financial, accounting, or related

® Having more than 20 years of experience in
the materials industry

® Having more than ten years of experience
in the energy storage material industry

® Having more than 5 years of working
experience required by business and
operation of the Company

services to the Company or any affiliate of the
Company for which the provider in the most recent
two fiscal years has received cumulative
compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse
thereof. Yet this restriction does not apply to a
member of the remuneration committee, public
tender offer review committee, or special committee
for merger/consolidation and acquisition, who
exercises powers pursuant to the Act or to the
Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related
laws or regulations.

(10) Not having a marital relationship or a relative
within the second degree of kinship with any other
director.

(11) Free from any of the circumstances referred to in
Article 30 of the Company Act

(12) Not being elected as the government, a Juristic
Person, or its representative as defined in Article
27 of the Company Act.
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3. Independence and Diversity of Directors:

The Company has “Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles” in place in which the
board’s structure and its member diversity are provided.
As provided, for optimizing the board’s structure, the composition of the board of directors
shall be determined by taking diversity into consideration.

It is advisable that the number of directors concurrently serving as managerial personnel not
exceed one-third of the total number of the board members, and that an appropriate policy on
diversity based on the company’s business operations, operating dynamics, and development
needs be formulated and include, without being limited to, the following two general
standards:

I. Basic requirements and values: gender, age, nationality, and culture.
II. Professional knowledge and skills: a professional background (e.g. law, accounting,
industry, finance, marketing, or technology), professional skills, and industry experience.

All board members shall possess the knowledge, skills, and characters needed to exercise
their duties. In order to achieve the goals of corporate governance, the board as a whole
should have the following capabilities:

I. Ability to make operational judgments. II. Accounting and financial analysis.
III. Business administration. IV. Crisis management.

V. Industry Knowledge. VI. Vision of the global market.

VII. Leadership. VIII. Decision-Making Ability.

The members are professionals each possessing advanced expertise in operational strategies,
management, industry, finance, and accounting, expected to provide the Company with
professional advice from diverse perspectives.

ey Diversity Considerations independent concurrentl Ability to Accountin,
sty ; : . . . director . Y make & Business Crisis Industry Vision of the . Decision-Mak

Nationality | Gender Age - serving as L and financial PR ; Leadership X i

Name Service Term employees x_)pglauonal analysis administration| management | Knowledge [ global market ing Ability

judgments

Gigastorage Corporation Republic of 61-70 years v v v v v v v

Representative: Chen Chi-Ming China Male old —

Gigastorage Corporation Republic of 71-80 years v v v v v v

Representative: Chen Chi-Hsing China Male old —

Gigastorage Corporation Republic of 61-70 years v v v v v v v

Representative: Lin Jiang-Ching China Male old —

Chun-Ru Investment Co., Ltd. Republic of 71-80 years v v v v v v

Representative: Chen Su-Hui China Female old -

Sincere Holding Co., Ltd. Republic of 71-80 years v v v v v v v

Representative: Hsu Chin-Jung China Male old B

Hong-Yang_Venture Qapital Co., Ltd. Re]_)ublic of Male 51-60 years -~ v v v v v v v

Representative: Wu Yi-Tso China old

Huang Wen-Jui R‘e]_)ubhc of Male 61-70 years -~ v v v v v v v v v
China old

Lo Shih-Wei Republic of -y p . | S1-60years |50 oo v v v v v v v
China old

~ . Republic of 61-70 years ) v v v v v v v

Chang Wen-Ming China Male old 3-9 years

Chiu Hsin-Fu Republic of |y p,o | S1-60 years |3 g oo v v v v v v v v
China old

F—_— Republic of 51-60 years 3 v v v v v v v
Li Hui-Lung China Male old 3-9 years

The Company currently has 11 board members, including 4 independent directors.
Independent directors accounted for 36%, and all of them had more than 3 years of service.
Female directors account for 9%, and directors who are also employees account for 9%.

4 directors are aged 51-60, 4 directors are aged 61-70, and 3 directors are 71-80 years old.
The Company’s Board of Directors exercises its powers independently. The independence is
as described in Page 17-20.
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(IV) Separately compare and describe total remuneration, as a percentage of net income

stated in the parent company only financial reports or individual financial reports, as

paid by the Company and by each other company included in the consolidated

financial statements during the most recent two fiscal years to directors, supervisors,

general manager, and Vice General Managers, and analyze and describe

remuneration policies, standards, and packages, the procedure for determining

remuneration, and its linkage to operating performance and future risk exposure:

1. Total remuneration, as a percentage of net income stated in the parent company

only financial reports or individual financial reports, as paid by the Company and

by each other company included in the consolidated financial statements during

the most recent two fiscal years to directors, supervisors, general manager, and

vice general managers.

2022 (Note 1)

2023 (Note 1)

Year
All All
mpani mpani
The | companies The | Companies
Total Compan n Total Compan n
Ttem Pany | consolidated Pany 1 onsolidated
statements statements
Remuneration for Directors
(1ncl.ud1ng remuneration 9,791,501 (1.98%) (2.11%) 10,349,077 (1.27%) (1.34%)
received for concurrently
serving as employees)
Remun; ration for 8,040,873 (1.62%) (1.62%) 8,631,278 (1.07%) (1.07%)
Supervisors
Remuneration for General
Manager and Vice General (495,152,838) - - (810,575,601) - -
Managers

Note 1: According to the resolution of the Company’s Board made on March 29, 2023, no compensation is
distributed to employees and directors for 2022.
As resolved by the Company’s Board on March 28, 2024, no distribution for employee and directors’
compensation is made for the fiscal year 2023.
Note 2: As the Company has shifted to the auditor system, no supervisor exists.

2. Remuneration policy, standards and packages:

Distribution of compensation for Directors and Supervisor is subject to

provisions as set forth in Article 24-1 of the Company’s Articles of

Incorporation:

If the Company has gained profits within a fiscal year, an amount equal to more

than 6% and less than 15% of the profits shall be reserved as the employees’

compensation, and an amount equal to less than 3% of the profits shall be

reserved as Directors’ compensation. However, accumulated losses, if any, of the

Company shall first be deducted and distribution shall be made from the

remaining balance.
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Remuneration to employees in the form of stock or cash may be paid to
employees of subsidiaries of the Company meeting certain specific requirements,
which are authorized to be determined by the Board of Directors.

Matters in relation to remuneration to employees and remuneration to directors
are subject to the applicable laws and regulations and are determined by the
Board of Directors.

. The procedure for determining remuneration, and the correlation with operating
performance and future risk exposure:

The Company’s remuneration policy for directors is set forth in the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation, and has been reported in the shareholders’ meeting.
Remuneration for managerial personnel, including General Manager and Vice
General Managers, is composed of salary, reward, employee bonus, and
employee stock option certificates. The remuneration is determined according to
applicable administrative measures for salary and reward of the Company with
consideration paid to job positions, individual performance, responsibility and
contribution to the Company’s overall operation, and to pay levels adopted by
peer companies for similar positions. Payment of remuneration is also decided by
considering the Company’s future operational risks, competition and other factors,
and has a positive correlation with the business performance.

With respect to the performance evaluation and remuneration of Directors,
Supervisors and managerial personnel of the Company, Remuneration
Committee refers to the typical pay levels adopted by peer companies, and take
into consideration the reasonableness of the correlation between remuneration
and individual performance, the company’s business performance, and future risk

exposure.
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I'V. Corporate Governance Practices
(I) Practices of Board of Directors
(A) Information on Practices of Board of Directors
In 2023, eight meetings [A] were held by the Board of Directors, and Directors’ attendance

/presence is as listed below:

Frequencly of At;ttegdance Actual attendance
Job title Name (Note 1) actua y TTOXY (presence) ratio Remarks
attendance Number of
. (%)[B/A]
(presence) B times
Gigastorage Corporation
Chairperson |Representative: Chen 8 0 100.00 -
Chi-Ming
Gigastorage Corporation
Directors |Representative: Chen 8 0 100.00 -
Chi-Hsing
Gigastorage Corporation
Directors  |Representative: Lin 8 0 100.00 -
Jiang-Ching
Chun-Ru Investment Co.,
Directors  |-% . 8 0 100.00 :
Representative: Chen
Su-Hui
Sincere Holding Co., Ltd.
Directors  |Representative: Hsu 8 0 100.00 -
Chin-Jung
Hong-Yang Venture
. Capital Co., Ltd.
Directors Representative: Wu 8 0 100.00 -
Yi-Tso
Directors |Huang Wen-Jui 8 0 100.00 -
Independence |y | g ih Wei 7 1 87.50 .
Directors
Inc}l)eilz Zzlg)errslce Chang Wen-Ming 5 3 62.5 -
Independence |y, prgin Fu 7 1 87.50 .
Directors
Independence |y &y o 1 ing 8 0 100.00 ;
Directors
Others:
L. Where any of the following happens in a meeting of the company’s Board of Directors, the meeting’s date,

term, contents, all independent directors’ opinion, and the company’s action on the independent directors’
opinion shall be specified:

(D Any matter as set forth in Article 14-3 of Securities and Exchange Act: Not applicable. The
Company’s establishment of Audit Committee makes Article 14-5 apply instead. Please refer to
Practices of Audit Committee (Page 26).

(II)  Other than the matters indicated above, any resolution of Board of Directors to which an independent
director has a dissenting opinion or qualified opinion that has been recorded or made into a written
statement: None.
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IL.

In the event that a director has to avoid voting on a resolution because of a conflict of interest, the name of]

the director, the issue to be discussed, reasons and the result of the vote shall be noted.

Date of . Duectgr Reason of avoidance and
meeting Issue to be discussed consluctmg voting results
avoidance
Chairperson Chen Chi-Ming
also has relatives within the
second degree of kinship by
Chen blood, namely Director Chen
January 12 Chi-Ming ‘ Su—.Hui.and Director Chgn
2023 ’ Chen Su-Hui | Chi-Hsing, left.the meeting and
(the thirteenth | Distribution of 2022 year-end bonus Cheq recuseq from dlSCU.S.S ion for
meeting of the | Chairperson Chi-Hsing resolgtlon Que to existence of a
seventh Huang. confhcft of interest. The other
session) Weq—Jul atjcendmg dlrec‘Fors thgn elected
Lin Director Lo Shih-Wei as the
Jiang-Ching | proxy chairperson and
unanimously approved the
proposal following an inquiry
by the proxy chairperson.
Due to existence of a conflict
January 12, of interest, the directors left the
2023 . Distribution of 2022 year-end bonus Huang . meeting and recused ﬁom
(the thirteenth for the Company’s managerial Wen-Jui discussion for resolution. The
meeting of the Lin other attending directors then
seventh personnel Jiang-Ching | unanimously approved the
session) proposal following an inquiry

by the chairperson.

March 29, 2023
(the fifth
meeting of the
seventh
session)

Annual salary adjustment for the
Chairman

Chen
Chi-Ming
Chen Su-Hui
Chen
Chi-Hsing
Huang
Wen-Jui
Lin
Jiang-Ching

Chairperson Chen Chi-Ming
also has relatives within the
second degree of kinship by
blood, namely Director Chen
Su-Hui and Director Chen
Chi-Hsing, left the meeting and
recused from discussion for
resolution due to existence of a
conflict of interest. The other
attending directors then elected
Director Lo Shih-Wei as the
proxy chairperson and
unanimously approved the
proposal following an inquiry
by the proxy chairperson.

March 29, 2023
(the fifth
meeting of the
seventh
session)

The Company's 2023 salary
adjustment for managerial officers

Huang
Wen-Jui
Lin
Jiang-Ching

Due to existence of a conflict
of interest, the directors left the
meeting and recused from
discussion for resolution. The
other attending directors then
unanimously approved the
proposal following an inquiry
by the chairperson.
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II1.

A TWSE/TPEx listed company shall disclose the cycle and period of its Board’s self-(or peer-) evaluation,

as well as information about the scope, method, and contents of the assessment:

Evaluation

cycle

Evaluation
period

Evaluation
scope

Evaluation
method

Evaluation content

Once a
year

2023/1/1 to
2023/12/31

Board of
Directors

Board of
Directors

Internal
self-assessmen
t

The items of the Board of Directors'
self-performance assessment include the
following aspects: A. Participation in the
Company's operations

B. Improvement of the quality of Board’s
decision making

C. Composition and structure of the
board of directors

D. Election and continuing education of
the directors

E. Internal control

Individual
members of
Board

Directors’
self-evaluation

The items measured in the
self-performance assessment of board
members include the following aspects:
A. Mastery of the Company's goals and
mission

B. Awareness of the duties of a director
C. Participation in the operation of the
company

D. Management of internal relationship
and communication

E. The director’s professionalism and
continuing education

F. Internal control

Functional
committees:

Remuneration

Functional
committees’

Functional committees: The
self-assessment items for the
Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee include the following aspects:
A. Participation in the Company's
operations

B. Awareness of the duties of the

Committee

Audit
Committee

functional committee

C. Improvement of quality of decisions
made by the functional committee

D. Makeup of the functional committee
and election of its members

E. Internal control

self-evaluation

Iv.

Evaluation of targets for strengthening of the functions of the board during the current and immediately

preceding fiscal years (such as setting up an audit committee, improving information transparency, etc.), and

measures taken toward achievement thereof:

(I)  The Company set up Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee to assist Board in exercising its
duty of supervision. Remuneration Committee had three meetings in 2023. Audit Committee in 2023
held eight meetings in total.

(I)) The Company also actively arranged on-site refresher courses and appealed to the directors to take
these courses. In 2023, 11 directors took the courses with a total education time of 69 hours.
(II) The Company’s Board convenes at least one meeting every quarter and informs the investing public

of the meeting through the “Market Observation Post System” as provided by law.
(IV) Based on the “Rules for Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors” the Company has in place, an
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annual evaluation is conducted and an improvement plan is formed accordingly to improve the
operational efficiency of Board. Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors for2023 has been
completed and was submitted to the Board on March 15, 2024.
(D Board of Directors: 4.69 out of 5 points was obtained in average.
(@ Individual Directors: 4.47 out of 5 points was obtained in average.
(3 Functional committees: The Company has a Remuneration Committee and an Audit Committee; the
maximum score is 5, and the average score is 4.67.
Results of 2023 Evaluation: Directors were generally affirmative about the performance at all evaluation
indicators. Board and functional committees have had good overall practices, meeting requirements of the
autorotates and relevant laws about corporate governance.

Note: Where a director or supervisor is a juristic person, the name of the juristic person shareholder and the name
of its representative shall be disclosed.
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(IT) Practices of Audit Committee:

The Company has set up Audit Committee, composed of all four independent directors as

commissioners. Audit Committee’s works and discussions: I. Establishment or

amendment of the internal control system.

II. Assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control system.

III. Adoption or amendment of handling procedures for financial or operational actions
of material significance, such as acquisition or disposal of assets, derivatives trading,
extension of monetary loans to others, or endorsements or guarantees for others.

IV. A matter bearing on the personal interest of a director.

V. A material asset or derivatives transaction.

VI. A material monetary loan, endorsement, or provision of guarantee.

VII. The offering, issuance, or private placement of any equity-type securities.

VIII.The hiring or dismissal of an attesting CPA, or the compensation given thereto.

IX. The appointment or discharge of a financial, accounting, or internal auditing officer.

X. Annual financial reports and second quarter financial reports that must be audited
and attested by a CPA, which are signed or sealed by the chairperson, managerial
officer, and accounting officer.

XI. Any other material matter so required by the company or the Competent Authority.

In 2023, Audit Committee convened eight meetings[A], and Independent Directors’

attendance is as listed below:

Fr ey of Frequency of
. equency o proxy Actual attendance
Job title Name (Note) actual attendan rate (%) "B/A” Remarks
attendance (B) © ce °
(presence)
Independent |y gpipy wyei 8 0 100.00 .
Director
Independent Chang
Director Wen-Ming > 3 62.50 ]
Independent |0 prgin.Fu 8 0 100.00 i
Director
Independent |y o pp 1 ine 8 0 100.00 i
Director
Others:

I. In the event of any of the following related to operation of Audit Committee, the relevant meeting’s

date, term,

contents, all

independent directors’ opinions,

qualified opinions

or material

recommendations and the company’s action on the opinions of the committee shall be specified.

(I) Any matter set forth in Article 14-5 of Securities and Exchange Act:

Date of meeting

Issue to be discussed

Independent directors’
opinions, qualified opinions or
material recommendations
Audit Committee’s
Resolutions and Company’s
Action on the Audit
Committee’s Opinions

January 12, 2023
The 12th meeting
of the third session
of Audit
Committee

The 13th meeting

Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of
high amounts exceeding the normal 3-month
credit period as of December 31, 2022 shall be
considered as monetary loans.

Draft of the Company’s “Ethical Corporate
Management Principles”.

Approved unanimously by
Independent Directors
Approved unanimously by
Audit Committee,
Approved by the Board’s
resolution
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of the seventh
session of Board
of Directors

March 15, 2023
The thirteenth
meeting of the
third session of
Audit Committee
The fourteenth
meeting of the
seventh session of
Board of Directors

Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of
high amounts exceeding the normal 3-month
credit period as of December 31, 2022 shall be
considered as monetary loans.

Approved unanimously by
Independent Directors
Approved unanimously by
Audit Committee,
Approved by the Board’s
resolution

March 29, 2023
The fourteenth
meeting of the
third session of
Audit Committee
The fifteenth
meeting of the
seventh session of
Board of Directors

Review of the Company’s Business Report and
Financial Statement 2022

Loss appropriation 2022

Planned approval of the Company’s statement of
internal control system 2022

Planned proposal to formulate the CPA

Non-assurance Services Pre-approval Regulations.

Approved unanimously by
Independent Directors
Approved unanimously by
Audit Committee,
Approved by the Board’s
resolution

May 12, 2023

The fifteenth
meeting of the
third session of
Audit Committee
The sixteenth
meeting of the
seventh session of
Board of Directors

Review of the Company’s Financial Statement Q1
2023

Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of
high amounts exceeding the normal 3-month
credit period as of April 30, 2023 shall be
considered as monetary loans.

Disposal of the right-of-use assets for the lease of
factory premises.

Approved unanimously by
Independent Directors
Approved unanimously by
Audit Committee,
Approved by the Board’s
resolution

June 07, 2023

The sixteenth
meeting of the
third session of
Audit Committee
June 09, 2023

The seventeenth
meeting of the
seventh session of
Board of Directors

Discussion about the Company’s participation in
subscription for a cash capital increase of its
subsidiary Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. in
2023.

Proposal to acquire common shares of Hua Hsu
Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. cumulatively within
one year by ratification.

Approved unanimously by
Independent Directors
Approved unanimously by
Audit Committee,
Approved by the Board’s
resolution

August 11, 2023
The seventeenth
meeting of the
third session of
Audit Committee
The eighteenth
meeting of the
seventh session of
Board of Directors

Proposed CPA changes for the Company were
subject to review and approval.

Review of the Company’s Financial Statement Q2
2023

Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of
high amounts exceeding the normal 3-month
credit period as of July 31, 2023 shall be
considered as monetary loans.

Provision of a CNY 42-million loan to the
Company’s subsidiary Yancheng Giga Solar
Materials Corporation

Disposal of reinvestment in the shares of ACRO
Biomedical Co., Ltd.

Approved unanimously by
Independent Directors
Approved unanimously by
Audit Committee,
Approved by the Board’s
resolution
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Discussion about the Company’s participation in
subscription for a cash capital increase of
Foresight Energy Technologies Co., Ltd. in 2023.

October 02, 2023
The eighteenth
meeting of the
third session of
Audit Committee
The nineteenth
meeting of the
seventh session of
Board of Directors

Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of
high amounts exceeding the normal 3-month
credit period as of September 30, 2023 shall be
considered as monetary loans.

Provision of a CNY 45-million loan to the
Company’s subsidiary Yancheng Giga Solar
Materials Corporation

Loaning of JPY 370 million by the Company to
subsidiary Godo Kaisha Chiba.

Approved unanimously by
Independent Directors
Approved unanimously by
Audit Committee,
Approved by the Board’s
resolution

November 13,
2023

The nineteenth
meeting of the
third session of
Audit Committee
The twentieth
meeting of the
seventh session of
Board of Directors

Proposal of 2023 rewards to the Company’s
accountants

Review of the Company’s Financial Statement Q3
2023

Discussion about the Company’s participation in
subscription for a cash capital increase of its
subsidiary Green Energy Electrode, Inc. in 2023.
Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of
high amounts exceeding the normal 3-month
credit period as of October 31, 2023 shall be
considered as monetary loans.

Approval for providing endorsement and
guarantee for Yancheng Giga Solar Materials
Corporation

Re-investment in capital increase of its subsidiary
Yancheng Giga Solar Materials Corporation.
Draft of the Company’s audit plan 2024

Approved unanimously by
Independent Directors
Approved unanimously by
Audit Committee,
Approved by the Board’s
resolution

IL.

II1.

(I) Except for the matters indicated above, any matter that has not been passed by the audit

committee, but has been adopted with the approval of two-thirds or more of all board directors:
None
In the event that an independent director has to avoid voting on a resolution because of a conflict of
interest, the name of the independent director, the issue to be discussed, reasons and the result of the
vote shall be noted: None.
Communication between independent directors and internal audit officers and accountants
(including significant matters, methods, and results of communication concerning the Company’s
financial and business situations):
The Company’s audit officers every month submit internal control reports to Independent Directors
for review and discuss audit results with Independent Directors.
The Company’s accountants every quarter in Audit Committee’s meeting report the audit, review
and approval results for the financial statement of the present quarter and other communication
matters required by relevant laws and regulations, in which meeting direct communication between
Independent Directors and the accountants is possible. Upon Board’s demand, the Company’s
accountants may also be present in a meeting of Board.

Matters communicated between Independent Directors and internal audit officers are listed in the table

below:
Date/Met.hOQS of Key points Results
communications
Email correspondence | Annual Audit Report and Tracking Report about No
every month Subsidiaries’ Defects on Lending Fund to Others objection
Email correspondence | Internal Audit Report and Tracking Report about No
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every month Subsidiaries’ Defects on Lending Fund to Others for Q1 2023 | objection
Email correspondence | Internal Audit Report and Tracking Report about No
every month Subsidiaries’ Defects on Lending Fund to Others for Q2 2023 | objection
Email correspondence | Internal Audit Report and Tracking Report about No
every month Subsidiaries’ Defects on Lending Fund to Others for Q3 2023 | objection
Matters communicated between Independent Directors and CPAs are listed in the table below:
Methods
Date of . Key points Results
communi
cations
March 29, |Audit Communication between the Company's CPAs and the Audit No
2023 Committee Committee about audits of the financial statements objection
May 12, |Audit Communication between the Company's CPAs and the Audit No
2023 Committee Committee about audits of the financial statements objection
August Audit Communication between the Company's CPAs and the Audit No
11,2023 |Committee Committee about audits of the financial statements objection
November |Audit Communication between the Company's CPAs and the Audit No
13,2023 |Committee Committee about audits of the financial statements objection

Note:

* Where there is any independent director leaves its office before the last day of a fiscal year, the date Note: of
separation shall be specified in the column “Remarks,” and the actual attendance ratio (%) shall be calculated
using the number of meetings Audit Committee had during its service and the frequency of its actual a
attendance.

* Where there is reelection of any independent director before the last day of a fiscal year, the new and old
independent directors shall both be listed, and whether an independent director is a former one, a succeeding
one, or a retained one as well as the date of reelection shall be specified in the column “Remarks.” In this case,
the actual attendance ratio (%) shall be calculated using the number of meetings Audit Committee had during its
service and the frequency of its actual attendance.
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(IV) Where the company has established Remuneration Committee, its responsibility and

operating status:

Company Remuneration Committee’s Responsibility:
exercising the care of a good administrator to faithfully perform the following duties and

presenting its recommendations to the board of directors for discussion.

I.  Establishing and periodically reviewing policies, systems, standards, and structure for

performance evaluation and compensation of Directors and managerial personnel.

IL.
personnel.

1. Members of Remuneration Committee

Periodically reviewing and determining compensation of Directors and managerial

Criteria Number of other
public listed
companies where
Professional concurrent
Qualification & Independence service as a
Experience member of
Remuneration
Name of identity alias Committee is
provided
Having more than 20 (1) Not being an employee of the
years of experience in Company or any of its affiliated
commercial, legal, enterprises.
finance, accounting, and |(2) Not being a director or a
other works relevant to supervisor of the Company or any
the Company’s operation,|  of its affiliated enterprises.
and holding the national |(3) Not being a natural-person
Tndependent certiﬁcgte for shareholde.r who holds shares,
. professional accountants, together with those held by the
Director Lo ) . :
Committee Shih-Wei free frpm matters set person’s spouse, minor children, 2
forth in Article 30 of the or held by the person under
convener , .
Company Act. others’ names, in an aggregate of
one percent or more of the total
Information on directors’ number of issued shares of the
professional qualification company or ranking in the top 10
and Independent in holdings.
Director’s independence |(4) Not being the spouse, a relative
please refer to the within the second degree of
disclosure in P. 14-15. kinship, or a lineal relative within
Having more than 20 the third degree of kinship, of a
years of experience in managerial officer under (1) or
commercial, legal, any of the persons listed in (2)
finance, accounting, and and (3).
other works relevant to  |(5) Not being a director, supervisor,
the Company’s operation,|  or employee of a juristic person
and being free from shareholder that directly holds
Tndependent Chang matters set forth in five percent or more of the total
. . |Article 30 of the number of issued shares of the 0
Director Wen-Ming
Company Act. company, or that ranks among the

Information on directors’
professional qualification
and Independent
Director’s independence
please refer to the
disclosure in P. 14-15.

top five in shareholdings, or that
designates its representative to

serve as a director or supervisor of

the company under Article 27,
paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company
Act.

(6) If a majority of the company’s
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Independent
Director

Chiu
Hsin-Fu

Having more than 20
years of experience in
commercial, legal,
finance, accounting, and
other works relevant to
the Company’s operation,
and being free from
matters set forth in
Article 30 of the
Company Act.

Information on directors’
professional qualification
and Independent
Director’s independence
please refer to the
disclosure in P. 14-15.

Independent
Director

Li
Hui-Lung

Having more than 20
years of experience in
commercial, legal,
finance, accounting, and
other works relevant to
the Company’s operation,
and being free from
matters set forth in
Article 30 of the
Company Act.

Information on directors’
professional qualification
and Independent
Director’s independence
please refer to the
disclosure in P. 14-15.

director seats or voting shares and
those of any other company are
controlled by the same person: not
being a director, supervisor, or
employee of that other company.

(7) If the chairperson, general
manager, or person holding an
equivalent position of the
company and a person in any of
those positions at another
company or institution are the
same person or are spouses: not
being a director (or governor),
supervisor, or employee of that
other company or institution.

(8) Not being a director, supervisor,
officer, or shareholder holding
five percent or more of the shares,
of a specified company or
institution that has a financial or
business relationship with the
company.

(9) Not being a professional
individual who, or an owner,
partner, director, supervisor, or
officer of a sole proprietorship,
partnership, company, or
institution that, provides auditing
services to the company or any
affiliate of the company, or that
provides commercial, legal,
financial, accounting, or related
services to the company or any
affiliate of the company for which
the provider in the most recent 2
fiscal years, or a spouse thereof.

(10) Not having a marital relationship
or a relative within the second
degree of kinship with any other
director.
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2. Information on Operating Status of Remuneration Committee

(1) The Company’s Remuneration Committee is composed of 4 commissioners.
(2) Term of commissioners of the current session: from July 23, 2021 to July 22, 2024;
in the last year, 2023, Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings (A), and the

commissioners’ qualification and attendance are listed below:

Frequency | Frequency Actual
. of actual of proxy attendance Remarks
Job title Name attendance | attendance ratio (%)
(B) (presence) (B/A)(Note)
Lo
Convener Shih-Wei 3 0 100.00
. Chang
Commissioner Wen-Ming 3 0 100.00
Commissioner | - oY 3 0 100.00
Hsin-Fu
. Li
Commissioner Hui-Lung 3 0 100.00
Others:

I.  Where Board decides not to adopt or amend Remuneration Committee’s
recommendations, specify the date, term, issues, resolutions of the relevant Board
meeting, as well as the Company’s action on Remuneration Committee’s opinions
(for example, if the compensation adopted by the Board is superior to the
recommendation of Remuneration Committee, specify the difference and reason):

The Company’s Board adopted all the proposals Remuneration Committee raised

n 2023.
. Remuneration Committee’s
Remuneration Resolutions and Company’s
Committee’s Issue to be discussed . pany
. Action on Remuneration
Meeting Date

Committee’s Opinions

January 12, 2023
(sixth meeting of

the 5th term)

Distribution of 2022 year-end bonus Chairperson
Distribution of 2022 year-end bonus
Company’s managerial personnel.

Salary adjustment for 2023.

for

the

Remuneration Committee

adopted the proposal as it

was and submitted to the
Board for approval.

March 29, 2023

(seventh meeting

of the 5th term)

IAnnual salary adjustment for the Chairman.
Discussion of the Company's 2023 salary adjustment
for managerial officers.

Remuneration Committee

adopted the proposal as it

was and submitted to the
Board for approval.

May 12, 2023 Remuneration Committee
(eighth meeting  |Appointment of the Corporate Governance Officer of | adopted the proposal as it
of the 5th term)  the Company. was and submitted to the

Board for approval.

II.  Where any resolution of Remuneration Committee to which a member thereof has
a dissenting opinion or qualified opinion that has been recorded or made into a
written statement, specify the date, term and issues of the relevant meeting as well
as all member opinions and action taken on the opinions: None.

Note: (1) Where there is any member of Remuneration Committee leaves its position before the last day
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of a fiscal year, the date of separation shall be specified in the column “Remarks,” and the
actual attendance ratio (%) shall be calculated using the number of meetings Remuneration
Committee had during its service and the frequency of its actual attendance.

(2) Where there is reelection of Remuneration Committee before the last day of a fiscal
year, the new and old members shall both be listed, and whether a member is a former
one, a succeeding one, or a retained one as well as the date of reelection shall be
specified in the column “Remarks.” In this case, the actual attendance ratio (%) shall be
calculated using the number of meetings Remuneration Committee had during its
service and the frequency of its actual attendance.
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(VII) How to Search for Corporate Governance Principles and Relevant Regulations:

The Company’s Practice Principles for Corporate Governance have been published on the

Company’s official website at www.gigasolar.com.tw.

(VIII) Additional Major Information on Corporate Governance:

1. Having procedures for handling material inside information in place: Yes.

The Company’s Procedures for Handling Material Inside Information have been

published on the Company’s official website at: www.gigasolar.com.tw.

2. Information on Continuing Education for the Company’s Directors during 2023

Has been disclosed in the “Center for Corporate Governance in the Market

Observation Post System” (http:/mops.twse.com.tw).

Date of
. ntinuin .
Job title Name |COnHmuing Organizer Course Name Hours
education
courses
. August 11, |Taiwan Corporate Governance Corporate legal risks and countermeasures -
Representative 2023 |Associati § . f . 3
of Juristic Ch ssociation rom corporate investment and financing
en - -
Person Chi-Ming | November |Taiwan Corporate Governance How t(.jOt erf1terp rlse: succt:essctihlly negotla'ée and 3
Director 13,2023 |Association negotiate for investment and mergers an
acquisitions: practical case sharing
. November [Taiwan Corporate Governance How QO enterprises successfully negotiate and
Representative 13. 2023 |Association negotiate for investment and mergers and 3
of Juristic Chen ’ acquisitions: practical case sharing
Person Chi-Hsing December Corporate Management and Legal Compliance of the Board of Directors and
Director 152023 Sustainable Development Association (Legal Responsibilities of Directors and 3
’ of the Republic of China Supervisors and Case Study
. August 11, |Taiwan Corporate Governance Corporate legal risks and countermeasures -
Representative - . . 3
of Turistic Li 2023  |Association from corporate investment and financing
in - -
Person  |Jiang-Chingl November |Taiwan Corporate Governance How t(.jOt erf1terp rlse: succt:ess(t;ully negotlaae and 3
Director 13,2023 |Association negotiate for investment and mergers an
acquisitions: practical case sharing
. August 11, |Taiwan Corporate Governance Corporate legal risks and countermeasures -
Representative f . . 3
£ Juristi Ch 2023  |Association from corporate investment and financing
of Juristic en - -
Person Su-Hui | November Taiwan Corporate Governance How t(.jOt erf1terp rlse: succt:essctihlly negotla'ée and 3
Director 13,2023 |Association acaisitions: practcal case sharing
August 11, |Taiwan Corporate Governance Corporate legal risks and countermeasures -
g P P g 3
0 2023  |Association from corporate investment and financing
. uang - -
Directors . .
Wen-Jui | November [Taiwan Corporate Governance How (;10 enterprises successfully negotiate and
o negotiate for investment and mergers and 3
13,2023 |Association S . .
acquisitions: practical case sharing
Representative August 11, |Taiwan Corporate Governance Corporate legal risks and countermeasures - 3
of Juristic Hsu 2023  |Association from corporate investment and financing
Person Chin-Jung | August 15, |Taiwan Corporate Governance How to Governance of Assigned Directors and 3
Director 2023  |Association Managers
. August 11, |Taiwan Corporate Governance Corporate legal risks and countermeasures -
Representative - . . 3
of Juristic 2023  |Association from corporate investment and financing
Wu Yi-Tso . How do enterprises successfully negotiate and
Person November [Taiwan Corporate Governance tiate for i tment and d 3
Director 13,2023 |Association negotiate or' investment and mergers an
acquisitions: practical case sharing
November Corporate Management and Global trends and business opportunities for
Independent | Chang 9.2023 Sustainable Development Association (low-carbon economy and corporate low-carbon | 3
Director | Wen-Ming| of the Republic of China innovation
November {Taiwan Corporate Governance How do enterprises successfully negotiate and 3
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Date of
. ntinuin .
Job title Name |COMHmung Organizer Course Name Hours
education
courses
13,2023 |Association negotiate for investment and mergers and
acquisitions: practical case sharing
Offensive and defensive strategies in
April 25, [Taiwan Corporate Governance management rights disputes and legal liability 3
Independent Lo 2023  |Association risks for company officers (independent
Director Shih-Wei directors)
July 25, |Taiwan Corporate Governance Common legal issues in corporate M&A 3
2023  |Association contracts
2, |National Association of I t . . .
June 02, National Association of Industry and 2023 Taiwan New Net Zero Electricity Summit | 3
2023  |Commerce
. August 11, |Taiwan Corporate Governance Corporate legal risks and countermeasures -
Independent Li - . . 3
. . 2023  |Association from corporate investment and financing
Director Hui-Lung - -
. How do enterprises successfully negotiate and
November [Taiwan Corporate Governance ) ;
o negotiate for investment and mergers and 3
13,2023 |Association L. . .
acquisitions: practical case sharing
August 11, |Taiwan Corporate Governance Corporate legal risks and countermeasures - 3
. 2023  |Association from corporate investment and financing
Independent Chiu How do enternri ol tate and
Director Hsin-Fu | November |Taiwan Corporate Governance OW O CIILCIPIISES SUCCESSILUTLY negotiate an
o negotiate for investment and mergers and 3
13,2023 |Association L. . .
acquisitions: practical case sharing
3. Summary of continuing education and training about corporate governance the
Company’s managerial personnel attending in 2023is shown below: None
Date of
. continuing .
Job title | Name . Organizer Course Name Hours
education
courses
August 11, |Taiwan Corporate Governance Corporate legal risks and countermeasures - from 3
Head of W 2023  |Association corporate investment and financing
ang X .
corporate . . H t 11
P Tsai-Hua| November [Taiwan Corporate Governance oW (.10 o erp rises successfully negotiate and
governance . negotiate for investment and mergers and 3
13,2023 |Association . . .
acquisitions: practical case sharing

4. More important information beneficial for understanding the Company’s corporate

governance practices, please refer to P. 38-49 of this annual report.

88




(IX) Implementation of Internal Control System
I.  Statement of Internal Control
Statement of Internal Control System by Public Companies
is to represent that the design and operation of the system are both

effective
(This statement applies when the part of compliance refers to all laws and regulations)

Giga Solar Materials Corporation

Statement of Internal Control System
Date: March 28, 2023

Based on the findings of a self-evaluation, the Company states the following with regard to its internal control system

L

IL.

I1I.

Iv.

VL

VIL

during 2023:

The Company is fully aware that establishing, operating, and maintaining an internal control system are the
responsibility of its Board of Directors and management. The Company has established such a system. The
system is aimed at providing reasonable assurance regarding reasonable achievement of objectives in the
following categories: effectiveness and efficiency of operations (including profitability, performance, and
safeguarding of assets); reliability of financial reporting; and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
An internal control system has inherent limitations. No matter how perfectly designed, an effective internal
control system can provide only reasonable assurance of accomplishing the three objectives mentioned above.
Moreover, the effectiveness of an internal control system may be subject to changes of environment or
circumstances. Nevertheless, the Company’s internal control system contains self-monitoring mechanisms, and
the Company takes corrective actions whenever a deficiency is identified.

The Company evaluates the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system based on the
criteria provided in the Regulations Governing the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public
Companies (hereinafter, the “Regulations”). The criteria adopted by the Regulations identify five components of
internal control based on the process of management control: 1. control environment, 2 risk assessment, 3.
control activities, 4. information and communication, and 5. monitoring. Each component further contains
several items. Please refer to the Regulations for details.

The Company has evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system according to
the aforesaid criteria.

Based on the findings of the evaluation mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the Company believes that, the
internal control system as of December 31, 2023 (including its supervision and management of subsidiaries), as
well as its internal controls to monitor the achievement of its objectives concerning operational effectiveness
and efficiency, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, were
effective in design and operation, and reasonably assured the achievement of the above-stated objectives.

The Statement of the Internal Control System will be a prominent feature of our annual report and prospectus,
and will be released to the public. Should any statement herein involve forgery, concealment or any other
illegality, Articles 20, 32, 171 and 174 of the Security and Exchange Act shall apply.

This Statement has been passed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on March 28, 2024. In the 11
attending directors, no attending directors expressed dissenting opinions, and the remainder all affirming the
content of this Statement.

Giga Solar Materials Corporation

Chairperson: Chen Chi-Ming  Signature

General Manager: Huang Wen-Jui Signature
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IL.

X)

Where a CPA has been hired to carry out a special audit of the internal control

system, furnish the CPA audit report: None

If there has been any legal penalty against the company or its internal personnel, or

any disciplinary penalty by the company against its internal personnel for violation

of the internal control system, during the most recent fiscal year or during the

current fiscal year up to the publication date of the annual report, where the result of

such penalty could have a material effect on shareholder equity or securities prices,

disclose the penalty, the main shortcomings, and condition of improvement: None

(XI) Major resolutions in shareholders’ meetings and the Board’s meetings during the

most recent fiscal year and as of the date of printing of this annual report

1. Major Resolutions of Board

Implementation
Date Description status
1. Distribution of 2022 year-end bonus Chairperson
2. Distribution of 2022 year-end bonus for the Company’s managerial
personnel.
January 12 3. Salary gdjustment .fo‘r 2023. - _ ‘
2023 (the > |4. Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of high amounts exceeding
. the normal 3-month credit period as of December 31, 2022 shall be
thirteenth . Implemented as
meeting of the considered as monetary loans-. o resolved
5. Draft of the Company’s “Ethical Corporate Management Principles”.
seventh . , _
. 6. Review of the Company’s operating plan & annual budget 2023
session) 7. Proposal of bank financing credit
8. Draft of the Company’s “Operating Procedures and Conduct Guides for
Ethical Corporate Management” and “Measures for the Report on
Illegal, Unethical and Dishonest Conducts”
March 15 1. Evaluation for deciding \yhether receivables of high amounts exceeding
2023 ( the’ the nprrnal 3-month credit period as of December 31, 2022 shall be
fourteenth considered as monetary loans. Tmplemented as
. 2. Amendment to some clauses in the Company’s “Articles of
meeting of the . resolved
seventh Incorporation . .
. 3. Amendment some clauses in the Company’s “Board Meeting Rules”
session) 4. Convene the Company 2023 shareholders’ meetings
1. Review of the Company’s Business Report and Financial Statement
2022
March 29, 2. Loss appropriation 2022

2023 (the fifth
meeting of the

3. Review of the Company’s statement of internal control system 2022
4. Proposal to formulate the CPA Non-assurance Services Pre-approval

Implemented as

seventh Regulations. resolved
. 5. Review of the Company CPA independence evaluation results
session) 6. Discussion about salary adjustment 2023 of the Company’s managerial
personnel as reviewed by Remuneration Committee
7. Update of convening the Company’s shareholders’ meeting 2023
May 12,2023 (1. Review of the Company’s Financial Statement Q1 2023 Implemented as
(the sixth  |2. Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of high amounts exceeding P

meeting of the

the normal 3-month credit period as of April 30, 2023 shall be

resolved
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Implementation

Date Description status
seventh considered as monetary loans.
session) (3. Proposal of bank financing credit
4. Appointment of the Corporate Governance Officer of the Company

June 09, 2023
(the seventh
meeting of the

—

. Discussion about the Company’s participation in subscription for a cash

capital increase of its subsidiary Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. in
2023

Implemented as
resolved

seventh 2. Proposal to acquire common shares of Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co.,
session) Ltd. cumulatively within one year by ratification
1. Proposed CPA changes for the Company were subject to review and
approval
2. Review of the Company’s Financial Statement Q2 2023
August 11, |3. Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of high amounts exceeding
2023 (the the normal 3-month credit period as of July 31, 2023 shall be
eighteenth considered as monetary loans Implemented as
meeting of the |[4. Provision of a CNY 42-million loan to the Company’s subsidiary resolved
seventh Yancheng Giga Solar Materials Corporation
session) 5. Disposal of reinvestment in the shares of ACRO Biomedical Co., Ltd.
6. Discussion about the Company’s participation in subscription for a cash
capital increase of Foresight Energy Technologies Co., Ltd. in 2023
7. Proposal of bank financing credit
October 02 1. Evaluation for deciding Whether receivables of high amounts exceeding
2023 (the ’ the nprmal 3-month credit period as of September 30, 2023 shall be
nineteenth con81.d.e red as monetary lo-ar}s. o Implemented as
. 2. Provision of a CNY 45-million loan to the Company’s subsidiary
meeting of the . . . resolved
seventh Yancheng Giga Solar Mgterlals Corporation - .
session) 3. Loaning of JPY 370 million by the Company to subsidiary Godo Kaisha

Chiba

November 13,

—

. Proposal of 2023 rewards to the Company’s accountants
. Review of the Company’s Financial Statement Q3 2023
. Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of high amounts exceeding

the normal 3-month credit period as of October 31, 2023 shall be
considered as monetary loans

. Provision of a CNY 15-million loan to the Company’s subsidiary

Yancheng Giga Solar Materials Corporation

2023 (The . Approval for providing endorsement and guarantee for Yancheng Giga
Twentieth . . Implemented as
. Solar Materials Corporation
Meeting of . . 1 . Lo . resolved
Seventh 6. Re—m@stment n cgpltal increase of its subsidiary Yancheng Giga Solar
Session) Materials Corporation
7. Discussion about the Company’s participation in subscription for a cash
capital increase of its subsidiary Green Energy Electrode, Inc. in 2023
8. Draft of the Company’s audit plan 2024
9. Renewal of “Liability insurance for General Manager and managerial
personnel”
10. Proposal of bank financing credit
January 19 1. Distribution of 2023 year-end bonus Chairperson
2004 (}:Fhe’ 2. Distribution of 2023 year-end bonus for the Company’s managerial
Twenty-first personne L . . . . Implemented as
Mecting of 3. Evaluation for deciding Whether receivables of high amounts exceeding resolved
Seventh the normal 3-month credit period as of December 31, 2023 shall be
See:seion) considered as monetary loans

. Approval for providing endorsement and guarantee for Yancheng Giga
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Implementation
Date Description status
Solar Materials Corporation
5. Review of the Company’s operating plan & annual budget 2024
6. Amendment to the Company's "Corporate Governance Best Practice
Principles"
7. Proposal of bank financing credit
1. Salary adjustment for 2024.
2. Annual salary adjustment for the Chairman
3. The 2024 managerial officers' salary adjustment
4. Evaluation for deciding whether receivables of high amounts exceeding
the normal 3-month credit period as of February, 2024 shall be
considered as monetary loans
March 15, Vo 1
2024 (The 5. The proposal -for pre-approval Qf th-e Company's list of non-assurance
services provided by the CPA firm in 2024
Twenty-second dment of 1 0 the C s “Proced f Implemented as
Meeting of 6. Ameg ment of some clauses in the Company’s “Procedures for resolved
Seventh Acquisition or Disposal of Assets. ) -
. . Amendment of some clauses the Company “Procedures for Loaning
Session) "
Funds to Others
8. Amendments to the Company's "Related Party Transaction Procedures"
9. Review of the Company’s Unaudited 2023 Financial Statement
10. Amendment some clauses in the Company’s “Board Meeting Rules”
11. Full re-election of directors
12. Convene the Company 2024 shareholders’ meetings
1. Review of the Company’s Business Report and Financial Statement
2023
2. Loss appropriation 2023
3. Approval for the recognition of asset impairment in accordance with
March 28, IAS 36
2024 (The |4. Review of the Company’s statement of internal control system 2023
Twenty-third (5. Nomination of candidate list for the Company's directors and Implemented as
Meeting of independent directors resolved
Seventh  |6. Removal of non-competition restrictions for new directors
Session)  |7. Amendment of some clauses in the Company’s “Procedures for
Acquisition or Disposal of Assets.”
8. Review of the Company CPA independence evaluation results
9. Amendments to the main agenda of the 2024 general shareholders'
meeting
2. Major resolutions of shareholders’ meetings and implementation thereof
Date Description Implementation status
1. Recognition of Business Report and Financial
Statement 2022, Implemented as resolved
Resolutions: the proposal was adopted by vote P '
(including e-voting)
2. Acknowledgment of 2022 deficit appropriation.
June 09, .
2023 Resolu‘glons: the.proposal was adopted by vote Implemented as resolved.
(including e-voting)
3. Adoption of proposed amendment of some clauses |Implemented as resolved.
in the Company’s “Articles of Incorporation.” Changes were registered at
Resolutions: the proposal was adopted by vote Ministry of Economic Affairs as
(including e-voting) regulated, and approved on June
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| 28, 2023.

Major resolutions of the Company’s shareholders meetings reached in for the most
recent fiscal year and as of the date of printing of this annual report are listed above, and
more information is accessible to investors through the Market Observation Post System.

(XII) If any resolution of Board of Directors to which a director or supervisor has a
dissenting opinion that has been recorded or made into a written statement,
specify the opinion: None.

(XIII) Summary of resignation and dismissal of the Company’s chairperson, general
manager, accounting heads, financial officers, internal audit officers and R&D
heads during the most recent fiscal year and as of the date of printing of this
annual report: None.

V. Certification Information on Accountant Fees
Information on fees
Unit: NT$ thousand

Name of Period of . Non-audit
. Name of Audit
Accounting accountant fees Total | Remarks
accountant . fees
firm audit (Note)
January 1
) Chung ’
Deloitte and . Chang | 2023~Dece
Ming-Y 1,001
Touche g Ya-Yun | mber 31, 3,055 00 6,056
uan 2023

Note: Non-audit fees cover:
In 2023, the tax declaration fee was NT$400 thousand; the 2022 transfer pricing fee was
NT$400 thousand; the fee for the review of the 2022 impairment assessment report on Chuangyi
intangible assets was NT$200 thousand. In 2022, the transfer to pricing paid in lieu of a printing
fee of NT$1 thousand.

2.When the company changes its accounting firm and the audit fees paid for the fiscal year
in which such change took place are lower than those for the previous fiscal year, the
amounts of the audit fees before and after the change and the reasons shall be disclosed:
None.

3.When the audit fees paid for the current fiscal year are lower than those for the previous
fiscal year by 10% or more, the reduction in the amount of audit fees, reduction percentage,
and reason(s) therefor shall be disclosed: None.

VI. Information on change of accountants: None.

VII. The Company’s chairperson, general manager, or any managerial personnel
Responsible for financial or accounting business, if assuming positions in the office of the
accountant certifying the Company’s financial statement or in the affiliates thereof in the
latest year, shall disclose its name as well as the job title and term of its services for the
accountant’s office and the affiliated enterprises thereof: None.
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VIII.Changes of share transfer and share pledges of directors, supervisors, managerial

personnel, or Shareholders having a Shareholding Rate higher than 10% during the most

recent fiscal year and as of the date on publication of this annual report

1. Changes shareholding and share-transfer of Directors, managerial personnel, and

Major Shareholders
Unit: share
2023 As of April 9, 2024
Increased Nulm ;er(ff Increased Nulm(ti)er(;)f
Job title Name (decreased) psﬁar%:es (decreased) pﬁ ;ge
number of number of shares
Increase Increase
shares held shares held
(decrease) (decrease)
. . . 5,800,000
Chairperson Gigastorage Corporation 0 (5,500,000) 0 0
Chairperson Gigastorage Corporation
Representative Corporate Representative Chen Chi-Ming (40,000) (50,000) 0 0
. Gigastorage Corporation
Directors Corporate Representative Chen Chi-Hsing 0 0 0 0
. Gigastorage Corporation
Directors Corporate Representative Lin Jiang-Ching 0 0 0 0
Directors Chun-Ru Investment Co., Ltd. 0 0 0 0
. Chun-Ru Investment Co., Ltd.
Directors Representative: Chen Su-Hui 0 0 0 0
Directors Sincere Holding Co., Ltd. 0 0 0 0
. Sincere Holding Co., Ltd.
Directors Corporate Representative:Hsu Chin-Jung 0 0 59,000 0
Directors Hong-Yang Venture Capital Co., Ltd. 0 0 0 0
. Hong-Yang Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
Directors Corporate Representative:Wu Yi-Tso 0 0 0
Directors Huang Wen-Jui 40,000 0 100,000 0
Independent Director | Lo Shih-Wei 0 0 0 0
Independent Director | Chang Wen-Ming 0 0 0 0
Independent Director | Chiu Hsin-Fu 0 0 0 0
Independent Director | Li Hui-Lung 0 0 0 0
major shareholders | Gigastorage Corporation 0 5,800,000 0 0
Yy g ge Lorp (5,500,000)
major shareholders | Hong-Yang Venture Capital Co., Ltd. 0 0 0 0
General Manager [ Huang Wen-Jui 40,000 0 100,000 0
Vllf/f General - cpen Yuan-yu 0 0 0 0
anager
Viee General =y, Guang-Fu 5,000 0 0 0
Manager
Financial and 00 Toi Hua (6,000) 0 0 0
accounting officer

Note 1: Information on an insider is not disclosed any more from the date it leaves its position in the Company.

2. For a director, supervisor, managerial personnel or shareholders having a shareholding

rate higher than 10%, if the opposite side of its share transfer or share pledge is an

interested party, the name of the opposite side, its relationship with any of the

Company’s directors, supervisor and major shareholders having a shareholding ratio

more than 10% and the number of shares involved in the transfer or pledge shall also

be disclosed: None
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IX. Information on Shareholders having top-ten shareholding ratios (%) and being related
parties or spouses or relatives within the second degree of kinship mutually

Information on relationship between shareholders having a top-ten shareholding (%)

April 9,2024; Unit: share

For two of the Top-10 shareholders

who are interested parties or

The owner Shares held by spouse | Total shareholding under : S
: - . : . |spouses or relatives within the
Name (Note 1) Shareholding and minor children the name of third parties second degree of kinship, their Remarks
names or names and relationship
Number of | Shareholding | Number of | Shareholding| Number of | Shareholding Name Relationshi
Shares Percentage Shares Percentage Shares Percentage P
Gigastorage Corporation 34,982,909 38.07% 0 0 0 0 Gigastorage | Same chairman -
Representative: Chen . .
Chi-Ming 151,346 0.16% 0 0 0 0 Gigastorage Directors -
Hong-Yang Venture Capital
9,265,098 10.08% 0 0 0 0 None None -
Co., Ltd.
Representative: Huang
Te-Tsai 0 0.00% 0 0 0 0 None None -
Sincere Holding Co., Ltd. 4,686,000 5.10% 0 0 0 0 None None -
Representative: Wu Ru-Mei 0 0 0 0 0 0 None None -
Han Hsin Investment Corp. 1,093,741 1.19% 0 0 0 0 None None -
Representative: Huang
0 0 0 0 0 0 None None -
Mei-Chi
Lin Yu-Ye 900,000 0.98% 0 0 0 0 None None -
Tang Hong-De 687,000 0.75% 0 0 0 0 None None -
Tseng Chun-Sheng 550,000 0.60% 0 0 0 0 None None -
Mizuho Securities Investment
Account held in custody by
Standard Chartered 549,000 0.60% 0 0 0 0 None None -
International Commercial
Bank
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.,
Taipei Branch in custody for
Vanguard Total International 480,916 0.52% 0 0 0 0 None None -
Stock Index Fund, a series of
Vanguard Star Funds
Vanguard Emerging Markets
Stock Index Fund, A Series
. 477,152 0.52% 0 0 0 0 None None -
of Vanguard International
Equity Index Funds

Note 1: Please list all the top-10 shareholders, and where a shareholder is a juristic person, the names of the juristic
person and its representative name seperately.

Note 2: Shareholding (%) refer the shareholding ratios calculated using the numbers of shares under the names of

the indicated person, its spouse and minor children, and others, respectively.

Note 3: Where the above-disclosed shareholders include both juristic persons and natural persons, please disclose
their mutual relationship in accordance with the provisions as set forth in the issuer’s regulations governing
the preparation of financial reports.
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X. The total number of shares and total equity stake held in any single enterprise by the

company, its directors, managerial officers, and any companies controlled either directly

or indirectly by the company:

Unit: share; %

Date: March 31, 2024

Investments in other

the Company investment

Investments of directors,
managerial officers, and any
companies controlled either
directly or indirectly by the

consolidated investment

companies
(Note ) company
Number of |Shareholding] Number of | Shareholding Number of  |Shareholding
Shares (%) Shares (%) Shares (%)
Green Energy Electrode, Inc. 22,588,759 52.81% 500,000 1.69% 23,088,759 53.98%
Giga Solar Materials Corp. 25,900,000 | 100.00% 0 0 25,900,000 | 100.00%
(Mauritius)
Suzhou Glga Solar Materials 0 0 0 100.00% 0 100.00%
Corporation
Whole Sun Green Power Co.,
126,516,924 100.00% 0 0 126,516,924 100.00%
Ltd.
Eiwa Electric Power Co.,
0 0 0 100.00% 0 100.00%
Inc.
Wisdom Field 0 0| 37,110,000 |  100.00% | 37,110,000 |  100.00%
Limited(Samoa)
Hua Hsu Silicon Materials
41,500,972 34.03% 4,260,000 3.49% 45,760,972 34.93%

Co., Ltd.
Yancheng Giga Solar 0 0 0|  100.00% 0| 100.00%
Materials Corporation
Giga Diamond Materials 0 0 21,200,000 100.00% 21,200,000 | 100.00%
Corp.(Seychelles)
Yancheng Giga Diamond 0 0 0|  100.00% 0|  100.00%
Materials Corporation
Merchant Energy Pte. 0 0| 28,100,000 87.00% | 28,100,000 |  87.00%
Ltd.(Singapore)

Note: investment by the Company using the Equity Method.
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I. Capital and shares

Four. Fundraising Overview

(I) Source of share capital

Unit: NTD thousand/Thousand shares; April 9, 2024

. Authorized share capital Paid-in share capital Remarks
Month | Issuing
Year rice Number Amount Number of Amount Source (_)f share |Property othgr than Other
p oun ou ers
of Shares Shares capital cash paid
Earnings and June 17, 2010; Letter
June2010| 10 | 50,000 | 500,000 | 30,658 | 306,587 employee None No. Jing-Shou-Zhong-Zi
dividends as
o 09932180510
capital increase
December Cash capital Decer_nber 02, 2010; Let_ter
2000 500 50,000 500,000 33,942 339,427 increase None No. Jing-Shou-Zhong-Zi
09932901360
June 22, 2011; Letter No.
Jing-Guan-Cheng-Fa-Zi
June2011| 10 | 50,000 | 500,000 44,125 441,255 Oitggrl;ﬁ&d:g‘i None }3&035?5351; Letter No.
Jing-Shou-Zhong-Zi
10032312060
June 26, 2013; Letter No.
Jing-Guan-Cheng-Fa-Zi
Stock dividends 1020024552
June 2013 10 100,000 | 1,000,000 50,744 507,443 of common stock None August 7, 2013; Letter No.
Jing-Shou-Shang-Zi
10201161400
July 1, 2014; Letter No.
Jing-Guan-Cheng-Fa-Zi
Stock dividends 1030024856
July 2014 10 100,000 | 1,000,000 60,893 608,932 of common stock None August 22, 2014; Letter
No. Jing-Shou-Shang-Zi
10301173430
March Ordinary shares March 14, 2016; Letter
2016 10 100,000 | 1,000,000 60,982 609,821 exchanged from None No. Jing-Shou-Shang-Zi
convertible bonds 10501048680
Ordinary shares May 31, 2016; Letter No.
May 2016 10 100,000 | 1,000,000 60,989 609,890 exchanged from None Jing-Shou-Shang-Zi
convertible bonds 10501116680
Private placement
August of cash capital
2019 93.06 | 100,000 | 1,000,000 63,675 636,750 increase of 2,686 None
thousand shares
November 23, 2020; Letter]
No.
December Issued new shares Jing-Guan-Cheng-Fa-Zi
2020 10 100,000 | 1,000,000 65,883 658,834 and merged None 1090373516
Exojet February 4, 2021; Letter
No. Jing-Shou-Shang-Zi
11001020160
Convertible June 11, 2021, approved
January bonds exchanged by Letter No.
2021 10 100,000 | 1,000,000 65,883 658,834 into 432 ordinary None Jing-Shou-Shang-Zi
shares 11001092330
Private placement
August of_ cash capital
2001 124.4 | 100,000 | 1,000,000 75,883 758,834 increase of None
10,000 thousand
shares
August Cash capital Qctober 3, 2922’
2022 115 100,000 | 1,000,000 91,883 981,883 increase None Jing-Shou-Zi Letter No.

11101185570
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April 9, 2024

Type of ‘ Authorized share capital
shares Outstandl'ng share Unissued share capital Total Remarks
capital
Ordinary 79,197,420 58,116,580 The Cqmpany’s stocks are
;gir;[i 150,000,000 TPEx listed
12,686,000
placement
(IT) Shareholder structure
April 9, 2024
cholder structure Governmental Financial Other juristic . ) l*jorejlgn
. institutions institutions persons Individuals 1n.st1t.ut.10ns o Total
Quantity individuals
Number of people 0 12 52 11,757 60 11,881
Number of shares held 0 1,196,075 51,758,347 35,503,514 3,425,484 91,883,420
Shareholding (%) 0 1.30% 56.33% 38.64% 3.73% 100.00%
(IIT) Ownership diversification (par value NT$10 per share)
April 9, 2024
Shareholding range SE;E}ESEZ; Number of shares held Shareholding (%)
1 to 999 4,285 519,667 0.57
1,000 to 5,000 6,387 11,763,483 12.80
5,001 to 10,000 611 4,585,247 4.99
10,001 to 15,000 218 2,699,836 2.94
15,001 to 20,000 105 1,894,477 2.06
20,001 to 30,000 96 2,397,497 2.61
30,001 to 40,000 46 1,578,323 1.72
40,001 to 50,000 21 948,706 1.03
50,001 to 100,000 59 3,852,475 4.19
100,001 to 200,000 28 3,945,953 4.29
200,001 to 400,000 14 3,611,825 3.93
400,001 to 600,000 5 2,471,183 2.69
600,001 to 800,000 1 687,000 0.75
800,001 to 1,000,000 1 900,000 0.98
More than 1,000,001 4 50,027,748 54.45
Total 11,881 91,883,420 100.00%
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(IV) List of major shareholders

April 9, 2024

Shares

, Number of |Shareholding

Name of major shareholder shares held (%)
Gigastorage Corporation 34,982,909 38.07
Hong-Yang Venture Capital Co., Ltd. 9,265,098 10.08
Sincere Holding Company 4,686,000 5.10
Han Hsin Investment Corp. 1,093,741 1.19
Lin Yu-Ye 900,000 0.98
Tang Hong-De 687,000 0.75
Tseng Chun-Sheng 550,000 0.60
Mizuho Securities Investment Account held in custody by Standard Chartered

549,000 0.60
International Commercial Bank
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., Taipei Branch in custody for Vanguard Total 480.916 0.5
International Stock Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star Funds ’ '
Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund, A Series of Vanguard

477,152 0.52

International Equity Index Funds

(V) Market price, net worth, earnings and dividends per share and related information for

the most recent two years:

Unit: NT$
Year The current year as
Ttem © 2022 2023 of March 31, 2024
© (Note 8)
. Highest 219.5 124 126
Marke! price Lowest 945 75.6 882
P Average 150.29 102.12 109.28
Net value per Before distribution 82.58 72.26 Not applicable
share After distribution (Note 9) (Note 9) Not applicable
. Average weighted number of 80,662 80,662 (thousand )
Earnings per (thousand Not applicable
shares shares)
share shares)
Earnings per share (6.14) (8.82) Not applicable
Cash dividends - - Not applicable
Dividends per | Free-gratis - - - Not applicable
share dividends _ _ _ Not applicable
Retained dividends - - Not applicable
Price to earnings ratio - - Not applicable
Investment. Price to dividend ratio - - Not applicable
reward analysis i
Cash dividend yield ; . Not applicable
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* If shares are distributed in connection with a capital increase out of earnings or capital reserve,
further disclose information on market prices and cash dividends retroactively adjusted based on the
number of shares after distribution.

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

Note 9:

Set forth the highest and lowest market prices per common share for each year, and calculate
each year’s average market price based upon that year’s transaction value and transaction
volume.

Use the number of issued shares at year end as the basis and fill in data according to the
distribution as resolved in the Board or shareholders’ meeting in the next year.

If retroactive adjustment is required due to stock grants or other reasons, disclose earnings per
share before and after such adjustment.

In the issuance conditions of equity securities allows dividends not distributed in the current
fiscal year to be retained until a later year having earnings, disclose retained dividends of as of
the current fiscal year respectively.

Price to earnings ratio = average closing price per share of the current fiscal year / Earnings
per share.

Price to dividend ratio = average closing price per share of the current fiscal year / cash
dividends per share.

Cash dividends yield rate = cash dividends per share / average closing price per share of the
current fiscal year.

For the fields of net value per share and earnings per share, data filled in shall be the data
updated to the most recent quarter as of the date of printing of this annual report and audited
(reviewed) by accountants. As of the date of printing of this annual report, the Company’s
quarter report for Q1 2024 has not been reviewed by accountants yet.

Resolution of the shareholders’ meeting remains not available as of the date of printing of this
annual report.

(VI) Dividend policy and implementation thereof

1. The dividend policy as set forth in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
provides that:

The earnings, if any, are distributed in the following order:

I.  Completion of tax payments in accordance with the law.

II. Compensation for past losses.

III. Ten percent is to be contributed as statutory surplus reserve, but this shall not
apply if the statutory surplus reserve has reached the total amount of the
capital.

IV. Special reserve is allocated or reversed in accordance with the law or
regulations of the authority when necessary;

V. With respect to the balance and the accumulated undistributed surplus of the
previous year as shareholders’ stock and cash dividends, the board proposes a
profit distribution to the shareholders’ meeting for resolution. The
shareholder’s bonus shall not be less than 30%. The Company is currently
growing. As a means to keep in line with the capital planning and meet the
shareholders’ demand for cash flow, the percentage of cash dividends paid for
the year may not be less than 10% of the total amount of cash and stock
dividends.
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2. Distribution dividends is to be discussed in this shareholders’ meeting:
The Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution on March 28, 2024 that the
net loss after tax of 2023 is NT$810,575,601, plus distributable earnings at the
beginning of the period of NT$300,439,277 and other adjustments of
NT$4,747,278. The loss to be compensated at the end of the period is
NT$514,883,602, and the statutory surplus reserve was used to make up for the
loss of NT$514,883,602.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in Article 24-1 of the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation, no distribution will be made for the current fiscal year as

shareholders bonus, employees compensation and Directors compensation.

(VII)The impact of distributions of bonus shares resolved by the shareholders’ meeting
of this year on the company’s operating performance and earnings per share: Not

applicable.

(VIII) Compensation for employees and directors

1. Percentages and ranges of compensation for employees and directors as provided
in Articles of Incorporation:
Distribution of directors’ compensation is subject to the provisions set forth in
Article 24-1 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation:
If the Company has made profits within a fiscal year, an amount equal to more
than 6% and less than 15% of the profits shall be reserved as the employees’
compensation, and an amount equal to not more than 3% as the directors’
compensation. However, accumulated losses, if any, of the Company shall first
be deducted and distribution shall be made from the remaining balance.
Remuneration to employees in the form of stock or cash may be paid to
employees of subsidiaries of the Company meeting certain specific requirements,
which are authorized to be determined by the Board of Directors.
Matters in relation to remuneration to employees and remuneration to directors
are subject to the applicable laws and regulations and are determined by the

Board of Directors.

2. The basis for estimating the amount of employee, director, and supervisor
profit-sharing compensation, for calculating the number of shares to be
distributed as employee profit-sharing compensation, and the accounting
treatment of the discrepancy, if any, between the actual distributed amount and

the estimated figure, for the current period:
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(1) The amount of employee and director profit-sharing compensation is
estimated based on the percentages and ranges provided in the Company’s
Articles of Incorporation with reference to an empirical estimation, yet the
Company’s Board has resolved on March 28, 2024 that no employee and
director profit-sharing compensation is distributed for the fiscal year 2023.

(2) No distribution of the Company’s share bonus was made for the fiscal year
2022.

(3) If the estimated amount is different from the actually distributed amount, the

difference will be incorporated into the profit(loss) of the next year.

3. Information on any approval by the board of directors of distribution of
profit-sharing compensation:

(1) The amount of any employee profit-sharing compensation and director and
supervisor profit-sharing compensation distributed in cash or stocks. If there
is any discrepancy between that amount and the estimated figure for the fiscal
year these expenses are recognized, the discrepancy, its cause, and the status
of treatment shall be disclosed:

As resolved by the Company’s Board on March 28, 2024, no distribution for
employee and directors’ compensation is made for the fiscal year 2023.

(2) The amount of any employee profit-sharing compensation distributed in
stocks, and the size of that amount as a percentage of the sum of the after-tax
net income stated in the parent company only financial reports or individual
financial reports for the current period and total employee profit-sharing

compensation: None.

4. The actual distribution of employee and director profit-sharing compensation for
the previous fiscal year, and, if there is any discrepancy between the actual
distribution and the recognized employee, director, or supervisor profit-sharing
compensation, additionally the discrepancy, cause, and how it is treated:

Due to a deficit, the Company did not distribute any employees' remuneration

and directors' remuneration in 2022 and 2023. There is no difference.

(IX) Status of the company repurchasing its own shares: None.
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IL.

Corporate bond handling of:

January 31, 2023

Type of bonds

Domestic 2nd unsecured convertible bonds

Date of issuance (handling)

January 25, 2018

Face value

NT$100,000

Place of issuance and trade

Republic of China

Issuing price

Full face value

Total amount

NT$2,000,000,000

Rate Coupon Rate 0%
Term . Five year term;
Maturity date: January 25, 2023
Guarantor Not applicable
Trustee Bank SinoPac
Co., Ltd.
Underwriter Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd.
Certification lawyer Lawyer Chiu Ya-Wen
CPA Ernst & Young Taiwan
Unless the bond holder converts the bonds into
the Company’s ordinary shares in accordance
with Article 10 of the Rules for Conversion or
exercises its put right in accordance with
Article 19 of the Rules for Conversion, or
Method of repayment redeems the bonds early in accordance with

Article 18 of the Rules for Conversion, or the
Company purchase back the bonds from the
security firm’s business premises for
retirement, the Company will repay with a
single payment in cash at the bonds face value.

Unpaid principal balance

NTS0

Terms of redemption or prepayment

Refer to the rules for issuance and conversion

of the Company’s domestic second unbonded

Restrictions convertible bonds.
Name of credit rating agency, date of rating, N
. 0
Corporate bond rating results
The amount of converted
(exchanged or subscribed) ordinary
shares, overseas depository receipts
Other |or other marketable securities as of NT$100,000
rights [the date of printing of this annual
attached |report

Rules for issuance and conversion
(exchange or subscription)

Refer to the rules for issuance and conversion of]
the Company’s domestic second unbonded
convertible bonds.

Rules for issuance and conversion, exchange
or subscription
Possible dilution of the shareholding by the
terms and conditions of the offering, and
Impact on existing shareholders' equity

The bonds became mature on January 25, 2023
along with termination of OTC trading, and
repayment of the principle was made on
February §, 2023.

Name of custodian of underlying shares

None
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Information on convertible bonds
January 25, 2023

Domestic second issue (term)

Type of bonds Unsecured convertible bonds
Year 2022 The current year as of

Ttem January 25, 2023
Market price | Highest 110.00 99.00
of | Lowest 97.50 99.85

convertible

bonds | Average 100.01 99.85
Conversion price 210.65 210.65

Date of issuance
(handling) and Date of issuance: January 25, 2018
Conversion price upon [Conversion price upon issuance: 253.31

issuance

Method of performing | The Company will fulfill its obligation of
conversion conversion by issuing new shares.

III. Handling of preferred stocks: None

IV. Handling of overseas depository receipts: None

V. Handling of employees’ stock option certificates: None

VI. Handling of new restricted stock award shares issued to employees: None

VII. Handling of new stocks issued due to merger or acquisition of other companies: None
VIII. Implementation of capital utilization plan

ey

(1D
(I10)

Iv)

The Company issued domestic second unsecured convertible bond in the fiscal year
2017

The corporate bond program was successfully completed and its beneficial effects have
emerged. The bonds became mature on January 25, 2023 along with termination of OTC
trading, and repayment of the principle was made on February 8, 2023.

Private placements of securities in 2019
The program was successfully completed and its beneficial effects have emerged.

Private placements of securities in 2020
The program was successfully completed and its beneficial effects have emerged.

Issuance of new shares for cash capital increase in 2022
As of the quarter before printing of this annual report, the program was successfully
completed and its beneficial effects have emerged.
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Five. Operation Overview
I. Business summary
(I) Business scope
1. Major lines of business
The Company’s consolidated revenue mainly comes from manufacturing and
sale of: silver paste for solar cells; silver paste for terminal electrodes of passive
components; and Si anode material for lithium-ion batteries, with the detailed

business items listed below:

(1) C805050 Industrial Plastic Products Manufacturing.
(2) CCO01080 Electronics Components Manufacturing.
(3) F119010 Wholesale of Electronic Materials.

(4) F219010 Retail Sale of Electronic Materials

(5) F401010 International Trade.

(6) C801990 Other Chemical Materials Manufacturing.
(7) C805990 Other Plastic Products Manufacturing.

(8) D101040 Non-Public Electric Power Generation.

2. Relative weight of each business line

Year 2022 2023
Item Percentage (%) Percentage (%)
Solar
conductive 59.92 80.22
paste
Others 40.08 19.78
Total 100.00% 100.00%

3. Current principal business and products to manufacture and sell

(1) Silver paste for solar cells is an electrode material featuring high conductivity
and can be extensively used in front contact electrodes, back contact electrodes,
and connecting lines of solar cells.

(2)Silver paste for terminal electrodes of passive components is a
high-performance, conductive, adhesive material, and is now mainly used in
terminals of passive components (such as resistors and capacitors) with the
benefits of improving the components in terms of conductivity and reliability.

(3)Si anode material for lithium-ion batteries is a high-performance material for

making negative poles, and mainly used to produce lithium-ion batteries. It
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features high specific capacity, high cycle stability, low expansion, and good
safety, thus being helpful to increase energy density and service life of

lithium-ion batteries.

4. New products planned for development
(1) Improvements of current products in thinning, conductivity, and other
properties.
(2) Materials for fuel batteries.

(3) Materials for semiconductor-related sectors.

(IT) Industry overview

(1) Current situation and development of the industry

Currently, staple sources of renewable energy are solar power,
hydraulic power, wind power, and biomass energy. Among these, sunlight is
the most desirable as it is inexhaustible, almost available everywhere, and
completely free from pollution. Taiwan, as the world’s second largest solar
cell manufacturer, has developed a complete, integrated, and efficient supply
chain, and its solar products are extensively recognized for great safety and
usability. All these factors make solar power the most promising renewable
energy industry. Some insights into the current situation and development of
the solar photovoltaic market are given below:

(DCurrent situation of the global solar cell industry

Arguably, we may have a sense on how a government values
renewable energy by looking to the weight of solar power with respect to
other sources of renewable energy. With the global trend toward energy
saving and emission reduction, governments all over the world have
become more favorable to the solar photovoltaic industry and are rolling
out more subsidy policies. This leads to an even more dominant position of
solar power among all renewable energy sources, and presages an
increasing rise in solar demands. According to BloombergNEF, benefiting
from cost decrease of solar power, wind power, cell production, solar
power and wind power are expected to account for 50% of total electricity
around the world by 2050.
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Over the past two years, with the wave of global energy structure
transformation, the photovoltaic industry has flourished, with its industry scale
and installation speed continually setting new highs. According to
TrendForce's estimation, by 2024, the global newly added photovoltaic
installed capacity's neutral expectation is 474GW, a year-on-year increase of
16%.

Analyzing the four major regional markets, the demand for installations
in Asia and Europe has entered an adjustment phase, but still maintains steady
growth. The demand for installations in the U.S. market has significantly
warmed up, which will drive the entire American market to maintain a
relatively high growth rate. In the Middle East and Africa region, due to the
accelerated promotion of energy transition strategies, coupled with the fall in
component prices, the construction progress of large-scale photovoltaic ground
power stations in areas such as Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates has
significantly accelerated. In terms of sub-markets, Chile, Saudi Arabia, and

Turkey have particularly impressive growth rates.
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(2 Current situation of the solar cell industry in Taiwan

The solar power and energy storage market in 2024 is looking

optimistic. The operators believe that the overall demand will start to pick
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up after the election. It is expected that we will see the completion of the
grid-connected energy storage system built this year. With the deadline
approaching, a wave of applicants who fail to successfully complete
building grid-connected systems will withdraw from the market, making
the market conditions clearer. As for the solar projects, construction is
expected to resume in Q2 after the election, with some projects expected to
complete by the end of 2023 for taking in orders. Consequently, solar
energy demand is expected to grow significantly in the second half of the
year. Overall, the growth of demand for both solar power and energy

storage in the market is anticipated in 2024.

Capacity of power generating devices (kW) _

20195 56,136 7, r96 4,150 2,092 845 o9
20205 57.820 9,564 5,817 2,093 2937 16
20215 59,375 11,585 7,00 2,094 1,062 28
October 2022 S1.193 13,382 2.157 2,094 1,402 T29
Yearon Year (%)
2019 6.6 24.6 51.5 0.0 18.5 -0.5
2020=F 3.0 227 40.2 0.0 10.9 1.0
2021 =F 2.7 21.1 32.4 0.0 13.3 1.7
October 2022 2.4 21.9 28.7 .0 33.7 oO_.4
Share in all power sources (%)
20195 100.0 13.9 7.Aa 3.7 1.5 1.3
2020=F 100.0 16.5 10.1 3.6 1.6 1.2
2021 =F 100.0 19.5 13.0 3.5 1.8 1.2
October 2022 100.0 21.9 5.0 3.4 2.3 1.2
all renewable energy sources (%)
2019 - 100.0 53.2 26.8 10.8 9.1
2020 - 100.0 0.8 21.9 o.8 .5
2021 - 100.0 66.5 18.1 2.2 s.3
October 2022 — 100.0 =S4 15.6 10.5 sS5.5

Source: Bureau of Energy, Ministry of Economic Affairs

(2) Relation of up-, mid-, and downstream in the industry

The Company’s core product is solar paste, which is a key component
for making crystalline silicon solar cells. We act in the wafer-based solar
cell industry chain as a mid-stream material supplier, and work with up- and

downstream partners as shown in the chart:

Image. Relation chart of up-, mid-, and downstream along production of

crystalline silicon solar cells

Upstream  } Midstream  } Downstream
Cell Module System Channel
mdtenal wafer
e - TR T
: SllVeI', aluminum powder and It ~ ~~ Solar conductive paste : Other materials, parts and components, or equipment :
§ solvents S T 1

As shown, the supply chain of the solar photovoltaic industry includes, at
the upstream, poly-silicon material manufacturers; wafer makers who smelts the
Si material in a crystal growth furnace, pull/culture it into silicon ingots,

precisely slice the ingots, polishes the slices into silicon wafers; at the midstream,
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solar cell manufacturer; and module packaging factories; and at the downstream,
system designers and constructors. A more comprehensive supply system further
include manufacturers who produce solar cell and module manufacturing
equipment, system peripherals, and related materials. The whole solar industry
chain is so integrated, with dealers at the upstream and the downstream

interconnected, forming an inseparable, integral industry.
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(3) Development trends and competition of products
A. Trend in solar sector:

@ As the previous choking predicament of Si-based material supply has gone, it
is expected that when stock pressure is preserved at all links along industry
chain in 2023, the prices of Si-based materials will start to become steadily,

in turn stimulating installation demand.

@ Supply of high-purity quartz sand is becoming tighter, and is likely to take
place of Si-based materials as a new bottleneck to effective capacity of Si

wafers, leading to increased wafer costs.

® Tightness of large-size PERC cell supply may persist. It is estimated that
capacity expansion in 2024 will only be seen in N-type cells, while
production capacity of PERC stagnates. Nevertheless, the supply—demand
balance for large-size PERC cells is likely to turn tight and the actual output

and order visibility of TOPCON cells are core concerns.
B. Keep accentuating development of solar products:

O®Enhancing conversion efficiency: currently, a solar cell is priced according to
its power-generating capacity in watts. In other words, price levels of
individual solar cells are determined by conversion efficiency, which is
therefore a key indicator for solar cell makers to assess their technological

positions.

Thinning of front-side lead electrode for solar cells helps enlarge the
illuminated area at the front side of solar cells, which leads to increased
incident intensity and effective collection of carriers, eventually contributing to
the photovoltaic effect, achieving large current density, and providing good
solar-cell efficiency. To the end, the area shielded by metal lines from incident
light is desired to minimize. However, issues incurred by thinning such as high
resistance and broken lines during sintering need to be addressed by further
development.  Various paste products (aluminum  paste/front-side
silver/back-side silver), when applied to high-efficiency Si wafers, are proven
favorable to high conversion efficiency, depending on their compositions and
properties.

(4) Competition among products
The Company has been dedicated to research and development of
materials and new energy sources, with R&D strength particularly in material,
organic polymer, chemical technology, and cell materials. The Company has

participated in development programs supported by Ministry of Economic
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Affairs for developing solar cell paste since 2007. With verification from some
of the world’s leading cell makers and or continuous efforts, the Company has
mastered mass production of excellent paste products, and made itself a Top-4
paste manufacturer in the global market.

Currently, the Company’s development efforts are mainly focused on
solar front-side silver paste. The paste market is now dominated by China
makers, who have a combined market share of 50%. The Company has long
invested in R&D so that its front-side silver paste products can have ongoing
and stable improvements in both efficiency and quality. In addition to solar
paste, new energy material is the Company’s another development area in
2022. As EV (electric vehicle) is one of the most promising industries today,
car makers are going all out to grasp post-pandemic opportunities. The
Company also wants to keep up with the bold and strong EV momentum to
expand our business horizon. Following the rapid pace of ever-changing
specifications of solar and electronic products, the Company will have an

increasingly diverse product layout.

(IIT) Overview of technology and R&D
(1) Skill levels and R&D of company’s business

The Company is focused on solar paste products, with a core advantage
lying in customized designs underlined by exclusive material formulas. The
skill levels involved are: organic chemistry, inorganic materials,
electromechanical science, fine-line printing, matching for high temperature
co-firing, heterogeneity-based chemical reactions, etc. For different doping
elements and doping concentrations, passivation layer forms and thicknesses,
the optimal glass-silver powder composition has been developed to achieve
the optimal sintering curve, complete the optimal interface contact, and realize
the optimal photoelectric conversion efficiency of the solar cell

Energy storage represents a critical complementary technology for green
power generation to excel in share, and one of the core technologies that drive
EVs; The Company has long development history in high-capacity, long-cycle
anode materials and fast charging/discharging, including pure Si, Si-C, Si-O,
power battery graphite, and water-based adhesive since 2017. In 2019 we
commenced pilot production and accomplish mass production in 2021, with
Si-O, water-based adhesive, and power battery graphite reaching
annual production capacity of 100 tons, 50 tons, and 1,000 tons, respectively.

core technologies mainly include powder high temperature and grinding
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processes, surface modification of organic and inorganic materials, polymer
synthesis, powder and battery inspection technologies. The research and
development direction is to improve battery slurry operability, cycle life, fast
charging and discharging characteristics, etc. according to customer demands,
and to improve battery performance year by year.

The Company has gained several power and energy storage clients. Our
water-based adhesive is able to accomplish more than 2500 deep cycles in a
full-cell system of graphite and lithium iron phosphate, with the cell capacity
staying above 80%. Besides this, its fast charge/discharge is 0.5C-1C faster
than competing products, meaning that we lead our competitors by one to two
generations. For the silicon oxide with a designed capacity of 550mAh/g,
when configured with a ternary positive electrode into a 21700 battery, the
cycle life can reach more than 950 cycles at 80% retention. As for the
power-type graphite, it can maintain more than 85% retention after cycling

over 2000 cycles under 10C charging and discharging conditions

(2) R&D staff and Education & Experiences thereof

As of March 31, 2024, the number of R&D staff serving at the Company
and its subsidiaries is 93, wherein the ratio of employees with a master or
higher educational background to total R&D staff is close to 3.5%, and the

Staff’s educational backgrounds are distributed as below:

Up to end of March Average
End of 2022 End 0f 2023 b in 2024 seniority ign the
Item/Year Number Number Number Company
of |Ratio%| of |Ratio% ¢ | Ratio % (years)
people people ot people
Doctorate 8 9.00% 8 8.60% 6 6.45% 10.27
Master’s 28  130.00% | 25 |26.88% 27 29.03% 6.94
Distribution| Bachelor’s
of (incl. graduates| 48 52.00% | 46 49.46% 45 48.39% 11.27
Educational| from colleges)
Background|  Below 8 9.00% | 14 |1505%| 15 | 16.13% 12.76
university
Total 92 1100.00%| 93 |[100.00%| 93 100.00% -
Average seniority (years) 10.34 10.28 10.19 -
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(3) Annual R&D expenses for the most recent year

Unit: NTD thousand

Year
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Item
R&D expenses 224,008 260,729 296,402 305,606 314,157
[Net operating
7,875,926 8,834,835 7,632,452 5,654,845 2,958,411
revenue
Ratio of research
and
development 2.84% 2.95% 3.88% 5.40% 10.62%
expenses to net
revenue

(4) Success of development in technologies or products

Examples of successful products the Company developed in the most

recent five fiscal years are:

Year Specific R&D results

Rear passivation, PERC aluminum paste L220S

Bifacial, rear passivation PERC aluminum paste L280B
Bifacial, rear passivation PERC back side silver paste L317L
Selective emitter front-side silver paste 660C-F

2019 | Non-fire-through front side weld electrode 530G-A

N-type PERT/Topcon front side paste material NP23A

Chip resistor electrode silver glue

Chip glass protect glue

Si-Si0 high-capacity anode material

Bifacial, rear passivation PERC aluminum paste L280B
Selective emitter front-side silver paste 660C-F
Non-fire-through front side weld electrode 530G-T
N-type PERT/Topcon front side paste material NP24A
2020 | HJT/IBC electrode silver glue J380/J390

LTCC inner electrode silver glue

Filling silver glue for passive components

Anode active material adhesive

Pure Si-O high-capacity anode material

Bifacial rear passivation PERC aluminum paste L280C
Selective emitter front-side silver paste 660G

N-type PERT/Topcon front side paste material NP24B
2021 | N-type PERT/Topcon back side paste material NK24A
HIJT thin-grid electrode silver glue J380C

passive component inner electrode Cu adhesive

Filling silver glue for passive components
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Year

Specific R&D results

Anode active material adhesive TM/TS
Pure Si-O high-capacity anode material

2022

MWT filling silver paste M800

N-type Topcon weld electrode paste material 530N
HIJT thin-grid electrode silver glue J380C

passive component inner electrode Cu adhesive
Filling silver glue for passive components

Power battery graphite anode material G58 series
Prelithiation Si-O high-capacity anode material

2023

N-type Topcon front-side weld electrode paste material 530F
N-type Topcon Front Fine Grid Line Electrode Paste 920
N-type Topcon back-side weld electrode paste material 530R
N-type Topcon Back Fine Grid Line Electrode Paste 960

(5) Specific measures for improvement of R&D competitiveness

The Company’s R&D ability and specific measures for helping maintain

R&D competitiveness and future strengthen R&D ability are described below:

(@ Continue to recruit new graduates according to the annual plan

requirements to supplement the R&D manpower and increase the number

of positions.

@2Our R&D expenses has stayed at a relatively high level. The R&D

expenses in the fiscal year 2023 summing up to NT$308,442 thousand, and
for 2024, the amount is estimated to be about NT$330,000 thousand.

®)Our equipment has been renewed gradually every year. In addition to

follow our cell manufacturer customers to equip ourselves by acquiring
comparable apparatus like Maxwittech’s screen printing machines
(compatible to 210mm), Maxwittech’ sintering furnaces (compatible to
210mm), HAM photovoltaic simulators (compatible to 210mm),
photoluminescence detectors, reflection detectors, and sheet resistance
meters, we have also bought sophisticated analysis equipment, such as
SEMs (scanning electron microscopes) and EDX (Energy dispersive X-ray
spectrometers) for accurate and precise analysis results.

In order to make refine our paste materials, the Company also furnished
ourselves with manufacturing equipment for glass powder, such as
Jet-mills and precise cyclone separators that further concentrate sizes of
glass grains, thereby improving paste materials in terms of both quality and
stability.

Continuous investment in process improvement and optimization for mass
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production equipment of energy storage materials. In addition to
purchasing and selling competitive products and consumables on the
market, we are also continuously developing new processes: Vapor-phase
carbon coating, homogeneous dispersion, silane deposition, crushing and
grading equipment; increasing analytical capacity: Charge/discharge
machines, in-situ expansion meters, soft-pack full battery optimization
equipment and fixtures, etc., to make battery measurement more accurate
and efficient. This allows us to understand the impact of material
manufacturing variables, making our products more competitive.

(@In the future, we will keep working with universities and graduate institutes

to culture talent and technology, securing strong R&D ability.
(6) Future R&D directions

(DEvolution of advanced manufacturing processes of solar cells features
diversification, whether it is about a P-type monocrystalline
high-efficiency rear passivation PERC cell, or an N-type high-efficiency
IBC, or a Topcon, or an HJT. The Company has aimed its future R&D
efforts at, in addition to ongoing improvements in thinning and
conductivity, development of various paste materials to be used with
advanced solar cell technologies. The products to develop and related
schedules are summarized below. On the basis of crystalline silicon solar
cell paste materials that we have masters, we now expand our scope
vertically to develop special materials for paste and horizontally probe into

materials important for the future of the energy saving industry.

Products to R&D are listed in table below:

R&D areas Planned R&D topics

As stated, rear passivation PERC manufacturing processes
have become a trend around P-type cells. Good back-side
silver for PERCs can improve conversion efficiency by
0.03-0.08% as it reduces damage to the rear passivation
layer. On the other hand, less erosion to the passivation
Silver paste for back side |layer can lead to decreased welding tension. In view that
of solar cells there are pressing needs in the industry for back-side
silver paste of high efficiency yet supporting satisfying
welding tension, our prior R&D target will be
improvement of rear passivation PERC back-side silver in
efficiency and welding tension, making us remain
competitive.

PERC rear passivation manufacturing processes have
become a trend around P-type cells. Therein, selective
emitters (SE) represents a key technology for enhancing

Silver paste for front side
of solar cells
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R&D areas

Planned R&D topics

cell efficiency. It uses laser beams to heat and enable local
heavy doping. High-resistance dense composite screens
represent an even more effective way to enhance
efficiency. As front-side silver paste is the Company’s
main revenue, to compete with the fast technical
innovations and various advanced front-side silver paste
materials on the market, our R&D team is concentrated on
printing requirements about thinning, thereby
safeguarding the Company’s market share of solar cell
front-side silver paste products.

N-type HIT silver paste

Silver-copper composite HIT conductive paste is currently
a relatively leading technology in terms of efficiency for
silicon crystalline solar cells. With cost reductions, the
production cost has narrowed compared to Topcon cells,
which greatly benefits the proliferation of HIT
technology.

Silver paste for N-type
PERT/Topcon

The process technology for N-type Topcon and P-type
cells is highly similar. Due to the stacking of advanced
technologies, the efficiency can be increased by more than
2.0%, differentiating it from the mass production
technology of PERC products. Major customers have
started investing heavily in mass production. The R&D
continues to progress on the front-side fine-line
NP/back-side fine-line NK paste technology, officially
renamed to the 920/960 process. In the development of
high-efficiency cell paste technology, we lead the
industry.

Conductive paste for BC
cells

Back contact (BC) solar cells have a maximized front
light-receiving area, which is the ultimate design for
high-efficiency cells. With the evolution of cell
manufacturing technology, BC cells have pushed the
photoelectric conversion efficiency to over 26.5%. As the
process technology improves and the yield increases, BC
cell technology and Topcon technology have become the
two mainstream technologies in the market. The
Company’s N-region paste has been verified by major cell
manufacturers, and this year, it has the opportunity to
become another major shipping product in addition to
Topcon paste.

Specialty paste materials

As technical development of paste materials for passive
component has turned mature, various silver paste
products and glass protective glue products are well
prepared for shipment. With the influx of Exojet’s
customer base in 2020, the Company’s reaped a more
comprehensive portfolio of customer collaboration in
2021. In particular, some collaborative R&D projects for
specific paste materials, such as Ni, Cu-Ni, Vu, and
Sg-Cu, were implemented with some international
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R&D areas Planned R&D topics

material dealers.

(2 From mobile phones, computers, and wearables, to electric bicycles,
new-energy cars, and green energy, lithium cells can be seen almost
everywhere. Particularly, new type lithium cells have vigorous growth
mainly in virtue of the fast expansion of new-energy cars and energy
storage devices. @.

Improving the cycle life and fast charging/discharging performance of
lithium-ion battery anode materials, including pure silicon, silicon-carbon,
silicon oxide, power battery graphite, and aqueous binders, has always
been the direction of Showa Denko's efforts. We independently develop
special raw materials and processes, and can also optimize costs through
process adjustments and control. Starting from 2017, the Company entered
the market, provided trial production products in 2019, and completed
mass production preparation in 2022. By formulating suitable recipes to
meet different customer needs, targeting mainly power and energy storage
applications, the Company has contributed revenue in the tens of millions
of NT dollars since 2022.

Examples of successful energy storage products the Company developed in

the most recent five fiscal years are:

Year Specific R&D results

Silicon-carbon anode composite material GSA series, which can reach
2018 .

550mah/g capacity
2019 | Si-SiO high-capacity anode material
2020 | Standardization of pure silicon oxide high-capacity anode material OSS
2001 Anode.activ.e materialh adhesive TM/TS

Pure Si-O high-capacity anode material OSS

Power battery graphite anode material G58 series
2022 Pre-lithiation of silicon oxide high-capacity anode materials OSS-6M1/2

series
Long Cycle Silicon Carbide Anode GSS Series

Expected products to be researched and developed

R&D areas Planned R&D topics

Products related to
energy storage

The Company had success in development of products

related to energy storage in 2023, such as:

1. Automobile fast charge/discharge anode carbon
material G58/59 series

2. Fast charge/discharge pure silicon oxide anode
material OSS6R series

3. High first-efficiency pure silica anode material
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R&D areas

Planned R&D topics

OSS6M1/6M2 series

4. High first-efficiency, long-cycle, low-expansion pure

silicon carbide anode material GSS series

Water-based positive adhesive TP series

6. High flexibility, high adhesion, high circulation
water-based adhesive TA series

7. Low-Temperature Fast Charge-Discharge Anode
AdhesivesTM Series

8. Anode adhesive TS series for pure pre-lithiated silicon
oxide

N

Pure silicon oxide/silicon
carbon anode material

Si-Si0 anode materials provide one of the answers to the
need of increasing the capacity of lithium-ion secondary
cells. A Si anode has a unit capacity almost ten times as
large as carbon provides, making the use of Si anode the
optimal solution to increase the capacity of lithium-ion
batteries. Our R&D team has developed a Si-O material
that can be added into normal graphite anode and bring
about a 10-20% unit capacity increase to the anode.
Construction of mass production lines for such a material
was completed in 2022, with an annual yield of 100 tons.
After we pass customers’ strict certification process, these
lines will start to contribute to our revenue in 2023.

Due to the intrinsic issues of silicon oxide materials, they
will face competition and impact from high initial
efficiency and low cost. We will strengthen the integration
of resources with academia and industry. We have
developed silicon oxide powders with an initial efficiency
of 85%-95%, a capacity greater than 1450mAh/g, and a
20-30% cost reduction. Trial production is expected to
begin in 2024, and we will continue to collect data to
improve the stability of mass production quality and cost
control.

In 2024, we will focus on the development of
silicon-carbon anodes, whose advantages of high initial
efficiency (>90%), high specific capacity (>2000mAh/g),
and low cost (compared to pre-lithiated silicon oxide)
have attracted the attention of many customers. We will
deepen our cooperation with customers in product
development to enable early adoption.

Aqueous negative
electrode active material

High-capacity anode is a technical remedy to increase
volumetric capacity of cells, but it has shortcomings such
as high inner capacity and short cycle life. The Company
has developed water-based polymer adhesive that
effectively overcome these defects and received positive
feedback from many of our customers. Our R&D results
have been translated into improved properties of the
adhesive, including adhesion, mechanical strength, cycle
life, high/low-temp. performance, fast charge/discharge,
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R&D areas Planned R&D topics

etc. At the end of 2021 we started its production at an
annual yield of 50 tons, and pilot production was realized
in 2022 with our customers. In 2023, the mass production
was already at tons scale, which means revenue of tens of
millions (NT$).

The existing acrylic binder products have a relatively hard
and brittle nature, requiring customers to assist in
adjusting for mass production operability. To address this
issue, our goal is to develop products with flexibility,
toughness, and maintained fast charging performance,
coupled with optimized mass production and cost control
to maintain product competitiveness in the market.

(IV) Long- and short-term business plans
(1) Short-term plan

The Company is one of the world's top five suppliers of solar cell paste
materials. The Company has successfully developed paste materials for N-type
solar cells, which have become the market mainstream. The Company
continue to invest human and material resources to provide
high-cost-performance products to our customers. Our goal is to deeply
cultivate the solar conductive paste market by continuously improving our
technological capabilities to meet the growing demands of customers. The
Company hopes that through our continuous efforts, we can bring more
innovation and sustainable development possibilities to the solar industry.

In the side of energy storage, following our putting cell adhesive products
into production in 2021, we commenced pilot production of SiO anode
materials in 2022, with serving our customer with stable shipment of
high-capacity SiO anode in 2023. Meanwhile, we have worked with some
local customers in Taiwan as our strategic partners to plan for a pilot plant of
electrolyte in 2022. We also started mass production for our customers in 2023.
Furthermore, through strategic investments and partnerships, our subsidiaries
can provide stable, high-voltage, and fast-charging/discharging lithium iron
phosphate cathode materials, as well as traditional graphite anode and
high-performance separator materials through our strategic partners. In general,
Giga Solar Materials, with our own expertise and strategic partnership,
continuously integrates and strengthen supply of key materials for lithium cells,
and horizontally integrates resources with the attempt to secure customer
adhesion by offering turnkey solutions and promoting

full-fledged development of cell material technologies. In addition, in response
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to market demands, the energy storage division has also developed new
silicon-carbon anodes (with a specific capacity of 1900mAh/g and an initial
efficiency over 90%) and low-impedance aqueous binders to provide
customers with better performance and products, meeting market requirements

for fast charging, low-temperature operation, and high cycle life batteries.
(2) Long-term plans

Our company's products are in one of the fastest-growing green energy
industries globally. To continuously strengthen our R&D and production
capabilities in the solar cell paste field, we will not only strive for vertical
integration of specialty raw materials but also expand into energy-saving and
energy storage materials needed horizontally, better meeting market demands.

In the future business development, we will deeply cultivate the materials
required for the energy, energy conservation, and energy storage industries. At
the same time, we will continue to invest in R&D capabilities, especially for
the semiconductor industry and automotive electronics industry. We plan to
strengthen our market presence in Taiwan and China, and actively expand the
markets in Europe and the United States, in order to provide customers with
high-quality products.

In the part of energy storage materials, the domestic demand in Taiwan is
limited, and thus growth momentum of the global energy storage market still
depends on China, Japan, Korea, Europe and the US. Given the impact of the
pandemic in the past two years, coupled with the deterioration of China-U.S.
relations extending to trade wars and tariff barriers, the importance and
demand for localized production have gradually gained attention. Therefore,
with Taiwan as the core for technology development, production is planned in
accordance with regional markets. With these two guidelines, coupled with our
continued development of energy storage materials to meet the battery
market's demand for key materials (continual development towards high/low
temperature fast charging, high energy density, long cycle life), and
accelerating the global production layout in Japan, South Korea, Europe, and
the Americas (extraction, manufacturing, recycling, etc. of non-China-origin

material supply chains).
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II. Overview of production and sales by markets

1.Market Analysis

(1) Geographic areas where the main products (services) of the company are

provided (supplied)
Unit: NTD thousand
Year 2021 2022 2023

[tem Amount % Amount % Amount %
Taiwan 1,020,387 13.37]  1,269479] 2245 777,690  26.29
Asia(Note) | 6610451]  86.61| 4,349,245 7691  2,130,095| 72.00
Exports Europe - - - - 1,115  0.04
Others 1,614 0.02 36,121 0.64 49,511  1.67
Subtotal 6,612,065  86.63| 4,385366| 77.55|  2,180,721] 73.71
Total 7,632,452] 100.00] 5654845 100.00] 2,958,411 100.00

Note: Taiwan is not included
(2) Market share

The Company’s core product is solar paste. While there is not directly
usable statistics exclusive for paste products, the market scale of paste
products may be calculated from annual installation of solar plants, and the
amounts of aluminum paste, back-side silver paste, and front-side silver paste
used in every solar cell. According to the foregoing estimation, the Company’s
solar paste materials took up about a 20% share in global sales in 2023.

In terms of energy storage materials, since Giga Solar Materials'
silicon-carbon, silicon oxide anodes and aqueous binders are relatively
high-end and new types of materials, the market is still in an incubation period
with a long validation cycle (approximately two years). Significant growth has
yet to occur. We continue to work closely with customers on in-depth

development to strengthen customer stickiness.

(3) Demand and supply conditions for the market in the future, and the market’s

growth potential

Over the past two years, with the wave of global energy structure
transformation, the photovoltaic industry has flourished, with its industry scale
and installation speed continually setting new highs. According to
TrendForce's estimation, by 2024, the global newly added photovoltaic
installed capacity's neutral expectation is 474GW, a year-on-year increase of
16%.
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Analyzing the four major regional markets, the demand for installations
in Asia and Europe has entered an adjustment phase, but still maintains steady
growth. The demand for installations in the U.S. market has significantly
warmed up, which will drive the entire American market to maintain a
relatively high growth rate. In the Middle East and Africa region, due to the
accelerated promotion of energy transition strategies, coupled with the fall in
component prices, the construction progress of large-scale photovoltaic ground
power stations in areas such as Saudi Arabia and the United Arab Emirates has
significantly accelerated. In terms of sub-markets, Chile, Saudi Arabia, and
Turkey have particularly impressive growth rates.

Regarding the global energy storage market, traditional cathode and
anode remain strong growth momentum. According to GGII, 2022 showed a
57.9% growth from 2021. Turning to Si-based materials, since the downstream
enterprise demand are still focused on traditional cells, the technical threshold
for cell makers to shift from traditional cathode and anode to Si-based material
is quite high, the market remains silent. According to GGII, after the whole
China return to work, Si-based anode shipment reached about 11 thousand
tons in 2021, and about 18 thousand tons in 2022. Taking 10% composite pure
Si material for example, its shipment is about 1,800 tons. However, with Tesla
and CATL launching battery modules using lithium iron phosphate cathodes
paired with pure graphite anodes in 2022 and 2023 respectively, their energy
density and manufacturing process are similar to those of ternary cathodes
coupled with silicon oxide anodes, but at a significantly lower cost. This has
further hindered the adoption of high-capacity silicon oxide anodes. As the
expansion of traditional materials was completed in 2023, the oversupply has
impacted lithium and graphite prices, causing the overall market heat to
decline and slowing down the adoption of new materials. However, the
demand for higher energy density and fast charging/discharging in lithium-ion
batteries is endless, and the adoption of high-capacity anodes is a must. After
2024, we need to continue observing the possibilities of new applications and

new material combinations to seize new growth momentum.
(4) Competitive niche
The Company’s competitive niches are analyzed below:

(DHaving insight to market dynamics and thus being able to offer relevant,

quality services promptly
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The Company always updates itself with the latest market movements,
and maintains good partnership with upstream and downstream players
(such as raw material suppliers, equipment builders and packaging factories)
for efficient product development. This position allows us to speed up the
go-to-market process for new products, and to provide timely consultation
services and solutions. With these advantages, we can protect ourselves
from price competition. Our unique services composed of timing sensitive
development and real-time design correction as well as in-house R&D
equipment and ability make us always lead the way to development of solar

cell materials of the next generation, keeping us competitive.

(2Excellent R&D team with rich expertise and know-how

The Company has our R&D team built to be sophisticated yet bold and
thus the team has a proven track record in the government-led pilot program
of product development for solar pastes. The team is particularly
experienced in material chemistry and possesses true ability to make
independent development, so the in-house developed products can be
continuously optimized and refined for the best possible conversion
efficiency. In addition, the Company possesses its own solar lab, where we
can assure quality of products and adapt products to customers’ different Si
wafers by adjusting process parameters or material compositions, thereby

improving production in all ways.
(3)Solving customers’ concern and prevent patent litigation by patent licensing

Solar conductive paste accounts for about 20% of the total costs of
solar cells, and has determinative impacts on efficiency and quality. With
advancement in terms of cost control and skills, leading cell makers
continuously decrease printing weight. As a result, globally, while more
devices are made, the use of solar paste does not increase, in fact, it
decreases. To keep advantageous in the fierce competition in the solar
industry, the Company unceasingly improves product quality and cost
control, to make our paste material products highly efficiency yet
inexpensive. We have secured non-exclusive licensing for key, patented
technologies. This reflects our respect for intellectual property rights and is
an effective way to solve customers’ potential concerns and worry and to

prevent patent litigation.
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(@)Taking the leading position by fast expansion and planning for an extensive

layout in the global market

The Company has long invested in R&D of solar paste materials, and
leads the industry with efficiency, quality, services and competitive costs.
We continuously pay efforts to improve N type TOPCON paste materials in
terms of thinning and conductivity. Being always able to provide our

customers with products price-performance ratio is our core advantage.

In the energy storage sector, Giga Solar Materials has the most
comprehensive material lineup in Taiwan, including cathode and anode
materials, auxiliary materials (binders, conductive aids), electrolytes
entering trial production, and strategically cooperated separators. This
complete material lineup can accelerate the development of individual
materials, faster improve product performance, deepen customer

collaboration, and provide customers with comprehensive solutions.

(5) Positive and negative factors for future development, and response to such

factors
(DPositive factors

A. Advantage of nearby services

In these years, the whole solar industry has worked actively
toward grid parity, with reducing costs the top priority for customers.
Introducing the Company products helps shorten material prepartion
time and reduce financial pressure caused by maintaining material
stocks. Other advantages include stable quality, competitive prices and
timely services. In addition, Asia is currently the hub of manufacturing
of solar cells, with the combined output of China and Taiwan
accounting for at least 90% of the global output. The market in China
is now the powerhouse for the growth of the Company. The solar
dealers across the straits speak the same language and write similar
words. Thus, when we work closely together, we can jointly prosper

the industry over foreign competitors.

B. Governmental incentives and subsidies
Now in the world, oil prices go up day after day, and natural
resources are increasingly exhausted. These call forth the trends
toward environmental protection, energy saving, and emission
reduction. Government all over the world engage in development of

renewable energy in droves, and provide subsidies and incentives for
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installation of solar photovoltaic systems. This has brought about
demands on the solar photovoltaic market and is the main reason why

solar power related industries have flourished recently.

C. US IRA and EU CRMA Act

European countries and the U.S. have established two acts, the
Inflation Reduction Act (IRA) and the Critical Raw Material Act
(CRMA), to ensure a secure, diversified, affordable, and sustainable
supply of critical raw materials. This is to avoid reliance on a single
country or countries of concern, and includes the extraction,
manufacturing, recycling, and other circular processes of raw materials.
In addition to reducing China's malicious competition, the product's
life cycle planning must also be taken into consideration. Taiwan's
technological capabilities and political stance are more advantageous.
If we can continue to expand vertical and horizontal supply chain
cooperation, we will definitely be able to gain a foothold in the electric

vehicle or other lithium-ion battery markets.

(2)Negative factors and countermeasures

A. Fluctuation in the photovoltaic industry

It’s known that many natural resources are limited, and thus
effective use of renewable energy has become the common target of
governments around the world to go after. Solar power generation can
be implemented and used almost everywhere, making it further
promising in the long run. However, in the short term, supply—demand
factors can still fluctuate the industry and harass the dealers with
serious imbalance and severe price competition. For example, from
2007 to the first half of 2008, shortage of Si material held the price
high and destroy capacity utilization. In the second half of 2008, while
the oil price dropped back, another financial storm came, and this
directly caused a significant reduction of demands. The end sale price
collapsed and consequently manufacturers’ margin was eaten up.
Moreover, the photovoltaic industry is always tied tight to
governments’ energy policies, which are highly dependent on political
and economic situations as well as state finance, making fluctuation its

Innate nature.

Countermeasures:
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a.actively expanding overseas markets; diversifying customer bases;
increasing the market share in the shortest possible time by stable,
mass production, fast shipment, and reasonable prices; and realizing

economies of scale to reduce unit production costs.

b.being aware of the latest market information and working closely
with downstream vendors so as to add value and shorten the
go-to-market process of new products, in turn helping customers

stay competitive.

c.expanding the front-side silver paste market on the basis of existing
customer bases, while developing other product lines with reference

the mainstream on the solar cell market.

. Price pressure

The material industry is technically intensive, with the benefit
margin mainly coming from dealers’ expertise and know-how about
formulas and services, not reduction in material prices or
manufacturing costs. Therefore, as the industry seems to enjoy
pleasing benefits, it is in fact the link in the chain that suffers

bargain-hunting and price competition most.
Countermeasures:

a.recognizing that technical services are where out value locates, and
letting customers appreciate or added value by solving customers’
problems, whether it be reliability or weather resistance, or even

esthetics requirements.

b.lowering manufacturing costs by increasing conversion efficiency,
such as by assisting customers in thinning electrode lines to
maximize light receiving area in a cell, or actively adjusting process

parameters to increase product yield.

c.Since the material industry has a high entry threshold and fast
evolution speed, success is less reproducible. Besides this, paste
materials only take a small part in the overall cell costs, so it is less
practical to save costs at this side. In fact, the keys are quality and
services. Facing a given customer base, a new competitor trying to
compete for customers with prices lower than those of the existing

supplier will not always success.
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C. As for energy storage business, competitors are still mainly from
China. China dealers soon gained a considerable scale with their very
low costs and favor from the authorities in terms of subsidy policies.
At this part, the cell materials developed by Giga Solar Materials, such
as Si anode and adhesive, set a relatively high technical threshold in
terms of design, production and application, and thus the Company has
been able to secure its technical advantages. Giga Solar Materials will
keep Improving its products for better performance, longer cycle life,
high efficiency and fast charge/discharge, so as to lead the industry
with products with top quality. Additionally, since the end market will
gradually shift from China to big consumers such as the US and
Europe, and countries have dealt with this using tariff limits, we have
to speed up our arrangement of local production so as to serve our
customers from a place as close to them as possible. At last, with
respect to traditional cell materials, dealers in Taiwan started mass
manufacturing late, so when it comes to production capacity, they are
currently less comparable to competitors from China and Korea. On
the other hand, Giga Solar Materials has been dedicated to new
materials, its lag in terms of production capacity is not significant, yet
Giga Solar Materials still has to remain sensitive to market changes
and rapidly adapts itself to demands from its customers or from the
market, so as to strengthen competitiveness for cost control and

material performance.
2. Major use of core product and manufacturing process

(1) Major use of core product

Briefly, a solar cell is made through a semiconductor manufacturing

process where a P-type semiconductor, an N-type semiconductor, and an
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anti-reflection layer are formed. It generates power using the
photovoltaic effects of these materials. That is, when sunlight hits a solar
cell, incident electrons are absorbed. Then, through the electric field at
P-N type semiconductor interface as shown in the image and the
photovoltaics effects, electrons (anode ) and holes (cathode ) are
separated to form a photocurrent, which is in turn transmitted to the load
through a lead. The solar paste of the Company is used to form front and
back electrodes of a solar cell (including the back side electric field), and

electrodes for connecting modules in series.

Product item Product use
Front-side silver [Solar cell front-side silver electrode (lead)
paste

aluminum paste |solar cell back side aluminum electrode
back side silver |[solar cell back side silver aluminum electrode (lead)
paste

For lithium-ion batteries (hereinafter referred to as lithium batteries)
to solve issues related to their application (especially in electric vehicles),
such as driving range and range anxiety, technological development
continues to focus on high energy density and high capacity materials.
The development of anode materials mainly emphasizes increasing
specific capacity. Currently, artificial graphite (AG) remains the primary
anode material in lithium-ion batteries due to advantages such as the ease
of obtaining carbon materials, mature manufacturing processes, and low
costs. However, its capacity performance has reached a bottleneck. In the
battery cell system, the main function of the anode material is to store
lithium ions. The more storage space the anode material has, the higher
its capacity performance, and the higher the capacity, the more effective
the increase in energy density per unit cell. The current development of
AG technology is approaching its theoretical capacity of 372mAh/g,
which can no longer meet the demands of power batteries at the present
stage. Therefore, the development of high-capacity materials, such as
silicon anodes, with a specific capacity of up to 3579mAh/g, has
gradually gained attention, becoming the main development direction for

next-generation anode applications.

Product item Product use
Silicon carbide anode|Lithium-ion battery anode materials
Silicon oxide anode |Lithium-ion battery anode materials
Water-based |Adhesive for lithium ion battery anode powder
adhesive
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(2) Manufacturing of core product

Success of solar paste lies on the core, composition and formula.

Production itself is less complicated, where the only goal is to form a

homogenous mixture of raw materials. The manufacturing process is as

below:

Flow of production of solar paste

Raw materials

Mixing by agitator

Dispersing in drum [ >

Final product

Testing

Packaging

Product

The manufacturing process for anode materials is complex, but

mainly involves material mixing, high-temperature sintering, powder

pulverization, surface carbon coating, material sorting, inspection, and

packaging. For aqueous binders, the process involves raw material

synthesis, colloid drying,

packaging.

3. Supply of raw materials

powder pulverization,

inspection, and

The main raw materials for our products are silver powder, aluminum

powder, solvents, resins, and other additives. In addition to major suppliers from

the United States and Japan, some raw materials are sourced from domestic

suppliers. For energy storage material products, the main raw materials are silicon

powder, quartz powder, resins, and other additives. Apart from China, we have

established sources from South Korea, Japan, and Taiwan. The raw materials are

not complex, with the main focus being on the manufacturing process and

material formulations. Overall, the supply situation is good, and there are no

shortages. In addition to continuously strengthening our cooperation with existing

suppliers, we are also actively seeking other domestic suppliers to reduce raw

material costs.

. . . . Supply
Major raw materials Major suppliers status
Metal powder Companies A, B,C,D,E, F, G, H good
Solvent Company L, Company M good
Resin and other additives Company N, Company O, Company P good

4. Set forth the names of any suppliers (customers) listed in the consolidated

statement that have supplied (sold) 10 percent or more of the company’s

procurements (sales) in either of the preceding 2 fiscal years, and the monetary
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amount and the proportion of such procurements (sales) as a percentage of total

procurements (sales), and explain the reason for any change in the amount.

However, where the company is prohibited by contract from revealing the name

of a trading counterpart, or where a trading counterpart is an individual person

who is not a related party, a code may be used in place of such trading

counterpart’s actual name.

(1) The names of any suppliers that accounted for 10 percent or more of the

Company's total purchases in either of the last two fiscal years, as well as the

purchases amounts and percentages from those suppliers, and an explanation

for any increase or decrease. This includes suppliers to the Company, its

directors, managerial officers, and businesses directly or indirectly controlled

by the Company.
Unit: NTD thousand
2022 2023
Purchase to net| Relationship Purchase to . .
. . Relationship
Name Amount | purchase ratio with the Name Amount | net purchase | | .
. . with the issuer
(%) issuer ratio (%)
Company E | 00 943 51.97|  None CompanyE 1) 419286 56.59|  None
Company S 93,630 2.15|  None Company § 327,788 13.07]  None
Others | 1 995,947 45.83]  None Others 760,735 3034 None
Net Purchase 4350520 100.00 - Net Purchase 2.507.809 100.00 -

Explanation of increase/decrease: Company S only added a new supplier, accounting
for 10% or more, of its procurement of silver powder. This is mainly due to the
addition of a qualified silver powder supplier.

(2) Set forth the names of any customer listed in the consolidated statement

that have purchased 10 percent or more of the company’s sales in either

of the preceding 2 fiscal years, and the monetary amount and the

proportion of such sales as a percentage of total procurements sales, and

explain the reason for any change in the amount.

Unit: NT$ thousand
2022 2023
Customer Sales to net| Relationship c Sales to net| Relationship
1Il\?a(r)nee Amount | salesratio | with the ﬁé?nnger Amount | salesratio | with the
(%) issuer (%) issuer
c;fnvglny 920,999 1629 None é‘;\mpany 397874 1210 None
C"mepa“y 674,661 11.93]  None gﬁ‘pany 348,238 L7710 None
Corﬁﬁany 405,701 7.17 None é(])gmpany 303,713 10.27 None
AB 42,322 0.75 None Company 0 0.00 None
Company 0
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Others | 3,611,162 63.86 _ Others 1,948,586 65.87

Net Sales | 5,654,845 100.00 Net Sales | 2,958,411 100.00 -

Explanation for increase/decrease: The change in customers accounting for more
than 10 percent of annual sales is primarily due to a significant decline in revenue
from silicon auxiliary materials caused by the US-China trade impact, and a decrease
in revenue from solar conductive pastes affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.

5. Main production quantity and value in consolidated statements in the most recent
two years and analysis of changes
Unit: thousand barrels; /sheet; NTD thousand

Year 2022 2023
Production quantity
and value . . Output » . Output
Capability| Yield Capability| Yield
value value
m
Solar conductive 248 56{ 1,983,000
661 148| 3,035,712
paste

Analysis of changes in production quantity and value:
In 2023, production quantity and value of solar paste reduced due to reduced sales.

6. Main sales quantity and value as reflected in consolidated statements the most

recent two years and analysis of changes in the sales

Unit: thousand barrels; NTD thousand

\@ 2022 2023
Sales quantity an Domestic sales Export Domestic sales Export

value
\ Quantity | Value | Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value
Main product
Solar conductive paste 56[ 853,670 128 2,403,422 23] 570,358 41 1,631,483
Silicon materials for 1,118.287| 437.578|1.647.165 982311 595,231 62,278 434,954 204,458
solar energy
Others -| 193,738 - 784,126 -| 145,054 - 344,780
Total 1,118,343] 1,484,986| 1,647,293 4,169,859 595,254 777,690 434,995 2,180,721

Analysis of changes in sales quantity and value:

Export sales quantity and value of front-side silver paste reduced from the previous year
mainly because the pandemic impacted travel speed of both people and goods, and also
because competitors’ cut-price competition. Sales of silicon materials for solar energy
reduced from the previous year mainly because of the U.S.-China trade war, leading to a
significant decrease in both sales quality and revenue.

Note: including solar paste and carriers.
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III. Employees Number of employees in the most recent two years and as of the date of

printing of this annual report, average seniority, average age and educational background

ratio
Year 2022 2023 April 9, 2024
Managerial 3 3 3
personnel
Number of Direct 1 36 45 42
employees PETSOTING
Indirect 182 190
186
personnel
Total 225 230 235
Average age 41.35 41.69 41.63
Average services 10.87 10.96 10.87
seniority
Doctoral o 0 0
D 4.00% 3.45% 2.55%
egree
Nasters 21.33% 18.97% 19.57%
Educational £ -
backeround Bachelor’s or
£10 Associate 57.78% 60.78% 60.85%
ratio (%)
Degree
High School 16.89% 16.38% 16.60%
Below High : 0.43% 0.43%
School

I'V. Information on expenditures for environmental protection

1. According to laws and regulations if it is required to apply for a permit for installing
anti-pollution facilities, or permit of pollution drainage, or to pay anti-pollution fees,
or to organize and set up an exclusively responsible unit/office for environmental
issues, the description of the status of such applications, payment or establishment
shall be made.

(1) Situation of applying for a permit for installing anti-pollution facilities, or permit
of pollution drainage
The Company has secured applicable permits for air, water, and waste, and
manages emissions and drainages with extra control. The current management and
control conform to provisions of environmental regulations.

Due to operational planning needs, the Company has established a new
factory, Taoxue Plant, in the Taoyuan Science and Industry Park, and obtained
factory registration certificate in June 2023. As of the end of 2023, the Company
has obtained pollution facility installation permits or pollution discharge permits as

shown in the following table:
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Permit No.
Shinfong Factory Plant in
(Control Number: Taoyuan
Catesor Hsinchu Factory J59B4934) Science and
gory (Control Number: Industry Park
J59A3761) (Control
Number:
H53C1063)
Fixed Hsinchu County No.
pollution | Huan-Kong-She-Cheng-Zi Not announced Not announced
source J0648-00
) . controlled controlled
installatio
n permit
Fixed Hsinchu County No.
pollution | Huan-Kong-Tsao-Cheng-Z Not announced Not announced
source 1J0877-04
: controlled controlled
operation
permit
Water Hsinchu County No. Taoyuan City
pollution | Huan-Pai-Hsu-Zi 00807-05 Not announced No.
preventing controlled Huan-Pai-Hsu-Z
permit 1 H4808-00
Business No.
waste No. Fu-Huan-Ye-Zi Fu-Shou-Huan-Ye-Z
disposal 1118661435 i HIT111100001
plan 1118659132
(2) Payment of pollution control fees (2022):
Unit: NT$
' 2022 2023
Time Plant in
Company Taoyuan
Shinfong | Hsinchu | Shinfong | Hsinchu | Science
Factory Factory Factory Factory and
Category Industry
Park
General waste 331,068 | 648,000 | 133,224 | 526,204 | 84,000
handling fee
Business waste 109,930 | 1,484,273 | 516,498 | 920,433 | 396,841
handling fee
Air pollution 900 57 140 CBglow
control fee ’ arse 9,263 i
Threshold
?eeewage treatment 83,927 ) ) i 13,296

(3) Appointment of dedicated unit/personnel for environmental protection:
The Company’s Hsinchu Factory is a premises as included in the list of the Second

Batch of Public and Private Premises, and an employee has been appointed for air
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pollution control. The Hsinchu Factory organizes various business summary events

about air-pollution prevention as provided by relevant environmental laws.

2. List the company’s investment in equipment for preventing and controlling
environment pollution and usage thereof and potential effects
The Company has set up air pollution prevention and controlling equipment, wet
washing towers, as required with respect to our manufacturing process, and
periodically examines and maintains the hardware. We have also engaged inspection
and testing companies authorized by Environmental Protection Administration to
check pipes and channels on a regular basis, so as to ensure proper operation of the
equipment. By ensuring our air pollutant emissions satisfying the emissions standards
provided by the government, we minimize damage and impact on the environment by
the waste gas form our manufacturing processes, reflecting our commitment to our

responsibility for protecting the environment.
Unit: NTD thousand

Construction Invested
Equipment Name [Quantity| Completion Usage and Expected Benefits
. Amount
Time
Wet Washing Tower
' ' 500CMM: treating VOCs and
Air pollution particle pollutants generated
control equipment 1 January 2010| 3,397  |in the manufacturing process
_ Hsinchu Factory to r.na1.<e these satisty
emissions standards and to
reduce air pollution

3. The process through which the company has improved its environment pollution
during the most recent two years and as of the date of printing of this annual report,
and in case of dispute related to pollution, specify how the dispute was dealt with:

None.

4. Any losses suffered by the company in the most recent two fiscal years and up to the
annual report publication date due to environmental pollution incidents (including any
compensation paid and any violations of environmental protection laws or regulations
found in environmental inspection, specifying the disposition dates, disposition
reference numbers, the articles of law violated, and the content of the dispositions),
and disclosing an estimate of possible expenses that could be incurred currently and in
the future and measures being or to be taken, and if a reasonable estimate cannot be

made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot be made shall be provided:
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Arbitration information is as follows:
Arbitration date |[September 25, 2023
Jurisdiction
over counties |Taoyuan City
and cities
Order number 1, 115 490048
of the ruling
Date of breach [May 17, 2023
Violation of
laws and  |Article 28-1 of the Waste Disposal Act
regulations

NT$72,000
Penalty amount [(According to Article 23, Paragraph 2 of the Environmental
Education Act, the environmental lecture will be held for 2 hours)
Fines Paid-up in full
Recently, the factory area contracted an engineering company to
carry out a toilet renovation project. The subcontractor
commissioned by the engineering company did not have a permit
from the competent authority as a public or private waste disposal
and treatment institution to remove and treat industrial waste, which
subsequently led to illegal dumping along a road section in Yangmei
District, Taoyuan City.
In the future, for any contracted work (projects, maintenance, etc.),
Giga Solar Materials' control regulations and payment requirements
must be stated in the relevant procurement documents (contracts,
Responding |quotations, purchase requests, purchase orders, etc.). The contractor
measures  |should provide "legal disposal and treatment documents" and a
"construction waste transportation confirmation slip", which should
be co-signed by Giga Solar Materials' supervision personnel for
multi-level control.

Non-compliance
description

5. Explain the current condition of pollution and the impact of its improvement to the
profits, competitive position and capital expenditures of the company, as well as the
projected major environment-related capital expenses to be made for the coming 2
fiscal years: None.

In order to fulfill our responsibility for protecting the environment and
safeguarding employees’ safety and health, while implementing our administrative
duties to environmental protection and prevention of pollution as well as enterprise
responsibility for environmental protection, the Company was certified against ISO
14001:2004, the environment management system, in December 2009. In 2015, in
response to update of the system from ISO 14001:2004 to ISO 14001:2015, the
Company updated its certification against ISO 14001:2015 at the end of 2016, and in
Q1 2017 further been verified by a third-party agent so as to prove our efforts to
enhance environment performance and fulfill our corporate social responsibility for

environmental protection, and ensure that the Company’s products are produced under
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strict management and control as expected by environmental laws and regulations and
ISO international standards, thereby achieving our goal for sustainable development
and better positioning the Company in international competition. Moreover, the
Company in 2018 further adopted ISO 45001:2018, Occupational Safety and Health
management system, (former OHSAS 18001) and passed certification, showing our

ISO 45001:2018 in social, economic, environmental and safety aspects.

Giga Solar Materials Corporation Giga Solar Materials Corporation
L ER wmit £H ’e\ AW ] o

* " SGS

150 14001:2015

As the rapid changes in the global solar industry and in specifications of
electronic products, competition has become even fiercer. In order to promote solar
power and energy storage materials, the Company possesses high-efficiency power
stations and continuously invests in R&D of electric vehicles and energy storage
products. As the trend toward electric vehicles becomes clearer than ever, Giga Solar
Materials recently works in expansion of business of cell anode materials positively,
with the goal to have full independence in materials. Our energy storage materials
have received IATF 16949:2016 verification for Declaration of Conformity in 2020,
and formal certificate was received in 2021 after further verification. Our C-Si anode
energy storage products also received recognition from our customers and entered
automotive supply chain successfully. Our Si-C raw materials and polymer adhesive
are now under expansion of production, making us more advantageous to grasp
“zero-carbon opportunities.”

In view of growth of the industry, this Company has expanded its product lines
to improve its competitiveness. In 2020, this Company merged Exojet to integrate both
parties’ resources and improving our shareholder team. This merger gave Giga Solar
Materials a great chance to diversify its product portfolio, making itself more capable
of offer customers with complete solutions.

In order to satisfy the need of future operation of Giga Solar Materials and the
Group’s subsidiaries, the Company acquired facilities and land in Hsinchu Industrial

Park in 2021. The acquisition provides our future operation with support and
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accommodation. With its years of experience in paste materials and expertise in the
automotive supply chain, Giga Solar Materials is confident in blazing a new path in

the market of passive components, branching new ground.

= Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Giga Solar Materials Corp. AR i
(Xinfeng Plant) Y i - 0

* SGS s

IATF 16849:2016

6. Information on response to Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directive (RoHS):

The Company’s products are materials to be used in electronic products, and the
products made from raw materials all conform to EU standards and other regulations.
Additionally, upon customers’ request, investigation and testing reports issued by
third-party verification agents of the Company’s products may be provided upon
shipment, so as to ensure the products compliant to relevant international regulations,
such as the EU’s Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directive (RoHS), Registration,
and Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals (REACH), as well as

customers’ requirements.
V. Labor relationship

1. List any employee benefit plans, continuing education, training, retirement systems,
and the status of their implementation, and the status of labor—management

agreements and measures for preserving employees’ rights and interests:

(1) Employees benefit plans

(OThe Company insures its employees with labor insurance, health insurance,
pension payments, and group insurance, as general benefit, and more employee
benefits include employee compensation distribution, diverse on-job training,
employee physical examinations, subsidies for buying books, etc. The Company’s
sites are equipped with breastfeeding rooms to support female employees with a
quality breastfeeding environment.

(2The Company has set up Employees’ Welfare Committee as required by law, and
has selected personnel to run a benefit committee that is responsible for

implementing various employee benefit events, with annual schedule and budget

137



plans maintained to provide services such as annual travel subsidies, club events,
subsidies for weddings and funerals, discounts in contracted stores, gift coupons,
and employees health promotion activities held periodically, so as to, in their daily
hard work, help maintain employees’ mental and physical health.

(3 The Company has set up an employee stock ownership association, and
implemented an employee dividend-sharing system to turn our employees into our
shareholders, thereby enhancing employees’ engagement and devotion to the
Company, and inspiring employees’ ownership and accountability.

(@To provide employees with thorough benefit and protection, if employees, on their
service, dies on duty, due to illness, or on accidents, the Company will implement
its consolation system to take care of the deceased’s minor children until the
children complete their education in universities, manifest the Company’s

commitment to our corporate social responsibility.

(2) Continuing education and training

The Company holds diverse learning programs for employees to use, and
arranges, from time to time, overseas training or study opportunities in relevant
academic facilities. We also provide an e-Learning platform for convenient
management of learning, thereby encouraging employees to improve themselves to
seek continuous growth. The Company further has an employee promotion method
in place, and provides open promotion channels to recognize employees’
contribution to the Company, thereby upholding the common benefits between the

Company and employees.

Item Number of | Total number | Total number
course of persons of times
1. Orientation program 12 399 2472.5
2. Professional function 108 863 1695
3. Leadership 2 47 282
4. General knowledge 61 1456 2812.5
5. Self-inspiration 6 91 123
More than
NT$100,000,000 175 1725 3099

(3) Retirement systems, and the status of their implementation
The Company used to set 2% of individual employees’ monthly salary aside as
reserve for future pension payment in order to ensure easy life of retired employees,
improve labor relationship and inspire working motivation. Later, the Labor Pension
Act came into force on July 1, 2005 to implement an appropriation system. After

implementation, an employee was allowed to select whether it shifts to the pension
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system based on “Labor Standards Act” or to adopts the system of the Act while
preserving seniority accumulated before such implementation. For employees
shifting to the Act, the Company is required to contribute a part of employees’
appropriation, with an amount equal to 6% of the individual employees’ monthly
salary.

The Company has set up rules for retirement management, which include
provisions for ordinary employees and commissioned managerial personnel,
respectively. For employees arriving at their posts before July 1, 2005, the Company
continuously contributes the 2% old system reserve and has set up a labor pension
supervision and management committee. When any of the Company’s employees
satisfies the requirements as set forth in Article 53 (1)-(3) and Article 54 (1) of Labor

Standards Act, the required procedure will be followed.

(4) Working environment and employee safety protective measures

OThe Company has engaged inspection and measurement agencies authorized by
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, MOL to conduct semi-annual
inspection and measurement for ensuring a quality working environment for
employees. The exact items of inspection and measurement depend on the type
of in-site operation and the results are bulletined to all employees through the
e-bulletin board periodically.

®@In order to ensure employees’ working safety, the existing operation in the
factory is periodically audited by our industrial safety division, and any
incompliance is registered as audit weakness and required to be corrected
within a deadline-specified period. In the weakness is impossible to be rectified
thorough engineering control and administrative improvement, related staff are
required to wuse personal protective equipment. Training on use and
maintenance of personal protective equipment is provided to related staff
periodically. Respirators have been managed in accordance with regulations
announced by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration. For
employees using respirators, respiratory protection measures and related
management are implemented to prevent ineffectiveness of respiratory
protection as a result of using improper equipment. Any alteration intended to
be made in the factory (machinery equipment, plant layout, etc.) is only
permitted when beforehand evaluation performed in accordance with the
established guidelines for management of alteration (Control Sheet for
Alteration, Checklist for Evaluation of Impacts on Environment Safety and
Health, etc.) has been completed with favorable results. Any contractor

intending to enter our factory for performance of construction is only permitted
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when an access application is filed in accordance with the established
Guideline to Contractors for Environmental Safety so as to implement strict

access control and protect employees’ safety.

(5) Establishment of code of ethic employee conduct

The Company has set up various guidelines for operation and management

benefit measures for all employees to follow and to acquire ethical concepts, rights,

obligations and standards for conduct therethrough. These measures have been

acknowledged and obeyed consistently by all employees. The codes of conduct are:

1.

management.

I undertake to perform my duty impartially during my tenure in accordance
with the Company’s rules and provisions, with the public interest in mind,
and to refrain myself from taking advantage of my position to seek unlawful
benefits for myself, my spouse, my blood relatives, my relations by marriage
or any person who lives with me.

I further undertake not to solicit, offer or receive any property, advantage,
expense, or subsidy from anyone who has interests with my position.
However, when it is any of the following cases, and is occasional and free
from the concern of affecting any certain right and obligation, I am allowed to
accept it:

2.1 it is out of business etiquette.

2.2 it is reward, emergency assistance, or condolence from the

2.3 it is property of a market value below NT$2,000, or is a gift from
multiple of my coworkers with a total market value below NT$2,000.
2.4 It is a cash gift as regards to my engagement, wedding, childbirth,
relocation, assume a position, promotion, retirement, resignation,
leaving a position, or to I, my spouse or any of my lineal relative’s
injury, illness, or death, with a market value not exceeding the level
acceptable to normal social custom.
I undertakes that when I am offered a gift due to or related to my position, I
shall refuse to accept or return it, and report the offer to my immediate
supervisor, and if return is not feasible, I shall submit the gift to the
Company’s Administration Department for its disposal.
I will not accommodate any decision related to the Company’s business to
illegal lobbying and influence peddling from any customer or supplier with
the purpose to advantage or disadvantage any specified party.
If T breach any provision of this Undertaking, I accept punishment as

provided in the Company’s rules and regulations. Where the breach involves
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criminal responsibility, I agree to surrender the judgement to the judiciary.

(6) As of the date of printing of this annual report, the detail of licenses and certificates
issued from the authorities held by staff related to financial information disclosure:
CPA (ROC): 2, Finance Division
CPA (US): 1, Finance Division

Internal auditor license: 1, Finance Division

(7) Agreements between labor and management; and policies for safeguarding
employees’ rights and interests
The Company conforms to Labor Standards Act and other relevant regulations,
and has set up various sound systems for management of regulations for employees
to observe. The Company quarterly convenes a labor—-management conference, with
four convened in 2023, where labor representatives and management’s
representative conduct communication and discussion so as to make the labor heard
and empowered, and to build good labor relationship.
The Company has set up Employees’ Welfare Committee, which works with the
management on a yearly basis to review the existing employee benefits and
evaluate proposed employees benefit measures, so as to harmonize the labor and the

management.

2. List any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the
annual report publication date due to labor disputes (including any violations of the
Labor Standards Act found in labor inspection, specifying the disposition dates,
disposition reference numbers, the articles of law violated, the substance of the legal
violations, and the content of the dispositions), and disclosing an estimate of possible
expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future and measures being or to be
taken, and if a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why

it cannot be made shall be provided:

With respect to labor relationship, the Company operates on the basis of Labor
Standards Act and adopts human-based management, thereby maintaining good labor—
management relationship. The Company did not experience any loss caused by labor—
management controversy

VI. Management of information security:

For protecting the Company’s business secrets, intellectual property, and confidential
information, and minimizing operational risks, while protecting and managing personal
data, the Company has set up various guidelines for management of computer data
processing and protection of personal data, so as to implement our internal control
system and maintain our information security policies. The regulations and procedures
for security are reviewed and assessed every year to ensure their appropriateness and
effectiveness. Further details are given below:
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(1) Information Security Management Framework
The Company has its information service department taking charge of matters
about information security, and appointed one dedicated information security
officer and one staff. It is responsible for planning, implementing, and promoting
management of information security, and introducing concepts of information
security. The Company further has the audit office supervise matters around
information security. The Company also implements various information-related
operational rules and management measures for protecting personal data. We
periodically conduct inspection and testing about information security and drive
continuous improvement, thereby upholding information security.
The Company places great importance on information security, and requires
employees to report matters about information security to managerial personnel on a
regular basis.

The Company has a set of procedures for reporting and handling information

v v

security events and incidents in place.

Information security event
happening

v

Verifying
authenticity

Reporting Information
Services Department and
immediate supervisor

Reporting to general
manager and
chairperson

Assembling information

Serious information
security event

security event response
team

Seeking for

external
support
Y N

External service
provider assisting in

solving the problem

Handing over the

case to
information

service
denartment

Problem solved, reviewing, and
planning for improvement

Report and record
information security events

v

Closing

A

(2) Information Security Policies

A. To ensure the security of the company's data, systems, equipment, and network

communications, we take proactive measures to prevent external intrusions and

damage, as well as reactive measures to ensure that the company's data, systems,

and equipment can be restored in case of damage.
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3)

B. To ensure that system information accounts, access permissions, and system
changes all undergo authorized processing according to company procedures, the
use of privileged accounts is limited, and the scope of privileged account usage
is segregated.

C.To implement destruction procedures, through which computers
decommissioned can memory thereof properly destructed to prevent
unintentional data leakage.

D. To monitor security and logs of information systems, so as to effectively respond
to and deal with information security events.

E. To secure usability and integrity of data and systems so under the event of
disaster or damage, normal operation can be restored.

F. To educate employees on information security, and to implement various
information operations.

G.The Company’s internal audit program items include information &
communication safety exam. Through verified by the audit unit, internal control

management can be enhanced.

Specific management programs and resources invested in information security
management

The Company’s internal systems are all located in virtual networks and are thus
isolated and inaccessible from external networks. Moreover, we use multiple
cybersecurity systems, firewalls at the frontiers of our networks, and an email safety
control system that filter contents in and out, so as to defend extranet attacks, and
block the latest malware, harmful website links, spam and other threats.

Our mainframe is located on the internal and all end point has been deployed
with antivirus software from the console. It implements antivirus end point
installation, to increase deployment coverage. It can update virus code and
recognize features of malice behavior in a real-time manner, so as to promptly
intercept viruses, trojan horses, worms, ransomware and more, thereby effectively

reducing hacker attack risk.

Specific management programs and resources:

A. System account life cycle management and privilege account management

A user’s account and authority, data access are set according to the user’s
business scope and duty. No change is valid unless sign-off properly applied
from the responsible supervisor is obtained. Once an employee leaves a
position, the relevant user account and authority are cancelled, so as to prevent
unauthorized use.

B. Data access logs for audit and backup
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The system records and stores tracks access to system files, in and out mails,
and other data. Computers after destruction are all to be disassembled to have
the hard disk destroyed to conform to our compliant management system and
information security policy.

C. Security protection

With various antivirus programs, firewalls, mail filtering mechanisms, we
conduct sensitive data processing and file encryption, vulnerability patch
update, controlled installation of communication software. IPS is used to
separate network segments or weakness links between hosts, thereby

protecting information security of the Company’s businesses.

The Company has joined the Taiwan Computer Emergency Response
Team/Coordination Center (TWCERT/CC) organization, allowing us to
obtain cybersecurity early warning intelligence, understand cybersecurity
threats and vulnerability information, and report information security
incidents in advance. This enables us to jointly maintain Taiwan's network
security and enhance Taiwan's overall cybersecurity protection capabilities.

D. Management of safety rating

It is to determine rationality of the link source of the service host, whether the
account involves abuse or misuse, and whether there is unknown service
operating. VPN connection is subject to monitoring and restriction, and use of
remote software is limited.

E. Continuity of Information Systems

We set up backup mechanisms and redundancy plans. Crucial systems and
documents are backed up daily, weekly, and monthly. Backup data are stored
on tape and stored at an international datacenter (IDC) as remote backup. Drill
for Disaster recovery of system data are implemented regularly, so as to
ensure runtime and data safety of information system, and reduce risks of data
loss in the event of unexpected natural or human disasters.
F. Education and training

Information security as a subject is incorporated into orientation for new staff.
Publicity for information security are scheduled to educate employees to be
aware of information security and respect intellectual property, thereby

protecting data of employees and the Company.
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The Company held education and training courses for the topic of information

in 2023, to provide employees with correct ideas.

Number Total Total
number
Item of person
of
course hour
persons
1. Information security education publicity 2 77 77
2. Information security promotion - email 2 56 56
security and social engineering prevention
3. Information security promotion - 2 51 51
introduction and protection of ransomware

The Company reports matters related to information security to the Board on a regular

basis. The last report was made

on January 19, 2024.

The Company’s information department operates well in accordance with the set

procedure, and in risk assessment performs rather fairly. Recently, in view that concerns

of information security increase, the Company actively optimizes our measures for

information security and equips employees with correct sense about information security,

with the hope to reduce the Company’s operation risk. In the most recent year and up to

the date of printing of this annual report, no major security issue about information &

communication happened.

VII. Major Contracts

Nature of Restrictions
Contractor Start and end of term Summary Terms and
contract "
Conditions
Non-exclusi Confidential
on ex'c uswe E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Obtained non-exclusive patent onticentia
patent licensing 2017/11/15— ] )
Company licensing related to solar paste
contract
C lidated
onso (11:1 © Taiwan Cooperative Bank Co., March 7, 2019-March 7,|Credit limit contract (NT$500 N
credi n
Ltd. 2024 million) one
agreement
Directors, S i d
Insurance Chung Kuo Insurance Company, tree ors., UPCIVISOIS, an
) .. 2023/01/05-2024/01/05  |managerial personnel’s None
Policy Limited R
Liability Insurance
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fiscal years

Six. Financial Overview

I.  Concise balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss statement for the most recent five

(I) Concise Balance Sheet and consolidated profit and loss statement

1. Concise Balance Sheet

(1) Consolidated Concise Balance Sheet-International Financial Reporting

Standards
Unit: NT$ thousand
Year the Most Recent Five Fiscal Years financial data (Note 1)
Item 2019 2020 (Note 3) 2021 2022 2023
Current assets 6,612,192 7,358,954 6,166,601] 5,216,617] 4,631,903
Property, plant and 3,604,256 3,618,836| 3,671,932| 4,432,080 4,652,686
equipment
Intangible assets 186,594 423,246 411,669 406,975 383,044
Other assets 1,938,794 1,801,507] 2,144328] 2,156,168] 1,816,021
Total assets 12,341,836]  13,202,543| 12,394,530] 12,211,840 11,483,654
Before 2,918,743 5,400,067| 3,070,447| 2,028,124 2,103,694
Current |distribution
cost | After 3,044,593 5,530,334  3,070,447| 2,028,124 (Note 2)
distribution
Non-current liabilities 4,063,726 2,011,820 2,313,504] 1,652,165 1,901,526
Before 6,982,469 7.411,887|  5,383,951| 3,680,289 4,005,220
Total distribution
indebtedness| ~ After 7,108,319 7,542,154  5,383,951| 3,680,289 (Note 2)
distribution
Interests attributed to
owners of the parent 4,733,084 5,296,765 6,409,115  7,587,938| 6,639,509
company
Capital stock 636,750 658,830 758,834 918,834 918,834
Capital surplus 2,228,297 2,651,265 3,754,922] 5,421,986] 5,446,501
Before
Retained |distribution]  2:311:869 2,378,445 1,910,480 1,401,962 586,639
carnings | After 2,186,019 2,248,178| 1,910480| 1,401,962  (Note 2)
distribution
Other equity (234,261) (182,204) (15,121)]  (154,844) (312,465)
Treasury shares (209,571) (209,571) - - -
Non-controlling 626,283 493,891 601,464 943,613 838,925
mterests
. Before 5,359,367 5,790,656  7,010,579|  8,531,551| 7,478,434
Equity |distribution
Total amount| ~ After 5,233,517 5,660,389  7,010,579| 8,531,551 (Note 2)
distribution

Note 1: Financial data for the above-indicated years have received CPA auditing and

attestation

Note 2: This annual report has not been adopted in the shareholder meeting as of the date

of printing.

Note 3: As of the day this consolidated financial report is adopted and published, the
required market valuation and other calculation have been completed. The
original accounting treatment and the provisional amount of the consolidated
company have been adjusted from the date of acquisition, and comparative
information has been recompiled.
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(2) Individual Concise Balance Sheet — International Financial Reporting

Standards
Unit: NT$ thousand
Year the Most Recent Five Fiscal Years financial data (Note 1)
Item 2019] 2020 (Note 3) 2021 2022 2023
Current assets 5,362,278 5,901,971 4,178,338 3,046,120 2,759,244
Property, plant and 314,855 303,504 362,306 1,187,879 1217,114
equipment
Intangible assets 89 277,263 277,046 277,159 264,709
Other assets 4,130,065 4,279,550 4,811,094 4,916,662 4,596,795
Total assets 9,807,287 10,762,288 9,628,784 9,427,820 8,837,862
 Before 2,662,109 5,028,648 2,248,342 1,385,008 1,310,861
Current distribution
liabilities | After 2,787,959 5,158,915 2,248,342 1,385,008 (Note 2)
distribution
Non-current liabilities 2,412,094 436,875 971,327 454,874 887,492
Before
Total distribution 5,074,203 5,465,523 3,219,669 1,839,882 2,198,353
indebtedness g After 5,200,053 5595790,  3.219,669 1,839,882 (Note 2)
istribution
Equity attributed to
owners of the parent - - - - -
company
Capital stock 636,750 658,830 758,834 918,834 918,834
Capital surplus 2228297 2,651,265 3,754,922 5,421,986 5,446,501
Retained  Before 2,311,869 2,378,445 1,910,480 1,401,962 586,639
. distribution
earmngs After
Earnings | Aaer 2,186,019 2,248,178 1,910,480 1,401,962 (Note 2)
distribution
Other equity (234,261) (182,204) (15,121) (154,844) (312,465)
Treasury shares (209,571) (209,571) - - -
Non-controlling interests _ _ _ _ _
Equity | Before 4733084 5296765 6,409,115  7,587,938] 6,639,509
Total amount | distribution
| After 4,607,234 5,166,498 6,409,115 7,587,938 (Note 2)
distribution

Note 1: Financial data for the above-indicated years have received CPA auditing and attestation

Note 2: This annual report has not been adopted in the shareholder meeting as of the date of printing.
Note 3: As of the day this individual financial report is adopted and published, the required market
valuation and other calculation have been completed. The original accounting treatment and the

provisional amount of the consolidated company have been adjusted from the date of

acquisition, and comparative information has been recompiled.

147




2. Concise consolidated profit and loss statement

(1) Concise consolidated profit and loss statement — International Financial
Reporting Standards

Unit: NT$ thousand

Year

Item

the Most Recent Five Fiscal Years financial data (Note 1)

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Operating revenues

7,875,926

8,834,835

7,632,452

5,654,845

2,958,411

Operating gross
profits

996,461

1,054,635

576,823

493,412

(160,165)

Operating (loss)
profits

176,234

227,638

(262,825)

(439,099)

(966,662)

Non-operating
income and expenses

(135,434)

(100,989)

(171,107)

(77,643)

(207,140)

Net (loss) profits
before tax

40,800

126,649

(433,932)

(516,742)

(1,173,802)

Continuing
operations

Net profit (loss) for
the period

(14,456)

68,124

(445,878)

(572,031)

(1,202,854)

Loss of discontinuing
operations

Net profits (loss) for
the period

(14,456)

68,124

(445,378)

(572,031)

(1,202,854)

Other comprehensive
income (loss) for the
period
(net amount after tax)

(73,203)

43,162

204,057

(128,435)

(157,220)

Total amount of
consolidated (loss)
profits for the period

(87,659)

111,286

(241,821)

(700,466)

(1,360,074)

Net profits (losses)
attributable
to owner of the parent
company:

188,928

200,239

(375,458)

(495,153)

(810,576)

Net profits (loss)
attributed to
non-controlling
interest

(203,384)

(132,115)

(70,420)

(76,878)

(392,278)

Total amount of
consolidated (loss)
profits attributed to

owners of the parent
company

119,746

244,483

(170,925)

(625,911)

(973,001)

Total amount of
consolidated (loss)
profits attributed to

non-controlling

interest

(207,405)

(133,197)

(70,896)

(74,555)

(387,073)

Earnings (loss) per

share

3.07

3.18

(5.34)

(6.14)

(8.82)

Note 1: Data for the above-indicated years have received CPA auditing and attestation
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(2) Individual concise consolidated profits and loss statement — International Financial

Reporting Standards

Unit: NT$ thousand

Year

Item

the Most Recent Five Fiscal Years financial data (Note 1)

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Operating revenues

5,826,587

6,663,363

4,535,376

3,003,635

1,905,293

Operating gross profits

562,715

658,466

347,968

201,837

108,136

Operating (loss) profits

85,731

258,237

(157,184)

(245,547)

(384,313)

Non-operating income

and expenses

36,099

(18,983)

(248,719)

(244,098)

(426,263)

Net (loss) profits before

tax

121,830

239,254

(405,903)

(489,645)

(810,576)

Continuing operations
Net profit (loss) for the
period

188,928

200,239

(375,458)

(495,153)

(810,576)

Loss of discontinuing

operations

Net profits (loss) for the
period

188,928

200,239

(375,458)

(495,153)

(810,576)

Other comprehensive
income (loss) for the
period
(net amount after tax)

(69,182)

44,244

204,533

(130,758)

(162,425)

Total amount of
consolidated (loss) profits
for the period

119,746

244,483

(170,925)

(625,911)

(973,001)

Net profit attributable
to owner of the parent
company

188,892

200,239

(375,458)

(495,153)

(810,576)

Net profit attributed to

non-controlling interest

Total amount of
consolidated (loss) profits
attributed to owners of the

parent company

119,746

244,483

(170,925)

(625,911)

(973,001)

Total amount of
consolidated (loss) profits
attributed to
non-controlling interest

Earnings (loss) per share

3.07

3.18

(5.34)

(6.14)

(8.82)

Note 1: Data for the above-indicated years have received CPA auditing and attestation
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(IT) CPA names and audit opinions for the most recent five fiscal years

Year Firm Name Name of accountant Audit Opinion
2019 Deloitte and Touche Chung Ming-Yuan Unqualified Opinion
Huang Yu-Feng
2020 Deloitte and Touche Chung Ming-Yuan Unqualified Opinion
Huang Yu-Feng
. Huang Yu-Feng . -
2021 Deloitte and Touche Chung Ming-Yuan Unqualified Opinion
. Huang Yu-Feng . -
2022 Deloitte and Touche Chang Ya-Yun Unqualified Opinion
2023 Deloitte and Touche Chung Ming-Yuan Unqualified Opinion

Chang Ya-Yun
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II. Financial analysis for the most recent five fiscal years

1. Consolidated Financial Analysis — International Financial Reporting Standards

Year Financial analysis for the most recent five fiscal years
Item 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Finance [Debt to assets ratio 56.57 56.13 43.43 30.13 34.87
Structure | Long-term fund to property, plant 26144 21560 253.92] 229771 201.60
(%) and equipment ratio
Solvency |Current ratio 226.54 136.27|  200.83 257.21 220.17
ratio Quick ratio 161.19 95.41 138.36 190.33 145.40
(%) Interest coverage ratio 1.15 1.94 (4.47) (6.35) (21.29)
Receivables Turnover (times) 2.63 3.39 3.63 4.14 2.61
Average Days to Collect 139.00  108.00{ 100.55  88.16  139.84
Receivables
Operating Inventory Turnover (times) 4.47 4.71 4.48 4.43 2.71
ability Payables Turnover (times) 39.61 69.91 80.55 32.38 11.35
Average Days to Sell Inventory 82.00 77.00) 81.47 82.39 134.68
Property, Plant and Equipment 2.19 244 2.09 1.39 0.65
Turnover (times)
Total Assets Turnover (times) 0.64 66.91 0.59 0.45 0.24
Return on Assets (%) 1.41 1.37 (2.98) (4.19) (9.79)
Return on Equity (%) (0.27) 1.22 (6.96) (7.36) (15.02)
Profitability ieljigelnrffigb(i/fo‘;re tax to paid-in 6.40 19.22]  (57.18)  (56.23) (127.74)
Net Profit Margin (%) (0.18) 0.77 (5.84) (10.11) (40.65)
Earnings per share (NT$) 3.07 3.18 (5.34) (6.14) (8.82)
Cash flow ratio (%) 32.12 20.32 29.82 25.74 (22.71)
Cashflow |Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 51.10 70.64 85.07 125.86 94.20
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 9.70 11.54 7.97 4.74 (4.61)
Degree of |[Operating Leverage 2.86 2.26 (0.14) 0.33 0.65
Leverage |Degree of financial leverage (1.82) 243 0.77 0.86 0.95

20%)

(1) Reason of changes in solvency:
The decrease in the current ratio from the previous year was mainly due to net cash outflow from operating
activities this year and a decrease in current assets resulting from the acquisition of fixed assets.

The decrease in the interest coverage ratio from the previous year was primarily due to an increased loss for
the current period.

(2) Reason of changes in operating ability:
The decline in accounts receivable turnover rate and the increase in days sales outstanding were mainly
because although the average accounts receivable amount increased due to the sharp rise in operating
revenue in December, operating revenue for the year decreased, leading to a lower accounts receivable
turnover rate compared to the same period last year.
The decreases in inventory turnover rate and accounts payable turnover rate, as well as the increase in
average days sales of inventory, were primarily due to a significant decline in cost of sales resulting from
the impact of lower operating revenue this year. The average inventory and accounts payable increased due
to the sharp rise in operating revenue in December and the early stocking up of materials in preparation for
the Christmas and Lunar New Year holidays overseas, leading to decreases in inventory turnover rate and
accounts payable turnover rate, as well as an increase in average days sales of inventory.
The decreases in property, plant and equipment turnover rate and total asset turnover rate were mainly due
to the decline in operating revenue for the year.

(3) The profitability declined compared to the same period last year, mainly due to the poor gross margin
performance resulting from the decrease in revenue this year.

(4) The cash flow decreased compared to the same period last year, primarily due to the net cash outflow from
operating activities this year.

Specify reasons of changes in financial rates in the most recent two years (skip if increase/decrease is below
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Note 1: Financial data for the above-indicated years have received CPA auditing and attestation.
Note 2: As of the day this consolidated financial report is adopted and published, the required
market valuation and other calculation have been completed. The original accounting
treatment and the provisional amount of the consolidated company have been adjusted
from the date of acquisition, and comparative information has been recompiled.
Note 3: Formulas of financial ratios
1. Financial Structure
(1) Liabilities to Assets Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Assets.
(2) Long fund to Property, Plant and Equipment ratio = (Total Equity + Non-current
Liabilities) / Net Property, Plant and Equipment.
2. Solvency
(1) Current Ratio = Current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick Ratio = (Current Assets - Inventories - Prepaid Expenses) / Current Liabilities.
(3) Times Interest Earned = Net Benefit before Income Tax and Interest Expense / Interest
Expense This Period.
3. Operating ability
(1) Receivables (including receivables and bills receivable generated from operating)
Turnover = Net Sales / Average Bills Receivable (including receivables and bills
receivable generated from operating) Balance.
(2) Average Days to Collect Receivables = 365 / Receivables Turnover.
(3) Inventory Turnover = Sales Costs / Average Inventory Amount.
(4) Payables (including payables and bills payable generated from operating) Turnover =
Sales Costs / Average Payable (including payables and bills payable generated from
operating) Balance.
(5) Average Days to Sell Inventory = 365 / Inventory Turnover.
(6) Property, Plant and Equipment Turnover = Net Sales / Net Amount Average Property,

Plant and Equipment.
(7) Total Assets Turnover = Net Sales / Average Total Assets.
4.Profitability
(1) Return on Assets = [Profit or Loss After Tax + Interest Expense x (1 - tax rate )] /
Average Total Assets.

(2) Return on Equity = Profit or Loss After Tax / Average equity total amount.

(3) Net Profit Margin = Profit or Loss After Tax / Net Sales.

(4) Earnings per share = (attributed to owners of the parent company’s loss or profit -
Preferred stock dividends) / Weighted Average Issued Number of Shares.

5. Cash Flow

(1) Cash Flow Ratio = operating activities net cash flow / Current Liabilities.

(2) Net Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio = the Most Recent Five Fiscal Years operating activities
net cash flow / the Most Recent Five Fiscal Years (Capital Expenditure + Inventory
Increase + Cash Dividends).

(3) Cash Reinvestment ratio = (Operating Activities Net Cash Flow - cash dividends) /
(Property, Plant and Equipment gross + Long-Term Investment + Other Non-Current
Assets + Operation Fund).

6. Degree of Leverage

(1) Operating Leverage = (Net Operating Revenue -Variable Operating Costs and Expense) /
Operating Income.

(2) Degree of Financial Leverage = Operating Income / (Operating Income - Interest
Expense).
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2. Individual Financial analysis -International Financial Reporting Standards

Year Financial Analysis for the Most Recent Five Fiscal Years
Analysis Item (Note 2) 2019 2020 (Note 2) 2021 2022 2023
. . Debt to assets ratio 51.74 50.78 33.44 19.52 24.87
Financial Lonot fund © v olant
Structure % | 07 £ tC-T N 10 PIOPELLY, PRAIE 5 96936 1,889.15| 2,037.07|  677.07] 618.43
and equipment ratio
Sol Current ratio 201.43 117.37 185.84 219.94] 210.49
© Z/ency Quick ratio 176.29 93.99]  155.67] 176.72] 152.61
%) Interest coverage ratio 1.64 3.72 (7.61) (12.53) (40.54)
Receivables Turnover (times) 1.86 2.24 1.99 3.02 2.65
Average Days to Collect 196 163 183.00 121 138
Receivables
Operating Inventory Turnover (times) 6.77 6.47 4.50 4.40 2.75
ability Payables Turnover (times) 42.39 107.14 80.88 21.73 7.97
Average Days to Sell Inventory 54 56 81.00 83.00 133
Property, Plant and Equipment 18.06 2155 13.62 3.88 1.58
Turnover (times)
Total Assets Turnover (times) 0.53 0.65 0.44 0.32 0.21
Return on Assets (%) 3.08 2.63 (3.31) (4.89) (8.70)
Return on Equity (%) 4.15 3.99 (6.41) (7.08)] (11.39)
Profitability ieljigelnrffigb(i/fo‘;re tax to paid-in 19.13 3631 (53.49)|  (53.29) (88.22)
Net Profit Margin (%) 3.24 3.01 (8.28) (16.49)| (42.54)
Earnings per share (NT$) 3.07 3.18 (5.34) (6.14) (8.82)
Cash flow ratio (%) 43.17 21.45 48.13 62.17 (13.58)
Cash flow |[Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 95.28 141.75 191.21 294.86 267.22
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 15.71 16.78 13.71 11.20 (2.46)
Degree of |Operating Leverage 2.06 1.12 0.58 0.73 0.75
Leverage |[Degree of financial leverage (0.81) 1.52 0.77 0.87 0.95

Reason for the change in finance ratio during the most recent two years. (skip if increase/decrease less than 20%)

(1) Reasons of changes in financial structure:
The increase in liabilities compared to the same period last year was mainly due to the surge in revenue of
Yancheng Giga Solar Materials Corporation at the end of the period, which increased borrowings and thus the
debt ratio.

(2) Reason of changes in solvency:
The decrease in the interest coverage ratio from the same period in the previous year was primarily due to an
increased loss for the current period.

(3) Reason of changes in operating ability:
The decreases in inventory turnover rate and accounts payable turnover rate, as well as the increase in average
days sales of inventory, were primarily due to a significant decline in cost of sales resulting from the impact of]
lower operating revenue this year. The average inventory and accounts payable increased due to the sharp rise
in operating revenue in December and the early stocking up of materials in preparation for the Christmas and
Lunar New Year holidays overseas, leading to decreases in inventory turnover rate and accounts payable
turnover rate, as well as an increase in average days sales of inventory.
The decreases in property, plant and equipment turnover rate and total asset turnover rate were mainly due to
the decline in operating revenue for the year.

(4) The profitability declined compared to the same period last year, mainly due to the poor gross margin
performance resulting from the decrease in revenue this year.

(5) The cash flow decreased compared to the same period last year, primarily due to the net cash outflow from
operating activities this year.

Note 1: Financial data for the above-indicated years have received CPA auditing and attestation

Note 2: As of the day this Individual Financial Report is adopted and published, the required market

valuation and other calculation have been completed. The original accounting treatment and

the provisional amount of the consolidated company have been adjusted from the date of

acquisition, and comparative information has been recompiled.
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Note 3: Formulas of financial ratios
1. Financial Structure

(1) Liabilities to Assets Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Assets.

(2) Long fund to Property, Plant and Equipment ratio = (Total Equity + Non-current
Liabilities) / Net Property, Plant and Equipment.

2. Solvency

(1) Current Ratio = Current assets / current liabilities.

(2) Quick Ratio = (Current Assets - Inventories - Prepaid Expenses) / Current Liabilities.

(3) Times Interest Earned = Net Benefit before Income Tax and Interest Expense / Interest

Expense This Period.
3. Operating ability

(1) Receivables (including receivables and bills receivable generated from operating)
Turnover = Net Sales / Average Bills Receivable (including receivables and bills
receivable generated from operating) Balance.

(2) Average Days to Collect Receivables = 365 / Receivables Turnover.

(3) Inventory Turnover = Sales Costs / Average Inventory Amount.

(4) Payables (including payables and bills payable generated from operating) Turnover =
Sales Costs / Average Payable (including payables and bills payable generated from
operating) Balance.

(5) Average Days to Sell Inventory = 365 / Inventory Turnover.

(6) Property, Plant and Equipment Turnover = Net Sales / Net Amount Average Property,
Plant and Equipment.

(7) Total Assets Turnover = Net Sales / Average Total Assets.

4.Profitability

(1)Return on Assets = [Profit or Loss After Tax + Interest Expense x (1 - tax rate )] / Average
Total Assets.

(2) Return on Equity = Profit or Loss After Tax / Average equity total amount.

(3) Net Profit Margin = Profit or Loss After Tax / Net Sales.

(4) Earnings per share = (attributed to owners of the parent company’s loss or profit -
Preferred stock dividends) / Weighted Average Issued Number of Shares.

5. Cash Flow

(1) Cash Flow Ratio = operating activities net cash flow / Current Liabilities.

(2) Net Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio = the Most Recent Five Fiscal Years operating activities
net cash flow / the Most Recent Five Fiscal Years (Capital Expenditure + Inventory
Increase + Cash Dividends).

(3) Cash Reinvestment ratio = (Operating Activities Net Cash Flow - cash dividends) /
(Property, Plant and Equipment gross + Long-Term Investment + Other Non-Current
Assets + Operation Fund).

6. Degree of Leverage

(1) Operating Leverage = (Net Operating Revenue -Variable Operating Costs and Expense) /
Operating Income.

(2) Degree of Financial Leverage = Operating Income / (Operating Income - Interest
Expense).
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III. Audit Committee’s review report for the financial report for the most recent fiscal year

Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Audit Report of the Audit Committee

The Company’s 2023 financial statements and consolidated financial statements prepared
by the Board of Directors were audited by CPAs Chung Ming-Yuan and Chang Ya-Yun of
Deloitte Taiwan with an audit report issued.

The foregoing business report, financial statement, and consolidated financial statement,
together with the proposal of loss off-setting, were audited by Audit Committee and found to
be proper. Thus, in accordance with article 14-4 of Securities and Exchange Act and Article

219 of Company Act, the report was signed.

To
The 2024 Annual General Meeting

Giga Solar Materials Corporation

Convener of the Audit Committee: Lo Shih-Wei

March 28, 2024
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IV. The financial report for the he most recent fiscal year: please refer to Appendix 1

following this annual report

V. The company’s individual financial report for the most recent fiscal year, CPA audited
and attested: please refer to Appendix II following this annual report

VI. Impact of financial difficulties suffered by the Company and aftfiliated enterprises thereof
during the most recent fiscal year and as of the date of printing of this annual report, if

any, on the Company’s financial situation: None
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Seven. Review and Analysis of Financial Situation and
Financial Performance and Risk Factors
(D Financial status analysis

1. Financial status comparative analysis
Unit: NT§ thousand

Year Difference

Ttem December 31, 2022 | December 31, 2023 J— v

Current assets 5,216,617 4,631,903 (584,714) (0.11)
:(rlili);;}e’;flant and 4,432,080 4,652,686 220,606 0.05
Intangible assets 406,975 383,044 (23,931) (0.06)
Other assets 2,156,168 1,816,021 (340,147) (0.16)
Total assets 12,211,840 11,483,654 (728,186) (0.06)
Current liabilities 2,028,124 2,103,694 75,570 0.04
Non-current liabilities 1,652,165 1,901,526 249,361 0.15
Total indebtedness 3,680,289 4,005,220 324,931 0.09
Capital stock 018,834 918,834 0 0.00
Capital surplus 5,421,986 5,446,501 24,515 0.00
Retained earnings 1,401,962 586,639 (815,323) (0.58)
Other equity (154,844) (312,465) (157,621) 1.02
Treasury shares - - - -
Non-controlling interests 943,613 838,925 (104,688) (0.11)

For a change being 20% or more and amounting to NT$30 million or more, specify its reason and
effects:

1. Reserve earnings decreased: mainly because of loss in the current fiscal year.

2. Decrease in other equity interests: Mainly due to an increase in unrealized valuation loss in financial

assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Note: As of the day this consolidated financial report is adopted and published, the
required market valuation and other calculation have been completed. The original
accounting treatment and the provisional amount of the consolidated company have
been adjusted from the date of acquisition, and comparative information has been
recompiling.

2. If impact is major, specify future measures: the indicated change had no major effect

on the company finance and business.
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(IT) Financial performance analysis

1. Operating Result Comparison

Unit: NTD thousand

Year Increase Increase
Account 2022 2023 (decrease) (decrease) rate
amount %
Operating revenues 5,654,845 2,958,411 (2,696,434) (0.48)
Operating costs (5,161,433) (3,118,576) 2,042,857 (0.40)
Operating gross profits 493,412 (160,165) (653,577) (1.32)
Operating expenses (932,511) (806,497) 126,014 (0.14)
Operating net profit (loss) (439,099) (966,662) (527,563) 1.20
Non-operating income and (207,140) (129,497) 1.67
(77,643)
expenses
Net profit (loss) before (1,173,802) (657,060) 1.27
(516,742)
Tax
Income tax expenses (55,289) (29,052) 26,237 (0.47)
Net profit (loss) for the (1,202,854) (630,823) 1.10
. (572,031)
period
Other comprehensive (157,220) (28,785) 0.22
. (128,435)
income
Total comprehensive (1,360,074) (659,608) 0.94
. . (700,466)
income for the period

For a change being 20% or more and amounting to NT$30 million or more, specify its reason

and effects:

1. The decreases in operating income, costs, gross profit, and operating income: mainly due to
the decline in revenue during the current period, which was impacted by competition from

other manufacturers and the international trade war, resulting in underutilized capacity and

lower gross profit and operating income.

2. The increase in non-operating income and expenses: primarily attributable to the increase in
impairment losses and the decrease in foreign exchange gains during the current year.
3. The decrease in income tax expenses: mainly due to a loss in the current period.

4. Net profit decreased in this period decreased: mainly because operating income and gross

profit decreased in the current fiscal year.

5. Other comprehensive income decreased: mainly because fair value of financial instrument in

accordance with Fair Value Measurement Equity Instrument decreased in the current fiscal

year.

6. This period total comprehensive income decreased: mainly because net profit decreased in the

current fiscal year.
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2. Expected sales and ground, potential impact on the Company’s future financial
operations and measurers:

The Company’s core product is solar paste, so the future sales have close
connection with development of the solar photovoltaic industry. In 2023, the world will
start a new, post pandemic period. Therefore, solar devices to help people get rid of the
dark shadow of the pandemic will welcome a new peak of demand, and are rather
promising. Most forecasters say 2023 a year to see development potential of
photovoltaics devices. The full-year demand for modules will be 200-220GW. The
global solar industry helps accomplish the carbon reduction goal. Therein, China, Europe,
and the US jointly take up about 70% of the global volume. Since solar systems now can
generate power in a stable yet inexpensive way, and suppliers are now settling down
after a fierce contest, also making demands balanced at low to wait for a new order, the
Company will continuously work hard to improve conversion efficiency, thereby
increasing the benefit margin. Also, in recent years, the Company has actively expanded
its business scope, including cell materials and semiconductor-related manufacturing
processes. It is the current situation that competition around solar pastes are getting
fiercer, yet the global solar market is limited as affected by the governments’ policies.
The Company has the ambition of enhancing its overall profitability and improving its
competitive advantage. This end, the Company continuously refine paste materials for
solar cells, and vertically stretch its arm to reach special materials to enrich its
development of paste materials, while horizontally trying to on one hand develops
materials used in the energy saving industry and on the other hand develop reclaim
wafers and dummy wafers in the semiconductor industry. To be specific, we have
re-invested in tronetek energy company for electric buses, and work with Green Energy
Electrode, Inc. to produce cathode materials used in energy storage cells. The Company
also investigates Si-C anode used in electric vehicles and energy storage devices.
Another re-investment has been made to Hua Hsu Company for novel semiconductor
process. All these prove that the Company has an ambitious portfolio of energy materials.
With the growth of EV industry, the Company will be able to benefit from its proactive
roadmap and reaped revenue from its diverse products, thereby maintaining overall

competitiveness and shine in all its operations.
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(IIT) Cash Flow Analysis

1. Analysis of cash flow changes during the most recent fiscal year
Unit: NTD thousand

L Whole-year net | Full-year cash Remedial measures for cash
Beginning cash . Cash surplus defici
balance cash ﬂow from inflows (deficit) eficit
operating (outflows) Financial

(1 activities (2) 3) (*2)+(3) | Investment plan Planning

2,781,496 (477,880) (226,653) 2,076,963 - -

Changes in cash flow 2023:

(1) Operating activities: The net cash outflow from operating activities was primarily due to the
increase in revenue at the end of the period, resulting in outstanding accounts receivable, as well
as early stockpiling of materials for the New Year's Day and Lunar New Year holidays.
(2) Investment and financing activities: continuous investment in new products increased cash|
outflow.

2. Plans for improvement in liquidity: None.
3. Cash liquidity analysis for the coming year
Unit: NTD thousand

Estimated Remedial measures for
Beginning cash | whole-year net Estimated Estimated cash | the expected cash deficiency
balance cash flow |whole-year cash|surplus (deficit) . .
. . Financial
(1) operating  |inflow (outflow) amount Investment plan Plannin
activities (2) 3) () +Q2)-(3) &
2,076,963 600,000 (200,000) 2,876,963 - -

1. Changes in cash flow:
(1) Operating activities: estimated cash flowing in because operating activities succeed and
receivables as well as inventory are properly controlled.

(2) Investment and financing activities: Estimated cash flowing out through investment and financing

activities directed to capital expenditure used for expanding production.

(IV) The annual report shall describe the effect upon financial operations of any major

capital expenditures during the most recent fiscal year: None.

(V) The annual report shall describe the company’s reinvestment policy for the most
recent fiscal year, the main reasons for the profits/losses generated thereby, the plan
for improving re-investment profitability, and investment plans for the coming year:

The Company has started its journey from renewable energy and taken an
environment-centered roadmap. Down to product portfolio, we have long focused
on material technologies, and have seen fruits in the sector of solar paste. As we
continuously go deep into development of solar materials, on the other hand, we
make re-investment cautiously. By re-investing Hua Hsu Optotech Co., Ltd., we

have stepped into the semiconductor industry. We also re-invested in Green Energy
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Electrode Inc. for cathode materials used in EVs and cells. The C-Si anode
developed by the Company has been rolled out for mass manufacturing to be used
in EVs and energy storage. However, considering the longer time the verification of
semiconductor and energy materials requires, we will aggressively cut spending
before the verification completes, and expect these products to become the

Company’s new profit sources after mass production.

The Company’s gain /loss from re-investment in the most recent fiscal year,
main reasons and improvement plans:

1. The Company re-invests Giga Solar Materials in Yancheng. During this period,
under the COVID-19 pandemic, cross-strait travel was limited and this adversely
affected our reaction in business, leading to reduced sales. Besides this, with
many manufacturers strongly emerged from Chain, solar products experienced
fast substitution and the benefit margin thus significantly narrowed. As a response
to this, the Company continuously develops novel, high-performance products,
implements strict control on costs, and enhances local business capability.
Revenues have been actively increasing since the second half of 2023, and it is
expected to turn profits in 2024.

2. The Company’s re-investee, Hua Hsu Company, has suffered from China’s
energy policies and the China—US trade war in the last two years. Besides this,
both the diamond wire and its test in the semiconductor industry were below
expectations. Nevertheless, Hua Hsu Company persists in its work in R&D, with
the attempts to increase product Items, improve product quality, and control costs.
These efforts have translated into revenue and contributed to increased gross

profit.
Investment plans for the coming year:

We will continuously work in energy materials, including cathode materials and
C-Si anode for electric vehicles, and increase the overall benefit margin for the

company.

(VI) Analysis and evaluation of risk exposure for the most recent fiscal year and as of the

date of printing of this annual report:

1. The effect upon the company’s profits (losses) of interest and exchange rate
fluctuations and changes in the inflation rate, and response measures to be taken
in the future:

The Company generally sells products and makes procurement in US dollars,
and maintains a long receivables turnover period for its subsidiaries. For these

reasons, the Company holds a net long USD position, so changes in exchanges do
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have impact on the Company benefits. The Company thus takes the following
measures:

(DOur financial department watches political and economic situations and
dynamics around the world closely, and keeps communications with financial
institutions to collect real-time information on changes in exchange rates, so as
to have foresight to take proactive action.

@Our financial staff helps the Company hold appropriate exchange position
according to recent exchange trends and decide optimal timing to conduct
transactions, so as to protect the Company’s profits from changing exchange
rates.

(3We masters natural hedges against exchange rates through offsets between
USD assets and USD liabilities.

The Company’s gain or loss from exchange is highly dependent on trends of
exchange rates of USD to NTD and USD to PHP. Significantly decrease in

exchange gain this year is mainly the result of depreciation of USD.

. The company’s policy regarding high-risk investments, highly leveraged
investments, loans to other parties, endorsements, guarantees, and derivatives
transactions; the main reasons for the profits/losses generated thereby; and
response measures to be taken in the future:

The Company does not take any high-risk or highly leveraged investment.
We loaned to and endorsed subsidiaries for effective use of the Group’s resources,
yet all these were performed in accordance with the Company’s Operating
procedures of Loans to Others, Operating procedures of Endorsement and
applicable laws and regulations. Information of the above fact is published
annually through the Market Observation Post System as required by law for

investors’ reference

. Research and development work to be carried out in the future, and further
expenditures expected for research and development work:

The Company mainly places its R&D efforts on electronic paste materials
and energy storage materials. Future R&D works include, at the side of electronic
paste materials, improving performance of solar paste, so as to improve
conversion efficiency of solar cells; and, on the side of energy storage materials,
developing Si-O-Si materials as anode materials for lithium cells to help improve
lithium cells in terms of energy density and reduce the weight of unit energy,
thereby contributing to realization of lightweight cells;

The Company had an investment in R&D summing up to NTD$314,157
thousand in 2023, more than the amount NT$305,606 thousand of 2022. In the
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future, as we expand our business scope and introduce new products, our R&D
budget will increase for improving product competitiveness, and securing the
Company’s leading position.

The Company expects to invest a sum of NT$330,000 thousand in R&D in
2024. The increase is mainly to support our plan for developing materials used in
cathode and anode cells. Hua Hsu Company also plans to increase its R&D
investment for building the new manufacturing process for semiconductor

products.

. Effect on the company’s financial operations of important policies adopted and
changes in the legal environment at home and abroad, and measures to be taken
in response:

The Company will closely watch global trends around solar policies and the
solar industry as well as regulatory changes, so as to be always aware of the
market situation. By doing so, we can better protect the Company’s financial

operations from political and legislative changes.

. Effect on the company’s financial operations of developments in science and
technology (including cyber security risks) as well as industrial change, and
measures to be taken in response:

N-type Topcon cells and HIT cells are expected to be future technical stars
that replace P-type PERC cells. The Company has been working hard on
researching and developing Topcon and HIJT paste materials and has been
technically certified by leading cell makers. The Company stays close to changes
in the industry and on the market and thus confirms that no significant or major
technical or Industrial change that could significantly affect the Company’s
financial operations happened in the most recent fiscal year and as of the date of

printing of this annual report.

. Effect on the company’s crisis management of changes in the company’s
corporate image, and measures to be taken in response:

Since its incorporation, the Company has actively strengthened its operation
and management and conform to all applicable laws and regulations, so as to
maintain its good enterprise image. In September 2008, acquisition of the
photovoltaic material division of Gigastorage Corporation made the Company
replace a multinational dealer to become one of the worlds’ top-four solar paste
manufactures. The Company has a great contribution to the development of the
solar industry in Taiwan and has no negative effect on its enterprise image.
Nothing happened in the most recent fiscal year and as of the date of printing of

this annual report that changed our enterprise image and brought about risks to
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the enterprise.

7. Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any merger and acquisitions,

and mitigation measures being or to be taken: None.
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8. Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any plant expansion, and
mitigation measures being or to be taken:

The Company invested in expansion by acquiring facilities and lands in
Hsinchu Industrial Park in 2022 to be used plants for mass manufacturing of cell
materials. After the completion expected in 2024, the energy storage business
unit's capacity can be increased, which is expected to meet customer order
demands, thereby enhancing the company's revenue and customer satisfaction.
The Company's capital expenditures for capacity expansion and equipment
purchases have been met with its operating funds, and bank borrowings will be
utilized in a timely manner for adjustment. Therefore, there is no significant

impact on the company.

9. Risks associated with any consolidation of sales or purchasing operations, and
mitigation measures being or to be taken:
(1) Risks associated with consolidation of purchasing operations and mitigation
measures being taken:

The raw materials currently used by the Company, like metal powder, glass
powder, and chemicals, are items less subject to shortage, and thus no
long-term supply contract has been entered into. The Company has good
relationship with its subsidiaries and suppliers. For each of the raw materials,
contact with two or more suppliers is maintained. During the most recent two
years, some of the suppliers have had an individual share of more than 20% of
the total purchase, and the Company is thus exposed to risks associated with
any consolidation of purchasing operations. The following mitigation
measures have been taken:

The Company has introduced OEM and renting silver ingots to reduce
turnover and stocking time while mitigating risk exposure from consolidation.
The Company every month communicate with suppliers to confirm or update
the exact needs for the coming month.

(2) Risks associated with consolidation of sales and mitigation measures being
taken:

As for sales, the Company has its customer groups rather distributed and
conducts mainly direct selling. In the recent year we have not seen any
customer solely accounting for 20% of our total sales, so it is unlikely there is

consolidation-related risk.

10. Effect upon and risk to the company in the event a major quantity of shares
belonging to a director, supervisor, or shareholder holding greater than a 10

percent stake in the company has been transferred or has otherwise changed
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hands, and mitigation measures being or to be taken: No large transfer took
place in 2023.

11.Not applicable. Effect upon and risk to company associated with any change in
governance personnel or top management, and mitigation measures being or to

be taken: Not applicable.

12.Litigious and non-litigious matters; list major litigious, non-litigious or
administrative disputes that: involve the company and/or any company director,
any company supervisor, the general manager, any person with actual
responsibility for the firm, any major shareholder holding a stake of greater than
10 percent, and/or any company or companies controlled by the company; and
have been concluded by means of a final and unappealable judgment, or are still
under litigation. Where such a dispute could materially affect shareholders’
equity or the prices of the company’s securities, the annual report shall disclose
the facts of the dispute, amount of money at stake in the dispute, the date of
litigation commencement, the main parties to the dispute, and the status of the

dispute as of the date of publication of the annual report: None.

13.Other important risks, and mitigation measures being or to be taken: None
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(VII) Other major matters:

1. Plans for management of intellectual property and implementation thereof
The Company has always expected itself to be an industry leader. This vision has
been realized by actively developing proprietary products, maintaining an
elaborate patent portfolio, and most importantly, protecting business secrets. For
safeguarding the Company’s valuable R&D outcomes and preventing any loss
about this, the Company has set up management rules and a roadmap:

(1) Plans for management of patent rights

Periodic proposals of patent applications: the Company make preliminary
examination of internal proposals, and a review meeting is periodically called
to review the proposals passing the preliminary examination against certain
indicators of technological capability. The proposals that received internal
approval are then subject to a case-specific strategy for application.

Annual assessment and renewal: Granted patents are subject to annual

assessment to evaluate their renewal against maintenance costs and necessity.
Encouragement of innovative proposals: the Company has set up an incentive
system to inspire employees’ innovations. Any innovation granted with IP
rights will receive additional bonus and public recognition.
Monitoring competitors: the Company continuously watches its peers’
movements about application filing and analyses their applications.
IP-related publicity: the Company regularly holds internal training about patent
information.

(2) Plans for management of trademark rights
Proposals of trademark registration: considering that the Company’s products
are sold globally, we regularly review market news and sales of products to
ensure trademark rights have been secured for all major markets.
Periodical assessment and renewal: Registered trademarks are subject to
decadal assessment to evaluate their renewal against maintenance costs and
necessity.

(3) Plans for management of business secrets
Publicity for internal information security: the Company holds internal lectures
featuring external experts or in-house legal personnel to publicize and educate
employees about importance of information protection and business secrets.
Continuing education outside the Company: Our legal personnel frequently
attend seminars or courses about business secrets geld by the authorities, so as

to sharpen their legal discipline and update themselves with latest insights into
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practices.

Hierarchical management: At the side of hardware, control measure
implemented include zone-based access control, visitor registration, prohibition
of taking photos and filming, restricted use of computer storage devices, email
outgoing control, etc. At the side of software, control measure implemented
include using a classified documentation system, where employees are

authorized hierarchically to prevent unauthorized disclosure.

Implementation:

For matters about management of patent rights, trademark rights, and business
secrets, the Company periodically to the Board, and the most recent submission
was implemented on January 12, 2023.

The Company in 2023 held education and training about management of

intellectual property, so as to initiate employee into the concept.

Number Total Total
Item of number of | person
course persons hour
Trade secrets and fraud prevention 1 5] 5]
advocacy
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2. Basic information on affiliates and the industries they cover (Unit: NTD, USD,
JPY/thousands)
Company Name Date of Address Paid-in capital Principal Business
pany Incorporation| P P
1F., No. 3, Gongye 1st Rd., Hsinchu Manufacturine and sal
Green Energy Electrode, Inc. March 2009 |Industrial Park, Hukou Township, 427,732 ulacturing and sale
. of energy materials
Hsinchu County
Giga Solar Materials Corp. January 1, |Level 3. Alexander House,35 USD25,900 General investment
(Mauritius) 2011 Cybercity,Ebene,Mauritius. +CNY45,437
Site 01-04, Room 1301, Floor 13, Tayun
Plaza, No. 188, Tayun Road, Yuexi Technical oo f
Suzhou Giga Solar Materials Residential District, Wuzhong SeICal SEIviees for
. July 2011 . . USD3,000]|photovoltaics process
Corporation Economic and Technological commissionin
Development Zone, Suzhou (Group &
Registration)
Whole Sun Green Power Co., Ltd.  |January 2012 LF > NO- 18, Zigiang Rd., Hukou 1,265,169| S0lar Energy Related
Township, Hsinchu County Business
Wisdom Field Limited (Samoa) November Off_shore Chambers, P.O. Box 217, USD 37,110|General investment
2012 Apia, Samoa
Eiwa Electric Power Co., Inc. August 2013 |Fukushima, Japan ¥ 26,000 E‘l’ll;;f;ergy Related
Merchant Energy Pte. Ltd. October 2015 1.52 Beach Road #14-03 Gateway East USD32,300| General investment
Singapore (189721)
Sunshine Solar Power Generation December |[17th Floor, Lepanto Building, Paseo de PHP1.325.342 Solar Energy Related
company (Philippines) 2015 Roxas, Makati City, Philippines T Business
No. 8, Gongyequ 10th Rd., Xitun Dist., Manufacturing of metal
Taichung City wire products,
Fua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd, | D¢SemPer 1,020,709 Manufacturing of
2015 electronic components,
trading and other related
businesses

Yancheng Giga Solar Materials No. 108,_ Wautaishan Road_, Yancheng USD22,900 Technical services for

: January 2016|Economic and Technological photovoltaics process
Corporation . +CNY35,000 L
Development Zone, Jiangsu commissioning
. . . . 1st Floor, #5 DEKK House, De Zippora
gfacgéﬁ?(;nd Materials Corporation January 2016(Street, Providence Industrial Estate, USD21,200({General investment
Y ) Maché, Republic of Seychelles
. . . No. 108, Wutaishan Road, Yancheng Production,

Yancheng Giga Diamond Materials June 2016 |Economic and Technological USD21,200|manufacturing and sale

Corporation . X :
Development Zone, Jiangsu of wire materials

Green Energy Electrode, Inc(Samoa) | August 2018 Level2, L_otemau Centre Building, Vaca USD 6,000| General investment
Street, Apia, Samoa
Building 5, No. 108, Wutaishan Road, Lithium battery material
Yancheng Economic and Technological manufacturing, research

Yancheng Green Energy Electrode February |Development Zone, Jiangsu and development, and

USD 6,000(,. .. "

Crop. 2019 lithium-ion battery
technology development
and consulting services

Room 1-1, No.20, Qixin Avenue, Yanjia Lithium battery material

Street, Changshou District, Chongqing manufacturing, research
Chongqing Shin Tsai New Material December |City USD 6.000 and development, and
Technology Co., Ltd. 2022 ? lithium-ion battery

technology development
and consulting services

Note 1: Godo Kaisha Best Solar, Godo Kaisha Chiba 1 and Godo Kaisha Merchant Energy NO.8 are investees the Company invested
according to Japan TK-GK framework. While the investment brings no voting right to the inventor, the investees are excluded from
the table above. However, the contact has entitled the Company with share economic interest rights and also the rights to request the
investee to perform any major decision in beforehand consultation with the Company, so the Company is included in the table above.
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3. Information on Directors, Supervisors, and General Managers of Affiliated Enterprises
Unit: share; %; Date: March 31, 2024

Shareholding
Company Name Job title Name or Representative Number of Rati
atio
Shares
Directors Yang Sheng-Ru 630,692  1.47%
Directors Chen Chi-Ming 260,000,  0.61%
Green Energy Electrode, Inc. . Huang Chen-Sheng
Directors Giga Solar Materials’ Representative: 240,000 0.56%
Supervisor & P! © | 22,588,759 52.81%
Huang Wen-Jui
Giga Solar Materials Corp. (Mauritius) |Directors Giga Solar Materials’ Representative: 25,900,000{ 100.00%
Chen Chi-Ming
Directors Giga Solar Materials’ Representative:
Directors Chen Chi-Ming
Directors Giga Solar Materials’ Representative:
Suzhou Giga Solar Materials Supervisor Huang Wen-Jui i 100.00%
Corporation Giga Solar Materials’ Representative: '
Chen Yi-Chou
Giga Solar Materials’ Representative:
Chen Yuan-Yu
Directors Giga Solar Materials’ Representative:
Directors Chen Chi-Ming
Directors Giga Solar Materials’ Representative:
Whole Sun Green Power Co., Ltd,  |>UPervisor . Huang Wen-Jui . 126,516,924| 100.00%
Giga Solar Materials’ Representative:
Yan Guang-Fu
Giga Solar Materials’ Representative: Lin
Jiang-Ching
Wisdom Field Limited (Samoa) |Directors Re;’\r’g:;i t:zgeGg‘f:nPC"Xe;/Eng 37,110,000 | 100.00%
Director Whole Sun Green Power’s
Eiwa Electric Power Co., Inc. Director Representative: Chen Chi—l\j[ing - 100.00%
Whole Sun Green Power’s
Representative: Huang Wen-Jui
Directors Giga Solar Materials’ Rep.resentative: 35,026,684 34.32%
Huang Wen-Jui
Directors Wu, His-Kun 906,801 1.24%
Directors Li Jui-Chu 0 0
Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. In.dependent Lo Shih-Wei 0 0
Director
Independent Lin Po-Wen 0 0
Director
In.dependent Kan Chiung-Yao 0 0
Director
Wisdom Field Limited’s Representative: 87.00%
Directors Chen Chi Ming -
Directors Tsai Lii Chyuan
Directors Huang Wen Jui 13.00%)
Merchant Energy Pte. Ltd. Directors Yen Meng Heng
Directors Lo Shan-Yi
Titan Solar Limited’s Representative: -
Directors Hsieh Edward Yuan-I
Philip King Yap/
. . Clark Lawton Yap/
Sg{iﬁgﬁ; (S;;?E;);Z::)Genﬂanon Directors Chase Leonard S. Yap/ - 39.93%
Veronica Abordo/
Merchant Energy Pte. Ltd.
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Shareholding

Company Name Job title Name or Representative Number of Rati
atio
Shares
Giga Solar Materials’ Representative:
Chen Chi-Ming
Directors Giga Solar Materials’ Representative:
Yancheng Giga Solar Materials Directors Huang Wen-Jui i 100.00%
Corporation Directors Giga Solar Materials’ Representative: ’
Supervisor Liang Hsin-Kuo
Giga Solar Materials’ Representative:
Chen Yuan-Yu
Giga Diamond Materials Corporation Directors Giga Diamond Materials’ Rc?presentative: 19,200,000 | 100.00%
(Seychelles) Huang Wen-Jui
Giga Diamond Materials’ Representative:
Chen Chi-Ming
Directors Giga Diamond Materials’ Representative:
Yancheng Giga Diamond Materials Directors Huang Wen-Jui i 100.00%
Corporation Directors Giga Diamond Materials’ Representative: '
Supervisor Chen Yi-Zhou
Giga Diamond Materials’ Representative:
Chen Yuan-Yu
Green Energy Electrode,Inc(Samoa)  |Directors 1&323?5&%1;%6:&02& g;c_‘Ri 6,000,000 100.00%
Green Energy Electrode, Inc.’s
Representative: Yang Sheng-Ru
Directors Green Energy Electrode, Inc.’s
Yancheng Green Energy Electrode Directors Representative: Huang Cheng-Sheng
. , - 52.81%
Crop. Directors Green Energy Electrode, Inc.’s
Supervisor Representative: Li Ming-Tsung
Green Energy Electrode, Inc.’s
Representative: Huang Wen-Jui
Green Energy Electrode, Inc.’s
Representative: Yang Sheng-Ru
Directors Green Energy Electrode, Inc.’s
Chongging Shin Tsai New Material Directors Representative: Huang Cheng-Sheng 6.000.000l 52.81%
Technology Co., Ltd. Directors Green Energy Electrode, Inc.’s e ’
Supervisor Representative: Li Ming-Tsung

Green Energy Electrode, Inc.’s
Representative: Huang Wen-Jui

Note 1: Godo Kaisha Best Solar, Godo Kaisha Chiba 1 and Godo Kaisha Merchant Energy NO.8 are investees the Company invested
according to Japan TK-GK framework. While the investment brings no voting right to the inventor, the investees are excluded from
the table above. However, the contact has entitled the Company with share economic interest rights and also the rights to request the
investee to perform any major decision in beforehand consultation with the Company, so the Company is included in the table above.
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4. Operation Overview of Affiliated Enterprises:

Unit; NTD thousand

After Tax

Capital Assets ¢ Open for | Open for Profit or Per share
Company Name Year P Total cos Net Value | business business ot o Earnings
Amount Total amount Loss for the
amount Revenues [Profit (loss) . (NTD)
Period

g}“’lﬁgun Green Power | 553 1,265,169 1,652,580 143,097 1,509,483 27,288 8,386|  57,121| 4.515
Ell;”a Electric Power Co., | 573 15070] 371,491 332,180 39311 of 6202 23,021 appﬁg;ble
Godo Kaisha Best Solar | ;3 44939 120,887 77,044 43,843 24382 10,053 g4as| Nt
(Note 1) applicable
Godo Kaisha Chiba 1 Not
(Note 1) 2023 96,328 226,709 168,507 58,203 of asna| ae2ef T
Godo Kaisha Merchant Not
Enerey No. 8 (Note 1) | 2023 69,325 1,066,345 928454 137892 177068 73581 SLSIO[ o
Wisdom Field Limited | 2023 1,173,221 394,293 0| 394,293 ol @79 @792 appﬁg;ble
Merchant Energy Pte. | 553 876,296| 96,516 236| 96,280 ol a6072)| (14509 N
Ltd. applicable
Sunshine Solar Power Not
Generation company 2023 814,827 640,315 731,894  (91,579) of (01| a6 o
(Philippines) applicable
Ercee“ Energy Electrode, | )3 427,732 304,013 7,347 296,666 325 24,237 (293,991)| (130.15)
Ercee“ Energy Electrode, | 5,3 176,342] 190,540 o 190,540 of @72.616)| @72616) appﬁg;ble
Yancheng Green Energy | 5,3 176,342] 174,426 370,794|  (196,367) 8,543) (255,542) (272.616) N
Electrode Crop. i i i i i i i applicable
Hua Hsu Silicon
Motexials Co.. Lid. 2023 1,143,870 1,675,496 580,355| 1,095,141|  299.438| (219,879) (381,253)| (168.78)
Giga Diamond Materials Not
Corporation (Seychelles) | 2023 652,782 0 338,877|  (338,877) 0 of (164940 e
Yancheng Giga Diamond Not
Materials Comporation. | 2023 652,782| 338,287 677164 (338877 118,637 (112251 (16224 oL
Giga Solar Materials Not
Corn. (Mauritiug) 2023 788,490 812,187 of 812,187 of (©3446) (@440) o
Suzhou Giga Solar Not
Matorials Corporation | 2023 88,625 69,682 0 69,682 of ol E86), e
Yancheng Giga Solar |, 5 861,430 1,789.980|  1,080378|  709,603|  607.486| (95752) (49,072 N
Materials Corporation applicable

Note 1: Whole Sun Green Power Co., Ltd. has invested Godo Kaisha Best Solar, Godo Kaisha Chiba 1 and Godo Kaisha Merchant Energy NO.8 according to
Japan TK-GK framework. While the investment brings no voting right to the inventor, the contract has entitled Whole Sun Green Power Co., Ltd. with
share economic interest rights and also the rights to request the investee to perform any major decision in beforehand consultation with Whole Sun
Green Power Co., Ltd.

5. The companies should be incorporated into the consolidated financial statements of

affiliated enterprises by the Company in accordance with “Criteria Governing

Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated

Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises” for the fiscal year 2023 (from Jan. 1,

2023 to Dec. 31, 2023) are identical to the companies that should be incorporated into

the parent-subsidiary consolidated financial statements as provided in International

Accounting Standards No. 27, and the information should be disclosed in the

consolidated financial statement of affiliated enterprises has been disclosed in the

foregoing parent—subsidiary consolidated financial statement, so no consolidated

financial statement of affiliated enterprises is prepared separately.
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IL.

6. Relationship Report: None.

For reporting handling of private placements of securities during the most recent fiscal
year and as of the date of printing of this annual report, the information to be disclosed
include the date on which the private placement was approved at a shareholders’ meeting
and the amount thus approved; the basis for and reasonableness of the pricing; the
manner in which the specified persons were selected (where the offerees have already
been arranged, the names of the offerees and relationship between the offerees and the
Company shall also be described); the reasons why the private placement was necessary;
the targets of the private placement, their qualifications, subscription amounts,
relationship with the Company, participation in the operations of the Company, actual
subscription (or switching) price, the difference between the actual subscription (or
switching) price and the reference price; the effect of the private placement on
shareholders’ equity; and for the period from receipt of payment in full to the completion
of the related capital allocation plan, the status of use of the capital raised through the
private placement of common shares, the implementation progress of the plan, and the
status of realization of the benefits of the plan:

Data about Private Placements of Securities (I)

2019 private placement

Item Datc of issuance: August 15, 2019

Type of marketable
securities of private
placement

Ordinary shares

Date and number
approved at the
shareholders’ meeting

Date of approval of the shareholders’ meeting: June 5, 2019
Number: 2,686,000 shares

Basis for and
reasonableness of the

The price determination per share for the private placement of ordinary
shares is at a percentage of not less than 80% of the higher of the following
two calculations before the date of the Company’s pricing:

A.The simple arithmetical average closing price of the ordinary shares of the
Company on any of the first, third or fifth trading day prior to the pricing
date, after deducting the value of bonus shares issued as stock dividends
and cash dividends, and adding back the value of the shares cancelled in
connection with capital reduction.

B.The simple arithmetical average closing price of the ordinary shares of the

price set Company for thirty trading days prior to the pricing date, after deducting
the value of bonus shares issued as stock dividends and cash dividends,
and adding back the value of shares cancelled in connection with capital
reduction.
The private placement price was set at NT$93.06. This is within the 80%
range of the higher of the above two calculations as resolved by the
shareholders’ meeting, and is regarded as reasonable.
Th? method for‘ Strategic investors as set forth in Article 43-6 of the Securities and Exchange
selecting the specific Act
persons:

Reasons for the
necessity for
conducting the private
placemen

Considering that a private placement is quick and easy, the purpose of
introducing strategic investors is achieved. Also, given that a private
placement of marketable securities has a 3-year transfer restriction, the
long-term partnership between the Company and strategic investors is
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ensured. Nevertheless, by authorizing the Board of Directors to conduct a
private placement based on the Company’s actual operational needs, the
fund-raising mobility and flexibility of the Company will be effectively
increased.

Payment completion

June 28, 2019

date
Participation
Eligibility | Numberof |Rciationship)  inthe
Target placee : . with the business of
requirements | subscriptions
. Company the
Information on placee C
ompany
Sincere .
Holding Strateglc 2,686,000 None None
investor shares
Company
Actual subscription NT$93.06

price

Difference between

actual subscription

price and reference
price

The share price of the private placement was NT$93.06 per share, 80% of
the reference price.

The effect of the
private placement on
shareholders’ equity

None

The use of capital
raised in the private
placement and the
implementation of
plans

On June 28, 2019, the proceeds from the private placement were fully raised
and checked, which were immediately injected into the Company’s working
capital.

Bank loans were fully repaid in 2019 Q3.

Private placement
benefit

To improve the Company’s financial structure, reduce bank loans and
interest expenses, and enhance operational efficiency, posing positive impact

on shareholders’ equity.
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Data about Private Placements of Securities (II)

Item

2020 private placement
Date of issuance: August 15, 2021

Type of marketable
securities of
private placement

Ordinary shares

Date and number
approved at the
shareholders’
meeting

Date of approval of the shareholders’ meeting: October 29, 2020
Number: 10,000,000 shares

Basis for and
reasonableness of
the price set

The price determination per share for the private placement of ordinary

shares is at a percentage of not less than 80% of the higher of the

following two calculations before the date of the Company’s pricing:

A.The simple arithmetical average closing price of the ordinary shares
of the Company on any of the first, third or fifth trading day prior to
the pricing date, after deducting the value of bonus shares issued as
stock dividends and cash dividends, and adding back the value of the
shares cancelled in connection with capital reduction.

B.The simple arithmetical average closing price of the ordinary shares
of the Company for thirty trading days prior to the pricing date, after
deducting the value of bonus shares issued as stock dividends and
cash dividends, and adding back the value of shares cancelled in
connection with capital reduction.

The private placement price was set at NT$124.4. This is within the 80%
range of the higher of the above two calculations as resolved by the
shareholders’ meeting, and is regarded as reasonable.

The method for
selecting the
specific persons:

Strategic investors as set forth in Article 43-6 of the Securities and
Exchange Act.

Reasons for the
necessity for
conducting the
private placemen

Considering that a private placement is quick and easy, the purpose of
introducing strategic investors is achieved. Also, given that a private
placement of marketable securities has a 3-year transfer restriction, the
long-term partnership between the Company and strategic investors is
ensured. Nevertheless, by authorizing the Board of Directors to conduct
a private placement based on the Company’s actual operational needs,
the fund-raising mobility and flexibility of the Company will be
effectively increased.

Payment
completion date

June 29, 2021

Information on
placee

Participation
Target | Eligibility | Numberof |Reiationship) i the
placee requirements | subscriptions with the business of
Company the
Company
Hong-Yang
Venture Strategic 8,000,000 None None
Capital Co., investor shares
Ltd.

176




Sincere
Holding
Company

Strategic 2,000,000

5 None None
mvestor shares

Actual subscription
price

NT$124.4

Difference between

actual subscription

price and reference
price

The share price of the private placement was NT$124.4 per share, 80%
of the reference price.

The effect of the
private placement
on shareholders’
equity

None

The use of capital
raised in the
private placement

On June 29, 2021, the proceeds from the private placement were fully
raised and checked, which were immediately injected into the

and the Company’s working capital.
implementation of Bank loans were fully repaid in 2021 Q3.
plans

Private placement
benefit

To improve the Company’s financial structure, reduce bank loans and
interest expenses, and enhance operational efficiency, posing positive
impact on shareholders’ equity.

III. Holding or Disposal of the Company’s Shares by Subsidiaries during the Most Recent
Fiscal Year or the Current Fiscal Year up to the Date of Printing of this annual report:

None

IV. Other matters that require additional disclosure: None.

V. Any of the Situations set forth in Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 3, Article 36 of Securities
and Exchange Act, which might Produce Material Impact on Shareholders’ Equity or
Price of the Company’s Securities occurring during the Most Recent Fiscal Year or the
Current Fiscal Year up to the Date of Printing of this annual report: None.

177




Appendix 1 Stock Code:

Giga Solar Materials Corporation and Its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements

and Independent Auditor’s Report
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Address: No. 3, Industrial 1st Road, Hukou Township,
Hsinchu County
PPhone: (03)5981886
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Statement of Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises

For the fiscal year of 2023 (From January 1 to December 31, 2023), the entities which
should be included in the consolidated financial statements of affiliates pursuant to the
“Guidelines for the Preparation of Consolidated Business Report, Consolidated Financial
Statements and Relationship Report of Affiliates” are the same as those that should be included
in the consolidated financial statements of the parent and subsidiaries pursuant to the
International Financial Reporting Standards 10, and relevant information to be disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements of affiliates has already been disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements of the parent and subsidiaries. Therefore, the Consolidated Company will
not prepare separate consolidated financial statements for its affiliates.

We hereby declare the above.

Name of Company: Giga Solar Materials Corporation

Managerial officer: Chen Chi-Ming

March 28, 2024
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Independent auditor’s report

To Giga Solar Materials Corporation,

Audit Opinion

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet of Giga Solar Materials Corporation and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the consolidated comprehensive income
statements, consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, consolidated cash flow
statements, and notes to the consolidated financial statements (including significant accounting
policies) for the years then ended.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other independent auditors (please
refer to the Other Matters paragraph), the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Giga Solar Materials
Corporation and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its consolidated
financial performance and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, in
conformity with the requirements of regulations governing the preparation of financial
statements by securities issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards, and Interpretations endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial
Supervisory Commission.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Entrusted Regulations Governing the
Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing
standards of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the responsibilities of auditors for the audit of the consolidated financial statements.
We are independent of Giga Solar Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries in accordance with
the Code of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. Based on our audits and the reports of other
independent auditors, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the 2023 consolidated financial statements of Giga Solar Materials
Corporation and its subsidiaries. These matters were addressed in the content of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide separate opinions on those matters.

Key audit matters of the 2023 consolidated financial statements of Giga Solar Materials
Corporation and its subsidiaries are as follows:

Authenticity of revenues

The sales revenues of Giga Solar Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries are mainly from
the sales of solar conductive plasma and solar silicon accessories. The sales revenues from
specific clients and products changed significantly in 2023 (see Note 23), and, therefore, we have
included the authenticity of the aforementioned revenues as a key audit matter.

We have performed the following key audit procedures:

1.  We assessed the effectiveness of the design and implementation of internal control
practices related to sales transactions by understanding the related internal control systems
and operating procedures related to the sales transaction cycle.

2. To confirm the authenticity of revenue, we selected samples from the sales details,
reviewed the original customer orders, shipping documents or export declarations and sales
invoices, and examined whether there were any abnormalities in the receivable collections
and the customers to whom the sales were made.

Other Matters

The financial statements of certain equity-method investees (associates) have not been
audited by us, but by other independent auditors. Therefore, of our opinions on the consolidated
financial statements referred to above, the amounts included in the financial statements were
based on the audit reports of other independent auditors. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the
above-mentioned investments under the equity method amounted to NT$68,141 thousand and
NT$550,273 thousand, or 0.59% and 4.51% of total assets, respectively; the share of the above
profits (losses) on associates recognized under the equity method amounted to NT$(3,063)
thousand and NT$(30,646) thousand, or 0.26% and 5.93% of net loss before tax, respectively, for
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Giga Solar Materials Corporation has prepared its individual financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and we have issued an unqualified audit opinion with

the other matters paragraph on record for reference.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The responsibility of management is to prepare fairly presented consolidated financial
statements in conformity with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports
by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards interpretations, and announcements of interpretations recognized and published by the
Financial Supervisory Commission and maintain necessary internal control related to the
preparation of consolidation of financial statements in order to ensure material misstatement
caused by fraud or error does not exist in the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management is also responsible for
assessing the ability of Giga Solar Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries as a going concern,
disclosing as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting. Unless the management either intends to liquidate Giga Solar Materials Corporation
and its subsidiaries or to cease operations, or has no other realistic alternative but to do so.

Those in charge of corporate governance (including the Auditing Committee) are
responsible for overseeing the reporting process of the financial statements of Giga Solar
Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the accounting principles will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements
are considered material, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also performed the following
tasks:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error; design, and perform countermeasures for
assessed risks; and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of

audit opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
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higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control effective in Giga Solar Materials
Corporation and its subsidiaries.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the
management and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether or not a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Giga
Solar Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosure is inappropriate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause Giga Solar Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries to cease as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial
statements (including related notes), whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information or the
entities or business activities of Giga Solar Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision, and performance of the audit of Giga Solar Materials Corporation
and its subsidiaries. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings (including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit).

We also provide those in charge of governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to affect our independence and

other matters (including related protective measures).
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From the matters communicated with those in charge of corporate governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 2023 consolidated
financial statements of Giga Solar Materials Corporation and its subsidiaries and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

Deloitte and Touche

CPA Zhong, Ming-Yuan CPA Chang Ya-Yun
Financial Supervisory Commission Approval Financial Supervisory Commission Approval
Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No. 1050024633 Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No. 1110348898

March 28, 2024
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation and Its Subsidiaries
Consolidated comprehensive income statement
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands of NT$, but net loss per share is in NTS$)

2023 2022
Code Amount % Amount %
4000 Operating revenue (Notes 4, 23
and 32) 2,958,411 100 5,654,845 100
5000 Operating costs (Notes 10 and
24) 3.118.576 106 5.161.433 91
5900 Gross income (loss) 160,165) (___6) 493,412 9
Operating expenses (Notes 9, 16,
24 and 32)
6100 Marketing expenses 226,703 8 196,018 4
6200 Administration expenses 317,022 11 339,472 6
6300 R&D expenses 314,157 10 305,606 5
6450 Expected credit (reversal
gains) impairment losses 51,385) (__2) 91.415 2
6000 Total 806,497 27 932,511 17
6900 Net operating losses 966,662) (__33) ( 439.,099) 8)
Non-operating income and
expenses
7100 Interest income (Notes 4
and 24) 43,232 2 8,692 -
7010 Other income (Notes 15, 24
and 32) 53,740 2 52,941 1
7020 Other gains and losses
(Notes 5, 12, 13, 16, 17,
24 and 32) 197,843) (  7) ( 38,401) 1)
7050 Financial costs (Notes 10,
24 and 32) 52,652) ( 2) ( 70,229) 1)
7060 Share of profits or losses of
associates accounted for
using the equity method
(Notes 4 and 12) 53.617) (___2) ( 30.646) -
7000 Total 207.140) (__7) ( 77.643) 1)
7900 Net loss before tax 1,173,802) ( 40) ( 516,742) 9)
7950 Income tax expense (Notes 4 and
25) 29.052) ( 1) ( 55,289) 1)
8200 Net losses for the year 1,202.854) (_41) ( 572,031) 10)

(Continued on next page)
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(Continued from previous page)

Code
Other comprehensive income

8310 Items not to be reclassified

as profit or loss:

8311 Remeasurement of
defined benefit plan

8316 Unrealized gains or
losses on investments
in equity instruments
measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income

8360 Items that may be

reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

8361 Exchange differences
on translation of
financial statements
of foreign operations

8399 Income tax related to
items that may be
reclassified (Note 25)

8300 Other comprehensive
income for the year
(net after tax)

8500 Total comprehensive income for

the year
Equity attributable to

8610 Shareholders of the

company

8620 Non-controlling interests

8600

Total comprehensive income
attributable to

8710 Shareholders of the

company

8720 Non-controlling interests

8700

Net loss per share (Note 26)

9750 Basic

9850 Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
(Please refer to the audit report dated March 28, 2024 issued by Deloitte and Touche)

Chairman: Chen, Chi-Ming

2023 2022
Amount % Amount %
($ 5,631) - $ 8,416 -
( 125,655) ( 4) ( 160,054) ( 3)
( 31,221) ( 1) 27,561 1
5,287 - ( 4,358) -
( 157,220) ( 5) «( 128,435) ( 2)
($_ 1,360,074) (_46) ($ 700,466) (__12)
($ 810,576) ( 28) ($ 495,153) ( 9)
( 392,278) (__13) ( 76.878) ( 1)
($_ 1,202,854) (_41) ($ 572,031) (__10)
(S 973,001) ( 33) (S 625911) ( 11)
( 387,073) (__13) ( 74.555) ( 1)
($_ 1,360,074) (_46) ($ 700,466) (__12)
(§  8.82) (. 6.14)
(S 882) (S 6.14)

Manager: Huang, Wen-Jui
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation and Its Subsidiaries
Consolidated cash flow statement
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022
Unit: NTD thousand

Code 2023 2022
Cash flow from operating activities:
A10000 Net loss before tax ($ 1,173,802) ($ 516,742)
A20010 Income and expense items that do not affect
cash flows

A20100 Depreciation expense 321,225 279,748
A20200 Amortization expenses 14,404 12,910
A20300 Expected credit (reversal gains)

impairment losses ( 51,385) 91,415
A20400 Net gain on financial assets and liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss ( 693) ( 10,886 )
A20900 Financial costs 52,652 70,229
A21200 Interest income ( 43,232) ( 8,692)
A21300 Dividend income ( 12,718) ( 1,823)
A21900 Share-based remuneration costs 24,891 49,404
A22300 Share of associates accounted for using

the equity method 53,617 30,646
A22500 Net loss (gain) on disposal and scrapping

of property, plant and equipment ( 802) 6,090
A23700 Impairment loss on non-financial assets 189,797 84,310
A23800 Loss on decline in value of inventories

(reversal gain) 104,010 ( 15,034)
A24100 Unrealized foreign currency exchange

gain ( 12,026) ( 126,113)
A29900 Leasehold modification gain ( 3,109) ( 111)
A23100 Gain on disposal of investment ( 20,939) -
A29900 Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 3,165
A30000 Net change in operating assets and liabilities:
A31130 Notes receivables 112,556 79,012
A31150 Accounts receivables, net ( 18,658) 174,693
A31160 Accounts receivable — related party 30,058 84,418
A31180 Other receivables 760 ( 7,620)
A31190 Other receivables — related party 17,695 ( 1,425)
A31200 Inventories ( 126,493 ) 162,030
A31230 Prepayments 16,606 260,352
A31240 Other current assets 22,709 ( 4,968 )
A32130 Notes payable ( 4,316) 1,950
A32150 Accounts payable 72,158 162,928
A32160 Accounts payable — related party ( 608 ) ( 144)
A32180 Other payables ( 57,985) 23,783
A32190 Other payables — related party 32,103 ( 2,696 )
A32230 Other current liabilities 8,979 ( 242.575)
A32990 Other non-current liabilities 1,364 -
A32240 Net defined benefit liabilities ( 264) ( 440)
A33000 Cash arising from operations ( 451,446 ) 637,814
A33100 Interests received 40,793 7,189
A33300 Interests paid ( 51,172) ( 64,406 )
A33500 Income tax paid ( 16,055) ( 58.376)
AAAA Net cash inflow (outflow) from

investment activities ( 477.880) 522,221

(Continued on next page)
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(Continued from previous page)

Code

B00010

B00020

B00100

B00200

B01900

B02700
B02800
B03700
B03800
B04500
B06600
B06700
B07600
BBBB

C00200
C01300
C01600
C01700
C03000
C03100
C04020
C04600
C05800
CCCC

DDDD

EEEE

E00100

E00200

Cash flow from investment activities:

Acquisition of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Disposal of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Acquisition of Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Disposal of Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Disposal of investment accounted for using the
equity method

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Increase in refundable deposits

Decrease in refundable deposits

Acquisition of intangible assets

Increase in other financial assets

Decrease in other non-current assets

Dividends received

Net cash outflow from investment
activities

Cash flow from financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings
Repayment of corporate bonds
Borrowing of long-term loans
Repayment of long-term loans
Increase in deposits received
Decease in deposits received
Repayment of lease liability principal
Cash capital increase
Change in non-controlling interests
Net cash outflow from financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

(Please refer to the audit report dated March 28, 2024 issued by Deloitte and Touche)

Chairman: Chen, Chi-Ming Manager: Huang, Wen-Jui

191

2023 2022
($ 99,984 ) ($ 83,496 )
8,339 -
. ( 1,015)
- 16,622
41,313 -
( 504,394 ) ( 1280,203)
11,047 38,148
( 27,228) -
- 104,021
( 3,600) ( 8,053)
( 180,355) ( 107,386)
1,609 65,967

12,718

( 740.535)

(
(

(
(

271,252
339,406 )
658,800

324,001)

2,131)
29,053)

268,556
504,017

9.865

(

704,533 )

2,781,496

$ 2,076,963

1,823

(_ 1.253572)

(

1,300,493 )

610,400
827,912)
170

37,141)
1,840,000

332,103

617,127

116.579

2,355

2,779,141

$ 2781496

Accounting Supervisor: Wang Tsai-Hua



Giga Solar Materials Corporation and Its Subsidiaries
Notes to consolidated financial statements
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022

(Units: NTD thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Company History

Giga Solar Materials Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) was
incorporated in Hsinchu Science Park with the approval of the Ministry of Economic
Affairs on July 11, 2003. In December 2011, it established an STSP Branch in the Southern
Taiwan Science Park (STSP). In March 2017, the STSP Branch was abolished. It mainly
engages in the research and development (R&D), manufacturing, and sales of solar
conductive plasma. The Company’s stock has been traded on Taipei Exchange since
November 18, 2010.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in NTD, the functional currency
of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively referred to as the
Consolidated Company.

Date and Procedures for Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the board meeting on March
28, 2024.

Application of New and Revised Standards and Interpretation

(1) First-time application of International Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter
referred to as “IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to
as “IAS”), Interpretations (“IFRICs”) and Interpretations (“SICs”) (hereinafter
referred to as “IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission
(hereinafter referred to as “FSC”) and issued to be effective

The adoption of the IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC will not
result in significant changes in the Consolidated Company’s accounting policies.

(2) IFRSs endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission and applicable in 2024.

New/Revised/Amended Standards and Effective date of TASB
Interpretations publication (Note 1)
Amendments to IFRS 16, “Lease Liability in a Sale
and Leaseback” January 1, 2024 (Note 2)
Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current” January 1, 2024
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Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants” January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 "Supplier January 1, 2024 (Note 3)
Financing Arrangements"

Note 1: Unless otherwise stated, the aforementioned new/amended/revised standards
or interpretation are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
the respective dates.

Note 2: The seller and lessee shall apply the amendments to IFRS 16 retrospectively
to the sale and leaseback carried out after the date of initial application of
IFRS 16.

Note 3 When this amendment is first implemented, certain disclosure requirements
shall be exempted.

1.  Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”
(amendments in 2020) and Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants” (amendments in 2022)

The amendments in 2020 aims to clarify whether a liability is classified as
non-current; the Consolidated Company should assess whether it has the right
to defer settlement of liabilities at the end of the reporting period for at least 12
months after the reporting period. If the Consolidated Company has such a
right as of the end of the reporting period, the liability is classified as
non-current whether or not the Consolidated Company exercises its right to
defer settlement of a liability.

The amendments in 2020 also clarify that if the Consolidated Company is
required to comply with certain conditions in order to have the right to defer
settlement of a liability. The Consolidated Company must have complied with
specific conditions as of the end of the reporting period, even if the lender tests
whether or not the Consolidated Company has complied with those conditions
at a later date. The amendments in 2022 further clarify that only the terms of
the contracts to be observed before the end of the reporting period affect the
classification of liabilities. Although the terms of the contracts to be observed
within 12 months after the reporting period do not affect the classification of
liabilities, relevant information shall be disclosed to enable users of financial

reports to understand the risk that the Consolidated Company may not be able
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to comply with the terms of the contracts and shall make repayments within 12
months after the reporting period.

As per the amendments in 2020, to classify liabilities, the above
settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, other economic
resources or equity instruments of the Consolidated Company that results in the
extinguishment of the liability. However, if the terms of the liability may result
in transferring the Consolidated Company’s equity instruments at the option of
the counterparty, and if the option is separately recognized in equity in
accordance with ITAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation,” the
above-mentioned provisions do not affect the classification of the liability.

In addition to the above impacts, the Consolidated Company will continue to
evaluate the effect of the amendment to other IFRSs on the financial positions and
performance of the Consolidated Company to the date the consolidated financial
statements are approved and released, and will make appropriate disclosure after the
evaluation.

The IFRSs released by the IASB but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the
FSC

Effective date of IASB
New/Revised/Amended Standards and Interpretations publication (Note 1)
Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or Undecided
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Affiliate or Joint Venture”
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS 17 January 1, 2023

Amendment to IFRS 17 “First application of IFRS 17  January 1, 2023
and IFRS 9 — comparative information”
Amendments to IAS 21 "Lack of Convertibility" January 1, 2025 (Note 2)

Note 1: Unless otherwise stated, the aforementioned new/amended/revised standards
or interpretation are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
the respective dates.

Note 2 For annual reporting periods beginning after January 1, 2025. When the
amendment is applied for the first time, the effect is recognized in the
retained earnings on the date of initial application. When the consolidated
Company uses a non-functional currency as the presentation currency, it will
affect the exchange differences of foreign operations under equity on the

date of initial application.
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1. Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Affiliate or Joint Venture”

The amendment provides that if the Consolidated Company sells or
contributes an asset to an affiliate (or joint venture) or if the Consolidated
Company loses control of a subsidiary but retains significant influence (or joint
control) over the subsidiary, the Consolidated Company shall recognize all of
the gains or losses from such transactions if the aforementioned asset or
subsidiary meets the definition of “business” in “business merger” under IFRS
3.

In addition, if the Consolidated Company sells or contributes an asset to
an affiliate (or joint venture), or if the Consolidated Company loses control of a
subsidiary but retains significant influence (or joint control) over the subsidiary,
the Consolidated Company shall recognize gains and losses from such
transactions only to the extent that they are not related to the investor’s interest
in the affiliate (or joint venture), i.e., they are eliminated to the extent of the
Consolidated Company’s share of such gains and losses if the aforementioned
asset or subsidiary does not meet the definition of “business” in “business
merger” under IFRS 3.

In addition to the above effects, the Consolidated Company will continue to
evaluate the effect of the amendment to other IFRSs on the financial positions and
performance of the Consolidated Company to the date the consolidated financial
statements are approved and released and will make appropriate disclosure after the

evaluation.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1

)

Compliance Statement
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and
the IFRSs approved and published by the FSC.
Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Statements by Securities Issuers.
The evaluation of fair value could be classified into Level 1 to Level 3 by the

observable intensity and importance of the related input value:
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4

1. Level 1 input value: refers to the quotation of the same asset or liability in an
active market as of the evaluation (before adjustment).

2. Level 2 input value: refers to the direct (the price) or indirect (inference of
price) observable input value of asset or liability further to the quotation of
Level 1.

3. Level 3 input value: the unobservable input value of asset or liability.

Standards in differentiating current and non-current assets and liabilities
Current assets include:

1. Assets held primarily for trading purposes;

2. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months of the balance sheet date; and

3. Cash and cash equivalents
Current liabilities include:

1. Liabilities held primarily for trading purposes;

2. Liabilities due for settlement within 12 months after the balance sheet date
(current liabilities even if a long-term refinancing or rescheduling agreement is
completed after the balance sheet date and before the financial statements are
authorized for issuance), and

3. Liabilities whose settlement deadline cannot be unconditionally deferred until
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. If the terms of the liability, at
the option of the counterparty, result in the settlement of the liability by the
issuance of equity instruments, the classification is not affected.

Those that are not current assets or liabilities above are classified as non-current
assets or liabilities.

Basis of consolidation

Principles for the Preparation of Consolidated Statements

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company (subsidiaries). The consolidated
comprehensive income statements include the operating profits or losses of the
acquired or disposed subsidiaries for the period from the date of acquisition or up to
the date of disposal. The subsidiaries’ financial statements have been properly
adjusted to make the accounting policies consistent with the accounting policies of
the Consolidated Company. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all
inter-company transactions, account balances, gains and losses have been eliminated.

The total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributable to shareholders of
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the Company and non-controlling interests, even if the non-controlling interests
become a loss balance as a result.

When a change in the Consolidated Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary does not result in a loss of control, it is treated as an equity transaction.
The carrying amounts of the Consolidated Company and non-controlling interests
have been adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in subsidiaries.
The difference between the adjustment of the non-controlling interests and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.

When the Consolidated Company loses control over a subsidiary, the gain or
loss on disposal is the difference between (1) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of the remaining investment in the
subsidiary at the date of loss of control, and (2) the aggregate of the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities and non-controlling interests of the subsidiary at the carrying
amount at the date of loss of control. All amounts recognized in other comprehensive
income related to the subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis as if the
Consolidated Company had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Subsidiaries Included in Consolidated Financial Statements

Entities covered by the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Shareholding percentage
December 31, December 31,

Investor name Subsidiary name Principal business 2023 2022
The Company Green Energy Manufacturing and 52.81% 52.81%
Electrode, Inc. (Note trading of energy
5) materials
Giga Solar Materials General investment 100% 100%
Corporation
(Mauritius)
Whole Sun Green Solar Energy Related 100% 100%
Power Co., Ltd. Business
Hua Hsu Silicon Manufacturing of 34.03% 34.23%
Materials Co., Ltd. metal wire products,
(Note 1 and 4) manufacturing of
electronic

components, trading
and other related
businesses

(Continued on next page)
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(Continued from previous page)

Shareholding percentage
December 31, December 31,

Investor name Subsidiary name Principal business 2023 2022
Green Energy Electrode Green Energy General investment 100% 100%
Inc. Electrode, Inc.
Chongqing Xincai Lithium battery 100% -
New Material material
Technology Co., manufacturing,
Ltd. (Note 8) research and
development, and
lithium-ion battery
technology
development and
consulting services
Green Energy Electrode, Yancheng Green Lithium battery 100% 100%
Inc. Energy Electrode material
Crop. manufacturing,
research and
development and
lithium-ion battery
technology
development and
consulting services
Giga Solar Materials Suzhou Giga Solar Photovoltaic process 100% 100%
Corporation (Mauritius) Materials testing and
Corporation technical services,
ete.
Yancheng Giga Solar ~ Photovoltaic process 100% 100%
Materials testing and
Corporation technical services,
etc.
Whole Sun Green Power Eiwa Electric Power Solar Energy Related 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. Co., Inc. Business
Wisdom Field Limited ~ General investment 100% 100%
(Samoa)
Godo Kaisha Best Solar Energy Related (Note 2) (Note 2)
Solar Business
Godo Kaisha Chiba 1 Solar Energy Related (Note 2) (Note 2)
(Note 7) Business
Godo Kaisha Merchant  Solar Energy Related (Note 2) (Note 2)
Energy NO.8 Business
Wisdom Field Limited Merchant Energy General investment 87.00% 87.00%
(Samoa) PTE., Ltd. (Note 6)
Merchant Energy PTE., Sunshine Solar Power  Solar Energy Related 39.93% 39.93%
Ltd. Generation Co., Inc. Business
(Note 3)
Hua Hsu Silicon Materials ~ Giga Diamond General investment 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. Materials
Corporation
(Seychelles)
Giga Diamond Materials Yancheng Giga Manufacturing and 100% 100%
Corporation (Seychelles) Diamond Materials sale of wire
Corporation materials, etc.

The significant changes in consolidated entities are described below:
Note 1: Although the Consolidated Company does not hold more than 50% of the
voting rights in Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., the Consolidated
Company included it in the consolidated entities after considering the

absolute amount, relative size and distribution of voting rights held by other
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Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

shareholders and judging that the Consolidated Company has the substantial
ability to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

Whole Sun Green Power Co., Ltd. invested in Godo Kaisha Best Solar,
Godo Kaisha Chiba 1 and Godo Kaisha Merchant Energy No.8 under the
TK-GK structure of Japan; although not holding voting rights, the economic
beneficial rights granted to the Consolidated Company according to the
contracts are 95%, 100%, and 100%, respectively, and the Consolidated
Company was given the right to be consulted in advance for major decisions.
Therefore, they are included in the consolidated entities.

Although the Consolidated Company does not hold more than 50% of the
voting rights in Sunshine Solar Power Generation Co., Inc., but has a
significant economic benefit interest, it is therefore included in the
consolidated entities.

Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., on June 17, 2022, resolved a decision
to issue 2,000,000 shares of restricted stock awards. The record date for the
capital increase was July 31, 2022. After the issuance, the Company’s
shareholding decreased from 34.69% to 34.01%. The Company purchased a
total of 222 thousand shares and 375 thousand shares in Hua Hsu Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. between October 2022 to December 2023, resulting in
an increase in its shareholding from 34.01% to 34.23%, and from 34.23% to
34.59%. In addition, Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. resolved to
conduct a cash capital increase in its board of directors meeting on May 2,
2023, with the record date set as June 29, 2023. After the capital increase,
the Company's shareholding ratio decreased from 34.59% to 34.00%. Hua
Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. resolved to recall and cancel 122,000
restricted shares of employee stock in its board of directors meeting on
August 9, 2023, with the capital reduction record date set as August 10,
2023. After the capital reduction, the Company's shareholding ratio
increased from 34.00% to 34.03%.

The board of directors of Green Energy Electrode Inc., on October 4, 2022,
resolved a decision to issue 10,000 thousand new shares for cash capital
increase at NT$36 per share. The capital increase record date was November
23, 2022. After the issuance, the Company’s shareholding increased from
48.39% to 52.81%.
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Note 6: The shareholders’ meeting of Merchant Energy PTE., Ltd. resolved a
decision on September 12, 2022 to conducted a cash reduction and returned
capital to Wisdom Field Limited (Samoa). The capital was reduced in cash
by US$1,700 thousand, with 1,700 thousand shares canceled, and the
registration of the change was completed on October 25, 2022. The
shareholding ration was therefore down from 87.65% to 87.00%.

Note 7: On November 23, 2022, the board meeting of Whole Sun Green Power Co.,
Ltd. decided to increase the investment in Godo Kaisha Chiba 1. The
investment amount was 150 million JPY, and the investment has been
completed.

Note 8: Green Energy Electrode Inc. was approved by the Investment Commission,
Ministry of Economic Affairs, on January 18, 2023 to invest US$6 million
in the establishment of Chongqing Xincai New Material Technology Co.,
Ltd. in mainland China, and the investment was completed.

Business merger

Business merger is accounted for by the acquisition method. Acquisition-related
costs are recognized as expenses in the year in which the costs are incurred and the
labor services are obtained.

Goodwill is measured as the aggregate of the fair value of the transfer
consideration, amount of non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date acquisition date.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree that has a current ownership interest
in the acquiree and is entitled to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets
upon liquidation is measured as its proportionate share of the recognized amount of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Other non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value.

If the measurement of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as
a result of a business merger is not yet complete, a provisional amount is recognized
at the balance sheet date and retroactive adjustments or additional assets or liabilities
are recognized in the measurement period to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances existing at the date of acquisition.

Foreign currency
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When each entity prepares its financial report, transactions in currencies other
than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currency) shall be converted into
functional currency records according to the exchange rate on the transaction date.

Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the closing rate on each
balance sheet date. The exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items or translating monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they occur.

The foreign non-currency items measured at fair value are translated in
accordance with the exchange rate on the fair value determination date and the
exchange difference is booked as profit or loss in the period. However, for the
changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income, the exchange
difference is recorded in other comprehensive income.

The foreign non-currency items measured at historical cost are translated in
accordance with the exchange rate on the transaction date without the need for a
retranslation.

Upon preparation of the consolidated financial reports, the assets and liabilities
of overseas operating institutions (including the subsidiaries or affiliates in the
countries of business operation or those using currencies different from the
Company’s) were converted to New Taiwan dollars based on the exchange rate
quoted on every balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rate for the period and the exchange differences are booked in
other comprehensive income and attributed to shareholders’ equity and
non-controlling interests of the Company, respectively.

Inventories

Inventory includes raw materials, supplies, finished goods and work-in-process.
Inventory is valued in accordance with the lower of cost or net realizable value.
When comparing cost and net realizable value, except for the homogeneous
inventories, it is based on the itemized lower of cost or net realizable value. Net
realizable value refers to the estimated sale price under normal circumstances net of
the estimated cost needed to completion and the estimated expenses needed to
consummate the sale. The cost of inventory is calculated using the weighted average
method.

Investment in affiliates
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The term “affiliate” as set forth herein denotes an enterprise which has
significant effect upon the Consolidated Company but is not a subsidiary or a joint
venture.

The Consolidated Company adopts the equity method for investment in
associates.

Under the equity method, investments in associates are originally recognized at
cost; the book value after the acquisition date fluctuates along with the distribution of
profit or loss from the associates and other comprehensive income by the
Consolidated Company. In addition, changes in equity in affiliated companies are
recognized on a proportional basis to shareholdings.

The excess of the acquisition cost over the Consolidated Company’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates at the
acquisition date is recorded as goodwill, which is included in the carrying amount of
the investment and is not amortized; the excess of the Consolidated Company’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates at the
acquisition date over the acquisition cost is recorded as gain or loss for the period.

If the Consolidated Company does not subscribe for new shares of an associate
in proportion to its shareholding, resulting in a change in the Consolidated
Company’s shareholding and an increase or decrease in the net equity of the
investment, the increase or decrease is adjusted to capital surplus — change in net
worth in associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method and
investments accounted for using the equity method. However, if the ownership
interest in an associate is reduced as a result of subscription or acquisition without
proportionate shareholding, the amount recognized in other comprehensive income
related to the associate is reclassified in proportion to the reduction on the same basis
as that required for the direct disposal of the related assets or liabilities of the
associate; if the former adjustment is charged to capital surplus and the balance of
capital surplus from investments accounted for using the equity method is
insufficient, the difference is charged to retained earnings.

When the Consolidated Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its equity interest in the associate (including the carrying amount of the
associate under the equity method and other long-term equity interests that are in
substance a component of the Consolidated Company’s net investment in the

associate), the Consolidated Company shall cease to recognize further losses. The
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Consolidated Company recognizes additional losses and liabilities only to the extent
that legal obligations, constructive obligations or payments on behalf of associates
have been incurred.

The Consolidated Company assesses impairment by comparing the recoverable
amount to the carrying amount of an investment as a whole (including goodwill) as a
single asset. The impairment loss recognized is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
impairment loss can be recognized to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Consolidated Company ceases to adopt the equity method from the date its
investment ceases to be an associate, and its retained equity interest in the associate
is measured at fair value. The difference between the fair value and the disposal price
and the carrying amount of the investment on the date of cessation of the equity
method is recognized in profit or loss for the period. In addition, all amounts
recognized in other comprehensive income related to the associate are accounted for
on the same basis as if the Consolidated Company had directly disposed of the
associate’s related assets or liabilities. If an investment in associates becomes a joint
venture or an investment in joint venture becomes an investment in associates, the
Consolidated Company continues to use the equity method without remeasuring the
retained equity interest.

Gains or losses from upstream, downstream and side-stream transactions with
associates are recognized in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent
that they are not related to the Consolidated Company’s equity interest in the
associates.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment shall be recognized based on cost. Subsequent
costing shall be measured on the cost net of accumulated depreciations and
accumulated impairments.

Except for owned land, which is not depreciated, other property, plant and
equipment are depreciated separately over their useful lives on a straight-line basis
for each significant component. The Consolidated Company reviews the estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods at least at the end of each year

and defers the effect of changes in applicable accounting estimates.

203



(10)

(11

(12)

When property, plant and equipment is derecognized, the difference between the
net disposal price and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.
Investment property

Investment property refers to real estate held for the purpose of earning rent or
capital appreciation or both. Investment property also includes land held for future
use that is currently undetermined.

Self-owned investment property is initially measured at cost (including
transaction costs) and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired through a business merger is measured at cost based on the
amount of goodwill recognized on the acquisition date and subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated impairment.

For purposes of impairment tests, goodwill is allocated to each cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units from which the Consolidated Company
expects to benefit as a result of the merger.

The cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated are tested annually
(and whenever there is an indication that the units may be impaired) for impairment
by comparing the carrying amount of the units that contain goodwill with their
recoverable amounts. If goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit arises from a
business merger during the year, the unit should be tested for impairment before the
end of the year. If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit to which
goodwill is allocated is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
calculated by first reducing the carrying amount of the allocated goodwill of the
cash-generating unit and then reducing the carrying amount of each asset in
proportion to the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit. Any impairment loss
is recognized directly as loss for the period. Impairment losses attributable to
goodwill must not be reversed in subsequent periods.

Upon disposal of an operation within a cash-generating unit to which goodwill
is allocated, the amount of goodwill associated with the disposed operation is
included in the carrying amount of the operation to determine the disposal gain or
loss.

Intangible assets

1. Acquired separately
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Intangible assets with finite useful lives acquired separately are initially
measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment. Intangible assets are amortized on a
straight-line basis over their useful lives. The Consolidated Company reviews
the estimated useful lives, residual values and amortization methods at least at
the end of each year and defers the effect of changes in applicable accounting
estimates. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment.

2. Acquired through business merger

Intangible assets acquired through business merger are recognized at fair
value at the acquisition date and separately from goodwill, and are
subsequently measured in the same manner as intangible assets acquired
separately.

3. Derecognition

When intangible assets are derecognized, the difference between the net
disposal price and the carrying amount of the assets is recognized in profit or
loss for the period.

(13) Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
property and intangible assets (excluding goodwill)

The Consolidated Company assesses on each balance sheet date whether there is
any indication that the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
property and intangible assets (other than goodwill) may have been impaired. If there
is any indication of impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset should be
estimated. If the recoverable amount of an individual asset cannot be estimated, the
Consolidated Company is to estimate the recoverable amount of the respective
cash-generating unit. Shared assets are allocated to individual cash-generating units
on a reasonably consistent basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication of
impairment.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. When the recoverable amount of an individual asset or a

cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
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or cash-generating unit should be reduced to its recoverable amount. The impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss.

When the impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the adjusted recoverable amount,
provided that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
(net of amortization or depreciation) that would have become if the impairment loss
had not been recognized in prior years for that asset or cash-generating unit. Reversal
of impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

When the Consolidated Company has become a party to the instrument contract,
the financial assets and financial liabilities are to be recognized in the consolidated
balance sheet.

For the initial recognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities, if the
financial assets or financial liabilities are not measured at fair value through profit or
loss, it is measured at fair value plus transaction cost that is directly attributable to
the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or financial liabilities. The transaction
cost directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value through profit or loss is immediately
recognized in profit or loss.

1. Financial assets
The regular transaction of financial assets is recognized and derecognized
in accordance with the trade date accounting.
(1) Type of measurement
The types of financial assets held by the Consolidated Company are
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at
amortized cost and investments in equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income.
A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or
loss include investments in equity instruments investments not
designated by the Consolidated Company as being measured at fair

value through other comprehensive income and investments in debt
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instruments not qualified for classification as being measured at

amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, while dividends, interests and gains or losses arising
from remeasurement are recognized in other gains and losses. Please
refer to Note 31 for the determination of fair value.

. Financial assets at amortized cost

The Consolidated Company’s financial assets, if meeting both of
the following conditions, are classified as financial assets at amortized
cost:

a. Financial assets held under a particular mode of operations and the
purpose of holding is for the collection of contractual cash flows;
and

b. The terms of the contracts give rise to cash flows at specified dates
that are solely for the payment of principal and interest on the
outstanding principal amount.

Financial assets (including cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable measured at amortized cost), after initial recognition, are
measured at their total carrying amount determined using the effective
interest method, less amortized cost of any impairment loss, with any
foreign currency exchange gain or loss recognized in profit or loss.

Interest income is calculated by multiplying the effective interest
rate by the total carrying amount of the financial assets, except for the
following two cases.

a. Interest income on financial assets that are credit-impaired upon
acquisition or creation is calculated using the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate multiplied by the amortized cost of the
financial assets.

b. Interest income on financial assets that are not credit-impaired
upon acquisition or creation but become credit-impaired
subsequently is calculated using the effective interest rate
multiplied by the amortized cost of the financial assets from the

next reporting period after the impairment.
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Credit-impaired financial assets are those for which the issuer or
the debtor has experienced significant financial difficulties, defaulted,
or where it is probable that the debtor will declare bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization, or where an active market for the financial
assets has disappeared due to financial difficulties.

Cash equivalents include time deposits that are highly liquid,
readily convertible into fixed amount of cash with minimal risk of
changes in value within twelve months from the acquisition date and

are used to meet short-term cash commitments.

. Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income

The Consolidated Company may make an irrevocable choice at
the time of initial recognition for designating the investment of equity
instruments not available-for-sale and not recognized by the acquirer
under corporate merger and acquisition or with consideration at fair
value through other comprehensive income for measurement.

Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income is measured at fair value. Subsequent changes
in fair value will be recognized as other comprehensive income and
accumulated into other equity. In the disposition of assets,
accumulated gains or loss shall be directly transferred to retained
earnings without classification as profit or loss.

The dividend of the investment of equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income shall be recognized as income
when the right of the Consolidated Company in the collection of
dividends is ascertained, unless the dividend is obviously representing

the recovery of the cost of investment in part.

Impairment of financial assets

The Consolidated Company at each balance sheet date assesses the

impairment loss of financial assets (including accounts receivable) at

amortized cost according to the expected credit loss.

An allowance is recognized for losses on accounts receivable based

on expected credit losses over the life. Other financial assets are first

evaluated to determine whether there is a significant increase in credit
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risk since initial recognition. If there is no significant increase, an

allowance for loss is recognized based on the expected credit loss over 12

months and if there is a significant increase, an allowance for loss is

recognized based on the expected credit loss over the duration.

Expected credit loss is a weighted average credit loss based on the
risk of default. Expected credit loss in a 12-month period represents the
expected credit loss arising from possible defaults of the financial
instruments within 12 months after the reporting date, and the ongoing
expected credit loss represents the expected credit loss arising from all
possible defaults of the financial instruments during the expected life of
the financial instruments.

For internal credit risk management purposes, the Consolidated
Company, without considering the collateral, determines the following
circumstances indicating that a default has occurred on the financial
instrument:

A. There is internal or external information showing that the debtor has
been unable to pay off the debt.

B. Payments are overdue for more than 90 days, unless there is
reasonable and supporting information showing that the delayed
default benchmark is more appropriate.

The carrying amount of all financial assets is reduced through an
allowance account
The derecognition of financial assets

The Consolidated Company has financial assets derecognized only
when the contractual rights from the cash flows of a financial asset
become invalid or when the financial assets are transferred, and almost
all the risks and rewards of the asset ownership have been transferred to
other enterprises.

When a particular entry of financial assets measured at amortized
cost is removed, the difference between its book value and consideration
shall be recognized as income. When particular equity instruments
measured at fair value through comprehensive income are entirely
derecognized, the accumulated gains of loss shall be directly transferred

to retained earnings without being classified as profit or loss.
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Equity instruments

The debt and equity instruments issued by the Consolidated Company are
classified as financial liabilities or equity pursuant to the contractual
agreements and the definition of financial liabilities and equity instruments.

Equity instruments issued by the Consolidated Company are recognized
for an amount after deducting the direct issuing cost from the proceeds
collected.

The Company’s equity instruments repurchased are recognized and
deducted under equity, and the carrying amounts are calculated using the
weighted average method based on the stock types. The Company’s equity
purchased, sold, issued, or cancelled is not recognized in the profit or loss.
Financial liabilities
(1) Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.
(2) Derecognition of financial liabilities
When derecognizing financial liabilities, the difference between the
carrying amount and the consideration paid (including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized as profit or loss.
Convertible corporate bonds

The compound financial instruments (convertible corporate bonds) issued
by the Consolidated Company are classified as financial liabilities and equity,
respectively, in the original recognition according to the substance of the
contractual agreement and the definition of financial liabilities and equity
instruments.

In the original recognition, the fair value of the liability is estimated
according to the prevailing market interest rate of a similar non-convertible
instrument; also, it is measured at the amortized cost that is calculated
according to the effective interest method before the conversion or maturity
date. The liability of an embedded non-equity derivative is measured at fair
value.

The conversion right classified as equity is equal to the remaining amount
of the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole less the fair value of

the separately determined liability component, which is recognized in equity
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net of the income tax effect and is not subsequently measured. When the
conversion right is exercised, its related liability component and the amount in
equity will be transferred to capital stock and capital surplus — issue premium.
If the conversion right of convertible corporate bonds has not been exercised
on the maturity date, the amount recognized in equity will be transferred to
capital surplus — issue premium.

Transaction costs related to the issuance of convertible bonds are allocated
to the liability (included in the carrying amount of the liability) and the equity
component (included in equity) of the instrument in proportion to the total
allocation price.

The components of conversion rights contained in convertible bonds
issued by the Consolidated Company are classified as derivative financial
liabilities if the conversion rights are not settled by exchanging a fixed amount
of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of the Consolidated
Company’s own equity instruments.

On initial recognition, the derivative portion of convertible bonds is
measured at fair value, and the original carrying amount of the non-derivative
portion of financial liabilities is the balance after separation of embedded
derivatives. In subsequent periods, non-derivative financial liabilities are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method and derivative
financial liabilities are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss. Transaction costs related to the issuance of
convertible bonds are allocated to the non-derivative financial liability portion
of the instrument (included in the carrying amount of the liability) and the
derivative financial liability portion (included in profit or loss) in proportion to
their relative fair values.

(15) Hedging instruments

The Consolidated Company uses precious metal borrowing contracts for fair
value hedge.

Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments designated and qualifying as
fair value hedge and changes in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the
risk being hedged are recognized immediately in profit or loss and are recognized in
the consolidated comprehensive income statement under the line item relating to the

hedged item.
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(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

The Consolidated Company defers the cessation of hedge accounting only when
the hedging relationship no longer meets the requirements for hedge accounting,
including when the hedging instrument has expired, been sold, unbundled by contract
or exercised.

Statutory payments

Various types of payments (tariffs) levied by the government in accordance with
the law are recognized as other liabilities when the transactions or activities that
should be levied have occurred. The payment obligations that accrue over time are
recognized as other liabilities on a periodic basis. The payment obligations that only
arise upon reaching a specific threshold are recognized as other liabilities when the
threshold is reached.

Provision for liabilities

The amount recognized as provision for liabilities is the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account
the risk and uncertainty of the obligation. The provision for liabilities is measured as
the present value of the discounted estimated cash flows to settle the obligation.
Revenue recognition

The Consolidated Company, after identifying the performance obligations, had
the transaction price amortized to each performance obligation and recognized as
income when the performance obligations were fulfilled.

1. Merchandise sales revenues
The Consolidated Company recognizes revenue when the promised
product is delivered to the customer and the customer obtains control (i.e. the
customer’s ability to direct the use of the product and obtain substantially all of
the residual benefits of the product), based on the price stated in the contract

(solar conductive plasma products are the main ones).
The credit period for goods sold by the Consolidated Company is 30 to
180 days. For most contracts, the accounts receivable are recognized when the
control of the goods is transferred and there is the right to unconditionally
receive the consideration. Such accounts receivable are usually short term and
have no significant financial components.
Leases

The Consolidated Company assesses whether the contract is (or includes) a

lease on the effective contract date.
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1. The Consolidated Company is the lessor

A lease is classified as a capital lease when the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the asset
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Under operating leases, lease payments, net of lease incentives, are
recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease period.

2. The Consolidated Company is the lessee

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease
inception date, except for leases of low-value underlying assets to which the
recognition exemption applies and short-term leases for which lease payments
are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease period.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost (the original measured
amount of the lease liability) and subsequently at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, adjusted for the remeasurement
of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets are expressed separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
period starting from the lease inception date to the end of their useful lives or
the expiration of the lease period, whichever is sooner.

The lease liability was originally measured at the present value of the
lease payments (both fixed and substantively constant). If the implicit interest
rate of the lease is readily determinable, the lease payments are discounted
using that rate. If that rate is not readily determinable, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured on an amortized cost basis
using the effective interest method, and the interest expense is apportioned over
the lease term. If a change in the index used to determine lease payments
during the lease term results in a change in future lease payments, the
Consolidated Company remeasures the lease liability and adjusts the
right-of-use asset accordingly. However, if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset is reduced to zero, the remaining remeasurement amount is
recognized in profit or loss. The lease liabilities are expressed separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

(20) Government grants
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Government subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that

the enterprise will comply with the conditions attached to the government subsidy

and that the subsidy will be received.

Government subsidies related to income are recognized in other income on a

systematic basis over the period in which the related costs for which they are

intended to compensate are recognized as expenses by the Company.

Government subsidies are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which

they become collectible if they are intended to compensate for expenses or losses

already incurred or to provide immediate financial support to the Company and have

no future related costs.

(21) Employee benefits

1.

2.

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities relating to short-term employee benefits are measured by the
non-discounted amount of the expected payment in exchange for employee
services.

Post-employment benefits

Under defined contribution pension plan, the pension amount appropriated
during the service years of the employees is recognized as an expense.

The defined benefit cost (including service cost, net interest and
remeasurement) of defined benefit pension plan is actuarially determined using
the projected unit credit method. Service cost (including current service cost)
and net interest on net defined benefit liabilities (assets) are recognized as
employee benefit expense as incurred. Remeasurements (including actuarial
gains and losses and return on plan assets, net of interest) are recognized in
other comprehensive income and included in retained earnings as incurred and
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The net defined benefit liability (asset) represents the deficit (remaining)
of the defined benefit pension plan appropriation. The net defined benefit asset
may not exceed the present value of refunds of appropriations from the plan or

reductions in future appropriations.

(22) Share-based payment agreement

1.

Employee stock options and shares with restricted employee rights granted to

employees
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Employee stock options are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period based on the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date and the best estimate of the number expected to be vested, with an
adjustment to capital surplus — employee stock options at the same time. If the
vesting is made immediately on the grant date, the full cost is recognized on
the grant date. The Consolidated Company reserves shares for employee
subscription at the time of cash capital increase and recognizes the date as the
grant date when the number of shares to be subscribed by employees is
confirmed.

When the Consolidated Company restricted employee rights shares, the
other rights and interests (remuneration not earned by the employees) are
recognized on the date of the grant and the capital reserve — restricted
employee rights shares are adjusted at the same time. If it is a paid issue and it
is agreed upon that the amount of consideration must be returned when the
employee leaves the company, the relevant payables shall be recognized. When
an employee leaves the company within the vested period, he/she does not
need to return the dividends received. The dividends shall be recognized as
expenses when declaring the distribution of dividends and the capital reserve —
restricted employee rights shares shall be adjusted at the same time.

(23) Income tax
Income tax expense is the sum of the current income tax and deferred income
tax.
1.  Current income tax

The Consolidated Company determines income (loss) for the period in
accordance with the regulations enacted by the income tax reporting
jurisdictions and calculates income tax payable (recoverable) accordingly.

Additional Income tax on unappropriated earnings calculated in
accordance with the ROC Income Tax Act is recognized in the year in which
resolutions are made at the shareholders’ meeting.

The adjustment to prior years’ income tax payable is booked as current
period’s income tax.

2. Deferred income tax
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Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and the tax bases used to compute taxable
income.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, while deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which income tax credits
can be utilized, such as deductions for temporary differences, loss
carryforwards and investment tax credits.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates, except where the
Consolidated Company can control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments only to the extent that
it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow the
temporary differences to be realized and to the extent that a reversal is expected
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed on each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
tax assets will be available to allow recovery of all or part of the asset. part of
the asset should be adjusted down. Deferred tax assets that are not recognized
as such initially are reviewed on each balance sheet date and the carrying
amount is increased to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available to recover all or part of the assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realized, which are based on tax rates and tax laws that have been legislated or
substantively legislated on the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred
income tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequence resulting from the
book value of the assets or liabilities expected to be recovered or liquidated on
the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred tax
Current and deferred income taxes are recognized in the profit or loss,

except for the current and deferred income taxes related to the items recognized
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in other comprehensive income or directly included in the equity are

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly included in the equity.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimations and Main Sources of Assumption

Uncertainties

When adopting accounting policies, the Consolidated Company’s management is

required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that are based on historical

experience and other factors that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results

may differ from estimates.

Estimations and Main Sources of Assumption Uncertainties

(M

)

3)

Q)

Impairment of inventories

The net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to complete the production and
the estimated costs to complete the sale, which are based on current market
conditions and historical sales experience of similar products. Changes in market
conditions may materially affect the results of these estimates.
Impairment of Investments in associates

When there is an indication that an investment in an affiliate may be impaired
and the carrying amount may not be recoverable, the Consolidated Company
assesses the impairment of the investment immediately. The Consolidated
Company’s management assesses impairment based on future cash flow projections
of the associates, including assumptions on sales growth and capacity utilization as
estimated by the associates’ internal management. The Consolidated Company also
considers the relevant market and industry conditions to determine the
reasonableness of its relevant assumptions.
Impairment of Property, plant and equipment

The impairment of property, plant and equipment is assessed based on their
recoverable amount (i.e., the higher of their fair value less costs of disposal and their
value in use). Changes in market prices, future cash flows, or discount rates will
affect the recoverable amount of these assets, which may result in the Group having
to recognize additional impairment losses or reverse previously recognized
impairment losses.
Estimate of goodwill impairment

In determining whether goodwill is impaired, the value in use of the

cash-generating unit to which goodwill is allocated is estimated. For value-in-use

217



calculations, management should estimate the future cash flows expected to be
generated from the cash-generating units and determine the appropriate discount rate
to be used in the present value calculation. If actual cash flows are less than expected,
a significant impairment loss may occur.

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Cash on hand and petty cash $ 848 $ 625
Checking and demand deposit
accounts 1,799,770 2,127,629
Cash equivalents
Time deposits in banks 276,345 653.242
$2,076,963 $2,781,496

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Financial assets — non-current
Mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Non-derivative financial assets
- Funds $ 34253 $ 33,560

The Company’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are not provided as
guarantee.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Investment in equity instruments —
non-current
TWSE-/TPEx-listed stocks
TSEC CORPORATION $ - $ 3,472
Stocks listed on emerging stock
market
Long Time Tech. Co., Ltd. 256,160 256,160
Unlisted stocks
Foresight Energy
Technology 96,000 -
Yusheng Energy Co., Ltd. 60,000 60,000
Big Sun Energy Technology
Inc. 5,625 5,625
Phoenix Battery Corporation 5,000 5,000
Adjustments to the valuation of
financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (__88,364) 38.431
$334,421 $368,688
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The Consolidated Company invests in the ordinary shares of the Company listed above for
medium- to long-term strategic purposes and expects to earn a profit from the long-term
investment. The Consolidated Company’s management believes that it would be inconsistent
with the aforementioned long-term investment plan to include short-term fair value fluctuations
of these investments in profit or loss and has therefore elected to designate these investments as
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Consolidated Company’s financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not provided as guarantee.

In March 2022, the Group participated in the cash capital increase of ACRO Biomedical
Co., Ltd. and acquired 4,000,000 ordinary shares, and also purchased 1,000 shares from the open
market, with a total investment amount of ND$80,024 thousand. As this is a long-term strategic
investment, it has been designated as a financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

As the Consolidated Company has served as a corporate director of ACRO Biomedical Co.
Ltd. since June 24, 2022, it has gained a significant influence on the latter, so said investment is
accounted for using the equity method.

In July 2021 and August 2023, the Consolidated Company participated in the cash capital
increase by TSEC CORPORATION and acquired 131 thousand and 147 thousand shares in the
amount of NT$3,472 thousand and NT$3,984 thousand, respectively.

In August 2023, the Group participated in the cash capital increase of Foresight Energy
Technology and acquired 3,200,000 ordinary shares, with an investment amount of NT$96,000
thousand. As this is a long-term strategic investment, it has been designated as a financial asset
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Due to its investment strategy, the Consolidated Company sold and derecognized certain
investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
Information related to the derecognition during 2023 and 2022 is as follows.

2023 2022

Fair value at the date of

derecognition. $ 8,339 $ 80,700
Accumulated gain on disposal of

retained earnings transferred from

other equity ( 884) ( 676)
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Notes receivable, accounts receivable and other receivables

December 31, 2023

Notes receivables
Measured at amortized cost

December 31, 2022

Total book value $ 71,828 $184,384
Less: allowance for loss - -
$ 71,828 $184,384
Accounts receivables
Measured at amortized cost
Total book value $991,256 $977,147
Less: allowance for loss (_238.813) (_291,202)
$752,443 $685,945
Accounts receivable — related party
Measured at amortized cost
Total book value $ 3,832 $ 33,895
Less: allowance for loss ( 38) ( 807)
$ 3,794 $ 33,088
Other receivables
Tax refund receivable $ 20,685 $ 25,526
Other receivables — other 26,798 20,400
Less: allowance for loss (__17,949) (__17,949)
29,534 27,977
Other receivables — related party 1,957 19,652
$ 31,491 $ 47,629

(1) Notes receivables

The Consolidated Company entered into a contract with a financial institution
for the discounting of certain notes receivable with recourse. Although the
Consolidated Company transferred the contractual rights of cash flow of these notes
receivable, the Consolidated Company still had to bear the credit risk of
uncollectability of these notes receivable according to the contract, and did not meet
the conditions of financial assets derecognition. Information related to the transaction
is as follows.

December 31, 2023

Amount Amount
Transaction counterparty Transferred advanced (Note)  Interest range
China Merchants Bank $ 15,882 $ 15,882 2.05%
Sany Financial Notes 9.332 9.332 3.98%

$ 25214 $ 25214
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December 31, 2022

Amount Amount
Transaction counterparty Transferred advanced (Note)  Interest range
Bank of China $ 40211 $ 40211 1.13%~1.65%

Note: Please refer to Notes 18 and 33 for information on short-term borrowings and
short-term loans and related guarantees.
Accounts receivables

The Consolidated Company’s notes and accounts receivable are not provided as
guarantee.

The average credit period of the Consolidated Company’s product sales ranges
from 30 to 180 days.

Each unit of the Consolidated Company manages credit risk in accordance with
its policies, procedures and controls over credit risk. The credit risk of all
counterparties is evaluated by taking into account the financial condition of the
counterparties, the ratings of credit rating agencies, historical transaction experience,
the current economic environment and the Consolidated Company’s internal rating
standards. The Consolidated Company also uses certain credit enhancement tools
(such as advance receipts) at appropriate times to reduce the credit risk of specific
counterparties.

The Finance Department manages the credit risk of bank deposits, fixed-income
securities and other financial instruments in accordance with the Consolidated
Company’s policies. Since the Consolidated Corporation’s counterparties are
determined by internal control procedures and are creditworthy banks and
investment-grade financial institutions, corporate organizations and government
agencies, there is no significant credit risk.

The Consolidated Company recognizes an allowance for losses on accounts
receivable based on expected credit losses over the life of the receivables. Expected
credit losses for the duration are calculated using a reserve matrix, which takes into
account the customer’s past default history and current financial condition, the
economic situation of the industry, as well as industry outlook. Accounts receivable
are classified into groups by considering the credit rating of counterparties, regions

and industries, and a reserve matrix is used to measure the allowance for loss.
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If there is evidence that the counterparty is in serious financial difficulty and the

Consolidated Company cannot reasonably expect to recover the

amount, the

Consolidated Company shall directly write off the related accounts receivable but

shall engage in recourse activities and recognize the amount recovered in profit or

loss as a result of the recourse.

The Consolidated Company measured the allowance for losses on notes and

accounts receivable based on the reserve matrix as follows.

December 31, 2023

1-60 days past ~ 61-120 days past Over 121 days

Not past due due due past due Total
Expected credit
impairment loss 0%~0.58% 0.25%~2291%  16.59%~57.73% 77.79%~100%
Total book value $ 793,368 $ 26,678 $ 5,564 $ 241,306 § 1,066,916
Allowance for loss
(expected credit loss
during the life) ( 2,095) ( 1,590) ( 1,839) ( 233327) ( 238.851)
Amortized cost $ 791,273 $ 25,088 $ 3,725 $ 7.979 $ 828,065
December 31, 2022
1-60 days past ~ 61-120 days past Over 121 days
Not past due due due past due Total
Expected credit
impairment loss 0%~6.17% 1.57%~20.81% 4.37%~29.88% 18.75%~100%
Total book value $ 862,390 $ 28,585 $ 5,544 $ 298,907 § 1,195,426
Allowance for loss
(expected credit loss
during the life) ( 9.694) ( 3.853) ( 1,958) ( 276,504) ( 292,009)
Amortized cost $ 852,696 $ 24,732 $ 3,586 $ 22.403 $ 903.417

Information on changes in allowance for losses on notes and accounts

receivable is as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at the beginning of the
year $292,009 $198,291
Provision (reversal) of
impairment loss for the
year ( 51,385) 91,415
Actual write off for the year ( 498) -
Recovery of bad debts written
off - 2,331
Foreign currency translation
differences ( 1,275) ( 28)
Balance at the end of the year $238,851 $292,009

The changes in the allowance for loss as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 were

due to the combined effect of changes in notes and accounts receivable and the net

increase in total carrying amount for different aging risk groups.
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10.

I1.

Inventories
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Raw materials (Note) $ 963,174 $ 711,444
Work in process 170,711 170,480
Finished goods 127,609 142,894
Merchandise 4,320 7.826
Total $ 1,265,814 $ 1,032,644

Note:  As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the valuation gains (losses) of the borrowed
silver ingots were NT$(13,226) thousand and NT$11,182 thousand, respectively.

The costs of sales related to inventories in 2023 and 2022 were NT$3,118,576
thousand and NT$5,161,433 thousand, respectively. Cost of goods sold consisted of
NT$104,010 thousand and $(15,034) thousands of loss on decline in value of inventories
(reversal gain). The increase in the net realizable value of inventories is due to the
clearance of certain previously provided for slow-moving inventories.

The Consolidated Company has a contract with a raw material supplier to borrow
silver ingots for production, which is repayable in kind within one year plus interest. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Consolidated Company had NT$655,237 thousand and
NT$446,977 thousand, respectively, of silver ingots borrowed and outstanding, which were
recorded under inventory and financial liabilities (for hedging), respectively, and interest
expense was appropriately estimated.

No guarantee has been provided for the Consolidated Company’s inventory.
Subsidiaries
(1) Information on subsidiaries with significant non-controlling interests

Percentage of ownership interests
and voting rights held
in non-controlling interests
December 31, December 31,
Subsidiary name Main Business Location 2023 2022
Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Taiwan 65.97% 65.77%
Ltd.

The following aggregated financial information for each subsidiary has been

prepared using amounts before elimination of intercompany transactions:
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Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity

Equity attributable to:
Shareholders of the
company
Non-controlling interests
in Hua Hsu Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd.

Operating revenues

Net losses for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss

Net loss attributable to:
Shareholders of the
company
Non-controlling interests
in Hua Hsu Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd.

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Shareholders of the
company
Non-controlling interests
in Hua Hsu Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd.

Cash flow
Operating activities
Investment activities
Financing activities
Effect of exchange rate
changes
Net cash inflow (outflow)
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December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

$ 805,085

816,553
( 419,185)
(_107.312)
$1,095,141

$ 372,677

722,464
1,095,141

2023

$ 849,106
779,256

( 424,160)
(__ 156.150)
$ 1,048,052

$ 358,748

689.304
$ 1,048,052

2022

396,111
($ 381,253)

4,715

($_376,538)

($ 130,181)

(_ 251,072)
($_ 381,253)

($ 128,555)

(_ 247.983)
($_376,538)

($ 138,478)
( 226,423)
358,979

8.827

$ 2,905

$ 1,686,148

($  37,017)
( 2.656)
($_ 39,673)

($  12,671)

(_ 24.346)
($_ 37,017)

($  13,580)

(_ 26,093)
($_ 39,673)

($ 101,881)
( 303,628)
331,347

31.607
($_ 42,555)



12.

Investment using the equity method

(M

Investment in affiliates

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Associates of no materiality
Tron Energy Technology
Corporation $260,035 $432,523
ACRO Biomedical Co.
Ltd. 68,141 78,212
Tron Giga (Yancheng)
Energy Co., Ltd. 33.381 39.538
$361,557 $550,273
Percentage of ownership
interests and voting rights
held
Main Business December  December
Company name Business nature Location 31,2023 31,2022
Tron Energy Technology Electric buses, diesel Taoyuan City 10.40% 10.40%
Corporation buses/battery
systems/energy storage
systems
ACRO Biomedical Co. Ltd. Manufacturing and wholesale ~ Kaohsiung City 4.74% 7.81%
of medical devices
Tron Giga (Yancheng) Energy Battery module, battery pack  Yancheng City, 49% 49%
Co., Ltd. and battery component Jiangsu
assembly Province

Due to the provision of important technical information and serving as a
director of Tron Energy Technology Corporation, it is determined that the
Consolidated Company has significant influence on Tron Energy Technology
Corporation The goodwill of the company acquired is NT$293,538 thousand, which
is the cost of investing in affiliated enterprises.

The Consolidated Company invested in the stock in ACRO Biomedical Co. Ltd.
in March 2022 and estimated to make profits through long-term investment. Initially,
the Consolidated Company elected to designate the investment as at fair value
through other comprehensive income, but because the Company has served as a
corporate director of ACRO Biomedical Co., Ltd. since June 24, 2022 and, thus,
gained significant influence on the company. Therefore, the former adopted the
equity method to account for the investment.

The Consolidated Company sold a total of 1,101 thousand shares in ACRO
Biomedical Co. Ltd. from July to December 2023, resulting in an decrease in its
shareholding from 7.81% to 4.74%.

In 2023, the Consolidated Company assessed the investment in its associate,

Tron Energy Technology Corporation, which is accounted for using the equity
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13.

method. The Company's management has performed an impairment test on this
investment, comparing its carrying amount to the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of this investment was measured based on its value in use. The
value in use was calculated based on the estimated cash flows generated from the
associate's operations and the cash flows from the ultimate disposal of the investment,
discounted at an annual rate of 14.7% to determine the present value of the
Company's share. Based on the evaluation, as the recoverable amount was less than
the carrying amount, an impairment loss of NT$127,504 thousand was recognized.
This impairment loss has been included in the other gains and losses section of the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The aggregate financial information of the Consolidated Company’s
investments in the aforementioned affiliates, which are not material to the

Consolidated Company, based on their respective shares, is presented below:

2023 2022
Net losses from continuing
operations for this period ($ 53,617) ($ 30,646)
Other comprehensive income ( 17) 633
Total comprehensive income ($ 53,634) ($ 30,013)

No collateral was provided for the above investments in associates.

Property, plant and equipment

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Self-use $ 4,648,662 $4,419,104
Operating lease lease-out 4,024 12.976
$4,652,686 $4,432,080
(1) Self-use
Construction
in progress and
Houses and Machinery Office R&D Miscellaneous equipment to
Land buildings equipment equipment equipment equipment be inspected Total
Costs
Balance on January 1,
2023 $ 1,755,789 $ 1,247,768 $ 2,465,546 $ 11,872 $ 328,574 $ 164,973 $ 673,541 $ 6,648,063
Additions - 46,506 374,469 6,008 11,290 20,119 194,720 653,112
Disposal - ( 13,684) ( 53,669)  ( 225) ( 87,208) ( 6,187) - 160,973 )
Transfer - 9,063 151 - 782 8,977 ( 18,133) 840
Net exchange difference  ( 4.063) ( 18.564) ( 80.954) ( 103) - ( 1.784) 6290  ( 99.178)
Balance as of
December 31, 2023 $ 1,751,726 $ 1,271,089 $ 2,705,543 h 17,552 § 253438 $ 186,098 $ 856418 $ 7.041.864
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
Balance on January 1,
2023 $ - $ 295,806 $ 1,096,779 $ 8,369 $ 290,543 $ 93,249 $ 444213 $ 2,228,959
Depreciation expense - 87,379 166,611 1,845 14,654 19,727 - 290,216
Impairment losses - - 49,149 - - - 49,149
Disposal - ( 12,945) ( 44,423) ( 225)  ( 86,952) ( 6,183) - 150,728)
Transfer - 2,387 ( 2,028) - 422 - - 781
Net exchange difference - ( 4967) ( 26,982) ( 75) - ( 1.473) 8322 ( 25,175)
Balance as of
December 31, 2023 S - $ 367,660 $ 1,239,106 h 9914 $ 218,667 $ 105320 $ 452,535 $ 2,393,202
Net as of December
31,2023 $ 1,751,726 $ 903.429 $ 1,466,437 h 7.638 § 34771 $ 80778 $ 403,883 $ 4,648,662
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Costs
Balance as of January

1,2022 $ 977,979 $ 1,071,502 $ 2,355,406 $ 11,142 $ 320,640 $ 99,580 $ 885384 $ 5,721,633
Additions 697,585 128,400 152,906 2,892 8,728 69,738 91,365 1,151,614
Disposal - ( 13,387) ( 2,246) ( 4483) ( 4,534) ( 143,279) ( 167,929)
Transfer 80,000 33,999 ( 3,689) - 3,689 - 170911) ( 56,912)
Net exchange difference 225 13,867 ( 25,690) 84 - 189 10,982 ( 343)
Balance as of

December 31, 2022 $ 1,755,789 $ 1,247,768 $ 2,465,546 h 11,872 $§ 328,574 $ 164973 $ 673,541 $ 6,648,063

Accumulated
depreciation and

impairment

Balance as of January

1,2022 $ - $ 227,660 $ 960,013 $ 9,491 $ 276,442 $ 85420 $ 496,040 $ 2,055,066
Depreciation expense - 64,828 147,076 1,024 18,821 12,084 - 243,833
Impairment losses - - - - - - 45,079 45,079
Disposal - - 8,003) ( 2,210)  ( 4483) ( 4247) ( 104,748) ( 123,691)
Transfer - - 237 - 237) - - -
Net exchange difference - 3318 ( 2,544) 64 - ( 8) 7.842 8.672
Balance as of

December 31, 2022 S - $ 295.806 $ 1,096,779 h 8369 $ 290,543 § 93249 $ 444213 $ 2,228,959
Net amount as of

December 31, 2022 $ 1,755,789 $§ 951,962 $ 1,368,767 h 3,503 $ 38031 § 71724 $§ 229328 $ 4419.104

The Consolidated Company determined the recoverable amount of this
equipment at fair value less costs of disposal. The related fair value was determined
by the cost method, and the main assumptions include the evaluation of physical
wear and economic wear, which was a Level 3 fair value measurement.

In 2023, the Consolidated Company's management assessed that the future cash
inflows of the cutting equipment of Suzhou Giga Solar Materials Corporation were
reduced, resulting in the recoverable amount being lower than the carrying amount.
Consequently, the carrying amount of the machinery and equipment was written
down to the recoverable amount, and an impairment loss of NT$7,240 thousand was
recognized. The impairment loss was included in other gains and losses in the
consolidated comprehensive income statement. The Company determines the
recoverable amount based on the fair value less disposal cost.

The diamond line has been experiencing poor market sales, so the Consolidated
Company expects that the future economic benefits of the equipment used to produce
the specific product specifications will decrease. As a result, the recoverable amount
is less than the carrying amount, and the Company has recognized an impairment
loss of NT$41,909 thousand in 2023. The impairment loss was included in other
gains and losses in the consolidated comprehensive income statement.

In 2021, the Consolidated Company’s management assessed that the
recoverable amount of the solar plant in the Philippines was lower than the carrying
amount, so it wrote down the carrying amount of the relevant unfinished construction
to the estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss of NT$45,079 thousand
was recognized after the assessment. The impairment loss was included in other

gains and losses in the consolidated comprehensive income statement.
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Please refer to Note 33 for the amount of land and machinery provided as

collateral for borrowings.

Depreciation expense is provided on a straight-line basis over the following

useful lives:

Buildings

Plant buildings and
auxiliary equipment
Machinery equipment
Office equipment

R&D equipment
Miscellaneous equipment

Operating lease lease-out

Costs

Balance on January 1, 2023
Transfer

Balance as of December 31, 2023

Accumulated depreciation
Balance on January 1, 2023
Depreciation expense

Transfer

Balance as of December 31, 2023

Net as of December 31, 2023

Costs

Balance as of January 1, 2022
Additions

Balance as of December 31, 2022

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2022
Depreciation expense

Balance as of December 31, 2022

Net amount as of December 31, 2022

228

6 to 51 years
3 to 11 years

1 to 10 years
2 to 6 years
1 to 6 years
2 to 16 years

Houses and
buildings

$ 17,279
(_ 9.063)
$ 8216

$ 4,303
670

( 781)
$ 4,192

$ 4,024
$ 8216

9.063
$ 17,279

$ 2,851
1,452
$ 4,303

$ 12,976



The total amount of lease payments to be received in the future for leasing out
self-owned buildings under operating leases is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Year 1 $ 3,724 $ 4,054
Year 2 3,613 4,054
Year 3 3,613 4,062
Year 4 3,613 4,076
Year 5 3,613 4,076
Over 5 years 10,840 11,635

$ 29,016 $ 31,957

The buildings leased out by the Consolidated Company under operating leases

are depreciated over the useful life of 12 years.

14. Lease agreements

(1) Right-of-use assets

)

Book value of right-of-use
assets

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Land $ 81,454 $ 89,953

Buildings 71,739 191,809

Transportation equipment 231 459

$153.424 $282,221

2023 2022

Addition of right-of-use assets $ - $ 6,108

Depreciation expense of
right-of-use assets

Buildings $ 25,321 $ 29,316

Land 4,790 4,888

Transportation equipment 228 259

$ 30,339 $ 34,463

Lease liabilities

Book value of lease liabilities

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Current $ 22,827 $ 39,541
Non-current $ 81,622 $194,858

The discount rate range for lease liabilities is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Land 2.6% 2.60%
Buildings 1.35%~2.11% 1.35%~2.11%
Transportation equipment 1.47%~4.50% 1.35%~5.88%
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15.

3)

Q)

Important lease activities and terms

Some of the Consolidated Company’s real estate lease agreements include lease
extension options. In determining the lease period, the non-cancellable period of the
right to use the subject asset is combined with the period covered by the lease
extension option that is reasonably certain to be exercised by the Consolidated
Company. The use of these options allows for maximum flexibility in the operation
of management contracts. The majority of the lease extension options available are
exercisable by the Consolidated Company only. The Consolidated Company
re-evaluates the lease period when a material event or significant change in
circumstances occurs after the commencement date (that is within the control of the
lessee and affects whether the Consolidated Company can be reasonably certain that
it will exercise an option not previously included in the determination of the lease
period).
Information on other leases

Please refer to Notes 13 and 15 for the Consolidated Company’s agreements on
lease-out of its property, plant and equipment and investment property under

operating leases.

2023 2022
Short-term and low-value lease
expenses $ 17,122 $ 8,438
Total cash outflow from leases $ 48,997 $ 49,735

The Consolidated Company has elected to apply the exemption from
recognition to buildings and other equipment that qualify as short-term leases and
other equipment that qualifies as low-value asset leases and does not recognize the

related right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

Investment property

Investment property is the Consolidated Company’s own investment property. The

Consolidated Company enters into commercial property leases for its own investment

properties. The leases include provisions for annual rental adjustments based on market

conditions.
Land
Cost and net carrying amount
Balance as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 $ 35,733
2023 2022
Rental income from investment
property $ 1,164 $ 1,164
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The land purchased by the Consolidated Company is located in the Xuejia Section
and Zhongzhou Section of Tainan City. The land was used for the installation of solar
power plants. Because it is agricultural land, the land is registered in the name of an
individual with a land registration contract. The Consolidated Company is the right holder
for the setting.

No investment property of the Consolidated Company was provided as collateral.

The Consolidated Company does not measure its investment property at fair value,
but only discloses information about its fair value, which is in Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. The fair value of investment properties held by the Consolidated Company was
NT$54,656 thousand and NT$54,301 thousand as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. The aforementioned fair values were determined by using the cash flow
analysis method; the main input used was the discount rate; and the main inputs used and

their quantitative information are as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Discount rate 2.26% 2.19%
Intangible assets
Computer Technical Customer
Goodwill software royalty relationship Total
Costs
Balance on January 1,

2023 $ 368,104 $ 10,093 $ 58,343 $ 113,575 $ 550,115
Acquired separately - 2,750 850 - 3,600
Net exchange difference - ( 2) - - ( 2)
Balance as of December

31,2023 $ 368,104 $ 12,841 $ 59,193 $ 113,575 $ 553,713
Accumulated

amortization and

impairment
Balance on January 1,

2023 $ 32,495 $ 3,918 $ 57,511 $ 49216 $ 143,140
Amortization expenses - 1,976 1,052 11,357 14,385
Recognized impairment

losses 13,144 - - - 13,144
Balance as of December

31,2023 $ 45,639 $ 5,894 $ 58,563 $ 60,573 $ 170,669
Net as of December 31,

2023 $ 322465 $ 6,947 $ 630 $ 53,002 $ 383,044
Costs
Balance as of January 1,

2022 $ 368,104 $ 3,240 $ 57,143 $ 113,575 $ 542,062
Acquired separately - 6.853 1,200 - 8.053
Balance as of December

31,2022 $ 368,104 $ 10,093 $ 58,343 $ 113,575 $ 550,115
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Accumulated
amortization and

impairment
Balance as of January 1,

2022 $ 32,495 $ 2,896 $ 57,143 $ 37,859 $ 130,393
Amortization expenses - 1,022 368 11,357 12,747
Balance as of December

31,2022 $ 32495 $ 3,918 $ 57,511 $ 49216 $ 143,140
Net amount as of

December 31, 2022 $ 335,609 $ 6,175 $ 832 $ 64,359 $ 406975

Summary of amortization by function.

2023 2022
Administration expenses $ 14,385 $ 12,747

Amortization expense is provided on a straight-line basis over the following useful

lives:
Computer software 2-5 years
Technical royalty 10 years
Customer relationship 10 years

In accordance with IAS 36, the Consolidated Company’s goodwill of NT$276,703
thousand arising from the acquisition of EXOJET TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION in
2020 shall be tested for impairment at least annually.-

In 2023, the Company evaluated the recoverable amount based on the value in use,
and it was less than the carrying amount. Therefore, the Company recognized an
impairment loss on goodwill of NT$13,144 thousand under other gains and losses, and
the remaining goodwill balance after the recognition came in at NT$263,559 thousand.

The calculation of the value in use is based on the five-year financial projections
approved by the management. The projected cash flows consider the order growth rate
and the market growth scale. The weighted average revenue growth rate is consistent
with the industry report's forecasts. The budgeted gross profit margin is determined
based on the standard gross margin and production volume. A pre-tax discount rate of
13.4% has been used, which reflects the specific risks of the relevant operating

divisions.
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17. Prepayments and other assets

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Long-term prepaid expenses $267,125 $288,900
Prepayments for equipment 108,055 280,377
Prepayments for goods 92,290 163,013
Tax overpaid retained 78,263 33,731
Refundable deposits 71,894 44,666
Input tax 70,575 70,886
Pre-paid expenses 43,078 55,282
Others 39.835 20,297

$771,115 $957,152
Current $345,456 $362,530
Non-current 425,659 594,622

$771,115 $957,152

In 2022, the Consolidated Company recognized impairment losses of NT$39,231
thousand after management assessed the recoverable amount of prepayments to suppliers
for the solar power plant in the Philippines. The impairment losses have been included in
other gains and losses in the consolidated comprehensive income statement.

18. Borrowings
(1)  Short-term borrowings

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Secured borrowings
Bank borrowings (Note) $269,043 $163,210
Unsecured borrowings
Line of credit borrowings 252,601 103,000
Related party borrowings (Note

32) 10,125 -

$531,769 $266,210

Note: As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the amount of secured bank borrowings
that were discounted notes receivable were NT$25,214 thousand and
NT$40,211 thousand, respectively (See Note 9).

The effective annual interest rates of the above short-term borrowings as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 ranged from 1.83% to 6.00% and 1.20% to 7.32%,
respectively.

(2) Long-term borrowings

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Secured borrowings
Medium- and long-term bank $ 1,867,495 $1,514,131
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borrowings (Note 1)
Unsecured borrowings
Line of credit borrowing (Note

2) 52,898 133.691
Subtotal 1,920,393 1,647,822

Portion due within one year (__201,301) (__291.,304)
$1,719,092 $ 1,356,518

Note 1: The maturity date of the above-mentioned medium and long-term
borrowings is to be repaid in batches before the end of June 2028. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the interest rates were 1.50% to 2.96% and
1.50% to 3.03%, respectively.

Note 2: The maturity date of the above-mentioned medium and long-term
borrowings is to be repaid in batches before the end of July 2029. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the interest rates were 1.84% to 2.75% and
1.65% to 2.63%, respectively.

Note 3: For collaterals for long-term borrowings of the Consolidated Company,
please refer to Note 33.

Corporate bonds payable

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Domestic unsecured convertible
bonds $ - $339,700
Less: Discount on corporate bonds
payable - ( 294)
Less: portion classified as due within
one year - (_339.406)
$ - $ -

On January 25, 2018, the Company issued its 2nd domestic secured convertible bonds
with the following major terms:
(1) Face value: NT$100 thousand
(2) Issuing price: 100%
(3) Total face value of issue: NT$2,000,000 thousand.
(4) Coupon Rate 0%
(5) Bond period: 5 years (January 25, 2018 through January 25, 2023).
(6) Repayment method: Except for early conversion or reverse repurchase by
bondholders or early redemption by the Company, the Company will repay the bonds

in cash at the face value of the bonds upon maturity.
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®)

€))

Redemption right of the corporate bonds: If the closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares exceeds the prevailing conversion price by 30% (inclusive) or more
for 30 consecutive business days from the day after the first month of issuance until
the 40th day after the end of the issuance period, or if the outstanding balance of the
bonds is less than 10% of the original issue amount, the Consolidated Company may
redeem the outstanding bonds at face value in cash.

Redemption right of bondholders: The benchmark date for the redemption of the

convertible corporate bonds by bondholders is three years after the issuance (January

25, 2021). Bondholders can request the Company to redeem 103.80% of the face

value of the bonds in cash and request the Taipei Exchange via letter to announce the

exercise of the redemption right of the convertible corporate bondholders 30 days

before the benchmark date for the redemption (December 26, 2020).

Conversion:

1.  Bondholders may, from the day after the expiration of one month after the
issuance date to 10 days before the expiration date, apply to the Company for
conversion into its ordinary shares in accordance with the provisions of
relevant laws and regulations. As of December 31, 2023, bondholders have
requested the conversion of a total of one lot of corporate bonds with a face
value of NT$100 thousand, and requested the conversion into 432 ordinary
shares of the Company. The capital increase benchmark date was May 14, 2021
and the change registration was completed on June 11, 2021.

2. Conversion price: the conversion price at issuance was set at NT$253.31 per
share.

3. Adjustment to conversion price
(1) After the issuance of corporate bonds, the conversion price shall be

adjusted when the number of issued (or private placement) ordinary
shares of the Company increases (including, but not limited to, rights
shares, capital increase from earnings, capital increase from capital
surplus, issuance of new shares for merger or for acquiring shares of
other companies, stock split and rights shares to sponsor the issuance of
overseas depositary receipts, by way of subscription or private
placement), except for the conversion of ordinary shares by issuing

various marketable securities with conversion options of ordinary shares.
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)

3)

Q)

If the ratio of cash dividends to the current price per share exceeds 1.5%,
the conversion price shall be reduced by the ratio of the current price per
share on the ex-dividends date after the bonds are issued.

If, after the issuance of this convertible bond, the Company reissues (or
private placement) various securities with conversion or subscription
rights to ordinary shares at a conversion or subscription price lower than
the current price per share, the Company shall adjust the conversion
price.

After the issuance of the convertible bonds, the Company shall adjust the
conversion price in the event of a reduction in the number of shares of
common stock due to a capital reduction other than the retirement of

treasury stock.

Giga Solar Materials Corporation repurchased or redeemed corporate bonds on

the open market according to the market price or by executing the put option of

the bondholders. As of December 31, 2023, a total of 20,000 corporate bond

certificates were repurchased or redeemed, with a face value of NT$2,000,000

thousand. Giga Solar Materials Corporation apportioned the repurchase or

redemption price to the liability component and the equity component and

apportioned the difference between the amount of the liability component and

its book value.

Other payables and other liabilities

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Other payables

Salaries and bonuses payable $ 69,316 $ 69,910
Payable on machinery and

equipment 67,850 90,374
Premiums payable 10,235 10,237
Business tax payable 2,879 17,244
Others 127.310 157.524
$277,590 $345,289

Other liabilities
Contract liabilities $ 18,076 $ 3,023
Provision for liabilities 13,549 -
Refund liabilities 11,943 26,795
Others 6,507 11,278
$ 50,075 $ 41,096

(Continued on next page)
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December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Non-current
Tariffs payable $ 1,364 $ -

Post-employment benefit plan

(M

)

Defined contribution plan

The pension system of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries in the
Consolidated Company under the “Labor Pension Act” is a government-administered
defined contribution pension plan with contributes 6% of employees’ monthly
salaries contributed to the personal accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance.

In accordance with local government regulations, subsidiaries in Mainland
China contribute a certain percentage of employees’ salaries to the pension insurance
fund, which is paid to the relevant government departments and deposited in separate
account for each employee.

The Consolidated Company’s other foreign subsidiaries contribute pension
funds to the related pension management business in accordance with local laws and
regulations.

Defined benefit plan

The pension system of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries in the
Consolidated  Company under the “Labor Standards Act” is a
government-administered defined benefit pension plan. The employee’s pension is
calculated based on the bases of years of service and the average monthly salary at
the time of approval of retirement. Two bases are granted for each year of service up
to (including) 15 years, and one base is granted for each year of service over 15 years,
subject to a maximum accumulation of 45 bases. The companies appropriate 2% of
employees’ monthly salaries to pension funds, which is deposited by the Supervisory
Committee of Labor Retirement Reserve in the name of the Committee into a special
account at the Bank of Taiwan. Before the end of the year, if the balance in the
special account is estimated to be insufficient to pay for employees who are expected
to meet the retirement requirements in the following year, the difference will be
made up in one lump sum by the end of March of the following year. The

management of the special account is entrusted to the Bureau of Labor Funds, the
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Ministry of Labor. The Consolidated Company has no right to influence the

investment management strategy.

The amounts included in the consolidated balance sheets for defined benefit

plan are shown below:

December 31, 2023

Present value of defined benefit

obligations
Fair value of plan assets
Net defined benefit liabilities

December 31, 2022

The changes in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

January 1, 2022
Financial costs
Interest expense
(income)
Recognized in profit or loss
Remeasurement
Actuarial (gains) losses
- Actuarial gains
and losses from
changes in
demographic
assumptions
- Changes in
financial
assumptions
- Adjustments
through
experiences
- Remeasurement
of defined benefit
assets
Recognized in other
comprehensive income
Settlement of subsidiaries’
defined benefit obligations
Employer appropriation
December 31, 2022
Service costs
Cost of service for the
year
Financial costs
Interest expense
(income)
Recognized in profit or loss

(Continued on next page)

$ 33,203 $ 26,998
(__10,192) ( 9.354)
$ 23,011 $ 17,644
Present value of
defined benefit Fair value of plan Net defined
obligations assets benefit liabilities
$ 35.629 ($ 9.129) $ 26,500
284 ( 66) 218
284 ( 66) 218
1 - 1
( 7,960) - ( 7,960)
110 - 110
- (_ 567) (_____ 567)
(. 7.849) (___ 567) (____ 38.4l16)
(_ 1.066) L7 51
- - ( 709) (_______709)
26,998 ( 9.354) 17,644
166 - 166
. 3% (_ 135) 254
55 (_ 135) 420

238



(Continued from previous page)

Remeasurement

Actuarial (gains) losses
- Actuarial gains
and losses from

changes in
demographic
assumptions 59 - 59
- Changes in
financial
assumptions 5,007 - 5,007
- Adjustments
through
experiences 584 - 584
- Remeasurement
of defined benefit
assets - ( 19) ( 19)
Recognized in other
comprehensive
income 5,650 ( 19) 5,631
Employer appropriation - ( 684) ( 684)
December 31, 2023 $ 33,203 ($ 10,192) $ 23,011

The Consolidated Company is exposed to the following risks as a result of the

pension system under the “Labor Standards Act:”

1.

Investment risk: the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor invests the
labor pension fund in domestic and foreign equity securities, debt securities
and bank deposits through its own management or entrusted third parties, but
the amount allocated to the Consolidated Company’s plan assets is based on the
income at a rate no less than the local bank’s 2-year time deposit rate.

Interest rate risk: A decrease in interest rates on government bonds will
increase the present value of the defined benefit obligation, but the return on
debt investment in plan assets will also increase, which will have a partially
offsetting effect on the net defined benefit obligation.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by
reference to the future salary of the plan member. Therefore, increases in plan
member’s salary will result in an increase in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation.

The present value of the Consolidated Company’s defined benefit obligation

was actuarially determined by a qualified actuary and the significant assumptions at

the measurement date were as follows.
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December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Discount rate 1.33%~1.64% 1.44%
Expected rate of salary increase 2.29%~3.00% 2.00%

The amount by which the present value of the defined benefit obligation would
increase (decrease) if there are reasonable possible changes in significant actuarial

assumptions, with all other assumptions held constant, is as follows

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Discount rate
Increase by 0.5% ($ 2.421) ($_1,925)
Decrease by 0.5% $ 2,630 $ 2246
Expected rate of salary increase
Increase by 0.5% $ 2,574 $ 2,222
Decrease by 0.5% ($_2,395) ($_1,924)

The sensitivity analysis above may not reflect actual changes in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation because the actuarial assumptions may be

correlated and changes in only one assumption are not feasible.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Amount expected to be
appropriated within 1 year $ 687 $ 708
Average duration to maturity of
defined benefit obligation 15 - 36 years 15 years
22.  Equity
(1) Capital stock
1. Ordinary shares
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Authorized number of
shares (in thousands) 150,000 100,000
Authorized capital stock $ 1,500,000 $ 1,000,000
Number of shares issued
and fully paid (in
thousands) 91,883 91,883
Ordinary shares publicly
offered $ 791,974 $ 791,974
Ordinary shares in private
placement 126,860 126,860
Capital stock issued $ 918,834 $ 918,834

The issued ordinary shares has a face value of NT$10 per share and each

share is entitled to one voting right and receiving dividends.
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On May 13, 2022, the Company’s board of directors approved by
resolution the issuance of no more than 16,000,000 new shares for a capital
increase, with a par value of NT$10 per share, and the Company reserved 15%
of the total number of new shares issued for subscription by employees and
provided 10% of the new shares for public underwriting by public subscription.
This capital increase plan took effect on July 21, 2022 as approved by the
competent authority. The capital for the shares has all been received and the
registration of the change was completed on October 3, 2022.

The securities in the above private placement should not be resold to other
parties except for the transferees specified in the Securities and Exchange Act
within three years from the date of delivery.

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company’s
ordinary shares in the private placement above are subject to the restriction on
circulation and transfer and can only be listed on Taipei Exchange after three
years from the delivery date with the retro-active procedures for public offering
completed. The rights and obligations of the ordinary shares in the private
placement are the same as those of the Company’s ordinary shares issued.

(2) Capital surplus

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

For loss compensation,

payment in cash or

capitalization as equity (1)
Stock issuance premium $4,889,701 $ 4,889,701
Invalid employee stock options 5,988 5,988
Common stock premium —

options 25,879 25,879
Corporate bond conversion

premium $ 59,721 $ 59,721
Treasury share transactions 315,134 315,134
Differences between equity

price and carrying amount

arising from actual

acquisition or disposal of

subsidiaries 75,434 79,551
Expiration of corporate bond

options 20,364 -

(Continued on next page)
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(Continued from previous page)

3)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Only for loss compensation
Recognition of changes in

ownership interest in

subsidiaries (2) 15,122 -
Changes in net equity of

associates accounted for

using the equity method 39,158 25,648
Not for any purpose
Corporate bond options - 20,364
$ 5,446,501 $5,421,986
1. Such capital surplus may be used to compensate for losses or, when the

Company has no losses, to distribute cash or to capitalize equity, provided that
the capitalization is limited to a certain percentage of the paid-in capital each
year.

2. This type of capital surplus represents the effect of equity transactions
recognized for changes in the Company’s equity when the Company has not
actually acquired or disposed of ownership interest in the subsidiary.

Retained earnings and dividend policy

In accordance with the Company’s earnings distribution policy as stipulated in
the Articles of Association, if there is any net earnings in the Company’s annual final
accounts, the Company shall first pay tax, make up for accumulated losses and then
set aside 10% as legal reserve in accordance with the law. If the accumulated legal
reserve has reached the Company’s paid-in capital, the Company may no longer set
aside legal reserve. The remainder shall be set aside and reversed from special
reserve as provided by law or by the competent authority. If there are still remaining
earnings, the board of directors shall prepare a proposal for distribution of the
remainder together with the accumulated unappropriated earnings as dividends to
shareholders and submit it to the shareholders’ meeting for resolution on the

distribution. The shareholder’s bonus shall not be less than 30%.

The Company is currently growing. As a means to keep in line with the capital
planning and meet the shareholders’ demand for cash flow, the percentage of cash
dividends paid for the year may not be less than 10% of the total amount of cash and

stock dividends.
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Please refer to Note 24(7) Employee and director remuneration for the
Company’s policy on employee and director remuneration distribution under the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The legal reserve should be appropriated until the balance reaches the
Company’s total paid-in capital. Legal reserve may be used to make up for losses. If
the Company has no losses, the excess of legal reserve over 25% of the paid-in
capital may be distributed in cash in addition to capitalization as equity.

The Company specified that when the special reserve is allocated from the net
deduction of other equity accumulated in the previous period, if the undistributed
surplus in the previous period is insufficient to allocate, the after-tax net profit plus
items other than the after-tax net profit of the current period will be added into the
undistributed surplus of the current period for the allocation.

The earnings distribution proposals for 2022 and 2021 approved at the general
shareholders’ meeting of the Company on June 9, 2023 and June 9, 2022 are as

follows:
2022 2021

Unappropriated earnings at the

beginning of the year $ 948,680 $ 1,119,295
Remeasurement of defined benefit

plan 8,416 2,276

Net losses for the year ( 495,153) ( 375,458)
Disposal of equity instruments at

fair value through other

comprehensive income 676 35,484
Recognition of changes in

ownership interest in subsidiaries ( 22,457) -
Reversal (appropriation) of special

reserve in accordance with the

law (___139.,723) 167,083
Unappropriated earnings at the end

of the year $ 300,439 $ 948,680

The loss compensation proposal for 2023 as proposed by the board meeting on

March 28, 2024 is as follows:

2023

Unappropriated earnings at the beginning of the year $300,439
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (  5,631)
Net losses for 2023 ( 810,576)
Disposal of equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income 884
Loss compensation from legal reserve 514,884
Unappropriated earnings at the end of the year $ -
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The loss compensation proposal for 2023 is pending the resolution of the
shareholders’ meeting scheduled to be held on June 7, 2024.

At the end of 2023, the Company's loss to be compensated exceeded 1/2 of the
paid-in capital. According to Article 211 of the Company Act, the Board of Directors
shall report at the next shareholders' meeting. Report of the Company's shareholders'
meeting expected to be held on June 7, 2024.

Other equity items
1. Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of foreign
operations

2023 2022

Balance at the beginning of
the year ($191,987) ($214,195)
Generated in the year
Translation differences
on translation of
foreign operations ( 28,229) 15,491
Reclassification
Share of disposal of
associates accounted
for using the equity

method ( 74) -
Disposal of foreign
operations - 6,590
Others 859 -
Acquisition of partial interest
in a subsidiary (Note 28) ( 104) -
Changes in ownership interest
in subsidiaries (Note 28) 161 127
Balance at the end of the year ($219,374) ($191,987)

2. Unrealized valuation gains or losses on financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

2023 2022

Balance at the beginning of

the year $ 37,143 $199,074
Generated in the year

Unrealized gain or loss
Equity instruments ( 129,350) ( 161,255)

Transfer of accumulated gain

or loss on disposal of

equity instruments to

retained earnings ( 884) ( 676)
Balance at the end of the year ($ 93,091) $ 37,143
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(5) Non-controlling interests

Balance at the beginning of the year
Net losses for the year
Other comprehensive income for
this year
Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of foreign
operations
Unrealized gains or losses on
financial assets measured at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
Tax effects of other comprehensive
income
Subsidiary share based payment
Changes in ownership interest in
subsidiaries (Note 28)
Balance at the end of the year

23. Revenue

(1

()

Description of Customer Contract

2023

$943,613

( 392,278)

1,888

3,695

(  378)
16,828

265,557
$838,925

2022

$601,464
( 76,878)

1,404

1,201

( 282)
16,586

400,118
$943.613

Revenue recognition for the Consolidated Company is recognized at a point in

time. Information on revenue from customer contracts is as follows:

2022

(M

$ 5,434,062
220,783
$ 5,654,845

2022

2023
Revenue from customer contracts
Merchandise sales revenues $2,733,895
Other operating revenues 224,516
2,958,411
Breakdown of revenue from customer contracts
Product type 2023
Revenues from sales of conductive
paste $2,373,224
Silicon materials for solar energy 266,736
Revenues from sales of electricity 224,516
Others 93,935
2,958,411
24. Net losses from continuing operations
Interest income
2023
Bank deposits $ 43,179
Other interest income 53
43232

245

$ 3,388,592
1,419,889
220,783

_ 625,581

$ 5,654,845

2022

$ 8,294
398
8,692
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4

Other income

Rental income

Investment property (Note 15)

Others
Dividends income
Government subsidies
Others

Other gains and losses

Gain on disposal of investment

Leasehold modification gain

Net gain (loss) on disposal and
scrapping of property, plant
and equipment

Net gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Net foreign currency exchange
gain (loss)

Impairment loss on
non-financial assets

Miscellaneous expenses

Financial costs

Interest on Bank Borrowings

Interest on borrowed silver
ingots

Interest on lease liabilities

Interest on borrowings from
related parties

Amortization of discount on
corporate bonds payable

Other interest expenses
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2023

$ 1,164
9,816
12,718
641
29.401

$ 53,740

2023

2022

$ 20,939
3,109

802

693

( 17,326)
( 189,797)

(_ 16,263)
($197,843)

2023

$ 1,164
15,085
1,823

34.869
52,941

2022

§ 42,838

6,439
2,822
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52,652

$ -
111

( 6,090)
10,886

( 3,165)
124,556

( 84,310)

(_ 80.389)
($ 38,401)

2022

$ 52,549

9,159
4,156

4,348
17

$ 70,229



(5) Depreciation and amortization

2023 2022
Summary of depreciation by
function.
Operating costs $221,754 $176,962
Operating expenses 99.471 102,786
$321,225 $279,748
Summary of amortization by
function. (Note)
Operating expenses $ 14,404 $ 12,910

Note: Including the amortization of other non-current assets.
Please refer to Note 16 for the information on the amortization of
intangible assets allocated to each single item.

(6) Employee benefit expenses

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits $397,916 $368,153
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan 11,447 10,129
Defined benefit plan 420 218
Share-based payments
Settlement of interests 24,891 49,404
Other employee benefits 27,005 21,147
Total employee benefit
expenses $461,679 $449,051
Summary by function.
Operating costs $179,238 $163,566
Operating expenses 282.441 285.485
$461,679 $449.051

(7) Remuneration for employees and directors
According to the Articles of Incorporation, if the Company makes a profit for a
year, it should first provide no less than 6% and no greater than 15% of the profit as
employee remuneration and no greater than 3% as director remuneration. However,
accumulated losses, if any, of the Company shall first be deducted and distribution

shall be made from the remaining balance.
In 2023, no remuneration for employees and directors was estimated due to a

loss.
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If there is a change in the amount of the consolidated financial statements after
the date of its issuance, the amount is adjusted in the following year in accordance
with the rules related to changes in accounting estimates.

In 2022 and 2021, no remuneration for employees and directors was estimated
due to a loss.

Please refer to the “Market Observation Post System” of the Taiwan Stock
Exchange for information on the remuneration for employees and directors resolved
by the board of directors of the Company.

25. Income taxes from continuing operations

(1) Income tax recognized in profit or loss

The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

2023 2022
Current income tax
Generated in the year ($ 33,313) ($ 39,032)
Adjustments for prior years 482 (__5.,021)
( 32,831) ( 44,053)
Deferred tax
Adjustments for prior years 3.779 (__11.236)
Income tax expense recognized
in profit or loss ($ 29.052) ($ 55.289)

The reconciliation of accounting income to income tax expense is as follows:

2023 2022

Net losses before tax from

continuing operations ($1,173,802) ($_516,742)

Income tax benefit of net loss
before tax calculated at the

statutory tax rate $ 312,884 $ 120,866
Tax exempted income ( 55) 404
Non-deductible expenses due to

tax purposes ( 68,154) ( 66,618)

Unrecognized loss carryforwards
and deductible temporary

differences ( 274,038) ( 104,759)
Adjustments to current income
tax expenses of previous years 482 ( 5,021)
Others ( 171) ( 161)
($_ 29,052) (§__ 55.289)
(2) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income
2023 2022
Deferred tax
Translation of foreign
operations $ 5,287 ($ 4,358)
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3)

Q)

Current income tax assets and liabilities

Current income tax assets
Tax refund receivable

Current income tax liabilities
Income tax payable

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

$ 9,656

$ 17,709

$ 19,112

$ 10,389

The changes in deferred tax assets were as follows:

Balance at the
beginning of the
year

Recognized in
profit or loss

Recognized in
other
comprehensive Balance at the
income (loss) end of the year

2023
Temporary difference

Allowance for

doubtful accounts

in excess of limit $ 35,572
Impairment of bond

investments

without active

markets 17,644
Investment accounted

for using the

equity method ( 36,970)
Impairment losses -
Unrealized

inter-company

transactions

between entities 3,550
Fair value

adjustments

resulting from

business merger 695
Allowance for a

decline in value of

inventories and

slow moving

losses $ 4,931
Unrealized exchange

gain and loss ( 10,354)
Exchange differences

on translation of

financial

statements of

foreign operations 53,815
Unused tax losses 64,364

(

(

(

$

996

1,433)
28,130

294)

8,665

32.285)

$ - $ 36,568

- 17,644

- 38,403)

; 28,130

; 3,550

- 695

$ - $ 4,637

- 1,689 )

5,287 59,102
) 32,079

Deferred income tax
(expense) income
Deferred tax assets $ 133,247
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2022
Temporary difference
Allowance for
doubtful accounts
in excess of limit
Impairment of bond
mvestments
without active
markets
Investment accounted
for using the
equity method
Unrealized
inter-company
transactions
between entities
Fair value
adjustments
resulting from
business merger
Net defined benefit
liabilities —
non-current
Allowance for a
decline in value of
mventories and
slow moving
losses
Unrealized exchange
gain and loss
Exchange differences
on translation of
financial
statements of
foreign operations
Unused tax losses
Investment tax credit
Deferred income tax
(expense) income
Deferred tax assets

Information expressed in
the balance sheet is as
follows.

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax
liabilities

Recognized in

Balance at the other
beginning of the  Recognized in ~ comprehensive Balance at the
year profits (losses) income end of the year
$ 35,257 $ 315 $ - $ 35,572
17,644 - - 17,644
( 29,803) ( 7,167) - ( 36,970)
3,550 - - 3,550
695 - - 695
( 153) 153 - -
6,306 ( 1,375) - 4,931
3,458 ( 13,812) - ( 10,354)
58,173 - ( 4,358) 53,815
46,692 17,672 - 64,364
7,022 ( 7,022) - -
(3 11,236) ($ 4,358)
$ 148,841 $ 133,247
$ 179.197 $ 172,677
$ 30,356 $ 39,430
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26.

(5) Deductible temporary differences and unused loss carryforwards for deferred tax

assets not recognized in consolidated balance sheets

Loss carryforwards
Expires in 2024
Expires in 2025
Expires in 2026
Expires in 2027
Expires in 2028
Expires in 2029
Expires in 2030
Expires in 2031
Expires in 2032
Expires in 2033

Deductible temporary
difference

December 31, 2023

$ 22,337
11,419
19,726
47,212
48,874
33,004
28,870

219,666
327,490
513.204

$ 1,271,802

$ 424,639

December 31, 2022

$ 22,337
11,419
19,726
47,212
48,874
33,004
28,870

219,666
327,490

$ 758,598

$ 261,779

(6) Total amount of temporary differences related to investments for which no deferred

income tax liabilities were recognized

No deferred tax liability has been recognized for the income tax payable on the

unappropriated earnings of foreign subsidiaries that may arise upon their repatriation.

The Company has decided not to distribute the unappropriated earnings of its

subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the

amount of taxable temporary differences not recognized as deferred tax liabilities

was NT$28,007 thousand and NT$37,057 thousand, respectively.

(7) The status of income tax assessment

The Company’s income tax returns have been assessed by the tax authorities up

to 2021.

Net loss per share

Basic loss per share
Diluted loss per share
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(S 8.82)
(S 8.82)

Unit: NTD per share
2022

(8__6.14)
(8__6.14)



27.

The net losses and weighted-average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of loss per share are as follows:

Net losses for the year

2023 2022
Net losses attributable to
shareholders of the company ($810,576) ($495,153)
Net losses used to calculate diluted
loss per share ($810,576) ($495,153)
Number of shares: Thousand shares
2023 2022

Weighted-average number of
ordinary shares used in the
calculation of basic loss per share 91,883 80,662
Impact of potential ordinary shares
with dilutive effect:
Remuneration for employees - -
Weighted-average number of
ordinary shares used in the
calculation of diluted loss per
share 91,883 80,662
If the Consolidated Company may choose to pay employees’ remuneration in shares
or cash, when calculating the diluted loss per share, it is assumed that the employees’
remuneration will be issued in shares, and when the potential ordinary shares have a
dilutive effect, they will be included in the weighted average number of outstanding shares
for the calculation of the diluted loss per share. The dilutive effect of these potential
ordinary shares will also continue to be considered in the calculation of diluted loss per
share before the resolution on the number of shares awarded to employees in the following

year.

Share-based payment agreement

(1) Employee stock options program
On December 16, 2021, Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. decided to issue
rights shares through the resolution of the board meeting, and reserved 15% of the
total amount of new shares to be subscribed by the Company and its employees.
After being granted the employee stock option certificates, the certificate holders
may immediately exercise the share subscription in accordance with the regulations
on the issuance and subscription of employee stock option certificates, and the date

of grant was January 24, 2022.
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For the above Black-Scholes valuation model for the employee stock options

granted, the inputs used in the valuation model were as follows:

January 2022
Share price on the grant date NT$22.62
Exercise price NT$20.00
Expected volatility 3.85%
Duration 0.17 years
Expected rate of dividend -
Risk-free interest rate 1.1833%
Fair value of stock options NT$2.62

granted

In the Black Scholes valuation model, the expected volatility is the share price
in the sample range of the most recent period equivalent to the expected duration of
the stock option, and is estimated by the standard deviation of the stock return in that
period.

From January 1 to December 31, 2022, the Consolidated Company recognized
remuneration costs of NT$3,867 thousand for the subsidiary’s employee stock
options program.

On May 13, 2022, the Company decided to issue rights shares through the
resolution of the board meeting, and reserved 15% of the total amount of new shares
to be subscribed by employees. After being granted the employee stock option
certificates, the certificate holders may immediately exercise the share subscription
in accordance with the regulations on the issuance and subscription of employee
stock option certificates and the date of the grant was September 7, 2022.

For the above Black-Scholes valuation model for the employee stock options

granted, the inputs used in the valuation model were as follows:

September 2022
Share price on the grant date NT$128.5
Exercise price NTS$115
Expected volatility 3%
Duration 0.18 years
Expected rate of dividend -
Risk-free interest rate 1.4%
Fair value of stock options NT$13.6
granted

In the Black Scholes valuation model, the expected volatility is the share price

in the sample range of the most recent period equivalent to the expected duration of
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the stock option, and is estimated by the standard deviation of the stock return in that
period.

From January 1 to December 31, 2022, the Consolidated Company recognized
remuneration costs of NT$25,138 thousand for the employee stock options program.

On May 2, 2023, Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. decided to issue rights
shares through the resolution of the board meeting, and reserved 10% of the total
amount of new shares to be subscribed by the Company and its employees. After
being granted the employee stock option certificates, the certificate holders may
immediately exercise the share subscription in accordance with the regulations on the
issuance and subscription of employee stock option certificates, and the date of grant
was June 1, 2023.

For the above Black-Scholes valuation model for the employee stock options

granted, the inputs used in the valuation model were as follows:

June 2023
Share price on the grant date NT$20.11
Exercise price NT$20.00
Expected volatility 2.27%
Duration 0.07 years
Expected rate of dividend -
Risk-free interest rate 1.1695%
Fair value of stock options NT$0.11
granted

In the Black Scholes valuation model, the expected volatility is the share price
in the sample range of the most recent period equivalent to the expected duration of
the stock option, and is estimated by the standard deviation of the stock return in that
period.

From January 1 to December 31, 2023, the Consolidated Company recognized
remuneration costs of NT$76 thousand for the subsidiary’s employee stock options
program.

Restricted stock awards

The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
decided on October 29, 2021 to issue new shares with restricted employee rights,
with a total amount of NT$20,000 thousand. The above resolution has taken effect
after being filed with the FSC on June 9, 2022. The board of directors of Hua Hsu
Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. approved the issuance of restricted stock awards on June

17, 2022 in the total amount of NT$20,000 thousand. The par value per share is
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28.

NTS$10, totaling 2,000,000 shares and the issue price per share is NT$0 (that is, stock
dividends). The grant date and issue date was June 17, 2022, and the fair value of the
stock on the grant date was NT$29.47.

From January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Consolidated Company
recognized remuneration costs of NT$24,815 thousand and NT$20,399 thousand,
respectively, for the subsidiary’s restricted stock awards program.

Equity transactions with non- controlling interests

The Consolidated Company did not subscribe to the rights shares of subsidiary Hua
Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. in proportion to its shareholding on February 23, 2022,
resulting in the shareholding increasing from 32.05% to 34.69%.

Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., issued restricted stock awards on July 31, 2022,
causing the Consolidated Company’s shareholding to decrease from 34.69% to 34.01%.

The Consolidated Company failed to reduce the capital of the subsidiary Merchant
Energy on October 28, 2022 by US$1.7 million in proportion to its shareholding, resulting
in a decrease in the Consolidated Company’s shareholding from 87.65% to 87.00%.

On November 23, 2022, the Consolidated Company failed to subscribe for the cash
capital increase of its subsidiary Green Energy Electrode Inc. in proportion to its
shareholding, resulting in an increase in its shareholding from 48.39% to 52.81%.

The Consolidated Company purchased a total of 222,000 shares in Hua Hsu Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. between October 2022 to December 2022, resulting in an increase in
the consolidated shareholding from 34.01% to 34.23%.

The Consolidated Company purchased a total of 375,000 shares in Hua Hsu Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. between January 2023 and June 2023, resulting in an increase in its
shareholding from 34.23% to 34.59%.

The Consolidated Company did not subscribe to the rights shares of subsidiary Hua
Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. in proportion to its shareholding on June 29, 2023,
resulting in the shareholding ratio decreasing from 35.31% to 34.00%.

Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., issued restricted stock awards on August 10,
2023, causing the Consolidated Company’s shareholding to increase from 34.00% to
34.03%.

Since the above transactions did not change the Consolidated Company’s control over

said subsidiaries, the Consolidated Company treated them as equity transactions.
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January 1 to December 31, 2023

Subsidiary Hua
Hsu Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd.

Consideration received $268,556
The carrying amount of the subsidiary's net assets that
should be transferred to non-controlling interests based
on the relative changes in equity. ( 265,557)
Adjustments to other equity items attributed to
shareholders of the Company
- Exchange differences on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations ( 57)
Equity transaction differences $ 2942
Adjustment account of equity transaction differences
Capital surplus — Differences between equity price and
carrying amount arising from acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries (8 4.117)
Capital surplus — Recognition of changes in ownership
interest in subsidiaries $ 7,059
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022
Subsidiary Hua
Hsu Silicon Subsidiary Subsidiary
Materials Co., Green Energy Merchant
Ltd. Electrode Inc. Energy
Consideration received § 214,408 $ 117,695 $ -
The carrying amount of the
subsidiary’s net assets that
should be transferred out from
or into non-controlling
interests based on the relative
changes in equity. ( 247,728) ( 158,090) 5,700
Adjustments to other equity
items attributed to
shareholders of the Company
- Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of foreign
operations 571 121 ( 819)
Equity transaction differences (% 32,749) ($  40,274) $ 4,881
Subsidiary Hua Subsidiary
Hsu Silicon Subsidiary Merchant
Adjustment account of equity Materials Co., Green Energy Energy
transaction differences Ltd. Electrode Inc. Total
Capital surplus — recognition of
changes in ownership
interest in subsidiaries (3 32,749) (§__ 40.274) $ 4,881 ($ 68,142)
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29.

30.

31.

Information on cash flow

(1) Changes in liabilities from financing activities

January 1 to December 31, 2023

Non-Cash Changes
Interest expense

and
Leasehold amortization of Exchange rate December 31,
January 1, 2023 Cash flow Reduce lease modification discount changes 2023

Short-term borrowings $ 266,210 $ 271,252 $ - $ - $ - (s 5,693 ) $ 531,769
Long-term borrowings 1,647,822 334,799 - - - ( 62,228 ) 1,920,393
Deposits received 43,715 ( 2,131) - - - - 41,584
Corporate bonds payable 339,406 ( 339,406 ) - - - - -
Lease liabilities 234.399 ( 29,053 ) ( 97.858 ) - - ( 3.039) 104.449

$2.531,552 $§ 235461 (S 97.858) h - b - (S 70,960) $2,598,195
January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

Non-Cash Changes
Interest expense
and
Leasehold amortization of Exchange rate December 31,
January 1, 2022 Cash flow New lease modification discount changes 2022

Short-term borrowings $ 1,562,100 (1 $1,300,493 ) $ - $ - $ - $ 4,603 $ 266,210
Long-term borrowings 1,900,352 ( 217,512) - - - ( 35,018 ) 1,647,822
Deposits received 43,545 170 - - - - 43,715
Corporate bonds payable 335,058 - - - 4,348 - 339,406
Lease liabilities 266.316 ( 37.141) 6.108 ( 3.577) 2.693 234,399

$4,107.371 ($1.,554,976 ) M 6,108 (s 3,577) M 4,348 (8 _27.722) $2,531,552

Capital risk management

The Consolidated Company conducts capital management to ensure that the Group’s
enterprises are able to maximize shareholder returns by optimizing debt and equity
balances while continuing to operate. There were no significant changes in the
Consolidated Company’s overall strategy.

The Consolidated Company’s capital structure consists of net debt (i.e. borrowings
less cash) and equity (i.e. capital stock, capital surplus, retained earnings, other equity
items and non-controlling interests).

Financial instruments

(1) Fair value information — financial instruments not measured at fair value

December 31, 2022

Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
- Convertible corporate
bonds $339.406 $339360 §$ - 3 - $339,360

(2) Fair value information — financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring

basis

257



The Consolidated Company does not have assets that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis. The fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a recurring basis is presented below:

1. Fair value hierarchy.

December 31, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss
Funds $ 1,083 $ - $ 33,170 $ 34253

Financial assets measured
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income
Investment in equity
instruments $ 48,120 $ 127,200 $ 159,101 $ 334421

December 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss
Funds $ 882 $ - $ 32678 $ 33,560

Financial assets measured
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income
Investment in equity
instruments $ 85,849 $ 215,160 $ 67,679 $ 368,688

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements during 2023 and 2022.

2. Reconciliation of financial instruments measured at fair value in Level 3

2023
Assets
Measured at fair
Measured at fair value through other
value through profit comprehensive
or loss income

Balance at the beginning of

the year $ 32,678 $ 67,679
Recognized in profit or loss

(under “Other gains and

losses™) 492 -
Recognized in other

comprehensive income

(“unrealized gains or - (  4,578)
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Assets

Measured at fair

Measured at fair value through other
value through profit comprehensive
or loss income
losses on financial assets
measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income”)
Addition - 96,000
Balance at the end of the
year $ 33,170 $159.101
2022
Assets
Measured at fair
Measured at fair value through other
value through profit comprehensive
or loss income

Balance at the beginning of

the year $ 26,284 $ 65,000
Recognized in profit or loss

(under “Other gains and

losses™) 6,394 -
Recognized in other

comprehensive income

(“unrealized gains or

losses on financial assets

measured at fair value

through other

comprehensive income”) - __ 2,679
Balance at the end of the
year 32,678 67,679

3. Valuation techniques and input values for Level 3 fair value measurement
Type of financial
instruments Valuation techniques and input values

Investment in equity Equity instruments measured at fair value through

instruments other comprehensive income or loss in Level 2

of the fair value hierarchy are subject to
restrictions on transfer or sale, and their fair
values are based on quoted prices in active
markets for similar unrestricted equity
instruments, after discounted prices taken into
account.

4. Valuation techniques and input values for Level 3 fair value measurement
The following table presents the significant unobservable input values to

the Consolidated Company’s fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities
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measured at fair value on a recurring basis within Level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy:
December 31, 2023

Significant Relationship Sensitivity analysis of the
Valuation Unobservable Input Quantitative ~ between input value relationship between input
techniques Values Information and fair value value and fair value

Financial assets

Funds Asset method  Discount for lack of 30% The higher the lack ~ When the lack of marketability
marketability and of marketability and control increased
control and control, the (decreased) by 1%, the

lower the Consolidated Company’s
estimated fair profit or loss would have
value decreased/increased by
NT$474 thousand.
Stocks Market Discount for lack of 30% The higher the lack ~ When the lack of marketability
method marketability and of marketability and control increased
control and control, the (decreased) by 1%, the
lower the Consolidated Company’s
estimated fair other comprehensive
value income would have
decreased/increased by
NT$220 thousand.
Stocks Market Discount for lack of 30% The higher the lack ~ When the lack of marketability
method marketability and of marketability and control increased
control and control, the (decreased) by 1%, the
lower the Consolidated Company’s
estimated fair other comprehensive
value income would have
decreased/increased by
NT$1,216 thousand.

Stocks Asset method  Discount for lack of 10% The higher the lack ~ When the lack of marketability
marketability and of marketability and control increased
control and control, the (decreased) by 1%, the

lower the Consolidated Company’s
estimated fair other comprehensive
value income would have
decreased/increased by
NT$649 thousand.
December 31, 2022
Significant Relationship Sensitivity analysis of the
Valuation Unobservable Input Quantitative ~ between input value relationship between input
techniques Values Information and fair value value and fair value

Financial assets

Funds Asset method  Discount for lack of 30% The higher the lack ~ When the lack of
marketability and of marketability marketability and control
control and control, the increased (decreased) by

lower the 1%, the Consolidated

estimated fair Company’s profit or loss

value would have
decreased/increased by
NT$327 thousand,
respectively.

Stocks Market Discount for lack of 30% The higher the lack ~ When the lack of

method marketability and of marketability marketability and control
control and control, the increased (decreased) by
lower the 1%, the Consolidated
estimated fair Company’s other
value comprehensive income
would have
decreased/increased by
NTS$75 thousand.

Stocks Asset method  Discount for lack of 10% The higher the lack ~ When the lack of
marketability and of marketability marketability and control
control and control, the increased (decreased) by

lower the 1%, the Consolidated

The Consolidated Company’s finance and investment

responsible for conducting fair value tests to ensure that the
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estimated fair
value

Company’s other
comprehensive income
would have
decreased/increased by
NT$668 thousand.

departments are

valuation results



3)

4

approximate market conditions, that the sources of information are independent,
reliable, consistent with other resources and representative of realizable prices,
and that changes in the value of assets and liabilities that are subject to
remeasurement or re-evaluation in accordance with the Consolidated
Company’s accounting policies are analyzed at each reporting date to ensure
that the valuation results are reasonable.

Type of Financial instruments

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Financial assets
Measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss $ 34,253 $ 33,560
Financial assets at amortized
cost (Note 1) 3,355,994 3,939,866
Financial assets measured at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
Investment in equity
instruments 334,421 368,688

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortized cost

(Note 2) 3,050,189 2,817,111
Financial liabilities for hedging 655,237 446,977

Note 1: The balance consisted of financial assets measured at amortized cost, such
as cash, cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivable and accounts
receivable — related party, other receivables, other receivables — related party,
other financial assets, and refundable deposits.

Note 2: The balance consisted of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost,
including short-term borrowings, notes payable, other payables, other
payables — related party, bonds payable, long-term bank borrowings —
current portion, corporate bonds, long-term borrowings, long-term payables
and deposits received.

Objectives and Policies of Financial Risk Management

The Consolidated Company’s major financial instruments include investments
in equity instruments, accounts receivable, accounts payable, corporate bonds

payable, borrowings and lease liabilities. The Consolidated Company’s financial
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management department provides services to each business unit, coordinates the
operation of access to domestic financial markets and monitors and manages
financial risks associated with the Consolidated Company’s operations through
internal risk reports that analyze risk exposures based on risk degree and breadth.
These risks include market risk (which includes exchange rate risk, interest rate risk
and other price risks), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Consolidated Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
exposure to risk in order to mitigate the impact of these risks. The use of derivative
financial instruments is governed by the policies approved by the Consolidated
Company’s board of directors, which are the written principles for exchange rate risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and
non-derivative financial instruments and investment of surplus circulating capital.
Internal auditors review policy compliance and risk limits on an ongoing basis. The
Consolidated Company does not trade in financial instruments (including derivative
financial instruments) for speculative purposes.

The financial management department reports to the board of directors of the
Consolidated Company on a quarterly basis.
1. Market risk
The main financial risks to which the Consolidated Company is exposed
as a result of its operating activities are changes in foreign currency exchange
rates (see (1) below) and changes in interest rates (see (2) below). The
Consolidated Company engages in various derivative financial instruments to
manage its exposure to foreign currency exchange rate and interest rate risk.
There have been no changes in the Consolidated Company’s exposure to
market risk of financial instruments and the way it manages and measures such
exposures.
(1) Exchange rate risk
The Consolidated Company’s exposure to exchange rate risk relates
primarily to operating activities (when revenues or expenses are
denominated in currencies different from the Consolidated Company’s
functional currency) and net investments in foreign operations.
A portion of the Consolidated Company’s foreign currency
receivables and payables are denominated in the same currency, in which

case, a natural hedge is created. Currency swap contracts are adopted to
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manage the exchange rate risk arising from partial foreign currency
payments. In addition, the net investment in foreign operations is a
strategic investment and therefore the Company does not apply hedge
accounting.

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency (including
monetary items denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency that have been written off in the consolidated financial
statements) and the carrying amounts of derivatives with exchange rate
risk exposure as of the balance sheet date.

Sensitivity analysis

The Consolidated Company is primarily affected by fluctuations in
the exchange rates of USD, JPY, CNY and EUR.

The following table details the sensitivity analysis of the
Consolidated Company when the exchange rate of the functional
currency of each entity increases and decreases by 1% against each
relevant foreign currency. One percent is the sensitivity rate used in
reporting the exchange rate risk internally to the Consolidated
Company’s key management team and represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonable range of potential changes in
foreign-currency exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis covered cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable (including related party), other
receivables (including related party), accounts payable (including related
party), other payables (including related party), long-term and short-term
borrowings (including related party), and financial liabilities for hedging.
The table below shows the influence on profit and loss when the

functional currency appreciated by 1% against each major foreign

currency.
Impact of USD Impact of JPY Impact of CNY Impact of EUR
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
profit or
loss ($6455) ($6392) ($ 582) $ 26 (8$10365) ( $5283) § 751 ($ 13)
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3)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises because entities within the Consolidated
Company borrow funds at both fixed and floating rates. The
Consolidated Company manages interest rate risk by maintaining an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating rates; however, hedge accounting is
not applied because the Company does not meet the requirements for
hedge accounting.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
exposed to interest rate risk as of the balance sheet date were as follows:

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Fair value interest rate

risk
- Financial assets $ 644,611 $ 712,443
- Financial liabilities 1,011,610 1,675,818
Cash flow interest rate
risk
- Financial assets 1,799,770 2,256,611
- Financial liabilities 1,545,001 812,019

Sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk of
derivative and non-derivative instruments as of the balance sheet date.
For floating rate assets (liabilities), the analysis assumes that the amount
of the liability outstanding at the balance sheet date is outstanding during
the reporting period. The rate of change used in reporting interest rates
internally to key management is a 1% basis point increase or decrease in
interest rates, which also represents management’s assessment of the
range of reasonably possible changes in interest rates.

If the floating rate increased/decreased by 1%, with all other
variables held constant, the Consolidated Company’s net income before
tax would have decreased/increased by NT$2,548 thousand and
NT$14,446 thousand for 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Other price risk

The fair values of the Company’s TWSE/TPEx/emerging stock
market-listed and unlisted equity securities and funds may be affected by
the uncertainty of the future value of these underlying securities. The

Company’s TWSE/TPEx/emerging stock market-listed and unlisted
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equity securities and funds are included in the fair value measurement
through profit or loss and fair value measurement through other
comprehensive income, respectively. The Consolidated Company
manages the price risk of equity securities by diversifying its investments
and setting limits on its investments in equity securities, both individually
and in the aggregate. Portfolio information on equity securities is
provided to the Consolidated Company’s senior management on a regular
basis, and the Board of Directors is required to review and approve all
investment decisions on equity securities.

Sensitivity analysis

For the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Consolidated

Company’s profit or loss would have increase/decrease by NT$3,425
thousand and NT$3,356 thousand, respectively, if the prices of the
emerging stock market-listed equity securities that are mandatorily
measured at fair value through profit or loss increased/decreased by 10%.
For the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Consolidated
Company’s equity would have increased/decreased by NT$33,442
thousand and NT$36,869 thousand, respectively, if the prices of
emerging stock market-listed and TWSE-/TPEx-listed equity securities
and unlisted equity securities that are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income increased/decreased by 10%.

The Consolidated Company entered into precious metal borrowing
contracts with suppliers at prices based on international precious metal
market quotations plus a margin. In order to manage the precious metal
price risk of the inventory, the Consolidated Company uses international
precious metal borrowing contracts with the same nominal number as a
fair value risk hedge for the components of precious metal price risk
contained in the inventory. Based on historical experience, changes in the
fair value of the designated components of precious metals price risk
cover, on average, price changes in the contracts as a whole, and
therefore market price risk is not material.

Hedge accounting

The Consolidated Company uses precious metal borrowing

contracts for fair value hedge to mitigate the risk of fair value of financial
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liabilities arising from changes in international precious metal prices. The
fair value of precious metal borrowing transactions as of the balance
sheet date is estimated based on the market price of precious metals.

The aforementioned precious metal borrowing transactions are
subject to the same conditions as the related financial liabilities. The
Consolidated Company uses a qualitative assessment to determine that
the value of the precious metal borrowing transactions and the hedged
financial liabilities will systematically change inversely due to changes in
the prices of the hedged international precious metals. The hedge
ineffectiveness of the hedge relationship arises primarily from the effect
of the credit risk between the Consolidated Company and the
counterparty on the fair value of the precious metal borrowing
transactions. This credit risk does not affect changes in the fair value of
international precious metal prices attributable to the hedged item. There
were no other sources of hedge ineffectiveness during the hedge period.

Information on the Consolidated Company’s international precious
metals price risk hedge is summarized as follows:

December 31, 2023

Change in fair

value of
hedging
Book value instruments
used to assess
hedge
Contract Expiration  Line item on the ineffectiveness
Hedging instruments amount Period balance sheet Liabilities  during the year
Fair value hedge
Precious metal $ 668.463 - Financial $ 655237
borrowing liabilities for
contract hedging § 13,226
Change in
value of
hedged items
used to assess
Cumulative hedge
fair value ineffectiveness
Book value adjustment  during the year
Hedged items Assets Assets Value changes
Fair value hedge
Inventories $ 655237 ($ 13226) ($  13,226)
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December 31, 2022

Change in fair

value of
hedging
Book value instruments
used to assess
hedge
Contract Expiration  Line item on the ineffectiveness
Hedging instruments amount Period balance sheet Liabilities  during the year
Fair value hedge
Precious metal $ 435,795 - Financial $ 446977
borrowing liabilities for
contract hedging ($ 11,182)
Change in
value of
hedged items
used to assess
Cumulative hedge
fair value ineffectiveness
Book value adjustment  during the year
Hedged items Assets Assets Value changes
Fair value hedge
Inventories $ 446,977 $ 11,182 $ 11,182
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss due to default on contract
obligations by the counterparties. The Consolidated Company’s credit risk is
attributable to operating activities (mainly accounts receivable and notes) and
financial activities (mainly bank deposits and various financial instruments).

Each unit of the Consolidated Company manages credit risk in accordance
with its policies, procedures and controls over credit risk. The credit risk of all
counterparties is evaluated by taking into account the financial condition of the
counterparties, the ratings of credit rating agencies, historical transaction
experience, the current economic environment and the Group’s internal rating
standards. The Consolidated Company also uses certain credit enhancement
tools (such as advance receipts) at appropriate times to reduce the credit risk of
specific counterparties.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the percentages of receivables from
the top ten customers to the Consolidated Company’s total receivables were
60% and 44%, respectively, and the credit concentration risk of the remaining

receivables was relatively insignificant.
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The Finance Department manages the credit risk of bank deposits,
fixed-income securities and other financial instruments in accordance with the
Consolidated Company’s policies. Since the Group’s counterparties are
determined by internal control procedures and are creditworthy banks and
investment-grade  financial institutions, corporate organizations and
government agencies, there is no significant credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Consolidated Company manages and maintains sufficient positions of
cash and cash equivalents to support the Group’s operations and mitigate the
impact of cash flow fluctuations. The Consolidated Company’s management
monitors the use of bank financing lines and ensures compliance with the terms
of the loan agreements.

Bank loans are an important source of liquidity for the Consolidated
Company. See (2) below for a description of the Consolidated Company’s
unused financing lines.

(1) Liquidity and interest rate risk of non-derivative financial liabilities

The analysis of the remaining contractual maturities of
non-derivative financial liabilities has been prepared based on the
undiscounted cash flows (including principal and estimated interest) of
the financial liabilities based on the earliest possible date on which the
Consolidated Company could be required to make repayment. Therefore,
bank loans that the Consolidated Company may be required to repay
immediately are shown in the earliest period of the below table, without
regard to the probability that the bank will enforce the right immediately;
the maturity analysis of other non-derivative financial liabilities is
prepared based on the contractual repayment dates.

The undiscounted interest amount of interest cash flows paid at
floating interest rates is derived from the curve of the yield rate at the
balance sheet date.

December 31, 2023

Less than 1
year 1-3 years 4-5 years Over 5 years Total
Accounts payable $ 624,776 $ - $ - $ - $ 624,776
Borrowing 736,428 334,795 348,489 1,067,268 2,486,980
Lease liabilities 24,361 44.817 13.694 29,139 112,011

$ 1,385,565 § 379,612 § 362,183 $ 1,096,407 § 3,223,767
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32.

Further information on the maturity analysis of the financial

liabilities above is as follows:

Less than 1 Over 20 years
year 1-5 years 5-10 years 10-15 years 15-20 years
Floating
interest rate $ 599,063 $ 321,618 $ 610,769 $ 6,994 $ - $ -
Fixed interest
rate 137,365 361,666 449,505 - - -
Lease liabilities 24,361 58,511 29,139 - - -
$ 760,789 $ 741,795 $1,089.413 S 6,994 S - $ -

December 31, 2022

Less than 1
year 1-3 years 4-5 years Over 5 years Total
Accounts payable $ 593,201 $ - $ - $ - $ 593,201
Borrowing 554,163 314,493 286,936 781,306 1,936,898
Corporate bonds 339,700 - - - 339,700
Lease liabilities 45.587 91,001 75,989 75,350 287,927

$ 1,532,651 $§ 405494 § 362925 § 856,656 $ 3,157,726

Further information on the maturity analysis of the financial

liabilities above is as follows:

Less than 1 Over 20 years
year 1-5 years 5-10 years 10-15 years 15-20 years
Floating
interest rate $ 372,508 $ 232,337 $ 137,172 $ 68,962 $ - $ -
Fixed interest
rate 521,355 369,092 486,061 89,111 - -
Lease liabilities 45,587 166,990 75,350 - - -
$_939.450 $ 768.419 $ 698,583 $ 158,073 S - $ -

(2) Financing line limit

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Unsecured bank overdraft
limit (revisited

annually)
- Amount used $ 356,275 $ 196,400
- Amount unused 1.836.042 2.968.360
$2,192,317 $ 3,164,760
Secured bank overdraft
limit
- Amount used $2,487,987 $2,216,012
- Amount unused 115,493 1,140,544
$ 2,603,480 $ 3,356,556

Related party transactions

The parent company of the Company is Gigastorage Corporation, which directly and
indirectly holds 38.07% and 38.36% of the Company’s ordinary shares as of December 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively. Since the Gigastorage Corporation is a domestic listed
company and the remaining shareholdings are widely dispersed, it is assessed that the
Gigastorage Corporation still has control over the Consolidated Company, considering the

absolute number, relative size and distribution of voting rights held by other shareholders.
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All transactions, account balances, incomes and expenses between the Company and

its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, are eliminated upon

consolidation and are therefore not disclosed in this note. In addition to those disclosed in

other notes, the transactions between the Consolidated Company and other related parties

are as follows:

(1

)

Name and relationship of related party

Name of related party

Relationship with the Consolidated
Company

Gigastorage Corporation (hereinafter
referred to as Gigastorage)

Ho Mi Specialty Materials Corporation

WAFERING TECHNOLOGY
CORPORATION (disappeared after a
simple merger with Gigastorage on
September 30, 2023)

Whole Max Green Power Co., Ltd.

Ya Fei Solar Energy Co., Ltd.

Hunjin Enterprise Inc.

Giga Whole Energy Co., Ltd.

Whole Wing Energy Co., Ltd.

Whole Fund Energy Co., Ltd.

Tron Giga (Yancheng) Energy Co., Ltd.

Tron Energy Technology Corporation

Lego Optoelectronics Co., Ltd.

Giga Solar Green Power Co., Ltd.

ACRO Biomedical Co. Ltd.

Mintron Energy Corporation

Yuanju (Yancheng) Trading Co., Ltd.

United Silicon Innovation Corp.

Long Time Tech. Co., Ltd.

Shanggao Long Time Tech Co., Ltd.

Hon Young Semiconductor Corporation

Xingfox Energy Technology Co., Ltd.

Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd.

Titan Solar Limited

Titan Solar Co., Ltd

Operating revenues

Parent company of the Company

Sister company
Sister company

Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Related party in substance
Related party in substance
Related party in substance
Related party in substance
Related party in substance
Related party in substance
Related party in substance

Type/name of related

Account item party 2023 2022
Sales revenues Related party in $ 21,633 $ 54,608
substance
Sister company 39 263
Affiliated enterprise - 2,074
$ 21,672 $ 56,945
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3)

Q)

The sales prices of the Consolidated Company for related parties are negotiated
by both parties with reference to market conditions; the transaction term for some
domestic clients (related parties) is 90 days after the end of each month, and 90 to
180 days after the end of each month for overseas clients; for non-related parties, it is
30 to 90 days after the end of each month for domestic clients, and 30 to 90 days
after the end of each month for overseas clients. The Consolidated Company’s
outstanding receivables from related parties are unsecured, interest-free, and should

be paid in cash. No guarantees were received for accounts receivable from related

parties.
Purchases

Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Sister company $ 5,321 $ 2375
Related party in substance 329 540

$ 5,650 $ 20915

The purchase price of the Consolidated Company from a related party shall be
negotiated by both parties with reference to the market situation. The payment terms
for the Consolidated Company to purchase goods from related parties are equivalent
to those of ordinary manufacturers, and the payment period is 60-90 days.

Receivables from related parties

Type/name of related December 31, December 31,
Account item party 2023 2022

Accounts Related party in $ 3,794 $ 16,021
receivables substance

Affiliated enterprise - 17,067

$ 3,794 $ 33,088

Other receivables Parent company $ 1,100 $ 1,229

Affiliated enterprise 753 18,215

Related party in 100 200
substance

Sister company 4 8

$ 1,957 $ 19,652

No guarantee was collected for the outstanding receivables from related parties.
An allowance for losses on receivables from related parties at the end of 2023 and

2022 was recognized based on lifetime expected credit losses.
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(5) Payables to related parties

(6)

(7)

®)

€))

Type/name of related December 31, December 31,
Account item party 2023 2022
Accounts payable  Related party in $ 305 $ -
substance
Sister company 3 959
$ 308 $ 959
Type/name of related December 31, December 31,
Account item party 2023 2022
Other payables Related party in $ 33,450 $ 397
substance
Parent company 5,275 6,297
Affiliated enterprise 72 -
$ 38,797 $ 6,694

No collateral was provided for the outstanding balance of payables to related

parties.
Prepayments for equipment
Type/name of related party

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Related party in substance $ - $ 1,308
Property, plant and equipment acquired
Acquisition price
Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Related party in substance $ 1,308 $ -
Parent company 550 -
$ 1,858 $ -

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal

Gain on disposal

Type/name of related
party 2023 2022 2023 2022

Sister company $ 300 $ - $ 175 $ -
Lease agreements

Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Acquisition of right-of-use

assets
Parent company $ - $ 1,540
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Type/name of related December 31, December 31,

Account item party 2023 2022
Lease liabilities Parent company $ 2,841 $ 108,631
Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Interest expense
Parent company $ 630 $ 1,739
Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Lease expense
Parent company $ 9,443 $ 2,176
Rental income
Affiliated enterprise $ 5,972 $ 5,993
Parent company 4,110 3.613
$ 10,082 $ 9,606

The Consolidated Company has leased land and offices to related parties. The
lease terms are determined by agreement between the two parties and the rent is
collected monthly.

(10) Borrowings from related parties

Type/name of related party December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Related party in substance $ 10,125 $ -

Interest expense

Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Related party in substance $ 544 $ -

The interest rate of the Consolidated Company's borrowings from related parties
is equivalent to the market interest rate.
(11) Others
Other transactions between the Consolidated Company and the parent company

are summarized as follows:

Item 2023 2022
Utilities expenses $ 11,623 $ 11,710
Other income 3,406 2,634
Other expenses 3,081 5,095
Service expenses 2,718 5,168

Other transactions between the Consolidated Company and the sister companies

are summarized as follows:
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33.

Item 2023 2022
Other income $ 55 $ 131

Other transactions between the Consolidated Company and associates are

summarized as follows:

Item 2023 2022
Other income $ 2,377 $ 1,990
Other expenses 71 891

Other transactions between the Consolidated Company and related parties in

substance are summarized as follows:

Item 2023 2022

Other income $ 571 $ 571

Other expenses - 10
(12) Salary for key management

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits $ 31,928 $ 35,864
Post-employment benefits 402 399
$ 32,330 $ 36,263
The remuneration for directors and other key management is determined by the

Remuneration Committee based on individual performance and market trends.

Pledged Assets

The following assets have been provided as collateral for financing loans and tariff

guarantees for imported raw materials or performance and lease guarantees:

December 31, December 31, Content of
2023 2022 secured debts
Pledged demand deposits and $ 353,337 $ 172,356  Bank
time deposits (recognized in borrowings

other financial assets —
current and non-current)
Pledged time deposits 14,929 15,827  Customs bonds
(recognized in other financial
assets — non-current)

Notes receivables 25,214 40,211 Bank
borrowings

Property, plant and equipment 2.083.236 1,119,373 Bank
borrowings

$ 2,476,716 $ 1,347,767
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34.

35.

Significant Contingent Liabilities and Unrecognized Contract Commitments

The Consolidated Company’s major commitments and contingencies on the balance
sheet date are as follows:

(1)  On November 8, 2017, the Company’s board of directors resolved a decision to
merge with E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company entered into a non-exclusive
patent license agreement and paid a license fee to obtain a patent license related to
solar conductive plasma.

(2) The Consolidated Company’s Sunshine Solar Power Generation Co., Inc. entered
into a construction contract with Meralco Industrial Engineering Services
Corporation for a total contract amount of US$4,546 thousand and Philippine peso
117,500 thousand. The accumulated amount paid as of December 31, 2023 was
US$3,436 thousand and Philippine peso 11,175 thousand, which were recorded as
construction in progress.

Information on foreign currency assets and liabilities with significant effect

The following information is expressed in aggregate in foreign currencies other than
the functional currency of each of the consolidated entities, and the exchange rates
disclosed refer to the rates at which such foreign currencies are converted to the functional
currency. Information on foreign currency assets and liabilities with significant effect is as
follows:

December 31, 2023

Foreign
currency Exchange rate Book value
Foreign-currency assets
Monetary items
USD $ 72,375 30.705 $ 2,222,274
JPY 651,558 0.2172 141,518
RMB 239,637 4.327 1,036,909
Foreign-currency liabilities

Monetary items
USD 51,352 30.705 1,576,763
JPY 383,691 0.2172 83,338
RMB 104 4.327 450
EUR 2,210 33.98 75,096
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36.

December 31, 2022

Foreign
currency Exchange rate Book value
Foreign-currency assets
Monetary items
USD $ 50,495 30.71 $ 1,550,701
JPY 6,399 0.2324 1,487
RMB 120,355 4.408 530,525
EUR 41 32.72 1,342
Foreign-currency liabilities

Monetary items
USD 29,680 30.71 911,473
JPY 17,601 0.2324 4,090
RMB 400 4.408 1,763

The net foreign currency exchange gains (losses) (realized and unrealized) of the

Consolidated Company amounted to NT$(17,326) thousand and NT$124,556 thousand

in 2023 and 2022, respectively. Due to the wide variety of the functional currencies of

the group entities with foreign currency transaction, it is not possible to disclose the

exchange gains or losses by each currency of significant impact.

Additional Disclosures

(1) Information on major transactions and (2) invested enterprise

1.
2.
3.

Lending funds to others (Exhibit 1)

Endorsement and guarantee for others (Exhibit 2)

Marketable securities held at the end of the period (excluding investment in
subsidiaries, affiliated enterprises and joint ventures) (Exhibit 3)

Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding
NT$300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital. (None)

Acquisition of real estate exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital
or more. (None)

Disposal of real estate exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or
more. (None)

Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching NT$100 million
or 20% of paid-in capital or more (Exhibit 4)

Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in
capital or more. (Exhibit 5)

Engagement in derivative transactions. (None)
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37.

10.

I1.

Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions between the
parent and subsidiaries and between subsidiaries and the amounts involved:
(Exhibit 6)

Information on Investees (Exhibit 7)

(3) Information on investment in mainland China

1.

The name of the investees in Mainland China, principal business, paid-in

capital, investment methods, capital outward and inward remittances,

shareholding, investment gains and losses, investment carrying amount at the

end of the period, repatriated investment gains and losses, and investment

quota for Mainland China. (Exhibit 8)

Please refer to the following significant transactions with Mainland China

investees directly or indirectly through third regions, as well as their prices,

payment terms, and unrealized profits or losses: (Exhibits 1 and 2 and Note 6)

(1) The amount and percentage of purchases and the related ending balance
and percentage of payables.

(2) The amount and percentage of sales and the related ending balance and
percentage of receivables.

(3) The amount of property transactions and the amount of resulting gains or
losses.

(4) The ending balance of endorsement guarantee of bills or the provision of
collateral and its purpose.

(5) The maximum balance, ending balance, interest rate range and total
current interest amount of financial accommodation

(6) Other transactions that have a significant effect on the current profit or

loss or financial position, such as the provision or receipt of services.

(4) Information on major shareholders: Name, number and percentage of shares held by

shareholders with 5% or more of the shares. (Exhibit 9)

Departmental information

The reportable segments of the Consolidated Company are strategically managed

business units that provide different products and services and earn revenues and incur

expenses. Since each strategic business unit requires different technology and marketing

strategies, the operating decision maker manages and monitors the operating results of

each business unit separately to make decisions on resource allocation and performance

evaluation.
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The reportable segments of the Consolidated Company are as follow:

1.  The Photovoltaic Materials Division is mainly engaged in the research and
development, manufacturing and sales of solar conductive plasma.

2. The Solar Power Plant Division mainly engages in solar power generation and
sales.

3. The Wire Materials Division mainly engages in the manufacturing and sales of
diamond wires as well as the processing and sales of solar silicon wafers and solar
silicon auxiliary materials and wafers.

The Consolidated Company aggregated the business divisions of Hua Hsu Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. and Yancheng Giga Diamond Materials Corporation and consolidated
their relevant information into the reportable segment of Wire Materials Division, since
management determines that these divisions have similar economic characteristics and
meet most of the aggregation criteria.

The profits or losses of the reportable segments of the Consolidated Company are
measured at operating profits (losses) before tax and are used as the basis for performance
evaluation. The accounting policies of the business divisions are the same as those
described in the summary of significant accounting policies in Note 4; however,
non-operating income and gains, non-operating expenses and losses, and income taxes in
the consolidated financial statements are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to
the business divisions.

Transfer pricing between business divisions of the Consolidated Company is based on
similar regular transactions with external third parties or markets.

(1) Segment Revenue and Operating Results
The revenue and operating results of the Consolidated Company’s continuing

operations are analyzed by reportable segment as follows:

2023
Photovoltaic
Materials Solar Power Wire Materials
Division Plant Division Division Other Divisions Total
Revenues from external
customers $ 2,373,224 $ 224516 $ 369,111 ($ 8,440) $ 2958411
Costs and expenses (__2.871.797) ( 133478) ( 669,090) ( 250,708) (__3.925.073)
Segment profit or loss ($_ 498573) § 91,038 ($__299979) ($__ 259.148) ( 966,662 )
Interest income 43,232
Other income 53,740
Financial costs ( 52,652)
Share of associates accounted for
using the equity method ( 53,617)
Other gains and losses ( 197,843)
Net losses before tax from
continuing operations (S _1,173,802)
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3)

2022

Photovoltaic
Materials Solar Power Wire Materials
Division Plant Division Division Other Divisions Total
Revenues from external
customers $ 3,388,592 $ 220,783 $ 1,686,148 $ 359,322 $ 5,654,845
Costs and expenses (__3.878.112) (__ 135.828) (_ 1.685.151) (__ 394.853) (__ 6.093.944)
Segment profit or loss (S 489.520) $ 84,955 S 997 (§ 35,531) ( 439,099)
Interest income 8,692
Other income 52,941
Financial costs ( 70,229)
Share of associates accounted for
using the equity method ( 30,646)
Other gains and losses ( 38.401)
Net losses before tax from
continuing operations (S 516,742)
Revenues from major products
2023 2022
Conductive paste $2,373,224 $ 3,388,592
Silicon materials for solar 266,736 1,419,889
energy
Others 318,451 846,364
Total $ 2,958,411 $ 5,654,845
Regional information
Revenues from external customers:
2023 2022
Southeast Asia 811,351 1,258,103
Taiwan 777,679 1,269,479
Mainland China 631,111 2,354,818
Japan $ 359,085 $ 214,089
South Korea 203,463 211,151
India 117,870 298,828
Hong Kong 10,124 12,256
Other countries 47,728 36,121
Total $ 2,958,411 $ 5,654,845

Revenue is aggregated based on the country in which the customer is located.

Non-current assets:

Taiwan

Mainland China

Japan

Philippines
Total

2023

$2,947,919
1,086,430
991,789
551,706

$ 5,577,844

2022

$ 2,858,840
1,290,182
1,013,480

541,561

$ 5,704,063

Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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(4) Information on major customers
Revenues from a single customer amounting to 10% or more of the

Consolidated Company’s total revenues are as follows:

Item 2023 2022
Customer A $357,874 $405,701
Customer B 348,238 920,999
Customer C 303,713 -
Customer D - 674,661
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Information on major shareholders

December 31, 2023

Exhibit 9
Shares
Name of major shareholder Number of shares held Numbe;fe(l)i shares
Gigastorage Corporation 34,982,909 shares 38.07%
Hong-Yang Venture Capital Co., Ltd. 9,265,098 shares 10.08%
Sincere Holding Company 4,686,000 shares 5.09%
Note 1: The major shareholders in this table are shareholders holding at least 5% of the ordinary

Note 2:

and preference shares (including treasury shares) with dematerialized registration and
delivery completed on the last business day of the quarter calculated by the Taiwan
Depository & Clearing Corporation. Share capital indicated in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements may differ from the actual number of shares that have
been issued and delivered with registration of dematerialized securities completed as a
result of different bases of preparation.

If a shareholder delivers its shareholding information to the trust, the aforesaid
information shall be disclosed by the individual trustee who opened the trust account.
For information on shareholders, who declare to be insiders holding more than 10% of
shares in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act, and their shareholdings
including their shareholdings plus their shares in a trust and shares with the right to

make decisions on trust property, please refer to the MOPS.
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Appendix 2 Stock Code:

Giga Solar Materials Corporation

Individual Financial Statements

and Independent Auditor’s Report
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Address: No. 3, Industrial 1st Road, Hukou Township,
Hsinchu County
Phone:  (03)5981886

291



§TABLE OF CONTENTSS§

Number of notes
to financial

Item Page statements
1. Front cover 1 —
2.  Table of Contents 2 —
3. Independent auditor’s report 3~6 —
4.  Individual balance sheet 7 —
5. Individual comprehensive income statement 8~9 —
6.  Individual statement of changes in shareholders’ 10 —
equity
7. Individual cash flow statement 11~12 —
8. Notes to individual financial statements
(1) Company History 13 1
(2) Date and Procedures for Approval of 13 2
Financial Statements
(3) Application of New and Revised 13~16 3
Standards and Interpretation
(4) Summary of Significant Accounting 16~34 4
Policies
(5) Significant Accounting Judgments and 34~35 5
Estimations, and Main Sources of
Assumption Uncertainties
(6) Summary of Significant Accounting Items 35~81 6to 29
(7) Related party transactions 81~86 30
(8) Pledged Assets 86~87 31
(9) Significant Contingent Liabilities and 87 32
Unrecognized Contract Commitments
(10) Significant Disaster Loss - —
(11) Significant Subsequent Events - —
(12) Information on foreign currency assets 87~88 33
and liabilities with significant effect
(13) Additional Disclosure
1. Information on significant transactions 88 34
2. Information on invested enterprises 88 34
3. Information on investment in mainland 89 34
China
4. Information on major shareholders 89 34
(14) Departmental information - —
9.  Table of contents of the Schedule of important 99~115 —

accounting items

292



Independent auditor’s report

To Giga Solar Materials Corporation,

Audit Opinion

We have audited the individual balance sheet of Giga Solar Materials Corporation as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the individual comprehensive income statements,
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, individual cash flow statements, and
notes to the individual financial statements (including significant accounting policies) for the
years then ended.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other independent auditors (please
refer to the Other Matters paragraph), the individual financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the individual financial position of Giga Solar Materials
Corporation as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its individual financial performance and
cash flows for the years ended December 31 2023 and 2022, in conformity with the requirements
of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Entrusted Regulations Governing the
Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing
standards of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the responsibilities of auditors for the audit of the individual financial statements.
We are independent of Giga Solar Materials Corporation in accordance with the Code of
Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. Based on our audits and the reports of other
independent auditors, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the 2023 individual financial statements of Giga Solar Materials
Corporation. These matters were addressed in the content of our audit of the individual financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide separate
opinions on those matters.

Key audit matters of the 2023 individual financial statements of Giga Solar Materials

Corporation are as follows:
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Authenticity of revenues

The sales revenues of Giga Solar Materials Corporation is mainly from the sales of solar
conductive plasma. The sales revenues from specific clients and products changed significantly
in 2023 (see Note 22), and, therefore, we have included the authenticity of the aforementioned
revenues as a key audit matter.

We have performed the following key audit procedures:

1.  We assessed the effectiveness of the design and implementation of internal control
practices related to sales transactions by understanding the related internal control systems
and operating procedures related to the sales transaction cycle.

2. To confirm the authenticity of revenue, we selected samples from the sales details,
reviewed the original customer orders, shipping documents or export declarations and sales
invoices, and examined whether there were any abnormalities in the receivable collections
and the customers to whom the sales were made.

Other Matters

The financial statements of certain equity-method investees (associates) have not been
audited by us, but by other independent auditors. Therefore, of our opinions on the individual
financial statements referred to above, the amounts included in the financial statements were
based on the audit reports of other independent auditors. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the
above-mentioned investments under the equity method amounted to NT$68,141 thousand and
NT$510,735 thousand, or 0.77% and 5.42% of total assets, respectively; the share of the above
profits (losses) on associates recognized under the equity method amounted to NT$(3,063)
thousand and NT$(27,439) thousand, or 0.38% and 5.60% of net income (loss) before tax,
respectively for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the individual
financial statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Statements by Securities Issuers, and for such internal control as the management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the individual financial statements to be free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the individual financial statements, the management is also responsible for
assessing the ability of Giga Solar Materials Corporation as a going concern, disclosing as

applicable, matters related to a going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting.
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Unless the management either intends to liquidate Giga Solar Materials Corporation or to cease

operations, or has no other realistic alternative but to do so.

Those in charge of corporate governance (including the Auditing Committee) are
responsible for overseeing the reporting process of the financial statements of Giga Solar
Materials Corporation.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Individual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the individual financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the accounting principles will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements
are considered material, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these individual financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also performed the following
tasks:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the individual financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error; design, and perform countermeasures for assessed risks; and
obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of audit opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control effective in Giga Solar Materials
Corporation.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4.  Conclude the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the
management, and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Giga Solar
Materials Corporation to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
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disclosures in the individual financial statements or, if such disclosure is inappropriate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause Giga Solar
Materials Corporation to cease as a going concern.

5.  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the individual financial
statements (including related notes), whether the individual financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6.  Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information or the
entities or business activities of Giga Solar Materials Corporation to express an opinion on
the individual financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of Giga Solar Materials Corporation and forming the audit
opinion on Giga Solar Materials Corporation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings (including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit).

We also provide those in charge of governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to affect our independence and
other matters (including related protective measures).

From the matters communicated with those in charge of corporate governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 2023 individual
financial statements of Gigastorage Corporation and its subsidiaries and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits

of such communication.

Deloitte and Touche

CPA Zhong, Ming-Yuan CPA Chang Ya-Yun
Financial Supervisory Commission Approval Financial Supervisory Commission Approval
Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No. 1050024633 Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No. 1110348898

March 28, 2024
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Individual comprehensive income statement
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022
(In thousands of NT$, but net loss per share is in NT$)

2023 2022
Code Amount % Amount %
4000 Operating revenue (Notes 4, 22 and
30) § 1,905,293 100 § 3,003,635 100
5000 Operating costs (Notes 10, 23 and
30) 1,797,157 94 2,801,798 93
5900 Operating gross profits 108,136 6 201,837 7
5910 Unrealized profits on sales ( 3,116) - ( 2,198) -
5920 Realized sales profits 2,198 - 17,751 -
5950 Realized operating gross profits 107,218 6 217,390 7
Operating expenses (Notes 9, 15, 23
and 30)
6100 Marketing expenses 166,055 9 140,663 5
6200 Administration expenses 111,220 6 110,184 4
6300 R&D expenses 214,559 11 218,765 7
6450 Gain on reversal of expected
credit impairment ( 303) - ( 6.675) -
6000 Total 491,531 26 462,937 16
6900 Net operating losses ( 384.313) (_20) ( 245.,547) 9)
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest income (Notes 4, 23
and 30) 29,120 1 4,553 -
7010 Other income (Notes 14, 23
and 30) 32,375 2 24,586 1
7020 Other gains and losses (Notes
5,11, 15, 18, 23, and 30) ( 126,787) ( 7) 100,429 3
7050 Financial costs (Notes 10, 23
and 30) ( 19,515) ( 1) «( 36,177) ( 1)
7070 Share of profits or losses of
subsidiaries and associates
accounted for using the
equity method (Notes 4 and
11) ( 341.456) (_18) ( 337.489) (__11)
7000 Total ( 426.263) (_23) ( 244.098) ( 8)
7900 Net loss before tax ( 810,576) ( 43) ( 489,645) ( 17)
7950 Income tax expense (Notes 4 and
24) - - ( 5,508) -
8200 Net losses for the year ( 810,576) (_43) ( 495,153) (_17)

(Continued on next page)
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2023

2022

Code Amount %

Amount

Other comprehensive income
8310 Items not to be reclassified as
profit or loss:
8311 Remeasurement of
defined benefit plan ($ 5,631) -
8316 Unrealized gains or losses
on investments in
equity instruments
measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income ( 133,742) ( 7)
8336 Unrealized gains or losses
on investments in
equity instruments by
subsidiaries and
associates under the
equity method
measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income 4,392 -
8360 Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or
loss:
8361 Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of foreign
operations - -
8381 Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of foreign
operations of
subsidiaries and
associates recognized
under the equity
method ( 30,091) ( 1)
8399 Income tax related to
items that may be
reclassified (Note 24) 2,647 -

$ 8,416

( 162,512)

1,257

19,535

5,132

( 2.586)

8300 Other comprehensive
income for the year (net
after tax) ( 162,425) ( 8)

( 130.758)

8500 Total comprehensive income for the

year ($ 973.001) (__51)

($__ 625911)

Net loss per share (Note 25)
9750 Basic ($ 8.82)
9850 Diluted ($ 8.82)

(8 6.14)
(8§ 6.14)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements.

(Please refer to the audit report dated March 28, 2024 issued by Deloitte and Touche)

(

5)

_4)

_21)

Chairman: Chen, Chi-Ming Manager: Huang, Wen-Jui Accounting Supervisor: Wang Tsai-Hua
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Individual cash flow statement
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022
Unit: NTD thousand

Code 2023 2022
Cash flow from operating activities:
A10000 Net loss before tax ($ 810,576) ($ 489,645 )
A20010 Income and expense items that do not affect
cash flows

A20100 Depreciation expense 96,521 81,965
A20200 Amortization expenses 449 282
A20300 Gain on reversal of expected credit

impairment ( 303) ( 6,675)
A20400 Net gain on financial assets and liabilities

at fair value through profit or loss ( 693) ( 10,886 )
A20900 Financial costs 19,515 36,177
A21200 Interest income ( 29,120) ( 4,553)
A21300 Dividend income ( 12,718) ( 1,823)
A21900 Share-based remuneration costs 1,264 26,970
A22400 Share of subsidiaries and associates

accounted for using the equity method 341,456 337,489
A22500 Net gain from disposal of property, plant

and equipment ( 844) -
A23700 Impairment loss on non-financial assets 140,648 -
A23800 Gain on reversal of loss on decline in

value of inventories ( 1,471) ( 6,760)
A23900 Realized gains with subsidiaries and

associates 918 ( 15,553)
A24100 Unrealized foreign currency exchange

gain ( 26,129) ( 97,384)
A29900 Leasehold modification gain ( 2,823) -
A29900 Gain on disposal of investment ( 20,939) -
A29900 Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - 6,590
A30000 Net change in operating assets and liabilities:
A31130 Notes receivables ( 184) 1,275
A31150 Accounts receivables, net 86,333 115,561
A31160 Accounts receivable — related party 54,675 307,900
A31180 Other receivables ( 4,046 ) 2,720
A31190 Other receivables — related party ( 98,427) 429,272
A31200 Inventories 28,817 76,067
A31230 Prepayments ( 11,646) ( 25,955)
A31240 Other current assets 22,682 236
A32130 Notes payable ( 4,315) 1,962
A32150 Accounts payable 42,799 153,084
A32160 Accounts payable — related party ( 1,580) 912
A32180 Other payables ( 124) ( 23,091)
A32190 Other payables — related party ( 383) ( 1,328)
A32230 Other current liabilities ( 3,007) 2,238
A32240 Net defined benefit liabilities ( 430) ( 491)
A33000 Cash arising from operations ( 193,681) 896,556
A33100 Interests received 26,660 3,412
A33300 Interests paid ( 18,816) ( 32,952)
A33500 Income tax received (paid) 7,808 ( 5,938)
AAAA Net cash inflow (outflow) from

investment activities ( 178,029) 861,078

(Continued on next page)
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Code

B00010

B00020

B00100

B00200

B01900

B02300
B02700
B02800
B03800
B04500
B06600
B06700
B07600
BBBB

C00200
C01300
C01600
C01700
C03000
C03100
C04020
C04600
C05400
CCCC

DDDD

EEEE

E00100

E00200

Chairman: Chen, Chi-Ming

Cash flow from investment activities:

Acquisition of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Disposal of financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Acquisition of Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Disposal of Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Disposal of investment accounted for using the
equity method

Capital for shares repatriated by subsidiary

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Decrease in refundable deposits

Acquisition of intangible assets

Increase in other financial assets

Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets

Dividends received

Net cash outflow from investment
activities

Cash flow from financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings
Repayment of corporate bonds
Borrowing of long-term loans
Repayment of long-term loans
Increase in deposits received
Decease in deposits received
Repayment of lease liability principal
Cash capital increase
Acquisition of equity in subsidiaries
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing
activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year

2023 2022
($ 99,984 ) ($ 83,496 )
8,339 -
. ( 1,015)
- 16,622
41,313 -
- 18,975
( 119,749) ( 938,620 )
1,839 -
29 35
( 1,143) ( 395)
( 220,178) ( 91)
( 448) 74,646

12,718

( 377.264)
180,845
( 339,406 )
580,000
( 142,857)
( 1,000)
( 20,476)

( 131.444)

125,662

2,794

( 426,837)
1,208,590

3 781,753

4,679

( 908.660 )
( 1,338420)

( 125,000 )

1,000

( 30,431)
1,840,000

( 650,977 )

( 303.828 )

103,967

( 247,443)

1,456,033

$ 1,208,590

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the individual financial statements.

(Please refer to the audit report dated March 28, 2024 issued by Deloitte and Touche)

Manager: Huang, Wen-Jui
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Notes to individual financial statements
January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Units: NTD thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Company History

Giga Solar Materials Corporation (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) was
incorporated in Hsinchu Science Park with the approval of the Ministry of Economic
Affairs on July 11, 2003. In December 2011, it established an STSP Branch in the Southern
Taiwan Science Park (STSP). In March 2017, the STSP Branch was abolished. It mainly
engages in the research and development (R&D), manufacturing, and sales of solar
conductive plasma. The Company’s stock has been traded on Taipei Exchange since
November 18, 2010.

The individual financial statements are presented in NTD, the functional currency of
the Company.

Date and Procedures for Approval of individual Financial Statements

The individual financial statements were approved by the board meeting on March 28,
2024.

Application of New and Revised Standards and Interpretation

(1) First-time application of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”),
International Accounting Standards (“IAS”), Interpretations (“IFRICs”) and
Interpretations (“SICs”) (hereinafter referred to as “IFRSs”) endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”) and issued to be effective

The adoption of the IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC will not
result in significant changes in the Company’s accounting policies.

(2) IFRSs endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission and applicable in 2024.

New/Revised/Amended Standards and Effective date of IASB
Interpretations publication (Note 1)
Amendments to IFRS 16, “Lease Liability in a Sale January 1, 2024 (Note 2)
and Leaseback”
Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities January 1, 2024
as Current or Non-current”
Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with January 1, 2024
Covenants”
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 "Supplier January 1, 2024 (Note 3)
Financing Arrangements"
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Note 1: Unless otherwise stated, the aforementioned new/amended/revised standards
or interpretation are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
the respective dates.

Note 2: The seller and lessee shall apply the amendments to IFRS 16 retrospectively
to the sale and leaseback carried out after the date of initial application of
IFRS 16.

Note 3: When this amendment is first implemented, certain disclosure requirements
shall be exempted.

1.  Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”
(amendments in 2020) and Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants” (amendments in 2022)

The amendments in 2020 aims to clarify whether a liability is classified as
non-current; the Company should assess whether it has the right to defer
settlement of liabilities at the end of the reporting period for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. If the Company has such a right as of the end of the
reporting period, the liability is classified as non-current whether or not the
Company exercises its right to defer settlement of a liability.

The amendment in 2020 aims to clarify if the Company is required to
comply with certain conditions in order to have the right to defer settlement of
a liability. The Company must have complied with specific conditions as of the
end of the reporting period, even if the lender tests whether the Company has
complied with those conditions at a later date. The amendments in 2022 further
clarify that only the terms of the contracts to be observed before the end of the
reporting period affect the classification of liabilities. Although the terms of the
contracts to be observed within 12 months after the reporting period do not
affect the classification of liabilities, relevant information shall be disclosed to
enable users of financial reports to understand the risk that the Company may
not be able to comply with the terms of the contracts and shall make
repayments within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amendment in 2020 provides the purpose to clarify that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, other economic resources or
equity instruments of the Company that results in the extinguishment of the
liability. However, if the terms of the liability may result in transferring the

Consolidated Company’s equity instruments at the option of the counterparty,
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and if the option is separately recognized in equity in accordance with IAS 32,

“Financial Instruments: Presentation,” the above-mentioned provisions do not
affect the classification of the liability.

In addition to the impacts above, the Company assesses that the amendments to

other standards and interpretations will not have a significant impact on the financial

position and financial performance as of the date of issuance of this individual

financial report.

The IFRSs released by the IASB but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the
FSC
Effective date of IASB

New/Revised/Amended Standards and Interpretations publication (Note 1)
Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or Undecided

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Affiliate or Joint Venture”
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS 17 January 1, 2023

Amendment to IFRS 17 “First application of IFRS 17  January 1, 2023
and IFRS 9 — comparative information”
Amendments to IAS 21 "Lack of Convertibility" January 1, 2025 (Note 2)

Note 1: Unless otherwise stated, the aforementioned new/amended/revised standards
or interpretation are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
the respective dates.

Note 2: For annual reporting periods beginning after January 1, 2025. When the
amendment is applied for the first time, the effect is recognized in the
retained earnings on the date of initial application. When the consolidated
Company uses a non-functional currency as the presentation currency, it will
affect the exchange differences of foreign operations under equity on the
date of initial application.

1. Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or Contribution of Assets between

an Investor and its Affiliate or Joint Venture”

The amendment provides that if the Company sells or contributes an asset
to an affiliate (or joint venture), or if the Company loses control of a subsidiary
but retains significant influence (or joint control) over the subsidiary, the
Company shall recognize all of the gains or losses from such transactions if the
aforementioned asset or subsidiary meets the definition of “business” in

“business merger” under IFRS 3.
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In addition, if the Company sells or contributes an asset to an affiliate (or
joint venture), or if the Company loses control of a subsidiary but retains
significant influence (or joint control) over the subsidiary, the Company shall
recognize gains and losses from such transactions only to the extent that they
are not related to the investor’s interest in the affiliate (or joint venture), i.e.
they are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s share of such gains and
losses if the aforementioned asset or subsidiary does not meet the definition of
“business” in “business merger” under I[FRS 3.

In addition to the above effects, the Company will continue to evaluate the
effect of the amendment to other standards on the financial positions and
performance of the Company to the date the individual financial statements are

approved and released, and will make appropriate disclosure after the evaluation.

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1

)

Compliance Statement
The individual financial statements were prepared in accordance with the

Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Statements by Securities Issuers.

Basis of preparation
This individual financial report is prepared on a historical cost basis, except for

financial instruments at fair value and net defined benefit liabilities recognized at the

present value less net defined benefit liabilities recognized at the fair value of plan
assets.

The evaluation of fair value could be classified into Level 1 to Level 3 by the
observable intensity and importance of the related input value:

1. Level 1 input value: refers to the quotation of the same asset or liability in an
active market as of the evaluation (before adjustment).

2. Level 2 input value: refers to the direct (the price) or indirect (inference of
price) observable input value of asset or liability further to the quotation of
Level 1.

3. Level 3 input value: the unobservable input value of asset or liability.

When preparing the individual financial statements, the Company processed the
investment in subsidiaries and associates under the equity method. In order to make
the same the current profit or loss, other comprehensive income and equity in the
individual financial statements as the current year’s profit or loss, other

comprehensive income and equity attributable to the owners of the Company in the
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Q)

consolidated financial statements, certain accounting differences between the

individual basis and consolidated basis are adjusted for “investments using the equity

method,” “share of profit or loss of subsidiaries and associates using the equity
method,” “share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and associates using
the equity method” and related equity items.

Standards in differentiating current and non-current assets and liabilities

Current assets include:

1. Assets held primarily for trading purposes;

2. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months of the balance sheet date; and

3. Cash

Current liabilities include:

1. Liabilities held primarily for trading purposes;

2. Liabilities due for settlement within 12 months after the balance sheet date
(current liabilities even if a long-term refinancing or rescheduling agreement is
completed after the balance sheet date and before the financial statements are
authorized for issuance), and

3. Liabilities whose settlement deadline cannot be unconditionally deferred until
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. If the terms of the liability, at
the option of the counterparty, result in the settlement of the liability by the
issuance of equity instruments, the classification is not affected.

Those that are not current assets or liabilities above are classified as non-current
assets or liabilities.

Business merger

Business merger is accounted for by the acquisition method. Acquisition-related
costs are recognized as expenses in the year in which the costs are incurred and the
labor services are obtained.

Goodwill is measured as the aggregate of the fair value of the transfer
consideration and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree at the acquisition date over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date acquisition date.

If the measurement of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as
a result of a business merger is not yet complete, a provisional amount is recognized

at the balance sheet date, and retroactive adjustments or additional assets or liabilities
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(6)

are recognized in the measurement period to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances existing at the date of acquisition.
Foreign currencies

For the transactions conducted in a currency other than the business entity’s
functional currency (foreign currency), it is to be translated to the functional currency
in accordance with the exchange rate on the transaction date when preparing
financial statements.

Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the closing rate on each
balance sheet date. The exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items or translating monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they occur.

The foreign non-currency items measured at fair value are translated in
accordance with the exchange rate on the fair value determination date and the
exchange difference is booked as profit or loss in the period. However, for the
changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income, the exchange
difference is recorded in other comprehensive income.

The foreign non-currency items measured at historical cost are translated in
accordance with the exchange rate on the transaction date without the need for a
retranslation.

When preparation of the individual financial report, the assets and liabilities of
overseas operating institutions (including the subsidiaries in the countries of business
operation or those using currencies different from the Company’s) were converted to
New Taiwan dollars based on the exchange rate quoted on every balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rate for the period
and the exchange differences are booked in other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventory includes raw materials, supplies, finished goods and work-in-process.
Inventory is valued in accordance with the lower of cost or net realizable value.
When comparing cost and net realizable value, except for the homogeneous
inventories, it is based on the itemized lower of cost or net realizable value. Net
realizable value refers to the estimated sale price under normal circumstances net of
the estimated cost needed to completion and the estimated expenses needed to
consummate the sale. The cost of inventory is calculated using the weighted average

method.

308



(7)

Investments in subsidiaries

The Company adopts the equity method for investment in subsidiaries.

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has control.

Under the equity method, investments in subsidiaries are originally recognized
at cost; the book value after the acquisition date fluctuates along with the distribution
of profit or loss from the subsidiaries and other comprehensive income by the
Company. Additionally, the change in the interests the Company holds in subsidiaries
is recognized pro rata to the shareholding percentages.

When a change in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary does not
result in a loss of control, it is treated as an equity transaction. The difference
between the carrying amount of the investment and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognized directly in equity.

When the Company’s share of losses in a subsidiary equals or exceeds its
interest in the subsidiary (including the carrying amount of the subsidiary under the
equity method and other long-term interests that are in substance a component of the
Company’s net investment in the subsidiary), the Company continues to recognize
losses in proportion to its equity in the subsidiary.

The excess of the acquisition cost over the Company’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries constituting the business at
the acquisition date is recorded as goodwill, which is included in the carrying amount
of the investment and is not amortized; the excess of the Company’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries constituting the
business at the acquisition date over the acquisition cost is recorded as gain or loss
for the period.

The Company assesses impairment based on the cash-generating units as a
whole in the financial statements and compares their recoverable amounts with their
book values. If the amount of recoverable assets increased in the future, the reversal
of impairment shall be recognized as income. The book value of the reversal of
impaired assets shall not exceed the book value before recognition for impairment
net of amortization. Impairment losses attributable to goodwill must not be reversed
in subsequent periods.

When control over a subsidiary is lost, the Company measures its remaining
investment in the subsidiary at fair value at the date of loss of control. The difference

between the fair value of the remaining investment and the carrying amount of the
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investment at the date of loss of control, if any, is recognized in profit or loss for the
period. In addition, all amounts recognized in other comprehensive income related to
the subsidiary are accounted for on the same basis as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Unrealized gains or losses on downstream transactions with subsidiaries are
eliminated in the individual financial statements. Gains or losses from upstream and
side-stream transactions with subsidiaries are recognized in the individual financial
statements only to the extent that they are not related to the Company’s equity
interest in the subsidiary.

Investment in affiliates

The term “affiliate” as set forth herein denotes an enterprise which has
significant effect upon the Company but is not a subsidiary or a joint venture.

The Company adopts the equity method for investment in associates.

Under the equity method, investments in associates are originally recognized at
cost; the book value after the acquisition date fluctuates along with the distribution of
profit or loss from the associates and other comprehensive income by the Company.
In addition, changes in equity in affiliated companies are recognized on a
proportional basis to shareholdings.

The excess of the acquisition cost over the Consolidated Company’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates at the
acquisition date is recorded as goodwill, which is included in the carrying amount of
the investment and is not amortized; the excess of the Consolidated Company’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associates at the
acquisition date over the acquisition cost is recorded as gain or loss for the period.

If the Company does not subscribe for new shares of an associate in proportion
to its shareholding, resulting in a change in the Consolidated Company’s
shareholding and an increase or decrease in the net equity of the investment, the
increase or decrease is adjusted to capital surplus — change in net worth in associates
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method and investments accounted
for using the equity method. However, if the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced as a result of subscription or acquisition without proportionate shareholding,
the amount recognized in other comprehensive income related to the associate is
reclassified in proportion to the reduction on the same basis as that required for the

direct disposal of the related assets or liabilities of the associate; if the former
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adjustment is charged to capital surplus and the balance of capital surplus from
investments accounted for using the equity method is insufficient, the difference is
charged to retained earnings.

When the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its equity
interest in the associate (including the carrying amount of the associate under the
equity method and other long-term equity interests that are in substance a component
of the Company’s net investment in the associate), the Company shall cease to
recognize further losses. The Company recognizes additional losses and liabilities
only to the extent that legal obligations, constructive obligations or payments on
behalf of associates have been incurred.

The Company assesses impairment by comparing the recoverable amount to the
carrying amount of an investment as a whole (including goodwill) as a single asset.
The impairment loss recognized is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of impairment loss
can be recognized to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Company ceases to adopt the equity method from the date its investment
ceases to be an associate, and its retained equity interest in the associate is measured
at fair value. The difference between the fair value and the disposal price and the
carrying amount of the investment on the date of cessation of the equity method is
recognized in profit or loss for the period. In addition, all amounts recognized in
other comprehensive income related to the associate are accounted for on the same
basis as if the Consolidated Company had directly disposed of the associate’s related
assets or liabilities. If an investment in associates becomes a joint venture or an
investment in joint venture becomes an investment in associates, the Company
continues to use the equity method without remeasuring the retained equity interest.

Gains or losses from upstream, downstream and side-stream transactions with
associates are recognized in the individual financial statements only to the extent that
they are not related to the Company’s equity interest in the associates.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant, and equipment shall be recognized based on cost. Subsequent

costing shall be measured on the cost net of accumulated depreciations and

accumulated impairments.
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Except for owned land, which is not depreciated, other property, plant and
equipment are depreciated separately over their useful lives on a straight-line basis
for each significant component. The Company reviews the estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation methods at least at the end of each year and defers
the effect of changes in applicable accounting estimates.

When property, plant and equipment is derecognized, the difference between the
net disposal price and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.
Investment property

Investment property refers to real estate held for the purpose of earning rent or
capital appreciation or both. Investment property also includes land held for future
use that is currently undetermined.

Self-owned investment property is initially measured at cost (including
transaction costs) and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired through a business merger is measured at cost based on the
amount of goodwill recognized on the acquisition date and subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated impairment.

For purposes of impairment tests, goodwill is allocated to each cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units from which the Company expects to benefit as
a result of the merger.

The cash-generating units to which goodwill is allocated are tested annually
(and whenever there is an indication that the units may be impaired) for impairment
by comparing the carrying amount of the units that contain goodwill with their
recoverable amounts. If goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit arises from a
business merger during the year, the unit should be tested for impairment before the
end of the year. If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit to which
goodwill is allocated is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
calculated by first reducing the carrying amount of the allocated goodwill of the
cash-generating unit and then reducing the carrying amount of each asset in
proportion to the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit. Any impairment loss
is recognized directly as loss for the period. Impairment losses attributable to

goodwill must not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Upon disposal of an operation within a cash-generating unit to which goodwill
is allocated, the amount of goodwill associated with the disposed operation is
included in the carrying amount of the operation to determine the disposal gain or
loss.

Intangible assets
1. Acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives acquired separately are initially
measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment. Intangible assets are amortized on a
straight-line basis over their useful lives. The Company reviews the estimated
useful lives, residual values and amortization methods at least at the end of
each year and defers the effect of changes in applicable accounting estimates.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated
impairment.
2. Acquired through business merger
Intangible assets acquired through business merger are recognized at fair
value at the acquisition date and separately from goodwill, and are
subsequently measured in the same manner as intangible assets acquired
separately.
3. Derecognition
When intangible assets are derecognized, the difference between the net
disposal price and the carrying amount of the assets is recognized in profit or
loss for the period.
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
property and intangible assets (excluding goodwill)

The Company assesses on each balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, investment
property and intangible assets (other than goodwill) may have been impaired. If there
is any indication of impairment, the recoverable amount of the asset should be
estimated. If the recoverable amount of an individual asset cannot be estimated, the
Company is to estimate the recoverable amount of the respective cash-generating
unit. Shared assets are allocated to individual cash-generating units on a reasonably

consistent basis.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication of
impairment.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. When the recoverable amount of an individual asset or a
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit should be reduced to its recoverable amount. The impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss.

When the impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the adjusted recoverable amount,
provided that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
(net of amortization or depreciation) that would have become if the impairment loss
had not been recognized in prior years for that asset or cash-generating unit. Reversal
of impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

When the Company has become a party to the instrument contract, the financial
assets and financial liabilities are to be recognized in the individual balance sheet.

For the initial recognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities, if the
financial assets or financial liabilities are not measured at fair value through profit or
loss, it is measured at fair value plus transaction cost that is directly attributable to
the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or financial liabilities. The transaction
cost directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets or financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value through profit or loss is immediately
recognized in profit or loss.

1. Financial assets

The regular transaction of financial assets is recognized and derecognized

in accordance with the trade date accounting.

(1) Type of measurement

The types of financial assets held by the Company are financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at amortized
cost, and investments in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or
loss include investments in equity instruments investments not
designated by the Consolidated Company as being measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, and investments in debt
instruments not qualified for classification as being measured at
amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, while dividends, interests and gains or losses arising
from remeasurement are recognized in other gains and losses. Please
refer to Note 29 for the determination of fair value.

. Financial assets at amortized cost

The Company’s financial assets, if meeting both of the following
conditions, are classified as financial assets at amortized cost:

a. Financial assets held under a particular mode of operation and the
purpose of holding is for the collection of contractual cash flows;
and

b. The terms of the contracts give rise to cash flows at specified dates
that are solely for the payment of principal and interest on the
outstanding principal amount.

Financial assets (including cash, accounts receivable measured at
amortized cost), after initial recognition, are measured at their total
carrying amount determined using the effective interest method, less
amortized cost of any impairment loss, with any foreign currency
exchange gain or loss recognized in profit or loss.

Interest income is calculated by multiplying the effective interest
rate by the total carrying amount of the financial assets, except for the
following two cases.

a. Interest income on financial assets that are credit-impaired upon
acquisition or creation is calculated using the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate multiplied by the amortized cost of the

financial assets.
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b. Interest income on financial assets that are not credit-impaired
upon acquisition or creation but become credit-impaired
subsequently is calculated using the effective interest rate
multiplied by the amortized cost of the financial assets from the
next reporting period after the impairment.

Credit-impaired financial assets are those for which the issuer or
the debtor has experienced significant financial difficulties, defaulted,
or where it is probable that the debtor will declare bankruptcy or other
financial reorganization, or where an active market for the financial
assets has disappeared due to financial difficulties.

Cash equivalents include time deposits that are highly liquid,
readily convertible into fixed amount of cash with minimal risk of
changes in value within twelve months from the acquisition date and

are used to meet short-term cash commitments.

. Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income

The Company may make an irrevocable choice at the time of
initial recognition for designating the investment of equity instruments
not available-for-sale and not recognized by the acquirer under
corporate merger and acquisition or with consideration at fair value
through other comprehensive income for measurement.

Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income is measured at fair value. Subsequent changes
in fair value will be recognized as other comprehensive income and
accumulated into other equity. In the disposition of assets,
accumulated gains or loss shall be directly transferred to retained
earnings without classification as profit or loss.

The dividend of the investment of equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income shall be recognized as income
when the right of the Company in the collection of dividends is
ascertained, unless the dividend is obviously representing the recovery

of the cost of investment in part.

Impairment of financial assets
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The Company at each balance sheet date assesses the impairment
loss of financial assets (including accounts receivable) at amortized cost
according to the expected credit loss.

An allowance is recognized for losses on accounts receivable based
on expected credit losses over the life. Other financial assets are first
evaluated to determine whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If there is no significant increase, an
allowance for loss is recognized based on the expected credit loss over 12
months, and if there is a significant increase, an allowance for loss is
recognized based on the expected credit loss over the duration.

Expected credit loss is a weighted average credit loss based on the
risk of default. Expected credit loss in a 12-month period represents the
expected credit loss arising from possible defaults of the financial
instruments within 12 months after the reporting date, and the ongoing
expected credit loss represents the expected credit loss arising from all
possible defaults of the financial instruments during the expected life of
the financial instruments.

For internal credit risk management purposes, the Company, without
considering the collateral, determines the following -circumstances
indicating that a default has occurred on the financial assets:

A. There is internal or external information showing that the debtor has
been unable to pay off the debt.

B. Payments are overdue for more than 90 days, unless there is
reasonable and supporting information showing that the delayed
default benchmark is more appropriate.

The carrying amount of all financial assets is reduced through an
allowance account
The derecognition of financial assets

The Company has financial assets derecognized only when the
contractual rights from the cash flows of a financial asset become invalid
or when the financial assets are transferred, and almost all the risks and
rewards of the asset ownership have been transferred to other enterprises.

When a particular entry of financial assets measured at amortized

cost is removed, the difference between its book value and consideration
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shall be recognized as income. When particular equity instruments

measured at fair value through comprehensive income are entirely

derecognized, the accumulated gains of loss shall be directly transferred
to retained earnings without being classified as profit or loss.
Equity instruments

The debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as
financial liabilities or equity pursuant to the contractual agreements and the
definition of financial liabilities and equity instruments.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized for an amount
after deducting the direct issuing cost from the proceeds collected.

The Company’s equity instruments repurchased are recognized and
deducted under equity, and the carrying amounts are calculated using the
weighted average method based on the stock types. The Company’s equity
purchased, sold, issued, or cancelled is not recognized in the profit or loss.
Financial liabilities
(1) Subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method.
(2) Derecognition of financial liabilities
When derecognizing financial liabilities, the difference between the
carrying amount and the consideration paid (including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized as profit or loss.
Convertible corporate bonds

The compound financial instruments (convertible corporate bonds) issued
by the Company are classified as financial liabilities and equity respectively in
the original recognition according to the substance of the contractual agreement
and the definition of financial liabilities and equity instruments.

In the original recognition, the fair value of the liability is estimated
according to the prevailing market interest rate of a similar non-convertible
instrument; also, it is measured at the amortized cost that is calculated
according to the effective interest method before the conversion or maturity
date. The liability of an embedded non-equity derivative is measured at fair

value.
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The conversion right classified as equity is equal to the remaining amount
of the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole less the fair value of
the separately determined liability component, which is recognized in equity
net of the income tax effect and is not subsequently measured. When the
conversion right is exercised, its related liability component and the amount in
equity will be transferred to capital stock and capital surplus — issue premium.
If the conversion right of convertible corporate bonds has not been exercised
on the maturity date, the amount recognized in equity will be transferred to
capital surplus — issue premium.

Transaction costs related to the issuance of convertible bonds are allocated
to the liability (included in the carrying amount of the liability) and the equity
component (included in equity) of the instrument in proportion to the total
allocation price.

The components of conversion rights contained in convertible bonds
issued by the Company are classified as derivative financial liabilities if the
conversion rights are not settled by exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other
financial assets for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments.

On initial recognition, the derivative portion of convertible bonds is
measured at fair value, and the original carrying amount of the non-derivative
portion of financial liabilities is the balance after separation of embedded
derivatives. In subsequent periods, non-derivative financial liabilities are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method and derivative
financial liabilities are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss. Transaction costs related to the issuance of
convertible bonds are allocated to the non-derivative financial liability portion
of the instrument (included in the carrying amount of the liability) and the
derivative financial liability portion (included in profit or loss) in proportion to
their relative fair values.

(15) Hedging instruments
The Company uses precious metal borrowing contracts for fair value hedge.
Changes in the fair value of hedging instruments designated and qualifying as
fair value hedge and changes in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the

risk being hedged are recognized immediately in profit or loss and are recognized in
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the individual comprehensive income statement under the line item relating to the
hedged item.

The Company defers the cessation of hedge accounting only when the hedging
relationship no longer meets the requirements for hedge accounting, including when
the hedging instrument has expired, been sold, unbundled by contract or exercised.

(16) Provision for liabilities

The amount recognized as provision for liabilities is the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account
the risk and uncertainty of the obligation. The provision for liabilities is measured as
the present value of the discounted estimated cash flows to settle the obligation.

(17) Revenue recognition

The Company, after identifying the performance obligations, had the transaction
price amortized to each performance obligation and recognized as income when the
performance obligations were fulfilled.

1. Merchandise sales revenues

The Company recognizes revenue when the promised product is delivered
to the customer and the customer obtains control (i.e. the customer’s ability to
direct the use of the product and obtain substantially all of the residual benefits
of the product), based on the price stated in the contract (solar conductive
plasma products are the main ones).

The credit period for goods sold by the Company is 30 to 180 days. For
most contracts, the accounts receivable are recognized when the control of the
goods is transferred and there is the right to unconditionally receive the
consideration. Such accounts receivable are usually short term and have no
significant financial components.

(18) Leases

The Company assesses whether the contract is (or includes) a lease on the
effective contract date.

1. The Company is the lessor

A lease is classified as a capital lease when the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the asset
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Under operating leases, lease payments, net of lease incentives, are

recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease period.
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2. The Company is the lessee

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease
inception date, except for leases of low-value underlying assets to which the
recognition exemption applies and short-term leases for which lease payments
are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease period.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost (the original measured
amount of the lease liability) and subsequently at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, adjusted for the remeasurement
of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets are expressed separately in the
individual balance sheet.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
period starting from the lease inception date to the end of their useful lives or
the expiration of the lease period, whichever is sooner.

The lease liability was originally measured at the present value of the
lease payments (both fixed and substantively constant). If the implicit interest
rate of the lease is readily determinable, the lease payments are discounted
using that rate. If that rate is not readily determinable, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used.

Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, and interest expense is amortized over the lease
period. If a change in the index used to determine lease payments during the
lease term results in a change in future lease payments, the Company
remeasures the lease liability and adjusts the right-of-use asset accordingly.
However, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero, the
remaining remeasurement amount is recognized in profit or loss. The lease
liabilities are expressed separately in the individual balance sheet.

(19) Government grants
Government subsidies are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that
the enterprise will comply with the conditions attached to the government subsidy
and that the subsidy will be received.
Government subsidies related to income are recognized in other income on a
systematic basis over the period in which the related costs for which they are

intended to compensate are recognized as expenses by the Company.
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Government subsidies are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which

they become collectible if they are intended to compensate for expenses or losses

already incurred or to provide immediate financial support to the Company and have

no future related costs.

(20) Employee benefits

1.

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities relating to short-term employee benefits are measured by the
non-discounted amount of the expected payment in exchange for employee
services.

Post-employment benefits

Under defined contribution pension plan, the pension amount appropriated
during the service years of the employees is recognized as an expense.

The defined benefit cost (including service cost, net interest and
remeasurement) of defined benefit pension plan is actuarially determined using
the projected unit credit method. Service cost (including current service cost)
and net interest on net defined benefit liabilities (assets) are recognized as
employee benefit expense as incurred. Remeasurements (including actuarial
gains and losses and return on plan assets, net of interest) are recognized in
other comprehensive income and included in retained earnings as incurred and
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The net defined benefit liability (asset) represents the deficit (remaining)
of the defined benefit pension plan appropriation. The net defined benefit asset
may not exceed the present value of refunds of appropriations from the plan or

reductions in future appropriations.

(21) Share-based payment agreement

1.

Employee stock options and shares with restricted employee rights granted to
the Company’s employees from subsidiaries

The employee stock options and restricted stock awards granted by
subsidiaries to the employees of the Company are considered as distributions to
the Company, measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date, and recognized as expenses over the vesting period, with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment in the subsidiary.

Employee stock options granted to the employees of the Company
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Employee stock options are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period based on the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date and the best estimate of the number expected to be vested, with an
adjustment to capital surplus — employee stock options at the same time. If the
vesting is made immediately on the grant date, the full cost is recognized on
the grant date. The Company reserves shares for employee subscription at the
time of cash capital increase and recognizes the date as the grant date when the

number of shares to be subscribed by employees is confirmed.

(22) Income tax

tax.

1.

Income tax expense is the sum of the current income tax and deferred income

Current income tax

Additional Income tax on unappropriated earnings calculated in
accordance with the ROC Income Tax Act is recognized in the year in which
resolutions are made at the shareholders’ meeting.

The adjustment to prior years’ income tax payable is booked as current
period’s income tax.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities and the tax bases used to compute taxable
income.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, while deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which income tax credits
can be utilized, such as deductions for temporary differences, loss
carryforwards and investment tax credits.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates, except where the
Company can control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments only to the extent that it is

probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow the temporary
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differences to be realized and to the extent that a reversal is expected in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed on each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
tax assets will be available to allow recovery of all or part of the asset. part of
the asset should be adjusted down. Deferred tax assets that are not recognized
as such initially are reviewed on each balance sheet date and the carrying
amount is increased to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available to recover all or part of the assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realized, which are based on tax rates and tax laws that have been legislated or
substantively legislated on the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred
income tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequence resulting from the
book value of the assets or liabilities expected to be recovered or liquidated on
the balance sheet date.

3. Current and deferred tax

Current and deferred income taxes are recognized in the profit or loss,
except for the current and deferred income taxes related to the items recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly included in the equity are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly included in the equity.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimations, and Main Sources of Assumption

Uncertainties

When adopting accounting policies, the Company’s management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that are based on historical experience and other
factors that are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from
estimates.

Estimations, and Main Sources of Assumption Uncertainties

(1) Impairment of inventories
The net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to complete the production and
the estimated costs to complete the sale, which are based on current market
conditions and historical sales experience of similar products. Changes in market

conditions may materially affect the results of these estimates.
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Impairment of Investments in associates

When there is an indication that an investment in an affiliate may be impaired
and the carrying amount may not be recoverable, the Company assesses the
impairment of the investment immediately. The Company’s management assesses
impairment based on future cash flow projections of the associates, including
assumptions on sales growth and capacity utilization as estimated by the associates’
internal management. The Company also considers the relevant market and industry
conditions to determine the reasonableness of its relevant assumptions.
Estimate of goodwill impairment

In determining whether goodwill is impaired, the value in use of the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill is allocated is estimated. For value-in-use
calculations, management should estimate the future cash flows expected to be
generated from the cash-generating units and determine the appropriate discount rate
to be used in the present value calculation. If actual cash flows are less than

expected, a significant impairment loss may occur.

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Cash on hand and petty cash $ 562 $ 387
Demand deposits in banks 504,846 683,943
Cash equivalents
Time deposits in banks 276,345 524,260
$ 781,753 $ 1,208,590
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Financial assets — non-current
Mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Non-derivative financial assets
- Funds $ 34,253 $ 33,560

The Company’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are not provided as

guarantee.
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Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Investment in equity instruments —
non-current
TWSE-/TPEx-listed stocks
TSEC CORPORATION $ - $ 3,472
Stocks listed on emerging stock
market
Long Time Tech. Co., Ltd. 256,160 256,160
Unlisted stocks
Foresight Energy
Technology 96,000 -
Yusheng Energy Co., Ltd. 60,000 60,000
Big Sun Energy
Technology Inc. 5,625 5,625
Adjustments to the valuation of
financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (__98.739) 35.886
$319,046 $361,143

The Company invests in the common stock of the Company listed above for medium-
to long-term strategic purposes and expects to earn a profit from the long-term investment.
The Company’s management believes that it would be inconsistent with the
aforementioned long-term investment plan to include short-term fair value fluctuations of
these investments in profit or loss, and has therefore elected to designate these investments
as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company’s financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not provided as guarantee.

In March 2022, the Company participated in the cash capital increase of ACRO
Biomedical Co., Ltd. and acquired 4,000,000 ordinary shares, and also purchased 1,000
shares from the open market, with a total investment amount of NT$80,024 thousand. As
this is a long-term strategic investment, it has been designated as a financial asset
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company has served as a corporate director of ACRO Biomedical Co. Ltd. since
June 24, 2022, it has gained a significant influence on the latter, so said investment is

accounted for using the equity method.
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In July 2021 and August 2023, the Company participated in the cash capital increase
by TSEC CORPORATION and acquired 131 thousand and 147 thousand shares in the
amount of NT$3,472 thousand and NT$3,984 thousand, respectively.

In August 2023, the Company participated in the cash capital increase of Foresight
Energy Technology and acquired 3,200,000 ordinary shares, with an investment amount of
NT$96,000 thousand. As this is a long-term strategic investment, it has been designated as
a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Due to its investment strategy, the Company sold and derecognized certain
investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
Information related to the derecognition during 2023 and 2022 is as follows.

2023 2022

Fair value at the date of

derecognition. $ 8,339 $ 80,700
Accumulated gain on disposal of

retained earnings transferred from

other equity ( 884) ( 676)

Notes receivable, accounts receivable and other receivables

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Notes receivables

Measured at amortized cost
Total book value $ 318 $ 134
Less: allowance for loss - -

$ 318 $ 134
Accounts receivables
Measured at amortized cost
Total book value $ 524,823 $ 607,206
Less: allowance for loss (___173.156) (__173,497)
$ 351,667 $ 433,709
Accounts receivable — related party
Measured at amortized cost
Total book value $ 131,397 $ 172,363
Less: allowance for loss ( 38) -
$ 131,359 $ 172,363
Other receivables
Tax refund receivable $ 20,685 $ 18,060
Other receivables — other 23,447 19,467
Less: allowance for loss ( 17,949) ( 17,949)
26,183 19,578
Other receivables — related party 697,614 593,232
$ 723,797 $ 612,810
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Notes and accounts receivable

The Company’s notes and accounts receivable are not provided as guarantee.

The average credit period of the Company’s product sales ranges from 30 to 180
days.

Each unit of the Company manages credit risk in accordance with its policies,
procedures and controls over credit risk. The credit risk of all counterparties is
evaluated by taking into account the financial condition of the counterparties, the
ratings of credit rating agencies, historical transaction experience, the current
economic environment and the Company’s internal rating standards. The Company
also uses certain credit enhancement tools (such as advance receipts) at appropriate
times to reduce the credit risk of specific counterparties.

The Finance Department manages the credit risk of bank deposits, fixed-income
securities and other financial instruments in accordance with the Company’s policies.
Since the Corporation’s counterparties are determined by internal control procedures
and are creditworthy banks and investment-grade financial institutions, corporate
organizations and government agencies, there is no significant credit risk.

The Company recognizes an allowance for losses on accounts receivable based
on expected credit losses over the life of the receivables. Expected credit losses for
the duration are calculated using a reserve matrix, which takes into account the
customer’s past default history and current financial condition, the economic
situation of the industry, as well as industry outlook. Accounts receivable are
classified into groups by considering the credit rating of counterparties, regions and
industries, and a reserve matrix is used to measure the allowance for loss.

If there is evidence that the counterparty is in serious financial difficulty and the
Company cannot reasonably expect to recover the amount, the Company shall
directly write off the related notes and accounts receivable but shall engage in
recourse activities and recognize the amount recovered in profit or loss as a result of
the recourse.

The Company measured the allowance for losses on notes and accounts

receivable based on the reserve matrix as follows.
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December 31, 2023

1-60 days past 61-120 days past

Over 121 days

Not past due due due past due Total

Expected credit

impairment loss - 0%~0.86% - 100%
Total book value § 469,488 $ 11,734 $ 2,178 $ 173,138 § 656,538
Allowance for loss

(expected credit

loss during the

life) - ( 56) - ( 173.138) ( 173.194)
Amortized cost §  469.488 $ 11,678 $ 2,178 $ - § 483344

December 31, 2022

1-60 days past 61-120 days past
Not past due due due

Over 121 days
past due Total

Expected credit

impairment loss 0%~1% 0%~1% 15%~100%

44,373 $

Total book value $ 488,628 $ 73,560 $ 173,142 $ 779,703
Allowance for loss

(expected credit

loss during the

life) ( 56) ( 302) - ( 173.139) ( 173.497)
Amortized cost S 488,572 $ 73,258 S 44,373 S 3 S 606.206

Information on changes in allowance for losses on notes and accounts

receivable is as follows:

2023 2022
Balance at the beginning of the
year $173,497 $177,841
Reversal impairment loss for the
year ( 303) (  6,675)
Recovery of bad debts written off - 2,331
Balance at the end of the year $173,194 $173,497

The changes in the allowance for loss as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 were
due to the combined effect of changes in notes and accounts receivable and the net

increase in total carrying amount for different aging risk groups.

Inventories

Raw materials (Note)

Work in process

Finished goods

Merchandise
Total

December 31, 2023

$694,937
12,668
8,725

3

$716,333

December 31, 2022
$521,035
10,011
36,830

$567,876

Note: As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the valuation gains (losses) of the borrowed

silver ingots were NT$(12,239 thousand and NT$11,020 thousand, respectively.
The costs of sales related to inventories in 2023 and 2022 were NT$1,797,157

thousand and NT$2,801,798 thousand, respectively. Costs of sales include the gain on
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inventory valuation recovery) of NT$1,471 thousand and NT$6,760 thousand. The
above-mentioned recovery of net realizable value of inventory is recognized as recovery
benefits because the factors that previously caused the net realizable value of inventory
to be lower than the cost have disappeared.

The Company has a contract with a raw material supplier to borrow silver ingots
for production, which is repayable in kind within one year plus interest. As of December
31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had NT$615,782 thousand and NT$439,979 thousand,
respectively, of silver ingots borrowed and outstanding, which were recorded under
inventory and financial liabilities (for hedging), respectively, and interest expense was
appropriately estimated.

No guarantee has been provided for the Company’s inventory.

Investment using the equity method

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Investments in subsidiaries $ 2,857,469 $ 3,036,968
Investment in affiliate 328.176 510,735
$ 3,185,645 $ 3,547,703
(1) Investments in subsidiaries
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Whole Sun Green Power Co., Ltd. $ 1,509,483 $ 1,468,705
Giga Solar Materials Corporation
(Mauritius) 811,996 890,893
Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
(Note 1) 382,079 370,688
Green Energy Electrode, Inc. (Note
2) 157,027 308,880
Unrealized profits on sales ( 3.116) ( 2.198)
$ 2,857,469 $ 3,036,968
Shareholding
percentage
Main Business ~ December December
Company name Business nature Location 31,2023 31,2022
Whole Sun Green Power Co., Ltd. Solar Energy Related Hukou Township,  100.00%  100.00%
Business Hsinchu County
Giga Solar Materials Corporation Investor Mauritius 100.00%  100.00%
(Mauritius)
Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. Manufacturing of metal Xitun District, 34.03% 34.23%
wire products, Taichung

manufacturing of
electronic components,
trading and other related

businesses
Green Energy Electrode Inc. Manufacturing and trading Hukou Township, 52.81% 52.81%
of energy materials Hsinchu County
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd., on June 17, 2022, resolved a decision
to issue 2,000,000 shares of restricted stock awards. The record date for the
capital increase was July 31, 2022. After the issuance, the Company’s
shareholding decreased from 34.69% to 34.01%. The Company purchased a
total of 222 thousand shares and 375 thousand shares in Hua Hsu Silicon
Materials Co., Ltd. between October 2022 to December 2023, resulting in
an increase in its shareholding from 34.01% to 34.23%, and from 34.23% to
34.59%. In addition, Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. resolved to
conduct a cash capital increase in its board of directors meeting on May 2,
2023, with the record date set as June 29, 2023. After the capital increase,
the Company's shareholding ratio decreased from 34.59% to 34.00%. Hua
Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. resolved to recall and cancel 122,000
restricted shares of employee stock in its board of directors meeting on
August 9, 2023, with the capital reduction record date set as August 10,
2023. After the capital reduction, the Company's shareholding ratio
increased from 34.00% to 34.03%.

The board of directors of Green Energy Electrode Inc., on October 4, 2022,
resolved a decision to issue 10,000 thousand new shares for cash capital
increase at NT$36 per share. The capital increase record date was November
23, 2022. After the issuance, the Company’s shareholding increased from
48.39% to 52.81%.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented as “investments using the equity
method” in the individual financial statements, with necessary valuation
adjustments made.

The subsidiaries of the Company have been included in the consolidated
entities for the preparation of consolidated financial statements in

accordance with regulations.

Note 5: No collateral was provided for the above investments in subsidiaries.

Investment in affiliates

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Associates of no materiality
Tron Energy Technology
Corporation $260,035 $432.523
ACRO Biomedical Co.
Ltd. 68,141 78,212
$328,176 $510,735
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Percentage of ownership
interests and voting rights

held
Main Business December  December
Company name Business nature Location 31,2023 31,2022

Tron Energy Technology Electric buses, diesel Taoyuan City 10.40% 10.40%
Corporation buses/battery

systems/energy storage

systems
ACRO Biomedical Co. Ltd. Manufacturing and Kaohsiung City 4.74% 7.81%

wholesale of medical

devices

Due to the provision of important technical information and serving as a
director of Tron Energy Technology Corporation, the Company has gained
significant impact on Tron Energy Technology Corporation The goodwill of the
company acquired is NT$293,538 thousand, which is the cost of investing in
affiliated enterprises.

The Company invested in the stock in ACRO Biomedical Co. Ltd. in March
2022 and estimated to make profits through long-term investment. Initially, the
Consolidated Company elected to designate the investment as at fair value through
other comprehensive income, but because the Company has served as a corporate
director of ACRO Biomedical Co., Ltd. since June 24, 2022 and, thus, gained
significant influence on the company. Therefore, the former adopted the equity
method to account for the investment.

The Company sold a total of 1,101 thousand shares in ACRO Biomedical Co.
Ltd. from July to December 2023, resulting in an decrease in its shareholding from
7.81% to 4.74%.

In 2023, the Company assessed the investment in its associate, Tron Energy
Technology Corporation, which is accounted for using the equity method. The
Company's management has performed an impairment test on this investment,
comparing its carrying amount to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
this investment was measured based on its value in use. The value in use was
calculated based on the estimated cash flows generated from the associate's
operations and the cash flows from the ultimate disposal of the investment,
discounted at an annual rate of 14.7% to determine the present value of the
Company's share. Based on the evaluation, as the recoverable amount was less than

the carrying amount, an impairment loss of NT$127,504 thousand was recognized.
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This impairment loss has been included in the other gains and losses section of the
individual statement of comprehensive income.

The aggregate financial information of the Company’s investments in the
aforementioned affiliates, which are not material to the Company, based on their
respective shares, is presented below:

2023 2022

Net losses from continuing
operations for the year ($ 48,100) ($ 27,439)
Other comprehensive income ( 17) 286

Total comprehensive income ($ 48,117) ($ 27,153)

No collateral was provided for the above investments in associates.

Property, plant and equipment

(M

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Self-use $ 1,211,049 $ 1,172,182
Operating lease lease-out 6,065 15,697
$1,217,114 $ 1,187,879
Self-use
Houses and Machinery Office Miscellaneous Unfinished
Land buildings equif equif R&D equip equif construction Total
Costs
Balance on January
1,2023 $ 922,106 $ 213,772 $ 228,284 $ 4,464 $ 303,485 $ 23,732 $ - $ 1,695,843
Additions - 14,926 8,688 4,591 2,800 1,303 - 32,308
Disposal - ( 6973 ) ( 41475)  ( 25) ( 87207 ) ( 6,066 ) - ( 141,946 )
Transfer - 9,063 ( 782 ) - 782 - - 9,063
Other changes - 31.077 34.812 5.123 2,371 - 73.383
Balance as of
December 31, 2023 $ 922,106 $ 261,865 $ 229,527 $ 30 $§ 224983 $ 21.340 $ - $ 1,668,651
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
Balance on January
1,2023 $ - $ 59,903 $ 167,551 $ 2,406 $ 274,239 $ 19,562 $ - $ 523,661
Depreciation expense - 36,136 22,832 1,046 13,031 1,406 - 74,451
Disposal - ( 6235) ( 41474y ( 25) ( 86,951 ) ( 6,066 ) - ( 140,951 )
Transfer - 441 ( 422 ) - 422 - - 441
Balance as of
December 31, 2023 $ - $ 90.245 $ 148487 $ 3227 $ 200741 $ 14,902 $ - $ 457,602
Net as of December
31,2023 $ 922,106 $ 171,620 $ 1.040 $ 5,603 $ 24,242 $ 6,43 $ - $ 1211049
Costs
Balance as of
January 1, 2022 $ 144,521 $ 105,536 $ 183,987 $ 2,369 $ 293,238 $ 20,460 $ 80,000 $ 830,111
Additions 697,585 75,312 4,940 2,095 289 1,868 - 782,089
Disposal - - ( 355) - ( 683) ( 180 ) - ( 1,218 )
Transfer 80,000 - ( 3,689 ) - 3,689 - ( 80,000 ) -
Other changes - 32,924 43.401 - 6.952 1.584 - 84.861
Balance as of
December 31, 2022 $ 922,106 $ 2137972 $ 228284 $ 4,464 $  303.485 $ 23,732 $ - $ 1695843
Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment
Balance as of
January 1, 2022 $ - $ 44,639 $ 153,144 $ 2,121 $ 257,357 $ 18,630 $ - $ 475,891
Depreciation expense - 15,264 14,525 285 17,802 1,112 - 48,988
Disposal - - ( 355) - ( 683) ( 180 ) - ( 1,218 )
Transfer - - 237 - ( 237 ) - - -
Balance as of
December 31, 2022 $ - $ 59.903 $ 167,551 $ 2,406 $ 274239 $ 19.562 $ - $§ 523,661
Net amount as of
December 31, 2022 $ 922,106 $§  153.869 $ 60,733 $ 2,05 $ 29.246 $ 4,170 $ - $ 1,172,182

No impairment loss was recognized or reversed during 2023 and 2022.
Please refer to Note 31 for the amount of land and plant buildings the Company

set as collateral for borrowings.
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Depreciation expense is provided on a straight-line basis over the following

useful lives:

Buildings

Plant buildings and
auxiliary equipment
Machinery equipment
Office equipment

R&D equipment
Miscellaneous equipment

Operating lease lease-out

Costs

Balance on January 1, 2023
Transfer

Balance as of December 31, 2023

Accumulated depreciation
Balance on January 1, 2023
Depreciation expense

Transfer

Balance as of December 31, 2023

Net as of December 31, 2023

Costs

Balance as of January 1, 2022
Additions

Balance as of December 31, 2022

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2022
Depreciation expense

Balance as of December 31, 2022

Net amount as of December 31, 2

022

5 to 37 years

3 to 10 years
1 to 6 years
1 to 6 years
1 to 6 years

3 to 16 years

Houses and
buildings

$ 21,445
(_ 9.063)
$ 12,382

$ 5748
1,010
(___441)

6,317
6,065
$ 12,382

9.063
$ 21,445

$ 4,296
1,452
5,748

$ 15,697

The total amount of lease payments to be received in the future for leasing out

self-owned buildings under operating leases is as follows:

Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5
Over 5 years

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

$ 3,724
3,613
3,613
3,613
3,613

10,840

$ 29,016
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The buildings leased out by the Company under operating leases are depreciated
over the useful life of 12 years.

13. Lease agreements

(1) Right-of-use assets

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Book value of right-of-use
assets
Buildings $ 51,788 $167,780
Transportation equipment 231 370
$ 52,019 $168,150
2023 2022
Addition of right-of-use assets $ - $ 416
Depreciation expense of
right-of-use assets
Buildings $ 20,101 $ 30,556
Transportation equipment 139 150
$ 20,240 $ 30,706
(2) Lease liabilities
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Book value of lease liabilities
Current $ 14,134 $ 30,848
Non-current $ 28,941 $131,417
The discount rate range for lease liabilities is as follows:
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Buildings 1.35% 1.35%~1.5%
Transportation equipment 1.47% 1.47%

(3) Important lease activities and terms

Some of the Company’s real estate lease agreements include lease extension
options. In determining the lease period, the non-cancellable period of the right to
use the subject asset is combined with the period covered by the lease extension
option that is reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company. The use of these
options allows for maximum flexibility in the operation of management contracts.
The majority of the lease extension options available are exercisable by the Company
only. The Company re-evaluates the lease period when a material event or significant
change in circumstances occurs after the commencement date (that is within the

control of the lessee and affects whether the Company can be reasonably certain that
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Q)

it will exercise an option not previously included in the determination of the lease
period).
Information on other leases

Please refer to Notes 12 and 14 for the Company’s agreements on lease-out of

its property, plant and equipment and investment property under operating leases.

2023 2022
Short-term lease expense $ 9,564 $ 2,556
Total cash outflow from leases $ 31,365 $ 35,589

The Company has elected to apply the exemption from recognition to houses
and buildings that qualify as short-term leases and other equipment that qualifies as
low-value asset leases and does not recognize the related right-of-use assets and lease

liabilities for these leases.

Investment property

Investment property is the Company’s own investment property. The Company enters

into commercial property leases for its own investment properties. The leases include

provisions for annual rental adjustments based on market conditions.

Land Buildings Total
Costs
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ 302,278 $ 12,495 $ 314,773
Additions - - -
December 31, 2023 $ 302,278 $ 12,495 $ 314,773
Accumulated depreciation
Balance on January 1, 2023 $ - $ 1,092 $ 1,092
Depreciation expense - 820 820
Balance as of December 31,
2023 $ - $ 1,912 $ 1,912
Net as of December 31, 2023 $ 302,278 $ 10,583 $ 312,861
Costs
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 302,278 $ 12,495 $ 314,773
Additions - - -
December 31, 2022 $ 302,278 $ 12,495 $ 314,773
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ - $ 273 $ 273
Depreciation expense - 819 819
Balance as of December 31,
2022 $ - $ 1,092 $ 1,092
Net amount as of December 31,
2022 $ 302,278 $ 11,403 $ 313,681
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Rental income from investment property

2023

§ 8213

2022

$ 7810

The land and plant buildings purchased by the Company are located in Xiehe Section,

Xitun District, Taichung City, and are to be used by subsidiary Hua Hsu Silicon Materials

Co., Ltd. for operations and production.

No investment property of the Company was provided as collateral.

The Company does not measure its investment property at fair value, but only

discloses information about its fair value, which is in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair values of investment properties held by the Company were NT$353,567 thousand
and NT$344,758 thousand as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. There was no

significant change in the disclosed fair values on balance sheet date. The aforementioned

fair values were determined by using the cash flow analysis method; the main input used

was the discount rate; and the main inputs used and their quantitative information are as

follows:

Discount rate

Intangible assets

Goodwill
Computer software

Costs

Balance on January 1, 2023

Acquired separately

Balance as of December 31,
2023

Accumulated amortization and

December 31, 2023

1.45%

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

1.47%

December 31, 2022

impairment
Balance on January 1, 2023

Amortization expenses
Recognized impairment losses

Balance as of December 31,
2023

Net as of December 31, 2023

$263,559 $276,703

1,150 456

$264,709 $277,159

Computer

Goodwill software Total
$ 276,703 $ 2,138 $ 278,841
- 1,143 1,143
$ 276,703 $ 3,281 $ 279,984
$ - $ 1,682 $ 1,682
- 449 449
13,144 - 13.144
$ 13,144 $ 2,131 $ 15,275
$ 263,559 $ 1,150 $ 264,709
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Computer

Goodwill software Total

Costs
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 276,703 $ 1,743 $ 278,446
Acquired separately - 395 395
Balance as of December 31,

2022 $ 276,703 $ 2,138 $ 278,841
Accumulated amortization and

impairment
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ - $ 1,400 $ 1,400
Amortization expenses - 282 282
Balance as of December 31,

2022 $ - $ 1,682 $ 1,682
Net amount as of December 31,

2022 $ 276,703 $ 456 $ 277,159

Summary of amortization by function.

2023 2022
Administration expenses $ 449 $ 282

Amortization expense is provided on a straight-line basis over the following useful
lives:

Computer software 3 years

In accordance with IAS 36, the Consolidated Company’s goodwill of NT$276,703
thousand arising from the acquisition of EXOJET TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION in
2020 shall be tested for impairment at least annually.

In 2023, the Company evaluated the recoverable amount based on the value in use,
and it was less than the carrying amount. Therefore, the Company recognized an
impairment loss on goodwill of NT$13,144 thousand under other gains and losses, and the
remaining goodwill balance after the recognition came in at NT$263,559 thousand.

The calculation of the value in use is based on the five-year financial projections
approved by the management. The projected cash flows consider the order growth rate and
the market growth scale. The weighted average revenue growth rate is consistent with the
industry report's forecasts. The budgeted gross profit margin is determined based on the
standard gross margin and production volume. A pre-tax discount rate of 13.4% has been

used, which reflects the specific risks of the relevant operating divisions.
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Prepayments and other assets

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Long-term prepaid expenses $267,125 $288,900
Prepayments for equipment 80,929 81,404
Tax overpaid retained 14,632 5,292
Prepaid expenses 4,447 2,407
Refundable deposits 3,613 3,642
Temporary debits 2,576 3,035
Others 1,059 793

$374,381 $385,473
Current $ 44,937 $ 33,750
Non-current 329.444 351,723

$374,381 $385,473

Borrowings

(M

Short-term borrowings

Unsecured borrowings

December 31, 2023

December 31, 2022

Line of credit borrowings $200,000 $100,000
Related party borrowings (Note 30) 80,364 -
$280,364 $100,000

The effective annual interest rates of the above short-term borrowings as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022 ranged from 1.83% to 2.50% and 1.56% to 2.09%,
respectively.

(2) Long-term borrowings

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Secured borrowings
Medium- and long-term bank

borrowings (Note 1) $843,393 $406,250
Portion due within one year (__49.107) (_142.857)
$794,286 $263,393

Note 1: The maturity date of the above-mentioned medium and long-term
borrowings is to be repaid in batches before the end of June 2038. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the interest rates were 1.70% to 1.84%, and
1.50% to 1.65%, respectively.

Note 2: For the Company’ collateral for long-term borrowings, please refer to Note

31.
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Corporate bonds payable

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Domestic unsecured convertible
bonds $ - $339,700
Less: Discount on corporate bonds
payable - ( 294)
Less: portion classified as due within
one year - (_339.406)
$ - $ -

On January 25, 2018, the Company issued its 2nd domestic secured convertible bonds

with the following major terms:

(M
)
3)
4
6))
(6)

(7)

®)

€))

Face value: NT$100 thousand

Issuing price: 100%

Total face value of issue: NT$2,000,000 thousand.

Coupon Rate 0%

Bond period: 5 years (January 25, 2018 through January 25, 2023).

Repayment method: Except for early conversion or reverse repurchase by
bondholders or early redemption by the Company, the Company will repay the bonds
in cash at the face value of the bonds upon maturity.

Redemption right of the corporate bonds: If the closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares exceeds the prevailing conversion price by 30% (inclusive) or more
for 30 consecutive business days from the day after the first month of issuance until
the 40th day after the end of the issuance period, or if the outstanding balance of the
bonds is less than 10% of the original issue amount, the Company may redeem the
outstanding bonds at face value in cash.

Redemption right of bondholders: The benchmark date for the redemption of the
convertible corporate bonds by bondholders is three years after the issuance (January
25, 2021). Bondholders can request the Company to redeem 103.80% of the face
value of the bonds in cash, and request the Taipei Exchange via letter to announce the
exercise of the redemption right of the convertible corporate bondholders 30 days
before the benchmark date for the redemption (December 26, 2020).

Conversion:

1.  Bondholders may, from the day after the expiration of one month after the

issuance date to 10 days before the expiration date, apply to the Company for
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conversion into its ordinary shares in accordance with the provisions of

relevant laws and regulations. As of December 31, 2023, bondholders have

requested the conversion of a total of one lot of corporate bonds with a face
value of NT$100 thousand, and requested the conversion into 432 ordinary

shares of the Company. The capital increase benchmark date was May 14, 2021,

and the change registration was completed on June 11, 2021.

Conversion price: The conversion price at issuance was set at NT$253.31 per

share.

Adjustment to conversion price

(1) After the issuance of corporate bonds, the conversion price shall be
adjusted when the number of issued (or private placement) ordinary
shares of the Company increases (including, but not limited to, rights
shares, capital increase from earnings, capital increase from capital
surplus, issuance of new shares for merger or for acquiring shares of
other companies, stock split and rights shares to sponsor the issuance of
overseas depositary receipts, by way of subscription or private
placement), except for the conversion of ordinary shares by issuing
various marketable securities with conversion options of ordinary shares.

(2) If the ratio of cash dividends to the current price per share exceeds 1.5%,
the conversion price shall be reduced by the ratio of the current price per
share on the ex-dividend date after the bonds are issued.

(3) If, after the issuance of this convertible bond, the Company reissues (or
private placement) various securities with conversion or subscription
rights to ordinary shares at a conversion or subscription price lower than
the current price per share, the Company shall adjust the conversion
price.

(4) After the issuance of the convertible bonds, the Company shall adjust the
conversion price in the event of a reduction in the number of shares of
common stock due to a capital reduction other than the retirement of
treasury stock.

Giga Solar Materials Corporation repurchased or redeemed corporate bonds on

the open market according to the market price or by executing the put option of

the bondholders. As of December 31, 2023, a total of 20,000 corporate bond

certificates were repurchased or redeemed, with a face value of NT$2,000,000
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20.

thousand. Giga Solar Materials Corporation apportioned the repurchase or
redemption price to the liability component and the equity component and
apportioned the difference between the amount of the liability component and

its book value.

Other payables
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Salaries and bonuses payable $ 45,835 $ 40,569
Payable on machinery and
equipment 8,315 22,848
Premiums payable 10,235 10,237
Others 35.889 40,578

$100,274 $114,232

Post-employment benefit plan

(M

)

Defined contribution plan

The Company’s pension system under the “Labor Pension Act” is a
government-administered defined contribution pension plan with contributes 6% of
employees’ monthly salaries contributed to the personal accounts at the Bureau of
Labor Insurance.
Defined benefit plan

The Company’s pension system under the “Labor Standards Act” is a
government-administered defined benefit pension plan. The employee’s pension is
calculated based on the bases of years of service and the average monthly salary at
the time of approval of retirement. Two bases are granted for each year of service up
to (including) 15 years, and one base is granted for each year of service over 15 years,
subject to a maximum accumulation of 45 bases. The Company appropriates 2% of
employees’ monthly salaries to pension funds, which is deposited by the Supervisory
Committee of Labor Retirement Reserve in the name of the Committee into a special
account at the Bank of Taiwan. Before the end of the year, if the balance in the
special account is estimated to be insufficient to pay for employees who are expected
to meet the retirement requirements in the following year, the difference will be
made up in one lump sum by the end of March of the following year. The
management of the special account is entrusted to the Bureau of Labor Funds, the
Ministry of Labor. The Company has no right to influence the investment

management strategy.
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The amounts of defined benefit plans included in the individual balance sheets

are shown below:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Present value of defined benefit
obligations $ 33,037 $ 26,998
Fair value of plan assets (__10,192) (__9.354)
Net defined benefit liabilities $ 22,845 $ 17,644

The changes in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liabilities
January 1, 2022 § 34,563 ($ 8.012) $ 26,551
Financial costs
Interest expense
(income) 284 ( 66) 218
Recognized in profit or
loss 284 ( 66) 218
Remeasurement
Actuarial (gains)
losses
- Actuarial gains
and losses from
changes in
demographic
assumptions 1 - 1
-- Changes in
financial
assumptions ( 7,960) - ( 7,960)
- Adjustments
through
experiences 110 - 110
- Remeasurement
of defined
benefit assets - ( 567) ( 567)
Recognized in other
comprehensive
income ( 7.849)  ( 567) ( 8.416)
Employer appropriation - ( 709) ( 709)
December 31, 2022 26,998 ( 9.354) 17,644
Financial costs
Interest expense
(income) 389 ( 135) 254
Recognized in profit or
loss 389 ( 135) 254

(Continued on next page)
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Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liabilities
Remeasurement
Actuarial (gains)
losses
- Actuarial gains
and losses from
changes in
demographic
assumptions 59 - 59
- Changes in
financial
assumptions 5,007 - 5,007
- Adjustments
through
experiences 584 - 584
- Remeasurement
of defined
benefit assets - ( 19) ( 19)
Recognized in other
comprehensive
income 5,650 ( 19) 5,631
Employer appropriation - ( 684) ( 684)
December 31, 2023 $ 33,037 ($ _ 10,192) $ 22,845

The Company is exposed to the following risks as a result of the pension system

under the “Labor Standards Act”:

1.

Investment risk: The Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor invests the
labor pension fund in domestic and foreign equity securities, debt securities,
and bank deposits through its own management or entrusted third parties, but
the amount allocated to the Company’s plan assets is based on the income at a
rate no less than the local bank’s 2-year time deposit rate.

Interest rate risk: A decrease in interest rates on government bonds will
increase the present value of the defined benefit obligation, but the return on
debt investment in plan assets will also increase, which will have a partially
offsetting effect on the net defined benefit obligation.

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated by
reference to the future salary of the plan member. Therefore, increases in plan
member’s salary will result in an increase in the present value of the defined

benefit obligation.
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The present value of the Company’s defined benefit obligation was actuarially
determined by a qualified actuary and the significant assumptions at the

measurement date were as follows.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Discount rate 1.33% 1.44%
Expected rate of salary increase 3.00% 2.00%

The amount by which the present value of the defined benefit obligation would
increase (decrease) if there are reasonable possible changes in significant actuarial

assumptions, with all other assumptions held constant, is as follows

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Discount rate
Increase by 0.5% ($_2,389) ($_1,925)
Decrease by 0.5% $ 2,603 $ 2246
Expected rate of salary increase
Increase by 0.5% $ 2,547 $ 2,222
Decrease by 0.5% ($_2,363) ($_1,924)

The sensitivity analysis above may not reflect actual changes in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation because the actuarial assumptions may be

correlated and changes in only one assumption are not feasible.

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Amount expected to be
appropriated within 1 year $ 684 $ 708
Average duration to maturity of
defined benefit obligation 15 years 15 years
21. Equity
(1) Capital stock
1. Ordinary shares
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Authorized number of
shares (in thousands) 150,000 100,000
Authorized capital stock $ 1,500,000 $ 1,000,000
Number of shares issued
and fully paid (in
thousands) 91,883 91,883
Ordinary shares publicly
offered $ 791,974 $ 791,974
Ordinary shares in private
placement 126,860 126,860
Capital stock issued $ 918,834 $ 918,834
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The issued ordinary shares has a face value of NT$10 per share and each
share is entitled to one voting right and receiving dividends.

On May 13, 2022, the Company’s board of directors approved by
resolution the issuance of no more than 16,000,000 new shares for a capital
increase, with a par value of NT$10 per share, and the Company reserved 15%
of the total number of new shares issued for subscription by employees and
provided 10% of the new shares for public underwriting by public subscription.
This capital increase plan took effect on July 21, 2022 as approved by the
competent authority. The capital for the shares has all been received and the
registration of the change was completed on October 3, 2022.

The securities in the above private placement should not be resold to other
parties except for the transferees specified in the Securities and Exchange Act
within three years from the date of delivery.

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Company’s
ordinary shares in the private placement above are subject to the restriction on
circulation and transfer and can only be listed on Taipei Exchange after three
years from the delivery date with the retroactive procedures for public offering
completed. The rights and obligations of the ordinary shares in the private
placement are the same as those of the Company’s ordinary shares issued.

(2) Capital surplus

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

For loss compensation,

payment in cash or

capitalization as equity (1)
Stock issuance premium $4,889,701 $ 4,889,701
Invalid employee stock options 5,988 5,988
Common stock premium —

options 25,879 25,879
Corporate bond conversion

premium $ 59,721 $ 59,721
Treasury share transactions 315,134 315,134
Differences between equity

price and carrying amount

arising from actual

acquisition or disposal of

subsidiaries 75,434 79,551
Expiration of corporate bond

options 20,364 -

(Continued on next page)
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3)

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Only for loss compensation
Recognition of changes in

ownership interest in

subsidiaries (2) 15,122 -
Changes in net equity of

associates accounted for

using the equity method 39,158 25,648
Not for any purpose
Corporate bond options - 20,364
$ 5,446,501 $5,421,986
1. Such capital surplus may be used to compensate for losses or, when the

Company has no losses, to distribute cash or to capitalize equity, provided that
the capitalization is limited to a certain percentage of the paid-in capital each
year.

2. This type of capital surplus represents the effect of equity transactions
recognized for changes in the Company’s equity when the Company has not
actually acquired or disposed of ownership interest in the subsidiary.

Retained earnings and dividend policy

In accordance with the Company’s earnings distribution policy as stipulated in
the Articles of Association, if there is any net earnings in the Company’s annual final
accounts, the Company shall first pay tax, make up for accumulated losses and then
set aside 10% as legal reserve in accordance with the law. If the accumulated legal
reserve has reached the Company’s paid-in capital, the Company may no longer set
aside legal reserve. The remainder shall be set aside and reversed from special
reserve as provided by law or by the competent authority. If there are still remaining
earnings, the board of directors shall prepare a proposal for distribution of the
remainder together with the accumulated unappropriated earnings as dividends to
shareholder, and submit it to the shareholders’ meeting for resolution on the

distribution. The shareholder’s bonus shall not be less than 30%.

The Company is currently growing. As a means to keep in line with the capital
planning and meet the shareholders’ demand for cash flow, the percentage of cash
dividends paid for the year may not be less than 10% of the total amount of cash and

stock dividends.
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Please refer to Note 23(7) Employee and director remuneration for the
Company’s policy on employee and director remuneration distribution under the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The legal reserve should be appropriated until the balance reaches the
Company’s total paid-in capital. Legal reserve may be used to make up for losses. If
the Company has no losses, the excess of legal reserve over 25% of the paid-in
capital may be distributed in cash in addition to capitalization as equity.

The Company specified that when the special reserve is allocated from the net
deduction of other equity accumulated in the previous period, if the undistributed
surplus in the previous period is insufficient to allocate, the after-tax net profit plus
items other than the after-tax net profit of the current period will be added into the
undistributed surplus of the current period for the allocation.

The earnings distribution proposals for 2022 and 2021 approved at the general
shareholders’ meeting of the Company on June 9, 2023 and June 9, 2022 are as

follows:
2022 2021

Unappropriated earnings at the

beginning of the year $ 948,680 $ 1,119,295
Remeasurement of defined benefit

plan 8,416 2,276
Net losses for the year ( 495,153) ( 375,458)
Disposal of equity instruments at

fair value through other

comprehensive income 676 35,484
Recognition of changes in

ownership interest in subsidiaries ( 22,457) -
Reversal (appropriation) of special

reserve in accordance with the

law (___139.,723) 167,083
Unappropriated earnings at the end

of the year $ 300,439 $ 948,680

The loss compensation proposal for 2023 as proposed by the board meeting on

March 28, 2024 is as follows:

2023

Unappropriated earnings at the beginning of the year $300,439
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (  5,631)
Net losses for 2023 ( 810,576)
Disposal of equity instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income 884
Loss compensation from legal reserve 514,884
Unappropriated earnings at the end of the year $ -
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The loss compensation proposal for 2023 is pending the resolution of the
shareholders’ meeting scheduled to be held on June 7, 2024.

At the end of 2023, the Company's loss to be compensated exceeded 1/2 of the
paid-in capital. According to Article 211 of the Company Act, the Board of Directors
shall report at the next shareholders' meeting. Report of the Company's shareholders'
meeting expected to be held on June 7, 2024.

Other equity items
1. Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of foreign
operations

2023 2022

Balance at the beginning of
the year ($191,987) ($214,195)
Generated in the year
Translation differences
on translation of
foreign operations - 10,359
Share of subsidiaries and
associates accounted
for using the equity
method ( 28,229) 5,132
Reclassification
Share of disposal of
associates accounted
for using the equity

method ( 74) -
Share of disposal of
subsidiary under the
equity method - 6,590
Others 859 -
Acquisition of partial interest
in a subsidiary ( 104) -
Changes in ownership interest
in subsidiaries 161 127
Balance at the end of the year ($219,374) ($191,987)
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2. Unrealized valuation gains or losses on financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

2023 2022

Balance at the beginning of
the year $ 37,143 $199,074
Generated in the year
Unrealized gain or loss
Equity instruments ( 133,742) ( 162,512)
Share of subsidiaries and
associates accounted
for using the equity
method 4,392 1,257
Transfer of accumulated gain
or loss on disposal of
equity instruments to

retained earnings ( 884) ( 676)
Balance at the end of the year ($ 93,091) $ 37,143

22. Revenue
(1) Description of Customer Contract
Revenue recognition for the Company is recognized at a point in time.

Information on revenue from customer contracts is as follows:

2023 2022
Revenue from customer
contracts
Merchandise sales
revenues $ 1,905,293 $ 3,003,635

(2) Breakdown of revenue from customer contracts

Product type 2023 2022
Revenues from sales of
conductive paste $ 1,767,904 $2,856,879
Others 137,389 146,756
$ 1,905,293 $ 3,003,635

23. Net losses from continuing operations

(1) Interest income

2023 2022
Bank deposits $ 25,383 $ 4,170
Other interest income 3,737 383
$ 29,120 $ 4,553
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(2) Other income

2023 2022
Rental income
Investment property (Note 14) $ 8213 $ 7,810
Others 4,625 9,968
Dividend income 12,718 1,823
Others 6,819 4,985
$ 32,375 $ 24,586
(3) Other gains and losses
2023 2022
Gain on disposal of investment $ 20,939 $ -
Leasehold modification gain 2,823 -
Net gain from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 844 -
Net gain on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 693 10,886
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries - ( 6,590)
Net foreign currency exchange gain
(loss) ( 11,145) 96,133
Impairment loss on non-financial
assets ( 140,648) -
Miscellaneous expenses ( 293) -
($126,787) $100,429
(4) Financial costs
2023 2022
Interest on Bank Borrowings $ 11,232 $ 20,051
Interest on borrowed silver ingots 6,438 9,159
Interest on lease liabilities 1,325 2,602
Interest on borrowings from
related parties 498 -
Amortization of discount on
corporate bonds payable - 4,348
Others 22 17
$ 19,515 $ 36,177
(5) Depreciation and amortization
2023 2022
Summary of depreciation by
function
Operating costs $ 57,211 $ 43,723
Operating expenses 39.310 38,242
$ 96,521 $ 81,965
Summary of amortization by
function
Operating expenses $ 449 $ 282
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(6)

(7)

Employee benefit expenses

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits $198,996 $194,963
Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan 8,024 7,682
Defined benefit plan 254 218
Share-based payments
Settlement of interests 1,264 26,970
Other employee benefits 9.773 10,368
Total employee benefit
expenses $218.311 $240,201
Summary by function.
Operating costs $ 59,633 $ 61,933
Operating expenses 158.678 178.268
$218.311 $240,201

Remuneration for employees and directors

According to the Articles of Incorporation, if the Company makes a profit for a
year, it should first provide not less than 6% and not greater than 15% of the profit as
employee remuneration and no greater than 3% as director remuneration. However,
accumulated losses, if any, of the Company shall first be deducted and distribution
shall be made from the remaining balance.

In 2023, no remuneration for employees and directors was estimated due to a
loss.

If there is a change in the amount of the individual financial statements after the
date of its issuance, the amount is adjusted in the following year in accordance with
the rules related to changes in accounting estimates.

In 2022 and 2021, no remuneration for employees and directors was estimated
due to a loss.

Please refer to the ‘“Market Observation Post System” of the Taiwan Stock
Exchange for information on the remuneration for employees and directors resolved

by the board of directors of the Company.

Income taxes from continuing operations

(1

Income tax recognized in profit or loss
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The major components of income tax expense are as follows:

2023

Current income tax
Generated in the year $ -
Adjustments for prior
years -

Deferred tax
Generated in the year -
Income tax recognized in profit

or loss $ -

2022

$ -

(_ 5.661)
( 5661)

153

($_5,508)

The reconciliation of accounting income to income tax expense is as follows:

2023

Net losses before tax from

continuing operations ($810,576)
Income tax benefit of net loss

before tax calculated at the

statutory tax rate $162,115
Non-deductible expenses due
to tax purposes ( 68,152)

Tax exempted income -
Unrecognized loss

carryforwards and

deductible temporary

differences ( 93,963)
Adjustments to current income

tax expenses of previous

years -

5 -

(2) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income

2022

2023
Deferred tax
Translation of foreign
operations $ 2,647

(3) Current income tax assets and liabilities

December 31, 2023

($489.645)

$ 97,929

( 66,594)
404

( 31,586)

(_ 5.661)
($_5,508)

2022

Current income tax assets
Tax refund receivable $ 9,080
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(4) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The changes in deferred tax assets were as follows:

Recognized in

Balance at the other
beginning of the Recognized in  comprehensive  Balance at the
year profit or loss income end of the year
2023
Temporary difference
Impairment of bond investments
without active markets $ 17,644 $ - $ - $ 17,644
Fair value adjustments resulting
from business merger 695 - - 695
Allowance for decline in value
of inventories and slow
moving losses 2,596  ( 294) - 2,302
Impairment losses - 28,130 - 28,130
Unrealized exchange gain and
loss - 3,453 - 3,453
Allowance for doubtful accounts 35,572 996 - 36,568
Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of foreign
operations 18,422 - 2,647 21,069
Unused tax losses 49946 ( 32,285) - 17,661
Deferred income tax gains $ - $ 2,647
Deferred tax assets, net $ 124875 $ 127,522
Information expressed in the balance
sheet is as follows.
Deferred tax assets $ 124875 $ 127522
2022
Temporary difference
Impairment of bond investments
without active markets $ 17,644 $ - $ - $ 17,644
Unrealized inter-company
transactions between entities 3,550 ( 3,550) - -
Fair value adjustments resulting
from business merger 695 - - 695
Net defined benefit liabilities —
non-current ( 153) 153 - -
Allowance for decline in value
of inventories and slow
moving losses 3,948 ( 1,352) - 2,596
Unrealized exchange gain and
loss 6,063  ( 6,063 ) - -
Allowance for doubtful accounts 35,257 315 - 35,572
Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements of foreign
operations 21,008 - ( 2,586 ) 18,422
Unused tax losses 32,274 17,672 - 49,946
Investment tax credit 7,022 ( 7.022) - -
Deferred income tax (expense) income $ 153 ($ 2,586 )
Deferred tax assets, net $ 127,308 $ 124,875
Information expressed in the balance
sheet is as follows.
Deferred tax assets $ 127461 $ 124875
Deferred tax liabilities $ 153 $ -
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(5) Deductible temporary differences and unused loss carryforwards for deferred tax

assets not recognized in individual balance sheets

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Loss carryforwards
Expires in 2031 $153,948 $183,445
Expires in 2032 298,003 330,637
Expires in 2033 286,865 -
$738.816 $514,082

(6) Total amount of temporary differences related to investments for which no deferred
income tax liabilities were recognized
No deferred tax liability has been recognized for the income tax payable on the
unappropriated earnings of foreign subsidiaries that may arise upon their repatriation.
The Company has decided not to distribute the unappropriated earnings of its
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the
amount of taxable temporary differences not recognized as deferred tax liabilities
was NT$28,007 thousand and NT$37,057 thousand, respectively.
(7) The status of income tax assessment
The Company’s income tax returns have been assessed by the tax authorities up
to 2021.

Net loss per share

Unit: NTD per share

2023 2022
Basic loss per share ($ _ 8.82) ($ _ 6.14)
Diluted loss per share ($  8.82) ($ _ 6.14)

The net losses and weighted-average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation of loss per share are as follows:

Net losses for the year

2023 2022
Net losses used to calculate basic and
diluted loss per share ($810,576) ($495,153)

355



26.

Number of shares: Thousand shares

2023 2022

Weighted-average number of

ordinary shares used in the

calculation of basic loss per share 91,883 80,662
Impact of potential ordinary shares

with dilutive effect:

Remuneration for employees - -

Weighted-average number of

ordinary shares used in the

calculation of diluted loss per

share 91,883 80,662

If the Company may choose to pay employees’ remuneration in shares or cash, when
calculating the diluted loss per share, it is assumed that the employees’ remuneration will
be issued in shares, and when the potential ordinary shares have a dilutive effect, they will
be included in the weighted average number of outstanding shares for the calculation of the
diluted loss per share. The dilutive effect of these potential ordinary shares will also
continue to be considered in the calculation of diluted loss per share before the resolution
on the number of shares awarded to employees in the following year.

Share-based payment agreement

(1) Employee stock options program

On December 16, 2021, Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. decided to issue
rights shares through the resolution of the board meeting, and reserved 15% of the
total amount of new shares to be subscribed by the Company and its employees.
After being granted the employee stock option certificates, the certificate holders
may immediately exercise the share subscription in accordance with the regulations
on the issuance and subscription of employee stock option certificates, and the date
of grant was January 24, 2022.

For the above Black-Scholes valuation model for the employee stock options

granted, the inputs used in the valuation model were as follows:

January 2022
Share price on the grant date NT$22.62
Exercise price NT$20.00
Expected volatility 3.85%
Duration 0.17 years
Expected rate of dividend -
Risk-free interest rate 1.1833%
Fair value of stock options NT$2.62

granted
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In the Black Scholes valuation model, the expected volatility is the share price
in the sample range of the most recent period equivalent to the expected duration of
the stock option, and is estimated by the standard deviation of the stock return in that
period.

From January 1 to December 31, 2022, the Company recognized remuneration
costs of NT$812 thousand for the subsidiary’s employee stock options program.

On May 13, 2022, the Company decided to issue rights shares through the
resolution of the board meeting, and reserved 15% of the total amount of new shares
to be subscribed by employees. After being granted the employee stock option
certificates, the certificate holders may immediately exercise the share subscription
in accordance with the regulations on the issuance and subscription of employee
stock option certificates, and the date of grant was September 7, 2022.

For the above Black-Scholes valuation model for the employee stock options

granted, the inputs used in the valuation model were as follows:

September 2022
Share price on the grant date NT$128.5
Exercise price NTS$115
Expected volatility 3%
Duration 0.18 years
Expected rate of dividend -
Risk-free interest rate 1.4%
Fair value of stock options NT$13.6
granted

In the Black Scholes valuation model, the expected volatility is the share price
in the sample range of the most recent period equivalent to the expected duration of
the stock option, and is estimated by the standard deviation of the stock return in that
period.

From January 1 to December 31, 2022, the Company recognized remuneration
costs of NT$25,138 thousand for the employee stock options program.

On May 2, 2023, Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. decided to issue rights
shares through the resolution of the board meeting, and reserved 10% of the total
amount of new shares to be subscribed by employees. After being granted the
employee stock option certificates, the certificate holders may immediately exercise
the share subscription in accordance with the regulations on the issuance and
subscription of employee stock option certificates, and the date of grant was June 1,

2023.
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)

For the above Black-Scholes valuation model for the employee stock options

granted, the inputs used in the valuation model were as follows:

June 2023
Share price on the grant date NT$20.11
Exercise price NT$20.00
Expected volatility 2.27%
Duration 0.07 years
Expected rate of dividend -
Risk-free interest rate 1.1695%
Fair value of stock options NT$0.11
granted

In the Black Scholes valuation model, the expected volatility is the share price
in the sample range of the most recent period equivalent to the expected duration of
the stock option, and is estimated by the standard deviation of the stock return in that
period.

From January 1 to December 31, 2023, the Company recognized remuneration
costs of NT$23 thousand for the subsidiary’s employee stock options program.
Restricted stock awards

The extraordinary shareholders’ meeting of Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
decided on October 29, 2021 to issue new shares with restricted employee rights,
with a total amount of NT$20,000 thousand. The above resolution has taken effect
after being filed with the FSC on June 9, 2022. The board of directors of Hua Hsu
Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. approved the issuance of restricted stock awards on June
17, 2022 in the total amount of NT$20,000 thousand. The par value per share is
NT$10, totaling 2,000,000 shares, and the issue price per share is NT$0 (that is,
stock dividends). The grant date and issue date was June 17, 2022, and the fair value
of the stock on the grant date was NT$29.47.

From January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company recognized
remuneration costs of NT$1,241 thousand and NT$1,020 thousand, respectively, for

the subsidiary’s restricted stock awards program.

Information on cash flow

(1

Changes in liabilities from financing activities
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29.

January 1 to December 31, 2023

Non-Cash Changes
Interest
expense and
amortization of  Exchange rate December 31,

January 1, 2023 Cash flow Reduce lease discount changes 2023
Short-term
borrowings § 100,000 § 180,845 $ - $ - ($ 481) § 280,364
Long-term
borrowings 406,250 437,143 - - - 843,393
Corporate
bonds
payable 339,406 ( 339,406) - - - -
Lease liabilities 162,265 ( 20.476) ( 98.714) - - 43.075
$ 1,007,921 § 258,106 ($__ 98.714) $ - ($ 481) $ 1,166,832

January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

Non-Cash Changes

Interest
expense and
Increase in amortization of  Exchange rate December 31,
January 1, 2022 Cash flow leases discount changes 2022
Short-term
borrowings § 1,443,023 ($ 1,338,420) $ - $ - ($ 4,603) $§ 100,000
Long-term
borrowings 531,250 ( 125,000) - - - 406,250
Corporate
bonds
payable 335,058 - - 4,348 - 339,406
Lease liabilities 192,280 ( 30.431) 416 - - 162,265
$ 2,501,611 ($.1.493.851) $ 416 $ 4,348 ($ 4.,603) $ 1,007,921

Capital risk management

The Company conducts capital management to ensure that the Group’s enterprises are
able to maximize shareholder returns by optimizing debt and equity balances while
continuing to operate. There were no significant changes in the Company’s overall
strategy.

The Company’s capital structure consists of net debt (i.e. borrowings less cash) and
equity (i.e. capital stock, capital surplus, retained earnings, other equity items and
non-controlling interests).

Financial instruments

(1) Fair value information — financial instruments not measured at fair value

December 31, 2022

Fair value
Book value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
- Convertible corporate bonds § 339.406 $ 339.360 $ - $ - $ 339360

(2) Fair value information — financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring

basis
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The Company does not have assets that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. The fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on a recurring basis is presented below:

1. Fair value hierarchy.

December 31, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss
Funds $ 1,083 $ - $ 33,170 $ 34253

Financial assets measured
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income
Investment in equity
instruments $ 48,120 $ 127,200 $ 143,726 $ 319,046

December 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or
loss
Funds $ 882 $ - $ 32678 $ 33,560

Financial assets measured
at fair value through
other comprehensive
income
Investment in equity
instruments $ 85,849 $ 215,160 $ 60,134 $ 361,143

There was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements during 2023 and 2022.

2. Reconciliation of financial instruments measured at fair value in Level 3

2023
Assets
Measured at fair
Measured at fair value through other
value through profit comprehensive
or loss income

Balance at the beginning of

the year $ 32,678 $ 60,134
Recognized in profit or loss

(under “Other gains and

losses™) 492 -
Recognized in other

comprehensive income - ( 12,408)
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(“unrealized gains or
losses on financial assets
measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income”)
Addition
Balance at the end of the
year

2022

Balance at the beginning of
the year

Recognized in profit or loss
(under “Other gains and
losses™)

Recognized in other
comprehensive income
(“unrealized gains or
losses on financial assets
measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income”)

Balance at the end of the

year

Assets

Measured at fair

Measured at fair value through other

value through profit comprehensive
or loss Income
- _ 96,000
$ 33,170 143,726
Assets

Measured at fair

Measured at fair value through other

value through profit comprehensive
or loss Income
$ 26,284 $ 60,000
6,394 -
- - _ 134
$ 32,678 $ 60,134

Valuation techniques and input values for Level 2 fair value measurement

Type of financial
instruments Valuation techniques and input values
Investment in equity Equity instruments measured at fair value
instruments through other comprehensive income or loss
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Valuation techniques and input values for Level 3 fair value measurement

The following table presents the significant unobservable input values to

the Company’s fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities measured at fair

value on a recurring basis within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

December 31, 2023

Relationship
Significant between input Sensitivity analysis of the
Valuation Unobservable Quantitative value and fair relationship between input
techniques Input Values Information value value and fair value
Financial assets
Funds Asset method  Discount for 30% The higher the When the lack of
lack of lack of marketability and
marketability marketability control increased
and control and control, (decreased) by 1%, the
the lower the Consolidated
estimated fair Company’s profit or
value loss would have
decreased/increased by
NT$474 thousand.
Stocks Market method Discount for 30% The higher the When the lack of
lack of lack of marketability and
marketability marketability control increased
and control and control, (decreased) by 1%, the
the lower the Consolidated
estimated fair Company’s other
value comprehensive income
would have
decreased/increased by
NT$1,216 thousand.
Stocks Asset method ~ Discount for 10% The higher the When the lack of
lack of lack of marketability and
marketability marketability control increased
and control and control, (decreased) by 1%, the
the lower the Consolidated
estimated fair Company’s other
value comprehensive income
would have
decreased/increased by
NT$649 thousand.
December 31, 2022
Relationship
Significant between input Sensitivity analysis of the
Valuation Unobservable Quantitative value and fair relationship between input
techniques Input Values Information value value and fair value
Financial assets
Funds Asset method  Discount for 30% The higher the When the lack of
lack of lack of marketability and
marketability marketability control increased
and control and control, (decreased) by 1%, the
the lower the Consolidated
estimated fair Company’s profit or
value loss would have
decreased/increased by
NT$467 thousand.
Stocks Asset method ~ Discount for 10% The higher the When the lack of
lack of lack of marketability and
marketability marketability control increased
and control and control, (decreased) by 1%, the
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Company’s other
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would have
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NT$668 thousand.



The Company’s finance and investment departments are responsible for
conducting fair value tests to ensure that the valuation results approximate
market conditions, that the sources of information are independent, reliable,
consistent with other resources and representative of realizable prices, and that
changes in the value of assets and liabilities that are subject to remeasurement
or re-evaluation in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies are
analyzed at each reporting date to ensure that the valuation results are
reasonable.

(3) Type of Financial instruments

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Financial assets
Measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit
or loss $ 34,253 $ 33,560
Financial assets at amortized
cost (Note 1) 2,207,827 2,392,180
Financial assets measured at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
Investment in equity
mstruments 319,046 361,143

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortized cost

(Note 2) 1,481,365 1,184,309
Financial liabilities for hedging 615,782 439,979

Note 1: The balance consisted of financial assets measured at amortized cost, such
as cash, cash equivalents, notes and accounts receivable and accounts
receivable — related party, other receivables, other receivables — related party,
other financial assets, and refundable deposits.

Note 2: The balance consisted of financial liabilities measured at amortized cost,
including short-term borrowings, notes payable, other payables, other
payables — related party, bonds payable, long-term bank borrowings —
current portion, corporate bonds, long-term borrowings, long-term payables,
and deposits received.

(4) Objectives and Policies of Financial Risk Management
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The Company’s major financial instruments include investments in equity
instruments, accounts receivable, accounts payable, corporate bonds payable,
borrowings and lease liabilities. The Company’s financial management department
provides services to each business unit, coordinates the operation of access to
domestic financial markets, and monitors and manages financial risks associated with
the Company’s operations through internal risk reports that analyze risk exposures
based on risk degree and breadth. These risks include market risk (which includes
exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to risk
in order to mitigate the impact of these risks. The use of derivative financial
instruments is governed by the policies approved by the Company’s board of
directors, which are the written principles for exchange rate risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of surplus circulating capital. Internal auditors review
policy compliance and risk limits on an ongoing basis. The Company does not trade
in financial instruments (including derivative financial instruments) for speculative
purposes.

The financial management department reports to the board of directors of the
Company on a quarterly basis.

1.  Market risk

The main financial risks to which the Company is exposed as a result of
its operating activities are changes in foreign currency exchange rates (see (1)
below) and changes in interest rates (see (2) below). The Company engages in
various derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate and interest rate risk.

There have been no changes in the Company’s exposure to market risk of
financial instruments and the way it manages and measures such exposures.
(1) Exchange rate risk

The Company’s exposure to exchange rate risk relates primarily to
operating activities (when revenues or expenses are denominated in
currencies different from the Company’s functional currency) and net

investments in foreign operations.

364



)

A portion of the Company’s foreign currency receivables and
payables are denominated in the same currency, in which case, a natural
hedge is created. Currency swap contracts are adopted to manage the
exchange rate risk arising from partial foreign currency payments. In
addition, the net investment in foreign operations is a strategic
investment and therefore the Company does not apply hedge accounting.

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and monetary liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency (including
monetary items denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency that have been written off in the individual financial statements)
and the carrying amounts of derivatives with exchange rate risk exposure
as of the balance sheet date.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company is primarily affected by fluctuations in the exchange
rates of USD, JPY and RMB.

The following table details the sensitivity analysis of the
Consolidated Company when the exchange rate of the functional
currency of each entity increases and decreases by 1% against each
relevant foreign currency. One percent is the sensitivity rate used in
reporting the exchange rate risk internally to the Consolidated
Company’s key management team and represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonable range of potential changes in
foreign-currency exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis covered cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable (including related party), other
receivables (including related party), accounts payable (including related
party), other payables (including related party), long-term and short-term
borrowings (including related party), and financial liabilities for hedging.
The table below shows the influence on profit and loss when the

functional currency appreciated by 1% against each major foreign

currency.
Impact of USD Impact of JPY Impact of CNY
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
profit or
loss ($ 3,983) ($ 6,015) § 799 (§ 13) ($ 8,246) ($ 3,249)

Interest rate risk
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3)

Interest rate risk arises because entities within the Company
borrow funds at both fixed and floating rates. The Company manages
interest rate risk by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and floating
rates; however, hedge accounting is not applied because the Company
does not meet the requirements for hedge accounting.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
exposed to interest rate risk as of the balance sheet date were as follows:

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Fair value interest rate

risk
- Financial assets $ 512,350 $ 540,087
- Financial liabilities 43,075 501,671
Cash flow interest rate
risk
- Financial assets 504,846 683,943
- Financial liabilities 1,123,757 506,250

Sensitivity analysis

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk of
derivative and non-derivative instruments as of the balance sheet date.
For floating rate assets (liabilities), the analysis assumes that the amount
of the liability outstanding at the balance sheet date is outstanding during
the reporting period. The rate of change used in reporting interest rates
internally to key management is a 1% basis point increase or decrease in
interest rates, which also represents management’s assessment of the
range of reasonably possible changes in interest rates.

If the floating rate increased/decreased by 1%, with all other
variables held constant, the Company’s net income before tax would have
increased/decreased by NT$6,189 thousand, and decreased/increased
NT$1,777 thousand for 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Other price risk

The fair values of the Company’s TWSE/TPEx/emerging stock
market-listed and unlisted equity securities and funds may be affected by
the uncertainty of the future value of these underlying securities. The
Company’s TWSE/TPEx/emerging stock market-listed and unlisted
equity securities and funds are included in the fair value measurement

through profit or loss and fair value measurement through other
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comprehensive income, respectively. The Company manages the price
risk of equity securities by diversifying its investments and setting limits
on its investments in equity securities, both individually and in the
aggregate. Portfolio information on equity securities is provided to the
Company’s senior management on a regular basis, and the Board of
Directors is required to review and approve all investment decisions on
equity securities.

Sensitivity analysis

In 2023 and 2022, the Company’s profit or loss would
increase/decrease by NT$3,425 thousand and NT$3,356 thousand,
respectively, if the price of fund investments in listed, OTC (emerging)
and unlisted companies that are mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss increased/decreased by 10%. For the year ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s equity would have
increased/decreased by NT$31,905 thousand and NT$36,114 thousand,
respectively, if the prices of emerging stock market-listed and
TWSE-/TPEx-listed equity securities and unlisted equity securities that
are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
increased/decreased by 10%.

The Company entered into precious metal borrowing contracts with
suppliers at prices based on international precious metal market
quotations plus a margin. In order to manage the precious metal price risk
of the inventory, the Company uses international precious metal
borrowing contracts with the same nominal number as a fair value risk
hedge for the components of precious metal price risk contained in the
inventory. Based on historical experience, changes in the fair value of the
designated components of precious metals price risk cover, on average,
price changes in the contracts as a whole, and therefore market price risk
is not material.

Hedge accounting

The Company uses precious metal borrowing contracts for fair value
hedge to mitigate the risk of fair value of financial liabilities arising from

changes in international precious metal prices. The fair value of precious
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metal borrowing transactions as of the balance sheet date is estimated
based on the market price of precious metals.

The aforementioned precious metal borrowing transactions are
subject to the same conditions as the related financial liabilities. The
Company uses a qualitative assessment to determine that the value of the
precious metal borrowing transactions and the hedged financial liabilities
will systematically change inversely due to changes in the prices of the
hedged international precious metals. The hedge ineffectiveness of the
hedge relationship arises primarily from the effect of the credit risk
between the Company and the counterparty on the fair value of the
precious metal borrowing transactions. This credit risk does not affect
changes in the fair value of international precious metal prices
attributable to the hedged item. There were no other sources of hedge
ineffectiveness during the hedge period.

Information on the Company’s international precious metals price

risk hedge is summarized as follows:

December 31, 2023
Change in fair
value of hedging
instruments used
Book value to assess hedge
Expiration Line item on the T ineffectiveness
Hedging instruments Contract amount Period balance sheet Liabilities during the year
Fair value hedge
Precious metal borrowing $ 628,02 - Financial liabilities for $ 615782
contract hedging $ 12,239
Change in
value of
hedged items
used to assess
Cumulative hedge
fair value ineffectiveness
Book value adjustment  during the year
Hedged items Assets Assets Value changes
Fair value hedge
Inventories $ 615782 ($ 12,239) ($ 12,239)

December 31, 2022

Change in fair

value of hedging
instruments used
Book value to assess hedge
Expiration Line item on the T ineffectiveness
Hedging instruments Contract amount Period balance sheet Liabilities during the year
Fair value hedge
Precious metal borrowing $ 428959 - Financial liabilities for $ 439979
contract hedging (s 11,020 )
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Change in

value of
hedged items
used to assess
Cumulative hedge
fair value ineffectiveness
Book value adjustment  during the year
Hedged items Assets Assets Value changes
Fair value hedge
Inventories $ 439,979 $ 11,020 $ 11,020
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss due to default on contract
obligations by the counterparties. The Company’s credit risk is attributable to
operating activities (mainly accounts receivable and notes) and financial
activities (mainly bank deposits and various financial instruments).

Each unit of the Company manages credit risk in accordance with its
policies, procedures and controls over credit risk. The credit risk of all
counterparties is evaluated by taking into account the financial condition of the
counterparties, the ratings of credit rating agencies, historical transaction
experience, the current economic environment and the Group’s internal rating
standards. The Company also uses certain credit enhancement tools (such as
advance receipts) at appropriate times to reduce the credit risk of specific
counterparties.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the percentages of receivables from
the top ten customers to the Company’s total receivables were 54% and 84%,
respectively, and the credit concentration risk of the remaining receivables was
relatively insignificant.

The Finance Department manages the credit risk of bank deposits,
fixed-income securities and other financial instruments in accordance with the
Company’s policies. Since the Group’s counterparties are determined by
internal control procedures and are creditworthy banks and investment-grade
financial institutions, corporate organizations and government agencies, there
is no significant credit risk.

Liquidity risk
The Company manages and maintains sufficient positions of cash and

cash equivalents to support the Group’s operations and mitigate the impact of

369



cash flow fluctuations. The Company’s management monitors the use of bank
financing lines and ensures compliance with the terms of the loan agreements.
Bank loans are an important source of liquidity for the Company. See (2)
below for a description of the Company’s unused financing lines.
(1) Liquidity and interest rate risk of non-derivative financial liabilities
The analysis of the remaining contractual maturities of
non-derivative financial liabilities has been prepared based on the
undiscounted cash flows (including principal and estimated interest) of
the financial liabilities based on the earliest possible date on which the
Company could be required to make repayment. Therefore, bank loans
that the Company may be required to repay immediately are shown in the
earliest period of the below table, without regard to the probability that
the bank will enforce the right immediately; the maturity analysis of
other non-derivative financial liabilities is prepared based on the
contractual repayment dates.
The undiscounted interest amount of interest cash flows paid at
floating interest rates is derived from the curve of the yield rate at the
balance sheet date.

December 31, 2023

Less than 1 More than 5
year 1-3 years 4-5 years years Total
Accounts payable $ 349,366 $ - $ - $ - $ 349,366
Borrowing 329,907 102,637 124,945 566,703 1,124,192
Lease liabilities 14,685 29,182 288 - 44.155

§ 693958 § 131819 § 125233 § 566,703 $ 1517713

Further information on the maturity analysis of the financial

liabilities above is as follows:

Less than 1 More than 20
year 1-5 years 5-10 years 10-15 years 15-20 years years
Floating
interest rate $ 329,907 $ 227,582 $ 566,703 $ - S - S -
Lease liabilities 14,685 29,470 - - - -
$ 344,592 $ 257,052 $ 566,703 S - S - $ -

December 31, 2022

Less than 1 More than 5
year 1-3 years 4-5 years years Total
Accounts payable $ 212,572 $ - $ - $ - $ 212,572
Borrowing 244,403 67,074 35,714 142,857 490,048
Corporate bonds 339,700 - - - 339,700
Lease liabilities 33,021 65.996 51,359 18.480 168.856

§ 829,696 § 133,070 § 87.073 § 161337 $ 1211.176
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30.

Further information on the maturity analysis of the financial

liabilities above is as follows:

Less than 1 More than 20
year 1-5 years 5-10 years 10-15 years 15-20 years years
Floating
interest rate $ 244,403 $ 102,788 $ 89,286 $ 53,571 $ - $
Lease liabilities 33,021 117,355 18,480 - -
$ 277424 $ 220,143 $ 107,766 $ 53,571 S - $

(2) Financing line limit

December 31, 2023  December 31, 2022

Unsecured bank overdraft
limit (revisited annually)

- Amount used $ 200,000 $ 100,000
- Amount unused 1,739,700 2,968,000

$ 1,939,700 $ 3,068,000

Secured bank overdraft
limit

- Amount used $ 843,393 $ 406,250
- Amount unused - 923,750

$ 843,393 $ 1,330,000

Related party transactions

The parent company of the Company is Gigastorage Corporation, which directly and
indirectly holds 38.07% and 38.36% of the Company’s ordinary shares as of December 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively. Since the Gigastorage Corporation is a domestic listed
company and the remaining shareholdings are widely dispersed, it is assessed that the
Gigastorage Corporation still has control over the Company, considering the absolute
number, relative size and distribution of voting rights held by other shareholders.

In addition to those disclosed in other notes, the transactions between the Company
and other related parties are as follows:

(1) Name and relationship of related party

Name of related party Relationship with the Company
Gigastorage Corporation Parent company of the Company
Ho Mi Specialty Materials Corporation Sister company
Whole Sun Green Power Co., Ltd. Subsidiaries
Hua Hsu Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. Subsidiaries
Green Energy Electrode Inc. Subsidiaries
Eiwa Electric Power Co., Inc. Subsidiaries
Yancheng Giga Solar Materials Subsidiaries

Corporation
Godo Kaisha Chiba 1 Subsidiaries
Tron Energy Technology Corporation Affiliated enterprise
Whole Max Green Power Co., Ltd. Affiliated enterprise
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Name of related party

Relationship with the Company

Lego Optoelectronics Co., Ltd.

Giga Solar Green Power Co., Ltd.
ACRO Biomedical Co. Ltd.

United Silicon Innovation Corp.
Long Time Tech. Co., Ltd.
Shanggao Long Time Tech Co., Ltd.

Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Affiliated enterprise
Related party in substance
Related party in substance

(2) Sales revenues

Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Subsidiaries
Yancheng Giga Solar
Materials Corporation $139,484 $214,183
Related party in substance 15,158 44,529
Sister company 39 263
$154,681 $258,975

The sales prices of the Company for related parties are negotiated by both
parties with reference to market conditions; the transaction term for some domestic
clients (related parties) is 90 days after the end of each month, and 90 to 180 days
after the end of each month for overseas clients; for non-related parties, it is 30 to 90
days after the end of each month for domestic clients, and 30 to 90 days after the end
of each month for overseas clients. The Company’s outstanding receivables from
related parties are unsecured, interest-free, and should be paid in cash.

(3) Purchases

Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Sister company $ 854 $ 2,321
Related party in substance 329 540
Subsidiaries 217 1.833

$ 1,400 $ 4,694

The purchase price of the Company from a related party shall be negotiated by
both parties with reference to the market situation. The payment terms for the
Company to purchase goods from related parties are equivalent to those of ordinary
manufacturers, and the payment period is 60—90 days.

(4) Receivables from related parties (excluding lending to related parties)
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6))

Type/name of related

December 31,

December 31,

Account item party 2023 2022
Accounts
receivables Subsidiaries

Yancheng Giga Solar ~ § 127,565 $ 161,016

Materials

Corporation

Related party in
substance 3.794 11,347
$ 131,359 $ 172,363

Other receivables  Subsidiaries

Yancheng Giga Solar ~ § 172,470 $ 426,455

Materials

Corporation

Others 2,220 55,137
Parent company 1,100 1,229

Related party in
substance 100 200
Sister company 4 8
Affiliated enterprise 2 3
$ 175,896 $ 483,032

No guarantee was collected for the outstanding receivables from related parties.

No allowance was provided for losses on receivables from related parties during

2022.

Payables to related parties

Type/name of related

December 31,

December 31,

Account item party 2023 2022
Accounts payable  Related party in
substance $ 305 $ -
Subsidiaries
Yancheng Giga 215 1,144
Solar Materials
Corporation
Sister company 3 959
$ 523 $ 2,103
Other payables Parent company $ 4,556 $ 5,575
Subsidiaries 583 19
Affiliated enterprise 72 -
$ 5,211 $ 5,594

No collateral was provided for the outstanding balance of payables to related

parties.
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(6)

(7)

®)

€))

(10)

Prepayments for equipment
Type/name of related party December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Related party in substance
Shanggao Long Time Tech
Co., Ltd. $ - $ 1,308

Property, plant and equipment acquired

Acquisition price
Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Related party in substance
Shanggao Long Time Tech
Co., Ltd. $ 1,308 $ -
Disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal Gain on disposal
Type/name of related
party 2023 2022 2023 2022
Sister company $ 300 $ - $ 175 $
Lease agreements
Type/name of related December 31, December 31,
Account item party 2023 2022
Lease liabilities Parent company $ 694 $ 106,073
Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Interest expense
Parent company $ 594 $ 1,690
Lease expense
Parent company $ 9,374 $ 2,166
Rental income
Subsidiaries
Hua Hsu Silicon Materials
Co., Ltd. $ 8,213 $ 7,810
Others 71 405
Parent company 4,110 3.613
$ 12,394 $ 11,828
Lending to related parties
Type/name of related party December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Subsidiaries
Yancheng Giga Solar
Materials Corporation $441,354 $110,200
Godo Kaisha Chiba 1 80,364 -
$521,718 $110,200
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(11

(12)

(13)

Interest income

Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Subsidiaries
Yancheng Giga Solar
Materials Corporation $ 3,144 $ 355
Godo Kaisha Chiba 1 479 -
$ 3,623 $§ 355

The Company's lending to its subsidiaries are all unsecured loans, and the
interest rates are close to the market interest rates. Such loans are expected to be
recovered within one year, and there is no expected credit loss after assessment.

Borrowings from related parties

Type/name of related party December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Subsidiaries
Eiwa Electric Power Co., Inc. $ 80,364 $ -

Interest expense

Type/name of related party 2023 2022
Subsidiaries
Eiwa Electric Power Co., Inc. $ 498 $ -

The interest rate of the Company's borrowings from related parties is equivalent
to the market interest rate.

Endorsements and guarantees

Type/name of related party December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Subsidiaries
Yancheng Giga Solar
Materials Corporation
Guarantee amount $346,160 $ -
Actual amounts drawn $194,715 $ -
Others

Other transactions between the Company and the parent company are

summarized as follows:

Item 2023 2022
Utilities expenses $ 11,187 $ 11,338
Other expenses 2,979 4,583
Other income 2,165 2,399
Service expenses 389 2,838
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Other transactions between the Company and the sister companies are
summarized as follows:

Item 2023 2022
Other income $ 55 $ 131

Other transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are summarized as

follows:
Item December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Deposits received $ 1,350 $ 1,350
Item 2023 2022
Other income $ 3,290 $ 1,126
Other expenses 1,047 185
Interest income 61 -
Interest expense 20 11
Payments for others 17
Temporary debits - 2

Other transactions between the Company and affiliates are summarized as

follows:

Item 2023 2022
Other income $ 139 $ 354
Other expenses 71 -

Other transactions between the Company and related parties in substance are
summarized as follows:

Item 2023 2022
Other income $ 571 $ 571
Other expenses - 10

(14) Salary for key management

2023 2022
Short-term employee benefits $ 14,042 $ 15,102
Post-employment benefits 402 399
$ 14,444 $ 15,501

The remuneration for directors and other key management is determined by the
Remuneration Committee based on individual performance and market trends.

31. Pledged Assets

The following assets have been provided as collateral for financing loans and tariff

guarantees for imported raw materials or performance:
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32.

33.

December 31, December 31, Content of

2023 2022 secured debts
$ 1,312,909 $ 476,900 Bank
Property, plant and equipment borrowings
Pledged time deposits 221,076 - Bank
(recognized in other borrowings

financial assets —
non-current)
Pledged time deposits 14,929 15,827  Customs bonds
(recognized in other
financial assets —
non-current)

$ 1,548,914 $ 492,727

Significant Contingent Liabilities and Unrecognized Contract Commitments

The Company’s major commitments and contingencies on the balance sheet date are
as follows:

(1) On November 8, 2017, the Company’s board of directors resolved a decision to
merge with E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company entered into a non-exclusive
patent license agreement and paid a license fee to obtain a patent license related to
solar conductive plasma.

Information on foreign currency assets and liabilities with significant effect

The following information is expressed in aggregate in foreign currencies other than
the Company’s functional currency, and the exchange rates disclosed refer to the rates at
which such foreign currencies are converted to the functional currency. Information on
foreign currency assets and liabilities with significant effect is as follows:

December 31, 2023

Foreign
currency Exchange rate Book value
Foreign-currency assets
Monetary items
USD $ 40,903 30.705 $ 1,255,927
JPY 6,206 0.2172 1,348
RMB 190,680 4.327 825,072
Foreign-currency liabilities

Monetary items
USD 27,391 30.705 841,041
JPY 374,091 0.2172 81,253
RMB 104 4.327 450
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34.

December 31, 2022

Foreign
currency Exchange rate Book value
Foreign-currency assets
Monetary items
USD $ 40,600 30.710 $ 1,246,826
JPY 6,086 0.2324 1,414
RMB 74,099 4.408 326,628
Foreign-currency liabilities

Monetary items
USD 21,015 30.710 645,370
JPY 426 0.2324 99
RMB 400 4.408 1,763

The foreign currency exchange gains (losses) (realized and unrealized) of the

Company amounted to NT$(11,145) thousand and NT$96,133 thousand in 2023 and 2022,

respectively. Due to the wide variety of the functional currencies of the group entities with

foreign currency transaction, it is not possible to disclose the exchange gains or losses by

each currency of significant impact.

Additional Disclosures

(1) Information on major transactions and (2) invested enterprise

1.
2.
3.

Lending funds to others (Exhibit 1)

Endorsement and guarantee for others (Exhibit 2)

Marketable securities held at the end of the period (excluding investment in
subsidiaries, affiliated enterprises and joint ventures) (Exhibit 3)

Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost exceeding
NT$300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital. (None)

Acquisition of real estate exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital
or more. (None)

Disposal of real estate exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or
more. (None)

Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching NT$100 million
or 20% of paid-in capital or more (Exhibit 4)

Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in
capital or more. (Exhibit 5)

Engagement in derivative transactions. (None)
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10. Information on Investees (Exhibit 6)

(3) Information on investment in mainland China

1.  The name of the investees in Mainland China, principal business, paid-in

capital, investment methods, capital outward and inward remittances,

shareholding, investment gains and losses, investment carrying amount at the

end of the period, repatriated investment gains and losses, and investment
quota for Mainland China. (Exhibit 7)
2. Please refer to Exhibits 1 and 2 and Note 30 for the following significant

transactions with Mainland China investees directly or indirectly through third

regions, as well as their prices, payment terms, and unrealized profits or losses.

(M

)

3)

4

6))

(6)

The amount and percentage of purchases and the related ending balance
and percentage of payables.

The amount and percentage of sales and the related ending balance and
percentage of receivables.

The amount of property transactions and the amount of resulting gains or
losses.

The ending balance of endorsement guarantee of bills or the provision of
collateral and its purpose.

The maximum balance, ending balance, interest rate range and total
current interest amount of financial accommodation

Other transactions that have a significant effect on the current profit or

loss or financial position, such as the provision or receipt of services.

(4) Information on major shareholders: Name, number and percentage of shares held by

shareholders with 5% or more of the shares. (Exhibit §)
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Information on major shareholders

December 31, 2023

Exhibit 8
. Shares
Name of major shareholder Number of shares held Shareholding
Gigastorage Corporation 34,982,909 shares 38.07%
Hong-Yang Venture Capital Co., Ltd. 9,265,098 shares 10.08%
Sincere Holding Company 4,686,000 shares 5.09%

Note 1:

Note 2:

The major shareholders in this table are shareholders holding at least 5% of the ordinary
and preference shares (including treasury shares) with dematerialized registration and
delivery completed on the last business day of the quarter calculated by the Taiwan
Depository & Clearing Corporation. Share capital indicated in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements may differ from the actual number of shares that have
been issued and delivered with registration of dematerialized securities completed as a
result of different bases of preparation.

If a shareholder delivers its shareholding information to the trust, the aforesaid
information shall be disclosed by the individual trustee who opened the trust account.
For information on shareholders, who declare to be insiders holding more than 10% of
shares in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act, and their shareholdings
including their shareholdings plus their shares in a trust and shares with the right to

make decisions on trust property, please refer to the MOPS.
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ACCOUNTING ITEMSS§
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Schedule of assets, liabilities and equity items
Schedule of cash and cash equivalents Schedule 1
Schedule of accounts receivable Schedule 2
Schedule of other receivables Note 9
Schedule of inventories Schedule 3
Schedule of prepayment and other current assets Note 16
Schedule of financial assets at fair value through profit Schedule 4
or loss — non-current
Schedule of financial assets at fair value through other Schedule 5
comprehensive income — non-current
Schedule of changes in investment accounted for using Schedule 6
the equity method
Schedule of changes in property, plant and equipment Note 12
Schedule of Changes in Right-of-Use Assets and Schedule 7

Changes in Accumulated Depreciation of
Right-of-Use Assets

Schedule of changes in intangible assets Note 15
Schedule of other non-current assets Note 16
Schedule of short-term borrowings Schedule 8
Schedule of accounts payable Schedule 9
Schedule of long-term borrowings Schedule 10
Schedule of lease liabilities Schedule 11
Schedule of profit or loss items

Schedule of operating revenues Schedule 12
Schedule of operating costs Schedule 13
Schedule of operating expenses Schedule 14
Schedule of other income and expenses Note 23
Summary of employee benefits, depreciation and Schedule 15

amortization expense by function incurred during the

period
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation

Schedule of cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2023

Schedule 1 Units: NTD thousands, unless otherwise
stated
Item Abstract Amount
Cash on hand and $ 562
petty cash
Demand deposits 176,152
Demand deposits in Including US$8.069 thousand 328,694
foreign (exchange rate of 1 USD: 30.705
currencies NTD), 18,400 thousand CNY
(exchange rate of 1 CNY : 4.3270
NTD), and 6,011 thousand JPY
(exchange rate 1 JPY : 0.2172
NTD)
Cash equivalents
Time deposits Including US$9,000 thousand 276,345
in foreign (exchange rate of 1 USD: 30.705
currencies NTD), due in January 2024 at an
interest rate of 5.25%~5.28%.
$781,753
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation

Schedule of accounts receivable

December 31, 2023

Schedule 2 Unit: NTD thousand
Customer name Amount
Not-related party
Customer A $173,138
Customer B 58,872
Customer C 53,298
Customer D 47,733
Customer E 32,845
Customer F 30,511
Others (Note 1) 128,426
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (_173,156)
351,667
Related party
Yancheng Giga Solar Materials 127,565
Corporation
Other related party (Note 1) 3,832
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts ( 38)
131,359
$483,026

Note 1: The balance of each party does not exceed 5% of the balance of the account.
Note 2: An allowance for losses on overdue accounts receivable of NT$173,194 thousand

has been provided.
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Schedule of inventories

December 31, 2023

Schedule 3 Unit: NTD thousand
Amount

Item Costs Net realizable value
Raw materials $694,937 $704,625
Work in process 12,668 13,156
Finished goods 8,725 9,010
Merchandise 3 5
$716,333 $726,796
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation

Schedule of changes in accumulated depreciation of right-of-use assets

January 1 to December 31, 2023

Schedule 7

Costs
Balance on January 1, 2023
Disposal
Balance as of December
31,2023

Accumulated depreciation
Balance on January 1, 2023
Depreciation
Disposal
Balance as of December

31,2023

Net as of December 31, 2023

Unit: NTD thousand

Houses and Transportation

buildings equipment Total

$ 248,613 $ 416 $ 249,029

(__164,254) - (__164,254)
84,359 416 84,775
80,833 46 80,879
20,101 139 20,240

(__68.363) - (__68.363)
32,571 185 32,756

$ 51,788 $ 231 $ 52,019
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Schedule of short-term borrowings

December 31, 2023

Schedule 8 Units: NTD thousands, unless otherwise stated
Circumstance
Borrowing Interest range  of pledge and
Name balance Borrowing period (%) guarantee
Line of credit borrowings
Shin Kong $ 100,000 2023.11.20~2024.01.20 1.830 None
Commercial Bank
Taiwan Cooperative 50,000 2023.12.25~2024.03.25 2.002 None
Bank
Chang Hwa 50,000 2023.11.20~2024.05.20 1.860 None
Commercial Bank
Borrowings from related
parties
Yonghe Branch, 80,364 2023.10.03~2024.10.03 2.500 None
Taipower
$ 280,364

Note: As of December 31, 2023, the Company has unused short-term loan lines of NT$1,739,700 thousand.
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Schedule of accounts payable
December 31, 2023
Schedule 9

Supplier name
Not-related party
Supplier A
Others (Note)

Related party
Long Time Tech. Co., Ltd.
Yancheng Giga Solar Materials
Corporation
Ho Mi Specialty Materials Corporation

Unit: NTD thousand

Amount

$205,347
25,411
230,758

305
215

3
523

$231,281

Note: The balance of each party does not exceed 5% of the balance of the account.
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Schedule 11

Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Schedule of lease liabilities
December 31, 2023

Units: Unless otherwise specified

NTS§ thousand
Name Lease period Discount rate Amount
Buildings From 2021.06 to 1.35% $ 42,842
2021.12

Transportation From 2022.9 to 1.47% 233

equipment 2025.8

Total 43,075

Less: Lease liabilities — (__14,134)

current
Lease liabilities — $ 28,941

non-current
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Schedule of operating revenues
January 1 to December 31, 2023
Schedule 12

Item Quantity

Unit; NTD thousand

Amount

Conductive paste 49 thousand barrels

Others

401

$ 1,767,904
137,389

$ 1,905,293



Giga Solar Materials Corporation
Schedule of operating costs

January 1 to December 31, 2023

Schedule 13 Unit: NTD thousand
Item Amount
Merchandise
Inventory at the beginning of the year $ -
Purchases during this year 125
Inventories at the end of the year ( 3)
Cost of purchases and sales 122
Cost of goods sold for self-produced products
Raw materials at the beginning of the
year 532,542
Purchases during this year 1,802,431
Sales of raw materials (  155,239)
Transfer to expenses ( 82,328)
Raw materials at the end of the year (___704,228)
Raw materials consumed during this year 1,393,178
Direct laborers 22,502
Manufacturing overheads 193.975
Manufacturing costs 1,609,655
Work in process at the beginning of the
year 10,824
Transfer to expenses ( 40,631)
Work in process at the end of the year ( 14,388)
Cost of finished goods 1,565,460
Finished goods at the beginning of the
year 37,487
Transfer to expenses ( 2,740)
Finished goods at the end of the year ( 9.220)
Cost of production and sales 1,590,987
Cost of raw materials sold 155.239
Gain on reversal of loss on decline in value of
inventories ( 1.471)
Income from sales of scraps ( 4,104)
Others 56,384
Operating costs $1,797,157
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Schedule 14

Giga Solar Materials Corporation

Schedule of operating expenses

January 1 to December 31, 2023

Unit; NTD thousand

Marketing Administration
Item expenses expenses R&D expenses
Royalty expense $ 85,054 $ - $ 340
Commissions expense 46,609 - -
Sample expense 12,124 - -
Salary expenses 8,618 46,592 75,212
Service expenses 135 9,502 1,375
Depreciation expense - 15,801 23,509
Remuneration for directors - 3,020 -
Experiment and testing - - 63,369
expense
Utilities expenses - 963 14,123
Others (Note) 13,515 35.342 36,631
$ 166,055 $ 111,220 $ 214,559

Note: The balance of each item does not exceed 5% of the balance of the account.
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Giga Solar Materials Corporation

Summary of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expense by function incurred during the period

Schedule 15

January 1 to December 31, 2023 and 2022
Unit: NTD thousand

2023 2022
Those Those Those Those
belonging to  belonging to belonging to  belonging to
operating operating operating operating
costs expenses Total costs expenses Total
Employee benefit expenses
Salary expenses $ 48,022 $ 130,422 $ 179,044 $§ 46,611 § 128,703 $ 175,314
Employee insurance
expenses 5,464 11,468 16,932 5,311 11,488 16,799
Pension 2,380 5,898 8,278 2,298 5,602 7,900
Remuneration for
directors - 3,020 3,020 - 2,850 2,850
Share-based payments - 1,264 1,264 4,328 22,642 26,970
Other employee
benefit expenses 3,167 6,606 9,773 3,385 6,983 10,368
$§ 59,633 $ 158,678 $ 218,311 § 61,933 $ 178,268 $ 240,201
Depreciation expense § 57211 § 39310 $§ 96,521 $§ 43,723 $§ 38,242 § 81,965
Amortization expenses $ - $ 449 $ 449 $ - $ 282 $ 282

Note 1: The number of employees was 243 and 234 for this year and the previous year, of which the number of directors

who was not also employees was 10 for both years.

Note 2: Companies whose shares are listed on TWSE or TPEx should disclose additional information on the following:

(1)

)

€)

(4)

The average employee benefit expense for the current year was NT$924 thousand (“Total employee benefit
expense for the current year - Total directors’ remuneration” / “Number of employees for the current year -
Number of directors who did not also serve as employees”).

The average employee benefit expense for the previous year was NT$1,060 thousand (“Total employee
benefit expense for the previous year - Total directors’ remuneration” / “Number of employees for the
previous year - Number of directors who did not also serve as employees™).

The average employee salary expense for the current year was NT$768 thousand (“Total salary expense for
the current year” / “Number of employees for the current year - Number of directors who did not also serve as
employees”™).

The average employee salary expense for the previous year was NT$783 thousand (“Total salary expense for
the previous year” / “Number of employees for the previous year - Number of directors who did not also serve
as employees”™).

Change in average employee salary expense adjustment of (1.92)% (“Average employee salary expense for
the current year - Average employee salary expense for the previous year” / Average employee salary expense
for the previous year)

The Company established an audit committee on June 2, 2015, so there were no supervisors in place during
2023 and 2022.

(Continued on next page)

404



(Continued from previous page)

(5) Please state the Company’s remuneration policy (including directors, managers, and employees):

The Company’s remuneration policy is to provide all employees with compensation and benefits that
are at least in line with the average salary level compared to the relevant industry, in order to attract talented
and stable employees to continue to work for the Company. Employee compensation includes monthly
salaries, quarterly bonuses for operational performance, and employee profit sharing remuneration based on
annual profitability. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company shall set aside
4% to 8% as employee profit sharing remuneration and no more than 3% as director remuneration if the
Company makes a profit in the year. The amount and distribution method shall be proposed by the
Remuneration Committee to the board meeting and approved by the board meeting for payment. Each
employee’s allocated employee profit sharing remuneration is determined based on individual duties,

contributions, and performance.
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